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Today, imagery is doing more than ever
to unite and inform the world community.

Within minutes, we’re able to share
mankind’'s deepest conflicts, proudest

moments and finest creative achlevements
with people continents away. .

And no company has done m\or‘e to create
and drive this reality than Getty§mages.
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Letter to Stockholders

To Getty Images Stockholders:

Images are more powerlul than ever. As our one truly
global language, images do whai words cannot and play
aunique role In communications, business and soclety.
Images tell us the story of humanlty and ask us ¢ think.
Images unile us and divide us. In thisdigiicl age, images
are everywhere. Communicators and creators the world
over enjoy using images with g degree ot access and ease
hat was unimaginable just a decade ago. Photos and
fooiage that might have been lost lorever are now within
easy reach ¢f a wired and wireless world. Technology
allows unforgetiable images of mankind's deepest
conflicts and proudest achievements 1o reach the eyes

ot an interested world within moments.

Ne¢ company has donée more o creale, participate in
and drive this reality than Gelly Images.

innovation has always been tront and center at
Getlty Images, inherent in everything we do — and
innovation s our key tocus tor 2007,

2006 Yeqr in Review

For 2006, Getty Images reported record revenue of $807
million, represenling year-over-year growih of 10 percent.
We grew 8 percent In Creative stills, 17 percent in Editorial
imagery and 13 percent in Foolage. in the Americas, we
grew 7 percent; in Europe, 11 perceni; and in Asia Pacitic.
23 percent. Although we had an excellent year, we did not
achieve the levels of revenue growth that we had planned.

Getty Images generated cash trom operations of $269
million and, atter 562 million used tor capital expenditures,
tree cash flow of $207 million. We ended the year with 5339
millien in cash, atter spending a tolal of $406 million on
acquisttions and share repurchases. We were pleased to
exceed our original targets tor free cash flow and fo end
the year with such a healthy balance sheet.

had several notable achievemenis lo celobrate:

* Innovation with a new license model: Volumes and
prices have tar exceeded our expecialions Ior cur new
rights-ready license model. We crealed the rights-ready
model in response o our customers' desire for a simplified
and flexible licensing method thal would enable them

to get the best imagery with little hassle. There Is a good
deal of growth potential here and we 100k forward 10
seelng more progress with rights-ready and other
innovative new licensing models,

* Embracing user-generated stock photography:
In February, we acquired the ploneer and leader in
user-generaied photography, iSiockpholo. We spent the
year bullding the business and expanding its product
line, services and international reach. Because social
media and community have an important role o
play in the overall mix of products and services that
our customers need. we will continue bullding on the
innovation of the team al iStockphoto, expanding the
business and the model turther in 2007 and beyond.

« Strong Editorial imagery growth: Our innovation in
Editorial imagery over the years conlinues to reap
benelils. Revenue trom entertainment imagery grew
over 40 percenl for the year. News and sporl imagery
also had a wondertful year with a record number of
industiry awards, including the prestigious 2006 World
Press Photo of the Year. It was a banner year [or revenue,
industry recognition and growth. We have continued
this momentum in 2007,

* International growth: We had growth in several key
international markets, including Japan. Germany. Austria,
France. Spain, China and Switzerland, all with percentage
growlh rates In excess of {otal company revenue growth.
We still see enormous potential for Getty Images, across
all products and services. around the world.

+ Strategic acquisitions: In 2006, we made a number
of strategic acquisitions, including our largest image
pariner, Stockbyte, bringing in-house a leading, wholly
owned royalty-iree collection, as well as micro-payment
pioneer {Stockphoto.

These achievements ook place against the backdrop

of an industry thal s constantly changing. primarily
due to the Impact of technology. the continued movement
of advertising and communication to online plattorms,
and the resultant shifts In our customers’ purchasing
patterns. Widespraad adoption of broadband is helping
drive the growth of new communication platforms,
resulting in changes in the method and frequency with
which our customer base of media, publishing and
advertising companies communicate with their
audiences. These changes are leading 10 a much
greater dermnand (or imagery.

We embrace change at Getty Images and have led most
of the changes in our industry. Through this innovation,
and by focusing on our 2007 tnitiatives, we will condinue
1o extend our lead. The future of our company will be
characterfzed by growth that is driven by continuous
innovation and a dedication 10 serving our customenrs.




2007 Iniiiatives

Qur overriding objeclive tor 2007 s lo innovate conlinucusly
in the way we serve customers. the way we opergle and

the way we grow. Gelty Images is always lisiening to and
learning trom our cusiomers, who want and need new
products and new services, It remalins our mission (o provide
these in every market, on every platiorm and at every

price point.

Our key Initiatives for 2007 are:

Exceed cusiomer expectations with the new
gettyimages.com: Early in 2007, we recefved rave
reviews when we launched the Editorial section of the
new gettylmages.com with its innovattve and customer-
friendly teatures. We lock forward to the Imminent launch
of our dll-encompassing site, which combines both
Editorial and Creative products and services. This new
site will have a significant impact on our business and
our customers’' work lives, and will further InCrease an
already subsiantial lead in our Indusiry and in this area
of our business. Getty Images remains synonymous with
Ihe best experience for search, purchase and download
ot imagery globally.

Evolve and grow {Stockphoto aggrossively:
{Stockphoto is the indusiry leader in the micro-payment
segmeni. where user-generated content is avatlable for
commercial license. The amount of siill iImagery and
loolage uploaded 1o the site continues to accelerale,
and the high traffic and volumes of licenses we generate
speak to the staying power of this segment of the
markeiplace, Whal began as an English-only website
has evolved into a mullilanguage- and multicurrency-
enabled site, and we are Just getting started. We

have plans to Introduce new products and licensing
models through istockphoto.com to further drive the
overall growth of Getty Images.

Drive extensions and enhdancements to current
products and services: This is already a big year for
exlensions and enhancements (o our product and
service otferings. in the Creative imagery area, we
continue to bulld lhe recenily introduced righls-ready
Heensing model. The earty success of this new model is
encouraging. Furthermore, in early 2007, we inlroduced
a customizable subscription service that connects
customers instantly to the content that meels thelr image
needs, Premium Access simplities customer workllow
by sireamliining image licensing, billing and access

to high-quality content. Quite simply, Premium Access
glves customers the exact subscription that they wanit,

The growth In our entertalnment Imagery was very
strong 1n 2006. and has continued into 2007. Through

our Industry-leading site, Getty Images has made
enterialnment and celebrily imagery accessible,

with single-image e-commerce. (0 Q growing global
ertertainment marketplace. In April. we were delighted
to acquire Wirelmage. By combining our two companies’
respected pholographers. entertainment and event
innovation. and valuable customer relationships, we will
be able lo continue our growth in enlertainment and
celebrity imagery. Furthermore, Wirelmage has brought
us some excellent management. wonderful brands and
great products, including audio. video and podcasts.

It is our goal o offer products at all price points on all
platiorms 1o ¢il cusiomer segments. The acquisition of
iStockphoto last year brought us closer to accomplishing
this goal, allowing us 1o ofter user-generated content for
customers who are new o licensing imagery. We are
enthusiastic about the prospects tor our tasl-growing
e-commerce-driven social media business.

We recently acquired PunchStock, a leading distributor

of royulty-free imagery. in order to accelerate the
execution of our multisiie strategy. Our goal with this
mullisite stralegy Is to meel the diverse demands and
needs of cur customers. We must be prepared 1o provide
our customers with the conten! and service they need at
prices that tit thelr projects. In the Creative imagery space,
we now have:

+ gettylmages.com — the de taclo home page
tor creattve and publishing professionals, wilth
unparalleled breadth and depth. the highest-quallty
imagery in the world and best-of-Class search
technology.

+ punchstock.com — PunchStock offers cusiorners
professional-quality, model-relecsed imagery with
simple. straighfforward licensing. We plan to continue
providing solid imagery and other relevant diglial
content with an emphasls on value.

» istockphoto.com
We are exclied about these additions and enhancements

o our current offering and have mxiny more in the
pipeline.




+ Drive our Footage and Multimedia product: We recently
creqied a Footage and Multimedia division to emphasize
our commitment to this areq of the business. This team is
responsible tor growing our tootage collections, attracting
new customers, driving the development of a new
foolage website and advancing other technological
improvements.

Our focus going forward 15 to capitalize on the worldwide
opportunity presented by the exponential growth of
multimedia content tor onitne and mobile platiorms,
leveraging our comprehensive and largely wholly
owned editorial photography lo new and existing
panners. We already ofter moblle device applicatiions,
conten! Hcensing to media partners and device
manufacturers, and Information service applications

to carriers, and we recently added Wireimage's editorial
lootage 10 our range of services.

Monetize cur assets and traffic beyond the image
licensing business: Getty Images is a respecied brand
and a trusted pariner, and this represents significant
opportunities to align with other respected brands to bulld
our company beyond business-to-business imagery. It is
clear that consumers enjoy viewing our broad and deep
porttolio, and we are exploring avenues to levenage this
tratiic through advertising, subscription and e-commerce.
We are aiso looking closely al opportunities tor business-
to-business music licensing. We hope to be able to tell you
about exciting developmenits here soon.

The common thread In each 0f these Inltiatives Is our
dedlication o innovation. We will continue (o deltver new
tools, producis and services 1o Inspire our customers and
prospective customers in new ways — giving them more
cholces and a world-class experience when working
with us. It ts this dedication to innovation and serving
our customers that will continue to drive the growth of
our bus!ness.

The investments we have made (n 2007 in our webslies,
our product enhancements. our acquistiions and our
people are all testaments 1o our focus on growth and
innowatton. We are exciled about the progress we have
made and the opportunities chead of us.

Asthe role of Imegery expands, 50 do we. Wherever visual
conient sells a product, advances a message or motivates
people to learn more. Geity Images is there. The team here
is energized and enthusiastic about the next chapler of
growth and innovation.

Allthe best,

Jonathan Klein
Co-Founder and CEQ

This letier 1o stockholdens contains forwand-looking staterments. Pleasa refer 10 the “Risk
Factors™ section of tha endlosed Annual Report on Form 10-K,
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NOTE REGARDING FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS

The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides a safe harbor for forward-looking statements made by or on behalf of Gelly Images,
Inc. We may, from lime o tlime, make wrilten or oral stalements that are “forward-looking.” including Statements contained in this Annual Report
on Form 10-K, the documents incorporated herein by reference, and other documents filed with, and furnished to, the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Examples of such fotward-looking statements include, but are not imited (o, the statements concerning lrends in revenue, costs
and expenses, fiquidity and capital respurces: our acCounting estimates, assumptions and judgments; the impact of the restatement of our histor-
ical financial staterments in connection with the Special Commitiee investigation and management's internal review of our historical equity award
gran! practices and other remedial actions to be taken in conpnection therewith; the impact of the new accounting rules and pronouncements
related to the expensing of slock oplions: our business plans relaling to each of our products. services and business segments; our ability to
identify, attract and satisfy the different needs and purchase considerations of our customers; our abilily fo scate our Operations in response fo
changing demands and expeclations of our customers; the level of demand for our products and services; the impact of our recent business
acquisitions and owr ability to infegrale new operations successiully; the compelitive nature of and anticipated growth in our markets: our abifity to
fmaintain our compelitive position in the industry: the culcome of the ongeing government inquicy and pending litigation regarding our historical
equity award grant practices, as well as the claims of default under the indenture governing our 0.5% convertible subordinated debentures, and
the impac! thereof on our business; and our prospective needs for, and anticipated source of, additional capital and our ability to secure such
additional capital. The foregoing and other forward-looking statements can often be identified by words such as “anticipate,” “befieve,” “plan,”
“astimate, " “expect,” “seek,” “intend.” “predicl,” “may.” "might,” “should,” "would,” “Could,” "potential,” “continue,” “ongoing, * and simiiar
expressions, and variations or negatives of these and other similar words. Such forward-fooking statements are based on our curment expectations,
assumptions and projections abaut Gelty images, Inc. and its industry and are made on the bazis of our views as of the lime the stalemenis are
made. These forward-looking statements are not guarantees of fulure performance and are subject [0 certain risks and uncerlainties that are
difficull 1o predict and that could cause our actual results 1o differ materiafly and adversely from Our past performance and gur current expect-
ations, assumptions and projections. Differences may result from actions taken by us as well as from risks and uncertainties beyond our control.
Potential risks and uncertainties include, among others, those set forth in Part I, ltem 1A. “Risk Factors™ as well as in Part il, ltlem 7.
“Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financist Condition and Results of Operations.” Except as required by law, we underiake no obligation
{o update any forward-iooking statement, whether as a result of new information, future developments or olherwise. Readers should carefully
review the factors set forth in other reports or documents that we file with, and furnish to, the Securities and Exchange Commission from time o
time.

in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, "Gelty Images, " “the company.” “we,” “us.” and “our" refar to Getty Images, Inc. and its consolidated sub-
sidiaries, uniess the confext Otherwise dictates.

EXPLANATORY NOTE

This Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-K/A (this *“Amendment™) amends our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2006 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 13, 2007 (the “Original Filing"). This Amendment
is being filed solely \o correct certain information regarding shares of our common stock beneficially owned by Getty Investments
L.L.C. {("Getty Investments”) contained in Item 12 of Part ili. Footnotes 2, 7 and B of the beneficial ownership 1able in Item 12 of

Part Hl have also been revised. The Original Filing had erroneously included the shares owned by the October 1993 Trust (the

*1993 Trust") and the Abacus Trust Company (Isle ol Man) as Tiustee of the J D Klein Family Settlement {“Abacus”) pursuant to the
Getty Parties Shareholders’ Agreement in the tolal number of shares owned by Getly Investments, The Getty Parties Shareholders’
Agreement expired in accordance with its lerms prior 10 the date of the Origina! Filing. Accordingly, the shares owned by the

1993 Trust and Abacus are no fonger deemed beneficially owned by Getty investments.

in addition, we are including with this Amendment currently dated Section 302 certifications.

Except as described above, no other changes have been made to the Original Filing. This Amendment continues to speak as of the
date of the Qriginal Filing, and we have nol updated the disclosures contained therein 10 reflect any events that occurred subsequent
to the date of the Original Filing. The filing of this Amendment is not a representation that any statements contained in this Amend-
ment are true or complete as of any date subsequent to the Originai Filing.
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EXPLANATORY NOTE REGARDING RESTATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K for our fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 includes restatements of the folfowing previously filed
financial statements and data (and related disclosures), which resuited primarily from recording additional compensation expense due
1o changes in the measurement dates of certain equity award grants that were made as a result of the internal investigation into our
historical equity award granl practices and modifications previously made to certain granted equity awards: {1) our consolidated finan-
cial statements for our fiscal years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004; (2} our selected consolidated financial data for our fiscal
years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, 2003 and 2002, and (3} cur unaudited quarlerly financial data for each quarter in our fiscal
year ended December 31, 2005 and the first and second quarters of fiscal year 2006. We have filed amended Quarterly Reports on
Form 10-Q/A for the quariers ended March 31, 2006 and June 30, 2006 1o reflect the restatements. See Note 2, “Reslatement of
Consolidated Financial Statements and Special Committee and Company Findings,” 1o our Consolidated Financial Statements and
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Conditicn and Resulls of Operations” in Part 1), llem 7 of this Annual Repori for
a more detailed discussion of the effect of the restatements.

As announced on November 9, 2006, a Special Committee was estabtished by cur Board of Directors 1o conduct an independent
investigation relating to the company’s equity compensation grant practices and related accounting for equily compensation granls,
The Special Committee consisted of two independent memtbers of our Board of Directors who wera assisted In their investigation by
independent outside legal counsel.

Together with its independent counsel, the Special Commiltes conducted an extensive review of equity compensation grant practices
and awards made by the company, or in connection with companies wa acquired, between July 14, 1994 and November 1, 2006 (the
*Relevant Period™), which covered 7,102 stock option grants and 1,062 restricted stock unit (*“RSU") grants made on 465 occasions.
During the invesligation, numerous documents were reviewed, and extensive interviews of current and former employees and direc-
tors of the company and other individuals were conducted by the Special Commiitee's independent counsel. On April 10, 2007, the
Special Committee presented its findings to the Board of Directors.

As also announced on November 9, 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC") had earlier nolified us that it is
conductling an informal inquiry into the company's equity compensation grant practices. We continue lo cooperate fully with the SEC
in this informal inquiry.

We have not amended and do not inlend to amend any of our previously filed Annual Reports on Form 10-K or Quarterly Reports on
Form 10-Q for the periods affected by the restatements other than through this document, except for the 2006 Quarterly Reports on
Form 10-Q for the quarters ended March 31, 2006 and June 30, 2006. Previously filed financial statements lor fiscal years ended
1998 through 2005, 1he interim periods contained therein, together with ail earnings and other press refeases containing our financiat
information for those periods and ihe earnings releases for the 2006 quarters ended March 31, 2006, June 30, 2006, September 30,
2006 and December 31, 2006 shoutd not be relied upeon.

The Special Committee’s Conclusions

The Special Commitiee concluded that the evidence obtained and reviewed in its investigation did not establish any intentional wrong-
doing by current employees, officers or directors of the company. The Special Commitlee and the company's management have
determined that incorrect measurement dates for certain equity compensation awards were used for financial accounting purposes
and certain previously issued grants were modified without properly recording compensalion expense and, as a result, we are reslal-
ing certain of our prior financial statements to correct the accounting for those awards. The use of incorrect measurement dates
resuited from a number of reasons, including delays in the approval of awards, the absence of definitive documentation and mod-
ifications of previously awarded grants. The Special Commiltee also identified certain awards for which grant dates were selected
retroactively. However, the Special Committee has con¢luded that the evidence does no! establish that there was any intentional
wrongdolng in connectlion with those awards. Neariy all of the grants for which the measurement dates have been changed
(approximately 99% of the grants) were awarded in 2001 and earlier years,

n addition to the adjustments to our previously filed financial statements as described above, the Board of Directors has adopted Lhe
following recommendations of the Special Committee. .

¢ Two additional Independent directors will be recruited and appointed Lo the company's Board of Directors.

o Membership of the Audit and Compensation Committees of the Board of Directors will be changed.
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« The Equity Compensation Commitiee has been discontinued.

+ Enhancements will be made in the oversight of the company's corporate governance practices with respect 10 the company's equity compen-
sation programs, '

* Senior management will be charged with ensuring that the equity compensation policies and processes are appropriate and provide effec-
tive controls, and that the company's accounting for equity compensation is appropriale,

s Certain of the company's equity compensation administrative processes and functions will move from the company's human resources
organization to the finance organization. under the supervision of the Chief Financial Offizer,

s The Board of Direclors unanimously adopted an Equity Compensation Grant Policy on April 10, 2007, which provides, among ather things.
that:
» All terms of each equity grant must be finaiized and approved by the Board of Directors or the Compensation Committee on or prior to
the grant date;

» Al stock options must have an exercise price equal 10 of greater than the average of the high and low market price on the grant date;
« Al recipients of equity grants must be notified, in wriling, of such grants as soon as passible following approval; and

* Any equity compensalion issues or actions will be reported by senior management on a timely basis to the Board of Directors or the
Compensation Commitiee, ng fess frequently than quarterly.

Background

Between 1994 and 1996, the Board of Directors granted stock options to Getty Communications {Getty Images’ predecessor) employ-
ees and in conneclion with acquisitions, including grants 10 employees and ofticers of acquired companles. From 1996 to 1998, the
Compensation Committee had the authority to, and did, grant options 1o employees, oflicers and dlrecters. From August 1998 through
2001, the Compensation Committee continued to grant options to execulive officers, ard created option “pools™ from which the Chief
Executive Officer and Senior Vice Presidents were authorized 1o grant aptions to emplovees and non-executive officers. These pools
were used by the execulive officers to grant options in connection with the hiring and promotion of employees or as incentive awards.
In August 2001, the Board of Directors created the Stock Option Committee, appointing Chief Executive Officer Jonathan Kleln as the
sole member with delegated authorily to grant optiens to employees and non-executive officers. 1n 2005, the Stock Option Committee
was renamed the Equity Compensation Commitlee, and we moved 1o primarily granting RSUs rather than options.

A total of 7,102 option grants and 1,062 RSU grants were awarded during the Relevant Period, as follows:

« “Pool options” in which “pools” of options were approved by the Compensation Committee for later grant 10 employees by executive officers
(2,277 grants).

« “Acquisilion oplion grants” in which options were granted by the Board of Directors or Compensation Committee o employees and ofiicers
in connection with aur acquisition of other companies and in which outslanding options Feld by employees of acquired companies were
exchanged for Getty Images options at pre-determined conversion ratios (1,464 granis),

« “Other oplion grants™ which cover all remaining Stock option grants during the Retevant Ferlod (3,361 grants).

+ "RSU grants” in which RSUs were granted by the Equity Compensation Committee, the Compensation Commitiee and the Board of Direc-
tors to employees, officers and directors {1,062 grants).

The Special Committee and the company have deteimined that il is necessary to revise the measurement dates for approximately
45% of these awards (“Adjusted Options"). Over half of the awards for which the measurement date is being revised relate to the
company's only all employee grant in February of 2000 to employees below the vice president level. In addition, the measurement
dates for many awards were revised due to: {i) the use of the date of the approval of a pool of options as the measurement date as
opposed to the date that the terms of each grant were finalized; {ii) the use of the date that a Unanimous Written Consent approving
equity awards was faxed to Compensation Committee members for their approval, rather than the date when the approvals of the
Compensation Commitiee members had been faxed back, as the measurement date for the associated grants; and (iii) the absence of
a detailed list of recipients and associated grants prior to the date certain granis were entered into our equity award tracking system.

We previously applied Accounting Principles Board ("AP8B") Opinion Ng. 25, "Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees.” and its
related Interpretations and provided the required pro torma disclosures under Statement of Financial Accounting Standargs ("SFAS")
No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” through our liscal year ended December 31, 2005, We have used the accel-
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erated method of expensing stock options provided in Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretalion No. 28, "Accounting for
Stock Apprecialion Rights and Other Yariable Stock Option or Award Plans” for recording expense and for our pro forma disclosures.
Under APB Opinion No. 25, a non-cash, stock-based compensation expense was reguired 1o be recognized for any option for which
the exercise price was below the market price an the measurement date. Because most of the company's Adjusted Options had an
exercise price below the market price on the measurement date, there should have been a non-cash charge for each of these options
under APB Opinion No. 25 equal to the number of option shares, multiplied by the difference between the exercise price and lhe
market price on the measurement date. That expense shauld have been amorized over the service pericd of the option.

The company also reviewed madifications made ta previously granted options and determined that we did not record the appropriate
amount of compensation expense for some of the modifications (*Modified Options®). We did not record the appropriate amount of
stock-based compensation expense under APB Opinion No. 25 related to Adjusted or Modified Options in our previously issued finan-
cial statements, and are recording these expenses in this Annual Report cn Form 10-K.

The rastaterments included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K include equity compensation adjustments arising from the Special
Commitiee investigation and management's internal review, as well as from deferred tax adjustments related {¢ centain long-term
intercompany loans and adjustments to revenue and deferred revenue that were previously considered immaterial to our Consolidated
Financial Statements. The income statement impact of the restatement is as follaws:

Cumulative

Total affect at effect s

YEARS ENDED Decomber 31, Decamber 31,
DECEMBER 31, 2008 20058 2004 2003 2003 1002 2001 2000 199% 1998

(in thousangs)

Net income, as
previously
reporied $ 149,703 % 106,650
Additional
compensation
Texpe'ns.e::1 $ (27.209) $ (27,204) % {1,294) $ (2,706) $ (4,784) § (15,710} % (2,481) $ (229)
ax relate
effects 7,862 (128} 7,990 1,814 676 1,110 3,847 500 43

Additional
compensation
expense, net
oohl tax! {19,342) (128} (19,214}$ 520 $ (2,030} § (3,674) $ (11,863) § (1,981) § (i86)
ther
adjustments,
net of tax (727) (342) (110} (275}

Tolat decrease
in net income  $ {20,069) (342) (238} $ (19,489)

Net income, as
restated $ 149,361 § 106,412

! Amounts resulted from improper measurement dates for stock awards and medifications.

The table below shows the after-tax compensation expense as originally reported, the amount of the additional compensation expense
and the resiated compensation expense for all years that were restated.

AFTER-TAX COMPENSATION EXPENSE 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1958
(In thousanas}

As Reported $(302) $ (23} & (1720 &% — % (814} § —
Adjustment 520 {2,030} {3,674} (11,863) {1,981} (186)
As Restated $ 218 $ (2053} § (3,846) § (11,863) § (2,795} $ (186)

Equity-based compensation is not deductible for carporate income tax purpases In most countries. The after-tax amounts in the table reflect reduc-
tion of compensation expense for tax benefits [n the United States in afl years and in the United Kingdom in 2003. For the United Kingdom prior to
2003 and for al other countries in alt years, there is no tax benefit recorded for Ihe assoclated compensation expense.
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in addition, in 2001, we analyzed our existing net deferred tax assets (OTAs) and determined that not all the existing DTAs would be
realized over the period covered by our analysis and therefore recorded a valuation allowance equal to approximately $12 million. We
performed a similar analysis in 2002 and as a result, increased the valuation allowance associated with the exercise of employee
stock aptions in 2002 to $15.1 millien. In 2003, we updated our estimate of future taxable income and determined that it was now
mare likely than not that we would realize more of the DTA than the net balance at Decamber 31, 2003. Therefore, we reduced our
valuation allowance by $25.3 miilion, including the $15.1 million related to stock option exercises. We reviewed the valuation allow-
ance in light of the restatement of equity-based compensation and determined that an additional valuation allowance of $4.9 million
should e recorded at December 31, 2001 and then released at December 31, 2003,

As noted above, we have also made two adjustments to deferred tax assets that were previously considered immaterial. The first item
related to the accounting for unrealized foreign currency gains and ipsses on long-term intercompany loans between our United States
and United Kingdom subsidiaries. We incorrectly recorded deferred tax assets on the unrealized foreign currency gains and losses in
the United Kingdom from 1999 to 2005, instead of recording them as part of the net foreign currency translation adjustments (losses)
gains within accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). The second item related o an intercompany loan eslablished in 2005
for which we did not include the unrealized gains or losses in taxable income, causing cur deferred taxes related to our net operaling
losses to be misstated and olher comprehensive income to 2150 be misstated.

The revenue and deferred revenue adjustment relates to fees paid by photographers for making certain of their images availabie for
license on our website for two years. We had previously recognized these fees when received. as they were previously considered
immaterial, and are now recognizing the fees ratably over the two year period. resulting 1n a decrease in revenue and an increase in
deferred revenue in the periods reported herein.

In addition, we evaluated the impact of the restalements on our consolidaled tax provision. The company and our subsidiaries file tax
returns in numerous tax jurisdictions around the world. In the United States for all years reflected above and the United Kingdom in
2003 and subsequent years, we are able to claim a tax deduction relating to stock options exercised. In those jurisdictions where a
tax deduction will be altowed, we have recorded deferred tax assets to reflect future tax «leductions to the extent we believe such
assets to be recoverable. In addition, we also determined thal, as a result of the changes in the measurement dates, we should not
have iaken 8 deduction in the US in prior years lor stock option related amounts pertaining 10 Cerlain executives under the Internal
Revenue Code Section 162(m). Section 162{m) limits ihe deductibility of compensation above certain thresholds. As a result, our tax
liabilities have increased by approximately $2.4 million.

if certain of the Adjusted or Modified Dptions are not repriced. the holders of such options will, upon exercise of the optians, incur
personal income taxes and penalties in accordance with Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 409A (and other state tax laws) beyond
what they would have incurred were the options not adjusted or modified. Certain of these oplions have already been exercised and
therefore incremental taxes and penalties have been incurred by the holders, while other atfected options remain outstanding. We are
currently evaluating the company's position with respect to reimbursing empioyees for incremental taxes and penalties incurred and
to potentiatly repricing the alfected options that remain cutstanding. If the company takes such actions it wilt result in a charge lo
compensation expense in the period the decision is made or the expense is incurred, as applicable.

This restatement did not affect cash provided by operating aclivities in our consolidated statements of cash fiows.
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PART |

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Overview of the Business

Getty Images, In¢. was founded in 1995 and is a leading creator and distributor of visual content and one of the first places creative
professionals turn 10 discover, license and manage imagery. The company's award-winning photographers and imagery help custom-
ers create inspiring work which appears every day in the world's most influential newspapers, magazines, adverlising campaigns,
films, television programs, books and websites. Headquartered in Seattle, Washington and serving customers in mare than 100 coun-
wries, Getty Images believes in the power of imagery Lo drive posilive change, educate, inform, and entertain. We deliver our products
digitally via the Internet and CDs. Our imagery Is ficensed through company-owned offices, a global network of delegates, who act as
sales agents where we don't have wholly-owned offices, and distributors. We pioneered the solution to aggregate and distribute visual
content and, since 1995, have brought many of the visual content industry’s leading imagery onto getlyimages.com and in 2006
added istockphoto.com.

We provide high quality, retevant imagery 1o; creative professionals at advertlsing agencies, graphic design firms, corporations, film
and broadcasting companies; editorial cusiomers invoived in newspaper, magazine, book, CD and online publishing; and corporate
marketing depaniments and other business customers. By aggregating the content of our various leading imagery colleclions on the
Internet and partnering with other imagery providers, we offer a comprehensive and user-friendly solution for our customers’ imagery
needs. Our goa! Is 10 be the leading image solutions provider in every major market, offering visual communications professionals
imagery and related services al multiple price points on multiple platforms.

Products and Services

We offer our customers a variety of visual content, including creative or “Stock™ imagery, stock footage, aditorial imagery (news,
sports, entertalnmeni and archival imagery), illustrations and related services as gescribed below:

CREATIVE OR "STOCK" IMAGERY

We supply creative, still images that cover a wide variety of contemporary subjects including lifestyle, business, science, health and
beauty, sports, iransportation and travel. Imagery is offered to customers through our creative photography collections {The /mage
Bank, Photodisc, Digital Vision, Allsport Concepts, lconfca, Lifesize, Mediolmages, Photonica, Pholographer's Choics, Reportage,
Retrofile, Riser, Stockbyie, Stockdisc, Stone, Stone+, Taxland Taxi Japan) as well as through image partners such as National Geo-
graphic and Time Life Pictures. As o! December 31, 2006, we offered Imagery through over 100 creative collections on our websile
www.geltyimages.com. In February 2006, we acquired iStockphola, Inc., a leading distributor of photographs taken by amateur and
hobbyist photographers. This imagery represents a new and growing imagery category and is distributed through a separale website
www.istockphoto.com. It has long been our stated strategy to offer preducis at all price poinis and on all platiorms.
www.istockphoto.com represents an initial step toward owning and operating multiple websites and brands in order to address
customer needs in the marketplace.

In May 2007, we acquired Publisher's Toolbox, In¢. (dba Punchstock), a leading aggregator/disiributor of stock phetography, which
has been especially successful with design and communication firms. We intend to maintain the Punchstock brand, and
www.punchsiock.com will offer customers an additional site where they can find professional-quality, model-released imagery with
simple, straightforward licensing. The site is designed to attracl customers who have budget constrainis as a primary licensing consid-
eralion. We believe customers tooking for promational offers will likely be attracted to this site.

Punchstock currently distributes relevant content from a variety of sources. We intend 10 continue to offer content obtained from a
wide-variety of sources, since having access (0 imagery from a number of providers has been an integral part of the value proposition
for current Punchstock customers.

EDITORIAL IMAGERY

We cover major world events in order 10 Supply news, sporis, and entertainment photographs 10 customers who are reporling on these
subjects, Editorial imagery aise includes extensive archival image coliactions containing iconic and historic imagery. Editorial images
are proviged through Getty Images Editorial collections as well as the collections of image partners including Agence France-Presse.
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In April 2007, we acquired MediaVast, Inc., licensing primarily under the brand name Wirelmage, which we believe will enable us to
further grow our entertainment and celebrity imagery business by providing customers mose choices of imagery and richer and more
accessible enlerlainment content,

We plan o maintain www. wireimage.com and the MediaVast, Inc. brands. including FilmMagic and Contour. This represents an addi-
tional component of our mulli-site strategy. Wirelmage has built a reputation for depth and breadth of entertainment coverage, a grow-
ing reputation in sports coverage, and offers inngvative products like podcasts, audio ani video.

FOOTAGE

we offer footage [maving imagery) to customers engaged in producing commercial moticn pictures, television advertisements and
programming, web-based advertisements, trade show and promotional videes, documen-aries and other footage-based media. OQur
collections include contemporary and archival footage covering a broad range of topics. These products are supplied through our
footage collections {Archive Films, Image Bank Film, Digital Vision and Pholodisc), as well as the collections of image parlners includ-
ing Universal Studios, dick clark productions, Discovery FilmSource and AP Archive. As of December 31, 2006, we offered footage
clips through 24 footage colleclions on our gettyimages.com website. In addition, througn our istockphoto.com website we supply 2
collection ol moving imagery created by hobbyist and amateur filmmakers.

OTHER

We also offer related products and services Such as assignment services, media management services and our imagenet product. In
assignment services we handle all aspects of a custom photography project for a cusiomer, such as photographing executives for an
annual report, producing product shots for a brochure or documenting a news of sports avent, We use a global network of expern-
enced photographess on staff or 0n contract for assignment photography projects. Media management provides a hosted service that
allows customers 10 manage their portfoiio of digital assets, including images and other riarkeling materials. image.net is a product
that afiows companies lo distribute their promotional materials within a secure environment.

Customers

We serve a variety of cuslomers in four main categories: agencies (advertising and design agencies), corporate customers lin-house
adverlising groups and corporale markeling departments). publishing and media companies, and a variety of production companies,
as described in further detail befow. Due to our large number of customers and their dispersion across many geographic areas, we are
not dependent on a single customer or a few customers, the loss of which would have a material adverse effect on us.

AGENCIES

Advertising and design agencles need to access imagery as part of their everyday working lives. These customers have a commercial
or advertising message they are irying to convey and, consequently. are typically looking for a specific conceplual image. Image rele-
vance and accessibility are imporiant factors in the customer's decision to license image-y.

CORPORATE CUSTOMERS

we olfer a variety of imagery to corporate marketing departments and other business customers. These customers require imagery for
a wide range of business communicalion materials for internal and external use, including advertisements, annual reports. brochures,
employee communications, newsletters, presentations and company websites.

PUBLISHING AND MEDIA COMPANIES

We supply images to professionals who use imagery in the publication of newspapers, books and magazines. both online and in tradi-
tional media. In addition to creative imagery. these customers seek imagery that covers major political, news, social and sporting
evenls ranging from contemporary photographs to imagery from the beginning of photography in the early nineteenth century. These
customers are looking for imagery that jllustrates the story they are covering and often require ihat the editorial imagery be detivered
during or immediately following the event.

PRODUCTION COMPANIES

We supply lootage to production companies that are crealing feature films, television shows, broadcast advertisements {television and
Internel), as well as other video materials. These customers use footage clips as a replacement for custom shooling in a variety of
applications.
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Sources of Availability of Content

The content we pravide to our customers is created by a substantial number of contributors {photographers, filmmakers and
illustrators). We do not rely on any single or small group of contributors to meet our content needs; general categories of contributors
are as follows:

CREATIVE IMAGERY

We have creative research andfor imagery teams in London, Los Angeles, New York, Paris, Seattle, Sydney, Tokyo and Beijing that
analyze customer requests and buying behavior and perform research in key markets in order to targel, source and produce images.
We have contraclual relationships with contributing photographers, inciuding highly respected, internationally renowned professional
phetographers representing a varlely of styles, speclalties and backgrounds, In many cases, we provide on-site art direction for our
photographers, working with them on location around the world. We also represent imagery from a number of image partners and
have a small staff of in-house creative photographers. In 2006, we accepted approximately 150,000 new images from contracted and
in-house photographers into our creative photography collections, plus approximaiely 400,000 images from partner colleclions, bring-
ing our total creative imagery collection on geltyimages.com tc over 1.8 million images. All new images accepted inio our collections
are digitized, edited, assigned keywords, as necessary, and posted on pur website where they are available for search, selection,
license and download 24 hours a day. seven days a week.

FOOTAGE

We maintain and license a growing library of commerclally relevant cinematography covering a broad range of contemporary and
archival subjects. Qur footage collections represent imagery from hundreds of filmmakers, film producers and image partners, and
each footage clip is catatoged for quick access and retrieval in film, videotape and digital formats.

MICROPAYMENT IMAGERY AND FOOTAGE

in February 2006, we purchased iStockphoto, Inc., the pioneer of the micropayment stock image markeiplace business model,
through which customers can license single images from $1 to $15 based on the size of the digital file. iStockphoto operates the lead-
ing micropayment website, and as of December 31, 2006, offered over 1.2 million images to more than one million members world-
wide (receiving applications from more than 30,000 contributing artists for approval). In September 2006, iStockphoto began
accepting video submissions, and the ¢ollection has quickly grown 1o over 12,000 videos. At the time of our acquisition, iStockphoto
operated an English language website. and we added localized websites in French, German and Spanish during 2006.

EITORIAL IMAGERY

For editorial content, availability of imagery is lime-critical. To this end. we have production teams in London, New York and Sydney
through which photographers may submit imagery at any time. Editorial content is produced by staif photographers as well as con-
tributing photographers and other imagery providers with whom we have contraclual refationships. We receive thousands of digital
editorial images per week from cur photographers around the world and make these available through our website and through a wire
service, By using digital technology, we are able t0 make new images available onling within minutes of photographer transmission
from major news, sports and enlertainment events, In addition, we have made Important archival imagery available on our website,
which is also of interest o editorial customers. We identify upcoming events that will generate demand for panticular archival images.
and we aclively market the availability of those images 1o our edilorial customers. We also offer in-depth research services for our
cuslomers' more extensive editorial projects.

Marketing, Sales, and Distribution

MARKETING

We reach our customers through diverse marketing channels including our websites (online marketingl, direct mail and e-mail {direct
marketing), and evenls and interactive campaigns {experience markeling). Marketing activities aim to build awareness for the Gelty
Images and iStockphoto brands and drive revenue by promoting Lhe latest imagery and related services available on getlyimages.com
and istockphoto.com. We strive to provide relevant cammunications to our internationat customers by producing localized marketing
materlals, including |ocal language and locally applicable content, where appropriate.
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Website Marketing Our websites, www.gettyimages.com and www.isiockphoto.com, act as markeling tools, in addition to sales tools.
For example, we often invite cuslomers to view our latest creative imagery in themed “galleries” on geltyimages.com. We also provide
behind-the-scenes insights from photographers on both of our websites and regularly feature imagery from the latest breaking stories
in the editorial section of gettyimages.com,

Direct Marketing Direct mail and e-mail are part of our integrated marketing cAmpaigns aimed at gaining new customers through
prospecting and at promoling our latest imagery and relaled services to our existing cusitomner base.

Experience Marketing We highlight the most creative ang innovative usages of imagery through interactive campaigns, blogs and
on-line sales promotions. In addition, we organize events in leading creative cities around the world to showcase our photographers
and their work. These events include lectures, seminars, exhibitions and sponsership of major industry events such as the Cannes
Advertising Festival and Visa Pour L'image, the world's larges! pholojournalism festival.

SALES AND DISTRIBUTION

We license our imagery through our websites, company-owned offices and a globa! network of delegates and distributors, Serving
customers in more than 100 countries. A direct sales force and national accounts management team target high volume users of
images, while our technical support stafl, who have expertise in digital image applications, gesign teois and photo manipulation meth-
odologies, assist customers in using our images.

We encourage our customers to take advantage of the comprehensive image search capabilities of gur websites and digital detivery of
most images. We believe the ability to search for, select, license and download images over the Internet offers our customers con-
venience and speed and enables us to achieve greater economies of scale, Direct comrunication with our customers, however,
remains a significant component of our sales strategy. Qur sales representalives assist customers in linding the images they need and
keep them informed about our latast produg!s and services.

Product Rights Customers may license rights 1o use single images, foolage clips or miitiple images through subscriptions or CDs.
Ownership of imagery goes not pass 10 customers who license the imagery from us.

Licensing Methods Customers may license images using one of four licensing methods: rights-managed, rights-ready, royalty-free or
subscription. We group our still and moving image collections into categories corresponding to these licensing metheds. We offer port-
falios of creative imagery for license under each of these methods, while editerial imagery may be licensed through subscriptions or
rights-managed licenses.

For rights-managed licensing, the license fee is based on how the image will be used, including gecgraphical distribution, license
duration, medium. exclusivity and circulation. For example, an image 1o be used as an aighth of a page photo in a brochure to be
distributed in cne city for three months will cost less to license than an image to be used in a global advertising campaign for a year
that includes print advertising, billboards and point-of-purchase displays. We also offer Fiexible License Packs, which are designed to
provide customers a quick and cost effective way 10 license an image for muliliple prese: media without having to enter into separate
license agreements.

For rights-ready licensing, the license fee is based on how the image will be used with eight broadly delined usage categories. For
example, an image o be used [or commercial purposes in a print advertisement of display wili cost more to license than an image 1o
be used for an internal company communicalion piece. There is a ten-year duration limitation on each license and no restrictions on
geographic disiribution,

For royalty-free licensing, the license fee is based on the size of the digilal file, from standard resolution to high resolution. Once the
customer has ticensed an image, that customer may use that image multiple times {for multiple projects without paying additional fees.
Royally-free images may be licensed on a single image basis, as parl of a collection of imnages on a CD or virtual CD (a group of
images offered online for one fee), or through a subscription. All images licensed through pur micropayment site istockphoto.com are
licensed under the royalty-free method.

Subscription licensing is available for selected editorial and royalty-free creative images. Under this licensing method, custemers pay
2 periodic fee and then may wiilize multiple images dusing the subscription period.
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Operations and Technology

We employ a centratized and integrated technology platform as the foundation for gettyimages.com and the related back-office 5ys-
tems. This platform enables customers 10 search, select, license and download our imagery from one location, gettyimages.com. It
also supports centralized sales order processing, customer database management, finance and accounting systems. These systems
span multiple operational activities, including customer interaction, transaction processing, order fulfiliment and invoicing. Our sys-
tems infrastructure is hosted both internally and at an external hosting provider, both of which provide 24-hour manitoring, power
generators and back-up systems.

We have a second datacenter in London, England 1o support business conlinuity in the event of an emergency. The London facility
also provides 24-hour monitoring, emergency power generators and back-up systems.

Gettyimages.com is currently available in 12 language versions including: U.S. English, U.K. English, Chinese, French, German,
Greek, Italian, Japanese, Polish, Portuguese (Brazil), Spanish, and Turkish,

The technology architecture supporting gettyimages.com employs a set of software applications t0: 1) categorize digital content and
embed appropriate keywords and search data; 2) search large information databases across languages and linguistic context;

3) present detailed information related to specific digital content efements; 4) manage online e-commerce transactions lor the license
of much of our digital content; 5} manage invoice generation and accounts recelvable from customers; and 6) track a broad range of
inteliectual property rights and permissions, These applications are a combination of our proprietary technologies and commercially
available licensed technologies. We focus our internal development etforls on creating and enhancing the speciailzed proprietary
software that is unique 10 our business. We intend to continue {0 investigate, qualily and develop technology and internal systems that
support key areas of our business o enhance the experience of our customers.

istockphoto.com operates on a separate platform hosted at an external hasting provider. This platform provides similar functionality as
described above. istockphote.com is currently available in 4 language versions including: U.S. English, French, German, and Spanish.

Competition
The market for visual content and related services is highly competitive. We believe that the principal competitive factors are:
* name recognition;
* Company reputation;
s the qualily, relevance and breadth of the images in a company’s collections;
+ the quality of contribuling photographers, filmmakers and other imagery pariners under contract with a company;
+ effective use of current and emerging technology;
* customer service and customer relationships;
+ pricing and licensing models, policles and practices; and
« accessibility of imagery and speed and ease of search and fulfillment.

Some of our current and potential significant competitors include:

« other general visual content providers such as Corbis Corporation, Jupitermedia Corporation, Amana Ing., Alamy Limited, index Stock
Imagery, Inc., Photalibrary Group Limited and Masterfile Corporation;

« specialized visual content companies that are well established in their local, content or product-specific market segments such 3s Reuters
Group PLC, the Associated Press, and ZUMA Press, Inc.;

« gther companies operating micropayment sites such as Dreamstime LLC and Fototia LLC;
* commissioned pholographers; and
» pnlina search engines which provide for image search, such as Google, Yahoo and Microsoft.

There are also hundreds, if not thousands, of small stock photography and footage agencies, Image content aggregators and
individual photographers throughout the world with whom we compete,
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Inteliectual Property

Most of the images in our creative collections are oblained trom independent pholcgraphers and filmmakers on an exclusive basis.
Professional photographers and filmmakers ofien prefer to retain ownership of their work. As a resull, copyright to an image remains
with the contributing photographer ar filmmaker in most cases, while we obtain the right {0 markel the image on their behalf for a
pericd of time. We pwn the copyright to photographs taken by staff photographers as well as to a number of photographs that we have

acquired from others. As such. a substantial portion of the images in our editorial collections and cerlain images in our creative collec-

tions are owned by us though some are in the public domain.

We also own numerous trademarks that are important to our business. Depending on the jurisdiction, trademarks are valid as long as
they are in use and/or their registrations are properly maintained and they have not beer found 10 have become generic. Registrations
of trademarks generally can be renewed indefinitely as long as the trademarks are in use. Piease see "We May Lose the Right 10 Use
‘Getty Images’ Trademarks in the Event We Experience a Change of Control” within Item 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-K for
more information about certain of our trademarks.

Relationship With Our Employees

At December 31, 2006, we had 1,750 employees. Of these, 943 were located in the Americas, 663 in Europe and 144 in the rest of
the world. We believe that we have satisfactory relations with our employees,

Compliance With Federal, State, And Local Environmental Provisions

All of our facilities are subject to environmental laws and regulations. Compliance with these provisions has not had, and we do not
expecl such compliance Lo have, any material adverse effect ¢n our capital expenditures, earnings or compelitive position.

Financial Information About Segments And Geographic Areas

We operate the company in two business segments, traditional licensing and micropayments. These iwo segments are aggregated for
accounting purposes since they meet the aggregation criteria described in Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131,
“Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related information.” Our revenue is generated through a diverse customer base,
and there is no reliance on a single customer or small group of customers; no customer r2presented 10% or more of our total revenve
in the periods presented in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The geographic information required to be disclosed herein is contained in Note 10 1o ou- Consolidated Financiat Statements,
"Business Segments and Geographic Areas” in Part IV, ltem 15(A) of this Annual Report on Form 10-K and is incorporated by refer-
ence herein.

Available Information

We file reports with, and furnish reports to, the Securities and Exchange Commission {SEC), including annual reports on Form 10-K,
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, and current reports on Form 8-K. We maintain an Internet site, www.getlyimages.com, where we
make these reports and retated amendments available free of charge as soon as reasenably praclicable after we electronically deliver
such material to the SEC, The following documents are available in the Corporate Governance section of gettyimages.com: our Corpo-
rale Governance Guidelines; charters for the Audit, Compensation, and Nominating and Corporate Governance Committees; Code of
Business Conduct; Code of Ethics for Getty images' Management and Board of Directors: and the Audit and Non-audit Services
Pre-approval Policy. These guidelines, charters, codes and policies are also availatle in print to any stockholder on request. Please
write to Inveslor Relations Department, Gelty kmages, Inc., 601 North 34tk Street, Seattle, Washington 98103 or
investorrelations@gettyimages.com or call us at 1-866-275-4389. Cur website and the information contained therein or connected
thereto are not incorporated by reference into this Annual Repert on Farm 10-K. If any material provisions of our Code of Ethics of our
Code of Busingss Conduct are waived for any member of Getly Images’ management or th2 Board of Direclors, or if any substantive
changes are made to our Code of Ethics as they relate to any member of Getty images’ management or the Board of Directors, we will
disclose that fact on our website or via @ Current Report on Form 8-K filed with the SEC within four business days of the amendments
or waivers. In additicn, any otheér material amendments 10 our Codes will be disclosed via our website, gettyimages.com or via a Cur-
rent Report on Form B-K filing with the SEC.

On May 11, 2006, our Chief Executive Officer fited a Section 303A.12(a) CEQ Cerlitication with the New York Stock Exchange. The
CEQ Certitication attests that the Chief Executive Officer is not aware of any violations by the company of NYSE's Corporate Gover-
nance Listing Standards.
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ITEM 1A, RISK FACTORS

THE SPECIAL COMMITTEE INVESTIGATION OF OUR EQUITY COMPENSATION GRANT PRACTICES, THE ONGOING
INFORMAL INGUIRY BY YHE SEC AND RESTATEMENT OF QUR PAST FINANCIAL STATEMENTS MAY HAVE CONTINUING
ADVERSE CONSEQUENCES

As discussed in the “Explanatory Note Regarding Restalements” section of this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the Special Committee
of our Board of Directors has conducted an independent investigation relating 10 our equity compensation grant practices, with the
assistance of independent outside legal counsel. The Special Commiltee and ocur management have determined that incorrect meas-
uremen! dates for certain equity compensatlon awards were used for financial accounting purposes and certaln other praviously
issued granis were modified without properly recording compensation expensa,

Although the Special Committee did not find any evidence of intentional wrongdoing by current employees, officers or directors of the
company, as a resull of the foregoing evenls, we may be subject to significant risks. Each of these risks could have an adverse effect
on our business, financial condition and results of operations:
+ we are subject to, and cooperating lully with, the ongoing informal SEC inguiry, which may require further management time and attention
and cause us to incur additional accounting and legal expense and/or substantial fines or other penallies;
* we may be subject to additional formal or informal regulatory proceedings, actions or litigations with the SEC or other governmental author-
ities;
* we may be subject to {urther civil litigations arising from the Special Committee’s investigation, the SEC inquiry, or our restatement of our
past financial statements, including but not limited to sharehoider class action lawsuits and derivative claims made on behalf of us; and

s many members of our'senior management team and our Board of Directors may be required to devote a significant amount of time en mat-
ters relating to the continuing informal SEC investigation, our outstanding periodic reports, remedial efforts and potential further litigation.

THE DELAY IN FILING OUR REPORTS WITH YHE SEC MAY RESULT IN ADVERSE CONSEQUENCES FOR THE COMPANY

We did not meet the required filing dates for our Quarterly Report on Farm 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2006, our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 or our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
March 31, 2007. With the filing of this Annual Report we are now current with our flings up to December 31, 2008, but have not filed
our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2007 by the required filing date. As a result, there may be con-
sequences tha! arise from the delay in filing 1he reports related to our convertible subordinated debentures, our other senior debt gr
our stock award plans.

INCREASED COMPETITION COULD REDUCE OUR REVENUES, MARGINS AND OPERATING RESULTS

The visual content industry is and has been intensely competitive, and we expect competitlon to intensify in the future. We expect
competition to increase because of changes in the media industry, changing advertising practices, lechnalogical advances leading to
relatively inexpensive creation, marketing and distribution of visual content, and a lack of substantial barriers to entry.

Our competitors range in size from significanl media companies to individual visual content producers. While we believe the breadth
of our businesses and product and service portiolio offers benefils 10 our customers that are a compelitive advantage, our current or
potential competitors may develop praducts, fticensing madels, techneology or services comparable or superior to those thal we develop
or may adapt more quickly than we do to new or emerging technologies or evalving indusiry trends. Increased competition or more
effective competitors could result in lost market share, having to reduce prices or otherwise having reduced revenue, lower margins,
increased capital expenditures, or otherwise negatively impact our operating results. There can be no assurance that we will be able
o compele successfully against currenl and future competitors.

See 1he listing of some of our current and potential competitors under the heading *Competition” in ltem 1 of this Annual Report.

OUR FINANCIAL RESULTS AND STOCK PRICE MAY FLUCTUATE

We expect our revenues and operating results 10 vary from quarter to quarter due 10 a number of factors, both within and outside of
our control. Some of the factors that may affect our revenues and operating results include the {ollowing:

* demand for our existing and new imagery and related services, and thase of our competitors:
» changes in our pricing or licensing models, paficies and practices and those of cur compelitors;
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« changes in the mix of imagery licensed and services sold, including the mix of licensed uses, company-owned versus contributor-supplied
imagery, and the geographic distribution of such licenses, each of which aflects the price of a license and/or the royakty we pay on the
license;

¢ our ability to attract and retain customers;

« our abilily to manage the cosis of our business, including the cosis associaled with maintaining and developing our websites, customer
support, and international and product line expansion;

+ cosis related to potential acquisitions and the development and/or use of technology, services or products;

* fluctuations in foreign cuirency exchange rates, changes in global capital markets and economic conditions, and changes to applicable tax
laws and regulations;

s the termination or expiration of ceriain image partner, distributor o other malerial agreements; and

+ changes in estimates and assumptions made by us in preparing our financial statements, including those discussed in the “Critical Account-
ing Policies and Estimales and Assumptions™ section of “Management's Discussion and Ar alysis of Financial Condition and Resulis of
Qperations” under item 7 in Pant |1 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Because of these risks and others, it is possible that our future results may differ from our expectations and the expectations of ana-
tysts and investors, causing our stock price 10 fluctuate. You should not rely on the results for any period as an indication of future
performance.

OUR ACGUISITION STRATEGY MAY BE DILUTIVE TO EXISTING SHAREHOLDERS AND WE MAY NOT BE SUCCESSFUL IN
ACQUIRING OR INTEGRATING BUSINESSES

As part of aur business strategy, we have in the past acquired and invested in, and may in the fulure seek to acquire or invest in busi-
nesses, products or technologies that could complement or expand our business, Acquisitions may require significant capital infusions
or investments, and may negatively impact our results ol operations. Further, the evalualion and negotiation of potential acquisitions, as
well as the integration of acquired businesses, may diverl management time and other resources. Certain other risks related to acquis-
ilions thal may have a material impact on our business or prevent us from beneliting {rom an acquisition or investment include:

+ coshs incyrred in performing due diligence and professional fees relating to potential acquisizions;
« use of cash resources, incurrence of debt or stockholder dilution through issuances of our securities to fund acquisitions;
+ assumption of actual or contingent liabilities, known and unknown;

= amortization expense related 10 acquired intangible assets, impairment of any goodwill acguired and other adverse accounting con-
sequences;

« difficulties and expenses in integrating the sales, marketing, operations, products, services, tachnology, financial and information systems of
an acquired company;

* retention of key employees, cusiomers, and suppliers of an acquired business; and

* an adverse review of an acquisition or potential acquisition, or limitations put on such acquisitions, by a regulalory body.

WE MAY EXPERIENCE SYSTEM AND SERVICE DISRUPTIONS AND DIFFICULTIES

The digitization and Internet distribution of our visual content is a key component of our bl siness. As a resul, we are particularly
dependent upon, and have expended significant resources to ensure, the efficient functioning of our websiles (and the technology
behind them) te allow our customers 10 access and conduct transactions through our websites. We also have focused significant
resources and attention on the installation and development of systems for technology, business processes, sales and marketing sys-
tems, royalty 2nd other linance systems, customer interfaces, and other corporate adminisirative functions, on which we depend to
manage and control our operations,

We will need to continue to improve our websites and Systems, 3s well as our network infrastructures, to imprave our customer experi-
ence and to accommodate anticipated increased traffic, sales volume, and processing of tha resulling information. Il we experience
significant disruplions or difliculties as a result of or during any such updates or upgrades, we may face system interruplions, poor
website response times, diminished customer services, impaired quality and speed of order fulfillment, and potential problems with
our internal control over financial reporting. Substantial or repeated system disruption or failures would reduce the attractiveness of
our websites significantly.




14 GETTY IMAGES. INC. 2006 FORM 10-K PART I ITEM 1A

In the past, we have experienced infrequent and brief system interruptions that made portions of gur websites unavailable or pre-
vented us from efficiently uploading images to our website, or taking, processing or fulfilling orders. Qur websites have in the past
occasionally experienced slow response times. Additionally, we depend on certain third-party software and system providers for the
processing and distribution of our Imagery and related services. System disruptions and difficulties, whether as a result of our
internally developed systems or those of the third-party providers, may inconvenience our custemers and/or result in negative publi-
city, and may negatively aftect our ability to provide services and the volume of images we license and deliver over the Inlernet, These
types of occurrences in the future could cause users to perceive our sites as not functioning properly and cause them to use another
website or other methods 1o obtain the products or services we otfer.

Additionally, the computer and communications hardware necessary lo operate our corporate functions are located in metropolitan
areas worldwide. Any of these systems and operations could be damaged or interrupted by fire, flcod, power loss, telecommunications
faiture, earthquake and similar events. 1n certain of our offices and facilities, we may not have complete redundancy for all of our
network and telecommunications facllities.

SYSTEMS SECURITY RISKS AND CONCERNS MAY HARM QUR BUSINESS

An important component of our business is the secure transmission of confidential information and the transaclion of commerce over
the Internet. Developments'in computer capabilities, viruses, or other events could result in compromises or breaches of our systems,
website or networks, jeopardizing proprietary and confidential information betonging to us or our customers, or causing potentially
sericus interruptions in our services, sales or operations. We continue to expend significant resources to protect against the threat of
security breaches or to alleviate problems caused by such breaches. Significant compromises of our security system or the Internet
may reduce our customers’ desire to transact business over the Internet.

OUR BUSINESS AND PROSPECTS WQULD SUFFER IF WE ARE UNABLE TQ PROTECT AND ENFORCE OUR INTELLECTUAL
PROPERTY RIGHTS .

We rely upon copyright, patent, trade secret and trademark law, assignment of invention and confidentiality agreements and license
agreements 1o protect our proprietary technology, processes, cantent and other intellectual property. The sleps we might take may not
be adequate to prolect against infringement and misappropriation of our intellectual property by third parties. Similarly, third parties
may be able to independently develop similar or superior technology. processes, content or other intellectual property. The
unauthorized reproduction or other misappropriation of our intellectyal property rights could enable third parties to benefit from our
techinology and imagery without paying us for it. If this occurs, our business and prospects could be materially and adversely affected.
In addition, disputes concerning the ownership or rights to use inteflectual property could be costly and time-consuming to litigate,
may distract management from other tasks of operating the business, and may result in our loss of significant rights and the impair-
ment of our ability to operate our business.

OUR PRODUCTS AND SERVICES MAY INFRINGE ON INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS OF THIRD PARTIES AND ANY
INFRINGEMENT COULD REQUIRE US TO INCUR SUBSTANTIAL COSTS AND DISTRACT QUR MANAGEMENT

From time to time we receive notices from third parties claiming we infringe their intellectual property rights. |f we are subject to any
such infringement claims or are infringing the rights of third parties, we may not be able to obtain licenses to use those rights on
commercially reascnable terms, may have to stop selling or to redesign affected products, or may have to pay damages or satisfy
indemnification commitments to our customers. Furthermore, a party making such a claim could secure a judgment that requires us to
pay damages and also could get an injunction or other court order thal could prevent us from using the affected intellectual property.
Claims of inlringement can be expensive to defend, even if the claim is invalid, and may distract our management from our business.

WE HAVE CLAIMS AND LAWSUITS AGAINST US THAT MAY RESULT IN ADVERSE QUTCOMES

We are subject to a variety of claims and lawsuits. Adverse outcomes in some or all of the claims pending against us may result in
significant monetary damages or injunctive relief against us. While management currently believes that resolving all of these matters,
individually or in the aggregate, will not have a material adverse impact on our financial position or results of operations, the litigation
and other claims are subject to inherent uncertainties and management’s view of these matters may change in the future. There exists
the possibility of a material adverse impact on our financial position and the results of operations for the period in which the effect of
an unfavorable final outcome becomes probable and reasonably estimable.
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CERTAIN OF OUR STOCKHOLDERS CAN EXERCISE SIGNIFICANT INFLUENCE OVER QUR BUSINESS AND AFFAIRS

Some of cur steckholders own subslantial percentages ol the outstanding shares of ou* common stock. See item 12 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K for a list of those stockholders that hoid more than five percent of our outstanding shares.

Additionally, Getty Investments L.L.C., the October 1993 Trust, the 1D Kiein Family Settlement, Mr. Mark H. Getty, our Chairman, and
Mr. Jonathan D. Xiein, our Chief Executive Qificer {coliectively the “Getty Group™), owned approximately 19% of the outstanding
shares of our common stock at April 30, 2007, Getty Investments alone owned approximately 15% of the outstanding shares of our
commeon stock at April 30, 2007. Mr. Getly serves as the Chairman of the Board of Directors of Getly Investments, and Mr. Klein
serves on the Board of Directors of Getty Investments.

As a result of their share ownership, these shareholders have significant infiuence over alt matters requiring approval of our stock-
holders, including the election of directors and the approval ol business acquisitions. The substantial percentage of our common
stock held by these shareholders also could make us a Jess attractive acquisition cand date or have the effect of delaying or prevent-
ing a third party {rom acquiring control over us at a premium gver the then-cCurrent price of our common stock.

In addition to ownership of our common slock, the Getty Groug's influence over us is increased by Mr. Getty's role as the Chalrman of
our Board of Directors, and Mr. Klein's role as Chief Executive Qfficer and as a member of our Board of Directors.

WE MAY LOSE THE RIGHT TO USE "“GETTY IMAGES™ TRADEMARKS IN THE EVENT WE EXPERIENCE A CHANGE OF CONTROL

We own trademarks and trademark appllcations tor the name “Getly Images.” We use “Getly Images” as a corporate identity, as do
certain of our subsidiaries, and we use “Getly images” as a product and service brand, We refer to these trademarks and trademark
applications as the Getty Images Trademarks. In the event that a third party or parties not affitiated with the Getty family acquires
control of Getty Images, Getty Investments L.L.C. has the righ! to call for an assignmen: to it, for a nominal sum, all rights to the Getty
Images Trademarks. in the event 0f an assignment, we will have 12 months to continue to use the Gettly Images Trademarks, after
which lime we np longer would have the right to use them. Getty Investments’ right to cause such an assignment might have a neg-
ative impact on the amount of consideration that a potential acquirer would be willing 19 pay to acquire our common siock.

OUR BUSINESS DEPENDS ON QUR ABILITY TO ATTRACT AND RETAIN TALENTED EMPLOYEES

Qur business is based in part on our ability 10 successiully attract and retain talented employees. The market for highly skilled workers
is extremely competitive. it we are unable to retain and motivate key employees or are tess successful in our recruiting etforts, our
ability 10 create and distribute superior products and properly service our custamers miy be adversely aftected.

AN INCREASE IN GOYERNMENT REGULATION OF THE INTERNET AND E-COMMERCE COULD HAVE A NEGATIVE IMPACT
ON OUR BUSINESS

We are subject to a number 0f laws and regulations directly applicable to e-commerce. State, federal and foreign governments have
adopted. and may continue to adopt. legislation regulating the Internet and e-commerc:. Such regulation could both increase our cost
of doing business and impede the growth of our business or of the Internet, while decreasing the internet’s acceptance or effective-
ness as a communications and commerce medium.

Existing or future laws and other regutations that may impact our business include, but are not limited to, those that govern or restrict:
* privacy issues and dala collection, processing, retention and transmission;
*+ pricing and taxation of goods and services offered over the Internet;
+ websile content, or the manner in which products and services may be offered and/or marketed over the Internet; and

s sources of liability for companies involved in Internet services of e-commerce.

WE MAY HAVE ADDITIONAL TAX LIABILITIES

We are subject to income taxes in the United States and numerous foreign jurisdictions. Signilicant judgment is required in getermin-
ing our warldwide provision for income taxes. in the ordinary course of our business, we are involved in many transactions where the
ultimate tax determination may be uncertain. We are regularly under audit by tax authoiities. Although we betieve our tax provisions
are reasonable, the final determination of tax audits and any related litigation could be materiaily different from our historical income
tax provisions and reserves. The final determination of such tax tiabilities, could have 8 material effect on our income tax provision,
net income, earnings per share, or cash flows in the period or periods lor which that delermination is made.
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IF OUR GOODWILL CR OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS BECOME IMPAIRED, WE MAY BE REQUIRED TO RECORD A
SIGNIFICANT CHARGE TO EARNINGS

Under generally accepted accounting principles, we review our intangible assets for impairment when evenls or changes in circum-
stances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. Goodwill is required 1o be tested for impairment at feasi annually.
Factors that may be considered a change in circumstances indicating thal the carrying value of our goodwill or intangible assets may
not be recoverable include a dectine in stock price and market capitalization, reduced future cash flow estimates, and slower growth
rates in our industry. We may be required to record a significant charge o earnings in our financial statements during the period in
which any impairment of our goodwill or other intangible assets is determined, negatively impacting our results of operations.

WE MAY NOT BE ABLE TC OBTAIN EXTERNAL FINANCING OR SERVICE OUR INDEBTEDNESS

While we currently anlicipate that our current cash and cash equivalents and fulure operating cash flows will be sufficient 1o meet our
needs for working capital and capital expenditures for at least the next 12 manths, we could be required to oblain external financing
shoutd our financial resulls not meet our expectations, if our 0.5% convertible subordinated debentures become convertible and
require repayment or should we need additional funds to acquire seiected businesses or gtherwise achieve our objectives,

Our convertible subordinated debentures require cash repayment of up to the $265.0 million of principal upon maturity in 2023,
which repayment may be accelerated in full upon the occurrence of an “Event of Defauit” as defined under the indenture governing
the debentures. Such an acceleration of the debentures has been threatened. On February 21, 2007, the Trustee under the indenture
governing the debentures notified us that, in connection with gur delay in filing our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the third quar-
ter of 2006, an “Event of Default” under the indenture had occurred. Although we believe that such an assertion is without merit and
any default under the indenture, to the extent il exists, is cured by our filing of cur Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the third quar-
ter of 2006, our business could be harmed if any such “Event of Default™ were to occur and the repayment on the debentures were
accelerated. See discussion of the terms of these debentures In the “Financial Condition”® section of “Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Resuits of Operations™ under Part |1, Hem 7 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Should we need to obtain external financing, through dabt or equity, our ability to do so could be affected by changes in U.S. and
globa! capital markets and economies, significant fluctualions in interest rates, the price of our equity securities, fluctuations in the
results of our operations and financial position, and ather financial and business conditions, many of which are beyend our control,

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING MAY AFFECT OUR REPORTED EARNINGS AND OPERATING INCOME

Generally accepted accounting principles and accompanying accounting pronouncements, implementation guidelines, and inter-
pretations for many aspects of our business, such as treatment of tax liabilities, goodwill or intangible assets, are highly complex and
involve subjective judgments. Changes in these rules or their interpretation ar changes in our products or business could significantly
change our reported earnings and operating income and could add significant volatility ta those measures, withoutl a comparable
underlying change in cash {low from operations. For discussion af some of the significant accounting pronouncements that are cur-
rently or we expect will affect our business, see the recent pronouncements under the heading “Recent Accounting Pronouncements”®
in the “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” under Part Il, tlem 7 of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K.

WE OPERATE A GLOBAL BUSINESS THAT EXPOSES US TO ADDITIONAL RISKS

We operate in numergus countries and a significant part of our revenue comes from sales outside the United Stales. Operations out-
side of the United States may be alfected by changes in regulatory requirements atfecling trade and invesiment; social, political, labor
or economic condilions in a specific country or reglon; and difficulties in staffing and managing foreign operations. While we hedge a
portion of gur international currency exposure, significant fluctuations in exchange rates between the U.S. dollar and foreign curren-
cies may adversely alfect our revenues, operating income, nel income and earnings per share, as well as future cash flows,

CERTAIN PROVISIONS OF OUR CORPORATE DOCUMENTS AND DELAWARE CORPORATE LAW MAY DETER A THIRD PARTY
FROM ACQUIRING US

Our Board of Directors has the authority to issue up to five mitlion shares of preferred stock and to fix the rights, preferences, priv-
ileges and restrictions of such shares without any further vote, approval or action by our stockholders. This authority, together with
certain provisions of our restated certificate of incorporation, may have the effect of making it more difficult for a third party to
acquire, or of discouraging a third parly from atlempting to acquire, control of us. This could occur even if our stockholders consider
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such change in control to be in their best interests. In addition, the concentration of beneficial Ownership of our common stock in the
Getty Group, along with certain provisions ol Delaware iaw, may have the eifect of delay ng, deterring or preventing a takeover of us.

WE HAVE BEEN NAMED AS A PARTY TO TWO SHAREHOLDER DERIVATIVE LAWSUITS RELATING TO OUR HISTORICAL
STOCK OPTION GRANT PRACTICES, AND WE MAY BE NAMED IN ADDITIONAL LAWSVUITS IN THE FUTURE

Two derivative actions were filed against certain of our current and former directors and officers purporting to assert claims on the
company's behall relating to our historical stock option grant practices. There may be acditional lawsuits of this naiure filed in the
Iulure. We cannot predict the outcome of these lawsuits, nor can we predict the amount of time and eéxpense that will be required to
resolve these lawsuits.

)1 the plaintitts ultimalely prevailed in these lawsuits, our insurance coverage would not cover our total liabilities and expenses asso-
ciated with the lawsuils because we have significant deductibles on certain aspects of the coverage. In addilion, subject 1o certain
limitations, we are obligated 1o indemnify our current and former directors, officers and employees in connection with the investigation
and litigation of our historical stock option grant practices and the refated government inquiries. We currently hold insurance policies
{or the benefil of our current directors and officers.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES

Our principal executive olfices and worldwide headquarters are located in Sealtle, Washington. We also have a significant presence in
New York, New York and Landon, England. In addition, we lease office space in other majar cities around the world. Following is a
table detailing the facilities we leased as of December 31, 2006, including those that wer2 excess as of that date.

Approximate

Lease  Araa Leasad Excess Area  Percant  Excess Area Subleased  Purceni Excuss

Location Explration  {square feet} (square feet)  Excesy (squara faet} Subleased
Seattle 2013 180,300 62.500 35% 6,500 10%
New York 2015 268,500 145,800 54% 145,8002 100%
London 2008 - 2024 79,700 22,700 28% 6,400 28%
Other 2007 - 2025 180,600 47400  26% 40,8003 B6%
Total 709,100 278,400  39% 199,500 72%

L This consisis of two subleases that expire in 2007 and 2008. Subsequent to December 31, 2206, we entered into a sublease agreement for
the remaining 56,000 of this excess space. See Note 15, Subsequent Events 10 our Consalidated Financial Staternents for additional
information.

2 This sublease expires in 2007. Subsequent to December 31, 2006 we entered into two new sublease agreements for all the excess space o
replace the subtenant that vacated the space. See Nate 15. Subsequent Events to our Consotidated Financial Statements for additional
information.

1 This represents two subleases that expire in 2007 and 2011, coterminous with our respective leases.

Our existing facilities represent general office and storage space and are adequale and appropriate for our operations. We are actively
trying to sublease any rémaining excess space.
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ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

SEC INFORMAL INQUIRY

As announced in November 2006, we had been infermed by the SEC that they were initiating an informal inquiry into our historical
stock option gran! practices. As a result, in November 2006, we set up a Spacial Committee of the Board of Directors to perform, with
the help of independent counsel, a review of our equity compensation grant practices and refated accounting for equily compensation
granis. See Explanatory Note Regarding Restatements, liem 7 and Note 2 to owr Consolidated Financial Statements and other dis-
closures within this Annual Report gn Form 10-K {or additignal intormation,

SHAREHOLDER DERIVATIVE LAWSVUITS

As a resull of the SEC informal inquiry, there have been two derivative lawsuits filed against certain current and former executive offi-
cers and directors of the company. The first [awsuit, filed in the Superior Court of the State of Washington on January 29, 2007, seeks
remedies from the defendants for purported violations of state law, including breaches of fiduciary duties, abuse af control, gross
mismanagement, waste of corporate assets and unjust enrichment. The lawsuil was brought against certain current and former offi-
cers and directors of the company, Jonathan D. Kiein, Mark H. Getty, Jeffrey L. Beyle, Christopher H. Sperborg, Andrew 5. Garb,
James N. Bailey, Michael A. Stein, David Landau, Stephen M. Powel!, Elizabeth & Huebner, A.D. "Bud” Albers, Lawrence J. Gould,
Christopher J. Roling. Sally Yan Bargen, Michel Bernard, Suzanne L. Page, Heather Redman, Mark Torrance, Manny Fernandez and
Anthony Stone.

The second lawsult, filed in the United States District Court for the Western Disirict of Washington on March 2, 2007, seeks remedies
from the defendants lor purported violations of state law, including breaches of fiduciary duties, unjust enrichment, statutory violation
and other viglations of the law. The lawsuit was brought against certain current and lormer officers and directors of the company,
Jonathan D. Klein, Mark H. Getty, Jefl Beyle, M. Lewls Blackwell, Nick Evans-tombe, Richard R. Ellis, John Z. Ferguson, Jim Gurke,
Scolt A. Miskimens, William O'Neill, Christopher H, Sporborg, Andrew S. Garb, James N. Bailey, Stephen M. Powell, Elizabeth J.
Huebner, A.D. Albers, Christopher J. Roling, Sally Von Bargen, and Warwick K. Woodhouse.

We have been, and may continue to be, subject to legal ciaims from time to time in the ordinary course of our business, including
those retated to alleged infringements of the intellectual property rights of third parties, such as the failure 1o secure model or property
releases for imagery we license. Claims may also include those brought by photographers and filmmakers relating o our handling of
images submitted 10 us Or tg the companies we have acquired. We have accrued a lability for the anticipated costs of settling claims
for which we believe a loss is probable. There are no pending legal proceedings 10 which we are & party or ta which any of our prop-
erly is subject that, either individually or in the aggregate, we believe are expected to have a material advesse effect on our con-
solidated financial positlon, results of operations or cash flows.,

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted to a vote of our stockhelders, through solicitation of proxies or otherwise, during the fourth quarter ol
2006.
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PART N

ITEM S. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
MARKET INFORMATION

Qur common stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (NYSE} under the symbcl “GY)L" The following table sets forth, for each
of the quarterly periods indicated, the high and low sala prices of our common stock as reported on the NYSE:

! Nigh Low
1
) Year ended December 31, 2006
' First quarter $ 9058 3 7180
Second quarler 76.44 58.50
Third quarter 63.75 43.70
Fourth quarter 51.37 41.21
Year ended December 31, 2005
First quarter $ 7502 %6442
Second quarter 79.77 70.52
Third quarter 87.70 70.58
Fourth quarter 95.43 78.13

On April 30, 2007. the closing market price of our common stock as reporied on the NYSE was $52.00 per share,

HOLOERS

There were 66 hotders of record of our common stock on Aprii 30, 2007,

DIVIDENDS

We have not paid or declared any dividends on our commaon siock since our inception. Qur Board of Directors does not expeci to
declare cash dividends on our commaon stock in the foreseeable future.
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PERFORMANCE GRAPH

Sel forth below is a graph comparing cumulative total stockholder returns on our common stock, the Russell 1000 Index and the
Hemscott industry Group 760 - Business Services (the “"Hemscott Group Index,” formerly known as the CoreData Group Index).

The Russel! 1000 Index includes the 1,000 larges! U.S. companies based on market capitalization, with a median capitalization of
component companies equal to $4.0 billion. Gelty Images has been a part of the Russell 1000 Index since 2002, and had a market
capitalization of approximately $2.5 billion as at December 31, 2006.

The graph assumes that $100 was invested in Getly Images and each index on December 31, 2001 (as required by SEC rules) and
that any dividends were reinvested. The stock price performance on the tollowing gragh is not necessarily indicative of future slock
price performance.

COMPARE CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN
AMONG GETTY IMAGES, INC., RUSSELL 1000 INDEX
AND HEMSCOTT GROUP INDEX
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ASSUMES $100 INVESTED ON DECEMBER 31, 2001
ASSUMES DIVIDENDS REINVESTED
FISCAL YEARS ENDING DEC, 31

1001 2002 200 2004 2003 004
GETTY IMAGES, INC. 100.00 132,94 21815 29961 388.47 186.34
HEMSCOTT GROUP INDEX 100.00 7394 10030 116.15 127.01 153.62

RUSSELL 1000 INDEX 10000 77.08 9829 10762 11232 127.46
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ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Effective May 22, 2006, our Board of Directors approved an amendment o our share repurchase program authorizing the repurchase
of shares of our commeon stock with an aggregate vatue of up to $250 million, an increase from the prior authorization of $150 million,
During 2006, we repurchased approximately 3.5 million shares for $207.7 million under the amended plan. The repurchases
occurred in the open market pursuant to a trading plan under Rule 1005-1 promulgated under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934,
Our share repurchase program was suspended in November 2006 when we did not file our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
third quarter of 2006 in a timely manner. The stock repurchase program will be reviewed after we become current with our SEC filings
and a decision will be made at that time whether {0 continue with the program and at wnat tevel. Our repurchase activity is summar-
ized by quarter in the following table:

{c) Total number of  {d) Mazimum number of shares |

shares purchased as {os approzimate dolisr value

{a) Tatal number (b) Averagn pari of putlicly of shares) that may yet

of shares  price paid per  announced plans or be purchased undar

QUARTERLY PERIOD purchased share? progiams the plans or pregrams

(in thousands)

April 1, 2006 — June 30, 2006 2,515,508 $ 64,15 2.515,508 $ 88,5512 |
July 1, 2006 - September 30, 2006 214,211 63.61 214,211 74,9182
October 1, 2006 - December 31, 2006 3 756,555 43.05 756,555 42,3242

3,486,274 3,486,274

1 Average price paid per share does not include associated transaction fees.
2 This amount is based on an authorization of $250 million.

3 The repurchase program was suspended in November 2006.

UNREGISTERED SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

We did not issue any unregistered securities during the year 2006.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL DATA

PART I ITEM 6

The following table includes selected consolidated financial data for the last live years. As described in Note 2 to our Consolidated
Financial Statements, our financia! results for the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, 2003 and 2002 have been restated to cor-
rect our past accounting for equity awards and certain other adjustments, The following selected consolidated financiat data is quali-
fied by relerence to, and should be read in conjunction with, cur Consolidated Financial Statements and notes thereto in Part IV,
ltem 15(A), and “Managemenl's Discussion and Analysis of Financiat Condition and Results of Operations” in Part Il, tem 7, of this
Annual Report on Form 10-X. Historical results are not necessarily indicative of results to be expected in the future.

20064 2005 2004 2003 2002
Ay As A As
previousty praviously provicusly praviousty
YEARS ENDEO DECEMBER 131, rapartad teporied reportad reported
{In thousands, excepi per share amounts and ratios)
Consolidated Statement of Income Data
Revenue $ 805589 § 733,729 § 622,427 & 523,196 § 463,011
Income before income taxes 204,676 230,654 174,039 87,716 36,087
Net income 130,428 149,703 106,650 64,017 21,468
Net income per share
Basic $ 2.15 3§ 243 & 181 % 1.16 % 0.40
Dituted 2.11 2.28 1.72 1.11 0.39
Shares used in computing per share amounis
Basic 60,733 61,567 59,006 55,412 53,084
Diluted 61,711 65,744 62,031 57,514 55.455
Other Operating Data
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges ! 29.23 17.62 18.4 6.5 2.7
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data
Total assets $1,714.384 § 1663085 § 1,451,584 % 1,224.084 % 1,025,055
Long-term debt, net of current maturities 5 265,000 — 265,000 265,011 244,739
20064 2005 2004 2003 2002
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, Adjustments 4 Adjustments + Adjustmants ¢ Adjustmants ¢
(In thousands, excapt par share amounts and ratios)
Consoligated Statement of Income Data
Revenue $ — % (553) § a2 s (386) % (58}
Income before income taxes — (553} (177) 11.680) (2,764)
Net income - (342) (238} 5,148 (2,066)
Net income per share
Basic $ - % — % 0.01) ¢ 00e § {0.03)
Diluted —_ (.01} - 0.00 {0.04}
Shares used in compuling per share amounts
Basic —_ - — —_— —_
Diluted — — — an (75)
Other Operating Data
Ratio of earnings 1o fixed charges ! — - — (0.1) (0.2)
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data
Total assels 3 — 8 (877} § (9,315 $ (2,701) % {1,643)

Long-term debt, net of current maturities * —
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2008+ 2005 2004 2003 2002

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, Restated Restated Rastated Restated
{In housands, except per shars amounls and ratios)
Consolidated Statement of Income Data
Revenue % BOG6589 $ 733,176 $ 622,250 $ 522.810 $ 462,953
Income before income taxes 204,676 230,101 173,862 86,035 33,323
Net income 130,428 149,361 106,412 69,165 19,402
Nei income per share

Basic $ 215 §$ 243 % 180 § 125 §$ 0.37

Diluted 2.11 2.27 1.72 1.20 0.35
Shares used in computing per share amounts

Basic 60,733 61,567 59,006 55,412 53,084

Diluted 61,711 65,744 62,031 57.497 55,380
Other Operating Data
Ratio of earnings to fixed charges ! 29.23 1762 18.4 6.4 25
Consolidated Balance Sheet Data
Total assets $ 1,714,384 $ 1662208 §$ 1442269 § 1,221,383 $ 1,023.412
Long-term debi, net of current maturities ® 265,000 - 265,000 265,011 244,739

L Ratio of earnings to fixed charges means the ratio of income before fixed charges and income taxes to fixed charges, where fixed charges are
the aggregate of interest expense, including amortization of debt issuance costs, and an allccation of rental charges o approximate equiv-
alent interest.

2 |ncluded as a deduction from income before income taxes and as an addition to interest expense in 2005 is accelerated amortization of debt
issuance costs in the amount of $5.0 million. Also included as a deduction from income belfare income taxes in 2005 are losses on leased
properties of $1.2 million. Excluding this amertization and these losses. the ratio of earnings to fixed charges would have been 27.7 for 2005,

3 |ncluded as a deduction from income before income taxes in 2006 are losses on restructuritg of $27.3 million. Excluding these cosis, the
ratio of earnings to fixed charges would have been 33.0 for 2006.

4 The adjustments result from additional compensation expense related to 1he changes in the measurement dates of certain previously granted
stock oplions and modifications, changes to deferred tax assets related o ¢ertain intercompany loans, and adjustments lo revenue and
deferred revenue as described in Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

5 The convertible debeniures were classified as short-term in 2005 due 10 a conversion condition having been met at the end of 2005. This
condition was no longer met after the first quarter of 2006, See Note 6 10 the Consolidated F inancial Statements for additiona! inforemnation.

§  We adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 123(R), “Share-based Payment” on January 1, 2006.

To carrect our past accounting for equity awards, we recorded an aggregate of $27.2 million of additional compensation expense
related 10 the change in measurement dates of certain previousty granted stock awards and modifications of certain previously
granted stock options from 1998 to 2003. In addition, in 2002 through 2005 we recorded pre-tax charges of $1.2 million for deterred
tax adjusiments related 1o certain intercompany loans and adjustments to revenue and deferred revenue thal were previously consid-
ered immaterial to our Consalidated Financial Statements. The change in total assets is relaled to Changes in deferred tax asseis
resulting from these transactions.

Diluted shares in 2002 and 2003 decreased as a result of the additional equity compensation expense. We use the treasury stock
methed to calculate the weighted-average shares used in the diluled earnings per share calculation. As part of the restatement we
revised our treasury stock calculations in accordance with SFAS No. 128, “Earnings Per Share.” These calculations assume that

(a) all Adjusted Options are exercised, {b) we repurchase shares with the proceeds of these hypothetical exercised along with the tax
benelit resulting from the hypothetical exercises, and (c} any unamortized deferred equity-based compensation is also used to
repurchase shares.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS (MD&A)

Many of the statements made in ftem 7 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K are “lorward-looking” and are based on our current expectations,
assumpltions and projections about Getty images, Inc. and its industry and are made on the basis of our views as of the dale this document is
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC). Examples of such forward-looking statements contained in this item 7 include, but are
not limited (o, the statemenis concerning trends in revenue. costs and expensas, liquidily and capital resources: our accounting estimates,
assumplions and judgments; the impact of the restatement of our historical financial statements in connection with the Special Committee inves-
tigation and management’s inlernal review of our historical equily award grant practices and other remedial actions to be taken in connectiorn
therewilh; the impact of the new accounting rules and pronouncements relaled 1o the expensing of stock options; the impact of our recent busi-
ness acquisitions and our ability to integrate new operations successfully; the competitive nature of and anticipated growth in our markets; our
abilily to maintain our Compelitive pasition in the industry; the outcome of the ongoing government inquiry and pending litigation regarding our
historical equily grant practices, as well as the claims of defauit under the indenture govemning our 0.5% convertible subordinated debentures,
and the impact thereof on our business; and our prospective needs for, and anticipated source of, additional capital and cur abilily to secure such
additional capital. The foregoing and other forward-looking statements can often be identified by words such as “anticipate,” “believe,” “plan,”
“gstimate,* “expect,” “seek,” “intend,” “predict,” “may,” "might,” “should,” “would,” “could,” “potential,” “continue,” “ongoing, * and similar
expressions, and variations Or negatives of these and other similar words. These forward-looking statements are not guaraniees of future perform-
ance and are subject lo certain risks and unceriainties that are difficult to predict and that could cause our actual resulls o differ materialty and
adversely from our past performance and our current expectations, assumptions and projections. Differences may result from actions laken by us
as well as Irom risks and unceriainties beyond our control, Patential risks and uncertainties include, among others, those specifically set forth in
this section and those in Part 1, item 1A, “Risk Factors” of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Except as required by law, we undertake no obliga-
tion to update any forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future developments or otherwise. Readers should carefully
review il documents that we file with, and furnish to, the SEC, as we will periodically update these forward-looking statements through these
documents. Therefore, these forward-looking statements should not be considered current beyond the date this document is filed with the SEC
untess read in conjunclion with all of our documents filed with, and furnished 10, the SEC thereafter.

The following should be read in conjunction with our Consolidated Financial Statements and the notes thereto included in Part IV, ftem 15(A),
Part I, ltem 1. “Business,” and Part li, item 6. “Selected Consolidated Financial Data,” of this Annual Report on Form 10-K,

RESTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

As announced on Novenber 9, 2006, a Special Committee was established by our Board of Directors o conduct an independent
investigation relating to the company's equity compensation grant practices and related accounting for equity compensation grants.
The Special Committee consisted of two independent members of our Board of Directors who were assisted In their investigation by
independent outside legal counsel.

Together with its independent counsel, the Special Commitiee conducied an exiensive review of equily compensation grant practices
and awards made by the company, or in connection with companies we acquired, between July 14, 1994 and November 1, 2006 (the
“Retevant Period™), which covered 7,102 stock option grants and 1,062 restricted stock unit (*"RSU”) grants made on 465 occasions.
During the investigation, numerous documents were reviewed, and exlensive interviews of current and former employees and direc-
tors of the company and other individuals were conducted by the Special Committee's independent counsel. On April 10, 2007, the
Special Commitiee presented its findings to the Board of Directors.

As also announced on November 9, 2006, the Securilies and Exchange Commission (the "SEC”) had earlier notified us that il is
conducling an informal inquiry into the company's equily compensation grant practices. We continue to cooperate fully with the SEC
in this informal inquiry.
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We have not amended and do not intend to amend any of our previously filed Annual Reports on Form 10-K or Quarterly Reports on
Form 10-Q {or ihe periods affected Dy the restatements other than through this document, except for the 2006 Quarterly Reports on
Form 10-Q for the quarters ended March 31, 2006 and June 30, 2006. Previously filed financial statements for fiscal years ended
1958 through 2005, the interim periods contained therein, together with all earnings and other press releases containing our financial
information for those periods and the earnings releases for the 2006 quarters ended March 31, 2006, June 30, 2006, September 30,
2006 and December 31, 2006 should not be relied upon.

The Speciasl Committes's Conclusions

The Special Commitiee concluded that the evidence obtained and reviewed in its investigation did not establish any intentional wrong-
doing by current employees, officers or directors of the company. The Special Commitice and the company’s management have
delermined that incorrect measurement dates for certain equity compensation awards were used for financial accounting purpases.
and certain previously issued granis were modilied without properly recording compensation expense and, as a resull, we are restat-
ing certain of our prior linancial statements to correct the accounting {or those awards. The use of incorrect measurement dates
resulted from a number of reasons, including delays in the approval of awards, the absence of definitive documentation and mod-
ifications of previously awarded grants. The Special Committee also identified certain awards for which grant dates were selected
retroactively, However, ihe Special Committee has concluded that the evidence does not establish thai there was any intentional
wrongdoing in connection with those awards. Nearly all of the grants for which the measurement dates have been changed
{approximately 99% of the grants) were awarded in 2001 and earlier years.

In addition to the adjustments ta qur previously filed financial statements as described above, the Board of Directors has adopied the
following recommendations of the Special Commiltee,

+ Twe additiona) independent directors will be recruited and appointed to the company’s Board of Directors.

+ Membership of the Audit and Compensation Commitiees of the Board of Directors will be changed.

* The Equity Compensalion Commitiee has been discontinued.

» Enhancements will be made in the oversight of the company's carporate governance practices with respect lo the company’s equity compen-
sation programs.

+ Senior management will be charged with ensuring that the equity compensation policles and processes are appropriate and provide effec-
tive controls, and that the company's accounting for equity compensation is appropriate.

« Cerlain of the company's equily compensation administrative processes and funclions will move from the company's human resources
organization 1o the finance organization, under the supervision of the Chiel Financial Officer,

+ The Board of Directors unanimously adopted an Equily Compensation Grant Policy on Ap:i! 10, 2007, which provides, among other things,
that:

+ Al terms of each equity grant must be finalized and approved by the Board of Directors or the Compensation Committee on or prior to
the grant date;

» Al stock options must have an exercise price equal lo or greater than the average of the high and low market price 0n the grant date;
« Al recipients of equily grants must be notified, in writing, of such granls as scon as possible following approval and

* Any equity compensation issues or actions will be reported by senior management on a timely basis to the Board of Directors or the
Compensation Committee, no less frequently than quarterly.
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Background

Between 1994 and 1596, the Board of Directors granted stock options to Getty Communications (Getly Images' predecessor) employ-
ees and in connection with acguisitions, in¢luding grants o employees and ofticers of acquired companies, From 1996 to 1998, the
Compensation Committee had the authority o, and did, grant options to employees, officers and directors. From August 1998 through
2001, the Compensation Committee continued to grant options to executive officers, and crealed option “pools” from which the Chief
Executive Officer and Senior Vice Presidents were authorized to grant options to employees and non-executive officers. These pools
were used by the executive officers o grant oplions in connection with the hiring and promotion of employees or as incentive awards.
In August 2001, the Board of Directors created the Stock Option Committee, appointing Chief Executive Officer Jonathan Klein as the
sole member with delegated authority to grant aptions to employees and non-executive officers. In 2005, the Stock Option Committee
was renamed the Equity Compensaiion Committee, and we moved to primarily granting RSUs rather than options.

A total of 7,102 option granis and 1,062 RSU granis were awarded during the Relevant Period, as follows:

» “Pool options” in which "pools” of options were approved by the Compensation Committee for later grant to employees by executive officers
{2,277 grents).

* “Acquisition option grants™ in which options were granted by the Board of Directors of Compensation Committee to employees and officers
in connection with cur acquisition of other companies and in which outstanding options hetd by employees of acquired companies were
exchanged for Getty Images options at pre-determined conversion ratios (1,464 grants),

= “Other option grants™ which cover all remaining stock option grants during the Relevant Period (3,361 grants).

s “RSU grants” in which RSUs were granted by the Equity Compensation Commiltee, the Compensation Commiltee and the Board of Direc-
10rs to employees, officers and directors (1,062 grants}.

The Special Commitiee and the company have determined that it Is necessary to revise ihe measurement dates for approximately
45% of these awards ("Adjusted Options™). Over half of the awards for which the measurement date is being revised relate to the
company's only all employee grant in February of 2000 1o employees below the vice president level. In additlon, the measurement
dates for many awards were revised due to: (i} the use of the date of the approval of a poo! of oplions as the measurement date as
opposed to the date that the terms of each grant were finalized; (ii) the use of the date that a Unanimous Written Consent approving
equily awards was faxed to Compensation Commitiee members for their approval, rather than the date when the approvals of the
Compensation Committee members had been faxed back, as the measurement date for the associated grants; and {lii} the absence of
a detailed list of recipients and associated grants prior to the date certain grants were entered into our equily award tracking system.

We previously applied Accounting Principles Board (*APB") Opinion Na, 25, “Accounting for Stock 1ssued to Employees,” and its
related Interpretations and provided the required pro forma disclosures under Statement of Financiat Accounting Standards (*SFAS”)
No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” through our {lscal year ended December 31, 2005. We have used the accel
erated methad of expensing stock options provided in Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation No. 28, “Accounting for
Stock Appreclation Rights and Qther Variable Stock Option or Award Plans” far recording expense and for our pro forma disclosures.
Under APB Opilnion No., 25, a non-cash, stock-based compensation expense was required to be recognized for any option for which
the exercise price was below the market price on the measurement date. Because most of the company's Adjusted Options had an
exercise price betow the market price on the measurement date, there should have been a non-cash charge for each of these options
under APB Opinion No. 25 equal to the number of option shares, multipiied by the difference between the exercise price and the
market price on the measurement date. That expense should have been amortized over the service penod of the option,

The company also reviewed modifications made to previously granted options and determined that we did not record the appropriate
amounlt of compensation expense for some of the modifications {*Modified Options"). We did not recard the appropriate amount of
stock-based compensation expense under APB Opinion No, 25 related to Adjusted or Modified Options in our previously issued finan-
clal statements, and are recording these expenses in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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The restatements included in this Annuat Report on Form 10-K include equity compensation adjustments atising from the Special
Committee investigation and management’s internal review, as well as from deferred lax adjustments related to certain long-term
intercompany loans and adjustmenis to revenue and deferred revenue that were previously considered immaterial 10 Qur Consolidated
Financial Statements. The income sialement impact of the restatement is as follows:

Cumulative

Total affect at sffact at

YEARS ENDED Decamber 31, December 31,
DECEMSBER 31, 2005 2008 2004 2003 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

{in thousangs)

Nel income, as
previously
reporied 3 149,703 % 106,650
Additional
compensation
Texpelnse:j $ (27,204) $ 127,204) $ (1,294} § (2,706) $ (4,784} $ (15,710) § (2,481} $ (229)
ax relate
elfects 7.862 (128) 7,990 1,814 676 1,110 3,847 500 43

Additiona!
compensation
expense, net
0ol tax! (19,342) (128} (19,214) % 520 $ (2,030) 3 {3,674) $ {11,863) 3 {1,981} $ (186}
ther
adjustments,
net of tax t72n (342) (110} {275}

Total decrease
in net income % (20,0690 (342) (238) $ (19,489)

Net income, as
restated $ 149,361 3% 106,412

' Amounts resulted [rom improper measurement dates for stock awards and modifications.

The table below shows the after-tax compensation expense as originally reporied, the amaunt of the additional compensation expense
and the restated compensation expense for all years that were restated.

AFTER-TAX COMPENSATION EXPENSE 2003 2002 2001 Z000 1999 1999

(In thousands)

As Reporied $ (302} 3§ (23) 3 072) § — 5 (814) § -
Adjustment 520 {2,030) (3,674) {11,863} {1,981} {186)
As Restated $ 218 % (2,053) $(3,846) § (11,863} % (2.795) % (186}

Equity-based compensation is not deductible for corporate income tax purposes in mast countries. The after-tax amounts in the table reflect reduc-
tion of compensation expense Tor tax benefits in the United States in all years and in the United Kingdom in 2003, For the United Kirngdom prior to
2003 and for all other countries in all years, there is no tax benefit recorded lor the associated compensalion expense.

In addition, in 2001, we analyzed pur existing nel deferred tax assets (DTAs) and determined that not all the existing DTAs would be
realized over the period covered by aur analysis and therefore recorded a valuation allowance equat to approximately $12 million. We
performed a similar analysis in 2002 and as a result, increased the valuation aliowance associated with the exercise of employee
stock options in 2002 to $15.1 million. In 2003, we updated our estimate of future taxable income and determined that it was now
more likely than no! that we would realize more of the DTA than the net batance at December 31, 2003. Therefore, we reduced our
valuation allowance by $25.3 million, including the $15.1 miflion related to stock option exercises. We reviewed the vaiuation aliow-
ance in light of the restatement of equity-based compensation and determined that an additional valuation allowance of $4.9 million
should be recorded at December 31, 2001 and then released at December 31, 2003.
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As noted above, we have also made two adjustments to deferred tax assets that were previously considered immateriat. The first item
related to the accounting for unrealized foreign currency gains and losses on long-term intercompany loans between our United States
and United Kingdom subsidiaries, We incorrectly recorded deferred tax assets on the unrealized foreign currency gains and losses in
the United Kingdom from 1999 to 2005, instead of recarding them as part of the ne1 foreign currency transiation adjustments (losses)
gains within accumulated other comprehensive income (loss). The second item related to an intercompany loan established in 2005
for which we did not include the unrealized gains or l0sses in taxable income, causing our deferred taxes related to our net operating
losses 1o be misstated and other comprehensive income to also be misstated.

The revenue and deferred revenue adjustment relates to fees paid by photographers for making certain of their images available for
license on our website for two years. We had previously recognized these fees when received, as they were previously considered
immaterial, and are now recognizing the fees ratably over the two year period, resulting in a decrease in revenue and an increase in
deferred revenue in the periods reported herein,

In addition, we evaluated the impact of the restatements an our consolidated tax provision. The company and our subsidiaries file tax
returns in numercus tax jurisdictions around the world. In the United States for all years reflected above and the United Kingdom in
2003 and subsequent years, we are able to claim a tax deduction relating 10 stock options exercised. In those jurisdictions where a
tax deduction will be allowed, we have recorded deferred 1ax assets to reflect future tax deductions o the extent we believe such
assets to be recoverable. In addition, we also determined that, as a result of the changes in the measurement dates, we should not
have taken a deduclion in the US in prior years for stock option related amounts pertaining ta cestain executives under the Internal
Revenue Code Section 162{m). Section 162{m) {imits the deductibility of compensation above certain thresholds. As a result, our tax
liabilities have increased by approximately $2.4 million,

If certain of the Adjusted or Modified Options are not repriced, the holders of such options will, upon exercise of the options, incur
personal income taxes and penaliies in accordance with Internal Revenue Code {IRC) Section 409A (and other state {ax laws} beyond
what they would have incurred were the options not adjusted or modified. Certain of these options have already been exercised and
therefare incremental taxes and penalties have been incurred by the holders, while other affected options remain outstanding. We are
currently evaluating the company’s position with respect to reimbursing employees for incremental 1axes and penalties incurred and
to polentially repricing the aflected options that remain outstanding. I the company takes such actions it will result in a charge to
compensation expense in the period the decision is made of the expense is incurred, as applicable.

This restatement did not affect cash provided by operating activities in our consolidated statements of cash flows.

GENERAL

Overview

The image licensing business is dynamic and continually introduces opportunities and challenges. We believe that many opportunities
exist in the business of licensing imagery. We believe thal our best opportunities include growlh in non-English speaking markels,
growth in our footage and editorial preducts, growth and develapment of iStockphote, our micropayment business, growth in creative
slills as a result of the pending launch of our new website, as well as introducing new products and license models. Most recenily, the
challenges for the business have been associated with the introduction of new alternative licensing models, changing compelilive
dynamics as well as the shift of communication and advertising to the internet, which has changed the communication methods used
by many of our customers.

Although we already have products and services available in many markets throughout the world, much of the focus of our business
has been in English speaking markeis. The market for visual content in many non-English speaking countries remains fragmented,
and we believe there is substantial opportunily in these markets. We plan 1o accelerate growth in licenses of both editoriat and crea-
tive imagery in non-English speaking counlries by expanding our product and service offerings in markets that we have not lully pene-
\rated, by creating or acquiring locally relevant imagery and by localizing language and search capability on our website.

Stock footage is a relatively new industry with characteristics similar to stock photography. Footage clips can be used by customers in
feature litms, television commercials, web advertisements, and corporate videos, all of which are large markets that currently use a
high velume of custom shot moving imagery. Qur efforts to grow licenses of our footage product include Increasing the breadth and
depth of our collections, improving our lechnoiogy to make it easier for our customers to search for and license footage clips and
marketing 10 and educating customers and prospective customers about the benehits of using pre-shot footage.
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Our editorial products have produced healthy revenue growth recently but are still primarily dominated by saies in English speaking
markets. We recently launched the new editorial section of our website at www.getlyimages.com and for the first time have a com-
bined database ihat allows customess to search both editorial and creative content simultaneously. tn addition, we have begun rolling
out our edilorial products in foreign languages and we expect to eventually offer our editorial praducts in all of the languages for
which we offer our creative content,

The micropayment model has introduced a large number of smali office and home office customers to the stock photography market.
These are customers thal we belleve did not historically license imagery under traditional licensing models. in February 2006, we
acquired iStockphoto which we belleve is the leader in this new model. We believe that cver time we can employ our expertise in the
stock photography business to drive changes and growth in this new market.

The micropayment model also creates some risk for our traditional creative product offerings. For ¢certaln customers and a limited
number of projects, we believe that the micropayment image may be a viable substilute. This had an impact on our traditional creative
stills volume in 2006, and we expect it 1o continue to have an impact in 2007, We believe that there are & variely of possible uses of
imagery, and our objective is to otfer imagery to our customers at all price points. We believe that our customers will continue 10 see
the value associated with our traditional products and as such, those license models will retain their importance in the stock photog-
raphy market.

Also in 2006, we saw a change in the competitive dynamics in the stock photography market. Qur customers have been made aware
of competitive alternatives through the increased advertising and marketing efforts of our competitors. Also, our customers have
increasing access lo, and awareness of, a variety of imagery sources on the Internet, In this environment, we believe our primary
compelitive differentiatars include the highest quatity imagery, the broadest and deepes: collections and the best tools for use by our
customers in finding and purchasing imagery. We continue t0 add high quality, relevant imagery to our industry leading collections,
we are creating new license models for the benefit of our customers, we lead the industiy in Creative research and we are revitalizing
our websile, gellyimages.com with new features and search functionality in order to imp-ove our customers’ experience.

Operaling margins for our business have generally grown over the past five years and continue 10 be atiractive, especially for a2 media
business. For our traditional creative stills products, we believe we can continue t0 grow revenue faster than expenses. However, we

have other products with good revenue growth potential that have alteactive, yet tower, margin profiles. Growth in revenue trom these
products may have a slight negalive impact on our overall operating margins, as we experienced in 2006,

Revenue

We generate our revenue from licensing rights 10 use visual content and from providing related services. Revenue is principalty
derived from a farge number of relatively small transactions involving ficensing rights 10 use single still images, stock footage or CDs
containing multiple images. We also generate revenue from subscription image licenses, from assignment photo shools and from addi-
tional products and services. In addition to being licensed directly by us, our imagery is 1lso licensed through channel partners
{distributors) and delegates worldwide.

Revenue generated from delegates comprised approximately 7% of our revenue in 2006 compared 10 6% in 2005, Delegates lypically
earn and retain 35% to 40% of the license fee paid by their customers, and we recognize the remaining 60% to 65% as revenue,

STILL IMAGERY

We offer still imagery for license through four image portfolios: rights-managed, rights-ready, royalty-free, and editorial. Rights-
managed images are licensed by customers on a use-by-use basis and generally have higher license fees based on the intended use
or application of the image, geographic distribution, license duration, circulation and fevel of exclusivity. Qur rights-managed collec-
tions are generally considered to represent our highest quality images.

The rights-ready model was introduced in the third quarier of 2006, and represents rights-managed quafily imagery under a simplified
license model {more akin to the royally-free model), The license fee for a righis-ready image is based on 3 limited number of broadly
defined usage categories with no geographic variable and a ten year license duration. Since its introduction, we have been adding
images and collections to our rights-ready portfolio and we expect it to grow as a percentage of our total revenue aver time.

Royalty-free images can be used by customers for muitiple projects over an unkimited timz period. Set pricing is established for
royalty-free imagery based on the production or artistic value of the image wilh variability associated with the file size (image
resotution). In addition to single image licenses, royaity-iree imagery can be licensed through CDs and subscriptions.

Editorial imagery consisls of news, sports, entertainment and archival imagery, and is licensed on a single image or subscription basis
{except for archival).
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FOOTAGE

We also maintain portfelios of rights-managed and royalty-free stock footage, or lootage clips, for license by our customers. These
license models for stock footage are essentially the same as those described for our creative stills portfolios.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue consists primarily of royalties owed to contributors, comprised of photographers, filmmakers and image partners.
Contributors are under conlract with us and typically receive royalties of 10% to 50% of the total license fee, depending on the portio-
lic (as discussed above), where the imagery is licensed (licenses outside a contributor's home territory result in lower royailies) and
the terms of their contract. We also own the copyrighi 10 certain of the images in our collections (wholly-owned content) for which we
do not pay any third party royalties. Cost of revenue also includes the cost of shipping and handling hard goods (CDs), costs of our
assignment photo shoots and other costs related directly to the creation of revenue. Cost of revenue excludes depreciation and amor-
tization associated with creating or buying these images.

Restructuring Costs

During 2006, we recorded a total of $27.3 million of restructuring costs. Approximately $21.7 miilion related 1o consolidation of cer-
tain office space in New Yark and Seattle and other related costs and was based on our evaluation of our options regarding the
resultant excess space and our estimate of the total 10ss incurred on that space for the remainder of the respective lease terms. The
remaining $5.6 million was a severance charge in the fourth quarter related 10 a realignment of resources.

Acquisitions of Businesses

On April 6, 2006, we purchased all of the shares of Pixel Images Holdings Limited, the parent company of Star Media Limited (dba
Stockbyte) and Stockdisc Limited (dba Stockdisc) (collectively, “Stockbyte™} tor $135.0 miltion in net cash (excluding direct acquis-
ition costs). Slockbyte was a privately held stock photography agency based in Tralee, Irefand that licensed royalty-free imagery to its
customers through distributors, including Getty Images, and through its two websites, www.stockbyie.com and www.stockdisc.com.
Prior to the acquisition, we had a significant number of Stockbyle's images availabie far license through our image Partner program.
We have integrated this business into ours, including redirecting both of their websites 0 www.gettyimages.com. The purchase was
funded from existing cash and cash equivalents. The purchase price was allocated primarily to goodwill ($110.2 million) and identifi-
able intangible assets ($21.4 million).

On February 9, 2006, we purchased all of the shares of iStockphoto, Inc., a privately held stock photography company localed in
Calgary, Alberta, Canada, for $50.0 million in cash. iStockphoto, Inc. licenses royalty-lree imagery exclusively through its website,
www.istockphoto.com, and is a leader in the micropayment licensing model (i.e. licensing imagery for as little as one dollar), The
purchase was funded from existing cash and cash equivalents. The purchase price was allocated primarily 1o goodwill ($40.9 million)
and identiiable intangible assets {$13.5 million),

We also completed the acquisition of Laura Ronchi, S.p.A, our ltalian delegate, in the second quarter of 2006 and Image One - Ges-
130 e Comercializagdo de Imagens, SA, our Porluguese delegate, in the fourth quarter of 2006.

On April 20, 2005, we acquired London-based Digital Vision Limited {Digital Visicn), one of the world's feading royalty-free photog-
raphy businesses, for a purchase price of $179.6 million ($167.0 million of cash and $12.6 miltion of direct acquisition costs and
liabilities assumed). The majority of the purchase price was allocated 1o goodwill ($135.3 mitlion) and identifiable intangible assets
{$33.2 million}. Prior to the acquisition, we had a significant number of Digital Vision’s images available for license through our Image
Partner program.

On fune 8, 2005, we acquired Amana America, In¢., Amana Europe Limited and Iconica Limited {collectively Photonica) for a pur-
chase price of $58.3 milllon ($48.1 million of cash and $10.2 million of direct acqulisition costs and liabilities assumed). Photonica is
a rights-managed stock photography agency with ils princlpal offices in New York and London, The majority of the purchase price was
allocated to goodwill ($41.4 milion) and identifiable intangible assets ($11.6 million). We acquired this company 10 obtaln access to
some of the world's teading coilections of culting edge, high-end rights-managed imagery and some of the most talented and crealive
photographers in Europe, the United Stales and Japan,

Far all of these acquisitions, the resulis of operations of the acquired businesses since the respective dates of acquisition are
included in our consolidated financial statements, None of the acquisitions were materiat, individually or in the aggregate, to the
company as a whole and, therefore, pra forma financial information is not presented.

Subsequent 1o December 31, 2006, we have also acquired several other small companies.
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Comparison of 2006 to 2005 Results of Operations
Al numbers in the tables beiow, except percentages are in thousands.

TEARY ENDED DICIMALR 11, TEAR OYEN TEAR
2006 % of revenue : 005 % of revenue $ change % change
Revenue $ 806,589 100.0 $ 733,176 100.0 $ 73413 ' 10.0

The increase in revenue in 2006 was due primarily to an increase in royalty-free revenue resulting fram increased licensing of micro-
paymen! images {which we did not license in 2005} and an increase in the volume anQ average prices for single-image royalty free
images licensed, In additian, we had increased revenue from licensing of editorial imagery as a resuli of growth in each of our primary
editorial products (news, sports and entertainment). increased revenue from other products {such as media manages and photo
assignments) and grawth in footage revenue. We alsq increased our efforts to identify and bil! for unauthorized use of pur images
which allowed us 10 generate revenue from licenses we would not have received In the past. Revenue generaled through our delegates
also increased during the year. Revenue from single-image licenses ol our righls-managed porifolio was flat year over year as
increased volume was offset by a decrease in the average price per image (primarily as a result of a shift in the mix to lower priced
usage categories).

Revenue increased across all major geographic areas in 2006 over the comparable pesiods in 2005. Changes in foreign currency
exchange rates had very little impact on our revenue year over year. Revenue from rights-managed licenses, including rights-ready,
decreased as a percent of total revenue from 43% in 2005 to 40% in 2006, while royalty-iree, editorial and other revenue each
increased 1% of total revenue to 38%, 13% and 5%, respectively. Management expecls revenue (o grow at a single-digit percentage
rate in 2007.

YEARS ENCED DECEMBER 3i. YEAR OVER TEAR
2006 % ot ravenue 2005 % of revanue $ change % thange
Cost of revenue $ 206,761 256 % 196,887 269 $ 9,874 5.0

Cost of revenue, which consists primarily of royalties paid on imagery licensed, increased on a dollar basis over 2005 due to
increased revenue, As a percentage of revenue, cost of revenue declined to 25.6% of revenue primarily due 10 an increase in ficenses
of wholly-owned imagery for which we do nat pay a royally. Our portfolio of wholly-owned imagery increased in 2006, primarily as a
result of the acquisition of Stockbyte, whase image collections are 100% wholly-owned. The dectine in cost of revenue as a percent-
age of revenue was offsel in parl by an increase in the average royalty rate on licenses of editorial imagery that resulted mainly from
licenses of exclusive entertainment imagery, which generally carries a higher rayalty rate than other editorial imagery. Below are aver-
age cost of revenue percentages by portfolio:

2006 2005 2004

PORTFOLIO

Rights-managed still imagery ! 34% 33% 33%
Royalty-free still imagery 16% 20% 24%
Editorial imagery 26% 22% 18%
Footage ’ 28% 29% 28%

)V tncludes rights-ready imagery




12 GETTY IMAGES, INC, 2006 FORM 10-K PART Il ITEM 7

YEARS ENDEC DECIMDER 1), YEAR OVEIR YEAR
2006 % of revenue 2005 % of revenue $ change % changs
Selling, general and administrative expenses $ 302,729 375 % 252,103 344 $ 50,626 20.1

Selling, general and administrative (SG&A) expenses increased year over year gue mainly to an incraase in stock-based compensation
expense as a result of adopting SFAS No. 123(R) on January 1, 2008, an increase in staff costs for employees who joined the com-
pany through business acquisilions and increased sates stafl, higher marketing expenses and increased professional fees mainly
associated with tax planning strategies and the review of ocur historic equity compensation grant practices. Managemenl expecls
SG&A, excluding the professional fees related to the equity compensation grant practices review and a terminated acquisition, 1o
Increase moderately in 2007,

YEARS ENDED DECTMBER 31, TCAR OVER TEAR
2006 % of revenue 2005 % of 1evenua $ change % change
Depreciation $ 53,254 6.6 $ 48,572 6.6 $ 4,682 8.6

Depreciation increased year over year due mainly lo increased capilal expenditures relating to the creation and acquisition of imagery.
Tolal capital expendilures in 2006 were $62 million. Management expects depreciation to increase again in 2007 as a resull of con-
tinued investment in imagery and additional website functionality.

YEARS ENDED DECEMDER FI. YCAR OVZA YIAR
2006 % of revenue 2005 % of revenue $ change % change
Amortization $ 19,680 2.4 $ 9,519 1.3 $ 10,161 106.7

The increase in amortization in 2006 was due to the amortization of the intangible asseis related 1o the acquisitions of Stockbyle and
iStockphoto in 2006 and to the acquisitions of Digilat Vision and Photonica in 2005.

TEARS ENDED DECTMBLR 31, YEAR OVIR YIAR
2006 % of revenue 2005 % of revenue $ change % changs
Restructuring costs $ 27,258 4 - — $ 27,258 na

During 2006, we recorded a total of $27.3 million of restructuring costs. Approximately $21.7 million related to consolidation of cer-
tain office space in New York and Seattie and related costs and was based on our evaluation of our options regarding the resultant
excess space and our estimate of the total 10ss incurred on these spaces for the remainder of the respactive lease terms. The remain-
ing $5.6 million was a severance charge in the fourth quartes related to a realignment of resources.

YEARS ENDIO DICENRER 31, YLAR OVER TEAR
operating oparating
2006 maigin 2005 magln $ change % change

Income from operalions and operating margin ~ $ 198,092 246 % 225,378 30.7 $ (27.286) {12.1)
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Income from operalions and operating margin decreased year over year due primarily tc the restructuring costs, the increase in SG&A,
and higher depreciation and amortization expenses. In total, expenses grew at a rate fasier than revenue resulting In a lower overall
operating margin percentage. These increases were offse! slightly by a decrease in our cost of revenue. The restructuring charges
incurred in 2006, reduced income from operations by $27.3 mitlian and reduced operating margin 3.4% in 2006.

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER ) 1. YCAR OVIR YOAR
2006 % of revenue 2005 % ol revanue $ change % Change
Investment income $ 8,834 11 $ 11991 16§ (3,157 (26.3)

Invesiment income decreased in 2006 due mainly to a $4.0 million 1055 on sale of invesiments in the second quarter of 2006. How-
ever, the average rate of return on the cash and investment balances was higher in 2006 than in 2005, offset somewhat by lower
average balances held during the year.

TEARS [NDLO OECIMAEN 31, YEAR OVER TEAR
2006 % of revenue 2015 % of ravenue $ change % change
Interest expense % (1.506) (0.2} $ (7,618) (1.0} $ 6112 80.2

Interest expense decreased in 2006 due mainly to $5.0 million of accelerated amortizatiun of debt issuance cosls in June of 2005,
which resulted from a conversion condition of our convertible subordinated debentures being met. See discussion of our debentures
under "Liquidity” below for additional information.

TEaR$ ENDED OCCEMPEIN 3D, TEAR OVER TLAN
etlective effeclive
2006 tax rate 2005 tax rale § change % change
Income tax expense $ (74,248) (36.3) % (80,74]) {35.1) $ 6,492 8.0

Our effective tax rate jor 2006 increased from 2005 primarily due to the recegnition of @ valuation allowance relating o deferred tax
assels generated from Capital losses incurred in 2006. Additionally, in 2005 we released :34.7 million of tax reserves in connection
with our ability to ytilize foreign 1ax crediis as well as favorable developments in tax examinations.

Comparison of 2005 to 2004 Resulis of Gperations

TIARS ENOED DECEMBER 31, YEAR OVER TEAS
2005 % of revenue 2004 % of revenue $ change % thange
Revenue $ 733,176 1000 $ 622,250 100.0 % 110,926 17.8

Excluding the impact of changes in foreign currency exchange rates. revenue increased $103.1 million or 16.6% year over year due
mainly to higher volumes of images licensed from our royalty-tree portfolio at a higher ave-age price per image. The royaity-free vol-
ume increase was particularly signiticant in Europe, where customers continue (o adopt this licensing model. Increases in average
price per image arose {hrough a shift in the mix of images licensed within our royalty-free portfolio towards higher priced imagery and
through selective price increases, In addition 10 the success of the royalty-free model, the volume of righis-managed imagery licensed
increased modestly year over year. Revenue from licenses of editorial imagery and foolage also increased year over year. Revenue
from licenses of footage in the third and iourth quarters of 2005, however, was fl1at when compared to the same quarters in 2004,
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YEARS ENDED OLCEMAER 31, YEAN OYVER TEAR
2005 % of revenue 2004 % of revenue $ change % change
Selling, general and administrative expenses $ 252,103 344 % 225,128 36.2 $ 26,975 12.0

Excluding the impact of changes In foreign currency exchange rates, selling, general and administrative expenses increased $25.0
million or 11% year over year. This increase was due mainly to increased sialf costs related to employees who Joined the company
through business acquisitions during the last year and to annual salary increases effective Apri! of 2005.

YEARS EMDED OECEMBIN 31, TEAR OVER YEAM
operating aperating
2005 margin 2004 margin $ change % changs !
Income from operations and operating margin ~ § 225,378 30,7 % 168.090 27.0 $ 57,288 11 |

Income from operations and aperating margin increased year over year primarily due to increased revenue and a shift in image |
license mix towards higher margin royally-free imagery and a shift within our royalty-free portfolio towards wholly-owned imagery. The !
shifl towards wholly-owned imagery occurred as we acquired and created a signiflcant number of wholly-owned images in 2005, |
These increases in operating income were offset in part by an increase in amortization due to identifiable intangible assets acquired !
dusing the year, |

|

]

YLARS ENDID DECIMOER 31, VLA OVER YLAR .
2005 % of revenye 2004 % of revenue $ change % change :
|
investment income $ 11,991 16 $ 9,133 15 $ 2,858 1.3

investment income increased in 2005 due to higher cash and cash equivalents balances, even after paying $234.4 miltion in cash to
acquire businesses during the year, as well as due to an increase in interest rates.

YLARS ENDLD OTCEMBEN 31, TEAR OVER YEAR
2005 % of revenua 2004 % of revenue $ change % change
Interest expense $ (7,618) {1.0) $ (3.828) (©.6) $ (3,790) (99.0)

Interest expense increased in 2005 as a conversion condition of cur convertibte subordinated debentures was met during the second
quarter, requiring acceleraled amortization in June of 2005 of the remaining $5.0 million of unamortized debt issuance costs. The
conversion conditicn was met when the closing price of our common stock exceeded $73.30 for 20 trading days within the last 30
trading days ended June 30, 2005. See discussion of our debentures under "Liquidily” betow for more information.

YEANS ENDED OLCEMBER 31, YLAR OVER YEAR
etlective eftecilve
2005 {ax rate 2004 tax rate $ change % change
Income tax expense $ (80,7400 (35.1) % {67.45Q) {38.8) § (13,290 (19.7}

Qur effective tax rate for 2005 decreased from 2004 due to: recognition of the benefit of foreign tax credits due to the transition of a :
portion of our intellectual property ofishore; favorable developments in tax audils that resulted in the release of income tax reserves;
higher income in jurisdictions with lower tax rates; and reduction in non-deductible compensation expense. '
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FINANCIAL CONDITION
Liquidity

OECEMBER 31, 2006 2005

{In thousands, excent curreni ratiol

Cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments $ 339466 % 518275
working capital $ 353,824 3 248,293
Current ratio 3.66 1.62
Cash flows provided by operating actlvilies $ 268,745 § 257,277
Cash flows provided by (used in) investing activities 35,551 (264,797)
Cash flows provided by {used in) financing activities (197.089) 41,614

A reclassification of our debentures from short-term 1o long-ierm due to a conversion condilion ne longer having been met, as further
described below, caused the increase in our working capital and current ratio in 2006. tlad we not reclassilied the debentures, our
working capital and cuirent ratic would have been $88.8 million and 1.22, respectively, at December 31, 2006, The decline. when
excluding the reclassification, resulted from the reduction in cash and cash equivalents and short-lerm investments due to expending
$198.3 million for businesses acquired and $207.7 million for repurchases of our common stock, offset in part by cash flows gen-
erated from operating activities.

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED 8Y OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash flows provided by operating activities in 2006 increased moderately over 2005. Growth of cash flows from operating activities
was offsel In part by a significant increase in cash paid for income taxes, which increased 10 $45.8 miilion in 2006 compared to $18.2
million in 2005. The increase in the tax payments was a result of fully ulilizing our net operating loss carryfarwards in the United
States by the first quarter of 2006.

CASH FLOWS USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

we paid $198 million and $234 million for acquisitions and $62 million and $58 million in capita! expenditures in 2006 and 2005,
respectively. In 2006, we liguidated al our short-ierm investrnents to fund acquisitions a1d stock repurchases.

CASH FLOWS PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES

We paid $207.7 million to repurchase a portion of our outslanding common stack in 2005. In addition to this cash outflow, cash
inflows from proceeds from employee stock option exercises decreased year Over year. Though proceeds from the exescise from stock
options can fluctuate from year to year, we anlicipate that because our stock-based comjiensation stralegy has shifted away from
stock aptions and towards restricted siock units, proceeds from stock option exercises will continue to decrease over the next few
years. Approximalely 3.4 million stock options were cutsianding at December 31, 2006, of which 2.9 million were exercisable at a
weighted-average exercise price of $44.28. The closing market price of our commen stock on April 30, 2007 was $52.00.

We expect that our current cash and cash equivalents plus cash generated through future: operating activitles and our credit facility
will meet our liquidity needs for at least the next tweive months. See the section litled "Subsequent Events® below for updated
information on our credit facility, which will expire in March 2008, at which time we will need to repay any dulstanding balances or
oblain replacement financing. We currently do not expact our 0.5% convertible subordinzted debentures to be converted in the next
twelve months, but if they are converted we may need to obtain additienal linancing 1o meet that obligation. Our ability to generate
cash flows for 2007 in line with our expeciations is subject to many risks and uncertainties, including but not limited to: significant
unexpected cash expenses; significant changes in interest rates or income tax laws; a significant decline in the markel price of our
commeon stock: and the risks discussed tn Part |, ltem 1A of this Annual Report on Form 10-X.
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Convertible Subordinated Debentures On June 9, 2003, we issued $265.0 million in 0.5% convertible subordinated debentures (the
“Original Debentures®) in a private placement. On December 16, 2004, we completed an exchange of all but $2.0 mitlion of these
Original Debentures lor new 0.5% Series B convertible subordinated debentures (the “Debentures™). The final $2.0 millien of the
Original Debentures were exchanged for Debentures on May 12, 2005,

Key terms and conditions af our Debentures are:

s The principal portion of the Debentures is required to be settled in cash, while the increase in value of {he Debentures beyond the principal,
if any, is payable in shares of our common stock. Prior to June 9, 2008, if the applicable stock price is 18ss than of equal to the base con-
version price of $61.08, no common shares wauld be issued upon conversion. If the applicable stock price is greater than the base con-
version price, cammon shares would be issued upon conversion based on a conversion rate calculated in accordance with a
pre-determined formula,

* The Debentures may be converted at the holder's option only under any of the following conditions: 1) the closing price of our common
stock during a relevant measurement period as defined in the indenture is more than $73.30; 2) the credit raling assigned 1o the
Debentures by Standard & Pocr's Ratings Services is below B- or by Moody's Investors Service is below B3 (the ralings were B- and Ba2,
respectively, at December 31, 2006); 3} the trading price of the Debenture during a relevant measurement period as defined in the
indenture is iess than 95% of the product of the closing price of our stock and the conversion rate in effect at such time: 4} the Debenlures
are called for redemption: or 5) upon the occurrence of certain corporate transactions as defined in the indenture.

+ We may redeem the Debentures for cash equal to the principal value plus any accrued and unpaid interest at any time on or after June 13,
2008, except 1hat between June 13, 2008 and June 12, 2009, we may not redeem the Debentures unless the closing sale price of our
common stock is greater than $76.35 for at least 20 trading days in a 30 consecutive trading day period ending on the trading day prior to
the date of mailing our notice of redemption.

+ Holders may require us to redeem the Debenlures for cash equal 1o the principal value plus any accrued and unpaid interest on June 9,
2008, 2013 and 2018.

» ‘We are required 10 pay contingent interest beyond 1he 0.5% coupon rate at the rate of 0.5% per year on the average trading price of the
Debentures over a five-day trading period immediately preceding the first day of the applicable six-month pericd, commencing with the
six-month period ending December 9, 2008, if such average trading price is greater than or equal to $1,200 per Debenture. The market
price of our Debentures was approximately $986 per debenture at December 31, 2006.

The conversion contingencies relaling to the credil rating assigned 10, and the trading price of ihe Debentures compared to the prod-
uct of the closing price of our common stock and the conversion rate in effect at such time, as well as the conlingen! interest feature,
represent embedded derivatives. A valuation of the fair value of these derivatives is performed each quarter. The fair value of these
derivatives was insignificant in all periods presented.

As of December 31, 2005. our Debentures were converiible by the holders due to a conversion condition having been met. The con-
version condition was met when the closing price of our common stock exceeded $73.30 for 20 trading days within the last 30 trading
days ended December 31, 2005. As a result, we classified the $265.0 million of Debentures as short-lerm debt on our December 31,
2005 balance sheel. The condilion was not met in the quarter ended December 31, 2006. As a resull, we classified the $265.0 mil-
lion of Debentures as long-term debt on our December 31. 2006 balance sheet. The closing price of our common stock on April 30,
2007 was $52.00.

During the fourth quarter of 2006, we received iwo notices of a purported default from certain holders of our Debentures. Such
notices, purportedly representing an aggregate of approximately 29% of the issued and outslanding Debentures, asserted that
because we are delinquent in filing our Quarterly Report an Form 10-Q for the third quarter of 2006 with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, we are in default under the indenture dated as of December 16, 2004, between the company, as issuer. and The Bank
of New Yark, as trusiee {the "Trustee"), relating to the Debentures. The notices of delault demanded thal we cure the purported
default within sixty days from their receipt. after which such default would develop inlo an “Event of Default,” as defined in the
indenture. We have not determined the validity of the notices, including the purported ownership interests represented by Lhe notices.
As a result of the sixty-day cure period expiring, the Trustee gave us a Notice of Event of Default an February 21, 2007,
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We believe that we have fully performed our obligations under the indenture because If e indenture does not Contain an express cove-
nant requiring us to provide the Trustee or the bondholders with periodic reports Such as the Quarterty Report on Form 10-Q for the
third quarter of 2006. While section 314(a} of the Trust Indenture Act of 1938 (the “T1A"} is incorporated into the indenture by virtue
of Section 17.01 thereof and contemplates us providing the Trustee with copies of our pericdic reports, we believe thal the TIA does
not require such reparts to be provided within any prescribed period of time. We intend to furnish to the Trustee copies of our Quar-
terly Repor! on Form 10-Q for the third quarter of 2006 after we file such report with the SEC. We believe that such aclion would cure
any default ¢f the indenture provision in question, if any default exisis.

Consequently, in our view, these natices of default are. and any other similar notices of default that may be received in the future will
be, without meril. As a resull, we have classified the debt a5 long-term at December 31, 2006. If it is determined that we are in
default, the classification would be changed to short-term.

While we have questioned the claimants’ legal theory as to whether we were in defauli under ihe lerms of the indenture, if an “Event
of Default” occured following the sixty day cure period, the Trustee or holders of at least 25% in aggregate principal amount of the
Debentures then outstanding would have the contractual right 1o declare all unpaid prinzipal and accrued interest on the Debentures
then outsianding to be immediately due and payable. We believe that if an “Event of Defaull™ occurred and the Debentures are accel-
erated, we have adequate financial resources to pay any unpaid principal and any interest that would then be due on the Debentures,

Senior Credit Facility On May 4, 2006, we entered into 8 $100 million unsecured senior revalving credit facility with U.S. Bank
Nationa! Association. This credit facility was available for share repurchases, acquisitions of businesses and general corporate pur-
poses. The interest rate on funds drawn down under the credit facitity were 30-day LIBOR plus 0.5%, and there wereé no fees in peri-
ods when funds are not drawn down. Any funds drawn down under the credit facility were required to be repaid wilhin the 364-day
term of the facility. The credit agreement did not contain financial covenants requiring us to maintain any financial ratios. The credit
agreement conlained cuslomary affirmative and negative covenants, as weli as customary évenis of default the occurrence of which
could result in termination of 1he facility and the acceleration of all of our obligations thereunder. Our obligations under the facility
were guaranteed by our primary U.S. operating company. No lunds had been drawn down under this facility as of December 31,
2006. Subsequent to December 31, 2006, this credit facility was replaced with a new facility, as described below in the Subsequent
Events section,

Capital Expenditures, Contractual Obligations and Rights, Guarantees and Other Potentially Signiticant Uses of Cash

CAPITAL EXPENDITURES

we spent $61.5 million, $57.8 million and $36.7 miltion on capital expenditures in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively. The increases
in 2006 and 2005 resulted mainly from the acquisition and creation of wholly-owned imagery. Wholly-owned imagery provides flexible
licensing opportunities at a lower Cost, as no royallies are required to be paid 1o contribulors. We had no material commitments for
capila! expenditures al December 3}, 2006. However, we plan to spend approximately $50.0 million on capital expendliures in 2007,
mainly related to the ¢reation of imagery and development of computer software. The anticipated sources of funds for these capital
expendilures are current cash and cash equivalents and cash flows provided by opérating activities, but could include any of the
sources discussed under “Liquidity™ above.
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CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS AND RIGHTS

The following table iltustrates payments and receipls associated with significant, enforceable and legally binding cantractual obliga-
tions that are non-cancelable without significant penalty. if a contract is cancelable with a penalty, the amaunt shown in the table
below is the full contractual obligation, not the penalty, as we currently intend to fulfill each of these obligations.

YEARS ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2007 1008 2003 2010 2011 THEREAFTER TOTAL
(In thousands}

Canverlible subordinated debentures:

Principal paymenls ! $ - 3 - % - $ - % — §$ 265,000 % 265000
Interest payments ! 1,343 1,343 1,343 1,343 1,343 15,451 22,166
Operating lease payments on facilities and
equipment |eases 2 24,570 24,650 24371 24,250 21,864 67.665 187,370
Minimum royalty guarantee payments to
contributars of imagery 3 9,388 9,022 6,393 3,232 2,438 — 30.473
Other purchase commilments 11,739 5,204 1,215 180 18 - 18,356
Total contractual obligations $ 47,040 $ 40,219 $ 33322 $ 29,005 $ 25.663 § 348,116 $ 523,365

! Figures assume that the convertible subordinated debentures are repaid upon maturity in 2023, which may or may not reflect future events.
Under the terms of the indenture, the hoiders may require us to redeem the debentures in 2008, 2013 and 2018. See discussion of these
circumstances and the notices of defaull received due to missing the filing deadline for our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 2006 under “Convertible Subordinated Debentures” under “Cash Fiows Provided by Financing Activities” above.

2 Qffsetting these operating fease payments will be receipts for subleased facilities in the amounts of (in thousands) $2,688. $1.729, $1,844,
$1,305, and $257 for the years ending December 31, 2007, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011, respectively. See Subsequent Events below for
information on new subleases that will increase sublease income above the amounts presented here.

2 Qffsetting these minimum royalty guarantee payments to contributors of imagery will be minimum guaranteed receipts from contributors in
the amount of (in thousands) $2,054, $2,179, $1,508 for the years ending December 31, 2007, 2008, 2009, respectively.

Payments under purchase orders, certain sponsorships, donations and other commitments that are not enfarceable and legally bind-
ing contractua! obligations are excluded fram this table. Payments, guaranteed and centingent. under employment contracts are also
excluded fram this table because they do not constilute purchase commitmenis.

GUARANTEES

We indemnify certain customers from claims refated to alleged infringements of the intellectual property rights of third parties, such
as claims arising from failure to secure mode! and property releases for images we license. The standard terms of these
indemnifications require us 1o defend those claims and pay related damages. if any, We typically mitigate this risk by securing all
necessary model and property reteases for imagery for which we hold the copyright. and by contractually requiring our contributing
photographers and other imagery partners to do the same prior to submitting any imagery to us. We also require contribuling
photographers, other imagery pariners and sellers of businesses or image collections that we have purchased to indemnify us in cer-
tain circumstances in the event a claim arises in relation to an image they have provided or sold to us. Qur imagery partners are also
typically required to carry insurance policies for losses related to such claims. We do not record any liabilities for these
indemnifications until claims are made and we are able to assess the range of possible payments and available recourse from our
imagery partners, as applicable. Historically, our exposure to such claims has been immaterial, as were our recorded liabilities for
intellectual properly infringement at December 31, 2006 and 2005. As such, we believe the estimated fair value of these liabilities is
minimal.
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\n the ordinary course of business, we also enter into certain types of agreements that contingently require us to indemnify counter-
pariies against third-party claims. These may include:

» agreements with vendors and suppliers, under which we may indemnify them against claime arising from our use of their products or services:

= agreements with customers other than those licensing images, under which we may indemnify them agains! claims arising from their use of
our products or services;

* agreements with delegates, under which we may Indemnify them against claims arising frorn their distribution of our products or services;
= real estate and equipment leases, under which we may indemnify lessors against third-party claims relating to use of their propenty;

» agreements with direclors ang officers, under which we indemnify them to the full extent allowed by Defaware law againsi claims relating 10
their service to us;

« agreements with purchasers of businesses we have sold, under which we may indemnify the purchasers against claims arising from our
operation of the businesses prior 10 sale; and

= agreements wilh initial purchasers and underwriters of our securilies, under which we indernify them against claims relating to their partic-
ipalion in the transactions.

The nature and terms of these indemnifications vary from contract to contract, and generally a maximum obligation is not stated.
Because we are unable {0 estimate our potential obligation, and because we do not expecl these indemnifications 10 have a material
adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of oparations or cash flows. ro refated liabilities were recorded at
December 31, 2006 or 2005. We hoid insurance policies that mitigate potential losses arising from certain indemnilications, and his-
torically, we have not incurred significant costs related to performance under these obligatians.

OTHER POTENTIALLY SIGNIFICANT USES OF CASH

Effective May 22, 2008, our Board ol Directors approved an amendment to our share repurchase program authorizing the repurchase
of shares of our common stock wilh an agg/egate value of up to $250 miltion, an increase from the prior authorization of $150 million.
During 2006, we repurchased a total of 3.5 million shares for $207.7 million under the amended plan. These repurchases occurred in
the ppen market pursuant to a trading plan under Rule 10b5-1 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, The repurchase program was
suspended in November 2006 when we did not file our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the third quarter of 2006 by the required
filing date. The stock repurchase program will be reviewed after we became current with our SEC filings and a decision will be made
at that time whether 10 continue with the program and at what level.

We will continue to consider selective acquisitions of businesses. During 2006, we paid $198.3 million in cash for acquired busi-
nesses, Cash paid for business acquisitions can vary significantly from year to year due {0 the timing of identifying and completing
acquisitions that contribute to the achievement of our objectives.

We have not paid or declared any dividends since inception, and our Board of Directors does not anticipate changing this practice in
the foreseeable future,

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Stock Option Review

As announced on November 9, 2006, we had received notice of an informal inquiry from the Securities and Exchange Commission
into our historical stock option grant practices. As also announced on November 8, 2006, a Specia! Committee of the Board of Direc-
tors was established by our Board of Direclors to conduct an independent investigation relating 1o our historical equity award grant
practices and related accounting for equity compensation grants. Thelir review and the review conducted by the company were com-
pleted in April 2007, prior to the filing of this Annual Report of Form 10-K. As a resull of the review, we are restating prior years’
financial statements through this Annuat Report on Form 10-K and recording $27.2 million in addltiona! pre-tax equity compensation
expense from 1998 to 2003, The SEC inquiry is ongoing and we are cooperating fully with the SEC.
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FINANCING

On March 19, 2007, we entered inlo an agreemend with U.S. Bank National Assoclation {“U.S. Bank®), as Administrative Agent and
Sale Lead Arranger, for 2 364-day senior unsecured revolving credit facility (the “Facility™). The Facility initially makes $200 million
available for borrowing bul includes a feature that allows us to increase the available funds to $350 million within Lhe first six months
of the term of the Facility, provided there shall not have occurred any material adverse change in the business, assets, condition
{financial or otherwise), operations, results of aperations of prospects of the company from June 30, 2006 through the date the
company exercises its righis to increase the available funds. Funds drawn down under lhe Facility may be used for general corporate
purposes, including for acquisitions, redemption or repayment of all or a portion of our existing $265 million of 0.5% convertible
subordinated debentures, and working capital requirements. On April 18, 2007, we drew down $80 million under the Facilily to fund,
in part, the acquisition of MediaVast, Inc.

The interest rate on funds drawn down under the Facility ranges from LIBOR plus 0.60% to 0.75% depending on our leverage ratio.
We will be charged 0.125% to 0.15% on funds available {initially $200 million and ultimately $350 million should we elect 10 increase
the available funds) but nol drawn down. The Facility requires us to maintain 2 maximum leverage ratio of 2.75 throughout its term.
Qur leverage ratio is defined as our total interest bearing debt divided by a trailing four quarter average of our earnings before interest
expense, income tax expense, depreciation, amortization, non-cash items {inciuding equlty-based compensation expense) and any
non-recurring items.

The Facility is subject 1o customary events of default, including events of default on our other outstanding debl, as applicable, upon
the occurrence of which we would be required to immediately repay any funds drawn down under the Facilily,

Fees paid in connection with the establishment of the Facility will be deferred and amortized to interest expense over the term of the
Facility.

ACQUISITIONS

On April 25, 2007, we purchased all the shares of MediaVast, Inc. for approximately $202 miflion in net cash. MediaVast, Inc.,
located in New York, NY, i5 an entertainment photography company, which licenses imagery primarily under the brand name Wire
Image. The majority of the purchase price is expected to be allocated to goodwill and vther intangible assets,

We also purchased several other small companies subsequent to December 31, 2006.

RESTRUCTURING

On March 16, 2007, we entered into a sublease agreement with New York Magazine Holdings, L.L.C. (New York Holdings), for 72,843
square feet of our excess leased space in, New York, NY. On May 3, 2007, we enlered into a sublease agreement with Cardinia Real
Estate, L.L.C. {Cardinia) for the remaining 72,960 square feet of our excess leased facilities in New York. Both of these sublease
agreements span the remainder of our lease term.

On May 14, 2007, we entered into a sublease agreement wilh Google, Inc. (Google), for the remainder of our excess leased facilities
in Seattle, WA. Google will sublease approximately 56,000 square feet at our Sealtle offices, for a term beginning June 1, 2007 and
ending August 11, 2013, the end of our lease term.

These subiease agreements have been factored into our 2006 accrual for losses on leased properties. See Note 12. Restructuring
Costs to our Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the U.S. requires us 1o make
estimates and assurmptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilitles
at the date of our consolidated financial statements and the revenues and expenses reported during the period. Following are account-
ing policies that we believe are most imporland Lo the portrayal of our financial condition and results of operations and thal require our
most difficult judgments as a result of the need to make estimates and assumptions about the effects of matters that are inherently
uncertain. These critical accounting policies have been discussed with our Audit Committee.
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Goodwill and {dentifiable Infangible Assels

Goodwlll'is the excess of the purchase price and related costs over the fair value of net l1angible and identifiable intangible assets
acquired through acquisitions of businesses. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually on August 31 and between annual tests in
certain circumstances. When assessing impairment, we estimate the implied fair value of each segment based on a discounted cash
flow model that involves significant assumptions and estimates, including our fulure finincial performance, our future weighted aver-
age cost of capital and our interpretation of currently enacted tax laws. At August 31, 2006, the implied fair value of our goodwill
exceeded its carrying value in each segment and, thereiore, goodwill was not impaired in either segment. As circumstances change, it
is possible that future goodwill impairment tesis could result in a 1955 on impairment of assets, which would be included in the detes-
mination of income from operations. The balance of goodwill at December 31, 2006 was $1.0 billion.

tdentifiable intangible assets are assets that do not have physical representation, but that arise from contractual or other legal rights
or are capable of being separated or divided from us and seld, transferred, licensed, rented, or exchanged. Identifiable intangible
assels are generally valued based on discounted fulure cash flows that we estimate will be generated by the assets and are amortized
on 2 straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives (see "Estimated Useful Lives of Certain Long-Lived Assets” below for more
information). identifiable intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events of changes in circumstances indicate that
carrying amounts may nal be recoverable. Impairment exists when the carrying value of the asset is not recoverable and exceeds ils
fair value. The discounted cash flow models we use to determine the fair value of identiliable intangible assets involve significant
assumptions and estimates, including cash flows expecied to be generated by the assets, the estimated useful lives of the assets, and
our future weighted average cost of capital, As circumstances change, it is possible that future impairment tests could result in 8 loss
on impairment of assels, which would be included in the determination of income from operations. No identitiable intangible assets
were impaired during the periods presented. The majority of the $77.2 million net book value of our identifiable intangible assets at
December 31, 2006 consisted of trademarks, trade names and copyrights ($34.5 million) and customer lists, contracts and relation-
ships {$31.2 million).

Estimated Useful Lives of Cerlain Long-Lived Assets

The estimated useful lives of our most significant property and equipment and identifiabile intangible assets are discussed below.
Should we determing at some point in the future that the useful lives of these assels are shorter than estimated, it is possible that we
would be required 10 acceterate the amortization, or write oif an impaired portion, of these assets.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The majority of the $147.1 million net book value of our property and equipment at December 31, 2006 consisied of imagery ($80.7

* million}, computer hardware and software ($45.4 million) and leasehold improvements 1$16.2 million).

The estimated useful lives of imagery are determined based on the number of years over which they generate the majority of their
revenue. Periodically, we perform analyses of populations of imagery thal are representative of all of our conlemporary image coflec-
tions. These analyses have shown that the average life of contemporary imagery approximates four years. The estimated useful lite of
archival imagery is approximately 40 years. Historical revenue may not be indicative of luture revenue, and therefore, these estimated
useful lives are inherently uncertain.

The three-year estimated useful life of computer hardware and software is determined based on prior experience with retated technol-
ogy. the expected future utility of the assets to us based on our operating plans and indusicy standards. Hardware and software provi-
ders’ future support of today’s technotogy and the future of technology in general are inherently uncertain. These lives are reviewed
whenever events of changes in ¢circumstances indicate that revisions may be required, tuch as significant technological develop-
ments, the failure of @ vendor to continue to support a particular version of software or Changes in operating plans.

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the remaining original term of the lease of the estimated uselul life of the
improvement, ranging from two to 20 years, with the majority of the net book value invested in assets with original estimated useful
lives of approximately 10 years. The estimated useful lives of leasehold improvements are determined based on our prior experience
with similar asse1s and the expected future utility of the assets to us based on our operating plans. Our future operating plans could
change and we may choose {0, or be required to, terminate our leases and thereby abardon our leasehold improvements prior to the
termination of the associated lease or the end of the otherwise estimated useful fe. The estimated useful lives of leasehold improve-
ments are reviewed whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate thai revisions may be required, such as a planned move (o
or from, of remodeling of, a leased space.
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IDENTIFIABLE INTANGIBLE ASSETS

As discussed above, the majority of the net book value of aur identifiable intangible assets at December 31, 2006 consisted of trade-
marks, trade names and copyrights and customer lists, contracts and refationships. We evaluate the remaining useful lives of our
identifiable intangible assels each reporting period to determine whether events and circumslances warran! revisions to the remaining
periods of amortization. No revisions were determined 0 be necessary during the periods presented.

The estimated useful tives of trademarks, trade names and copyrights, ranging from two to 10 years, are generaily based on con-
tractual or other tegal terms, our plans for use of the assets and the cost and difficuity of renewing the lives of the assets. The useful
lives of these assels may change or terminate prior to the end of their contractual lives due to changes in operating plans, brand stral-
egy, acquisition or gisposition of businesses and [egal action, among other circumstances.

The estimated uselful lives of customer lists, conlracts and relationships, ranging from four to seven years, are determined based on
our prior experience with cuslomers in general and revenue we expect t0 generate through these specific customers in the future,
Customers are free to terminale their relationship with us at any time, our past experience with one group of customers may not be
indicative of our future experience with another group, and pasl revenue may not be indicative of future revenue.

Income Tazxes

We are subject to income taxes in the U.S. and in numerous foreign jurisdictions. Significant judgments, estimates and assumptions
are required in determining our tax relurn reporting positions and in caiculating our provisions for income taxes, as they are based on
our interpretation of tax regulations and accounting pronouncements. We establish reserves for tax uncertainties when, despite our
belief that we have appropriate support for positions we have taken on our returns, it is probable that cestain of these posilions will be
challenged and may not be sustained upon review by taxing authorities. These reserves are established through our income tax provi-
sions and are recorded as long-term [iabilities on our consolidated batance sheets. We recalculate these reserves as governing laws
and facts and circumstances change, such as the closing of a tax audit or the expiration of the statute of limitations for a specific
exposure. We are subject o tax examinations by many taxing authorities. Although we believe that our judgments, eslimates and
assumptions are reasonable, the final determination of our lax liability could materially differ from our expectations. If this should
occur, our Consolidated Financial Statements could be malerially impacted.

The existence and valuation of our deferred income taxes, reflecting the impact of temporary differences between financial and tax
reporting and of tex lass carrylorwards, are based on tax laws, regulations, accounting Principles, and our interpretations thereal. The
ultimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the generation of sufficient future taxable Income in each applicable tax
jurisdiction. We reduce our deferred tax assels by a valuation allowance If, based on the weight of available evidence, it is more likely
than nol that we will not realize some portion or all of the deferred tax assets. Deferred U.S, income laxes are nat provided for
unremitted foreign earnings of our foreign subsidiaries because we expect those earnings will be permanently reinvested. 1t is nat
practicable to calcutate the unrecognized deferred tax liability for temporary differences related to these investments. Deferred tax
assels and liabilities are classified into net current and net non-current amounts based on the balance sheet classification of the
related assel or liability, or if there is no such asset or liability, according 10 the iming of the expected reversal of the temporary differ-
ence thal created the deferred tax asset or liability.

Our effective 1ax rate was 36.3%, 35.0%, and 38.8% for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively. Our
eftective tax rale is affected by: our mix of pre-tax earnings in jurisdictions with varying statulory tax rates; changes in tax laws, regu-
lations and accounting principles; changes in valuation allowances provided against our deferred tax assets; and changes inour
reserves.

The adoption of Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation (FIN) No. 48 on January 1, 2007 will affect the way our reserves
for uncertain tax positions are calculated. See Recent Accounting Pronouncements below for more information.

Forelgn Exchange

Foreign exchange gains and losses that arise from changes in the exchange rates underlying foreign-currency denominated assets
and liabilities, othes than long-term intercompany balances, are included in our consolidated statements of income for the periods in
which the exchange rates change. Foreign exchange gains and losses that arise from changes in the exchange rates underlying inter-
company balances that are of a long-term investrment nature, for which seftlement is not planned or anticipated in the foresecable
{uture, are reported in accumulated other comprehensive income in our consolidated balance sheets. The future cash needs of the
parent company and each subsidiary are uncertain. Should we reclassify and seltle a portion of thase Intercompany balances at some
time in the future due to domestic cash needs or for other purposes, these intercompany balances would be redesignated as short-
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term, and ail future revaluation gains and losses would be recorded in our consolidated statement of income. In addition, should we
dispose ol one of the subsidiaries with which we have a long-term intercompany batance, the accumulated other comprehensive
income or loss associated with that entily would be included in the calculation of the gain or loss on the disposal of the subsidiary,
Foreign exchange gains of $15.8 miltion, losses of $23.5 million and gains of $8.9 million for 1he years ended December 31, 2006,
2005 and 2004, respectively, arose from changes in the exchange rates underlying intercompany balances deemed to be long-term in
nature and therefore were included in our consolidated balance sheels as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income,
Accumulated net unrealized gains [losses) on revaluation of foreign currency denominated long-term inlercompany balances were
$17.3 million and $1.3 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

We estimate our atllowance for doubtful accounts based on historical losses as a percentage of revenue, existing economic conditions,
and specific account anatysis of at-risk customers and delegates. Historical losses and eristing economic conditions may no! necessa-
rily be indicative of fulure losses, and the impact af economic conditions on each of our customers is difficult to eslimate. Should
future uncollectible amounts not reflect our current estimates, we would be required to change our allowance for doubtiul accounts
through an entry to bad debt expense included in selling, general and administative expenses in our consolidated stalement of
income. Our allowances for doubtful accounts at December 31, 2006 and 2005 were $14.3 million and $11.8 million, respectively.
The percentage of our investment in rade receivables, net of allowances for doubtful accounts and sales relurns. more than 80 days
old as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 was 5% and 11%, respectively, The decrease in 1his percentage from 2005 1o 2006 was due
to certain balances over 90 days old at December 31, 2005 that we believed lo be collect ble and therefore did not reserve.

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONQUNCEMENTS

SEC STAFF ACCOUNTING BULLETIN {*5AB™) NO. 108, "CONSIDERING THE EFFECTS OF PRIOR YEAR MISSTATEMENTS WHEN QUANTIFYING
MISSTATEMENTS IN CURRENT YEAR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS®

In September 2006, the staff of the SEC issued SAB No. 108 in order to eliminate the dive-sity of practice surrounding how public
companies quantify {inancial statement misstatements. Tradilionally, there have been two widely-recognized metheds for quanlilying
the efiects of financial statement misstalements: the “roll-over” method and the “iron curlain® method. The roll-over method focuses
primarily on the impact of a misstalement on the income statement - including the reversing effect of prior year misstalements — but its
use can lead to the accumulation of misstatements in the balance sheet. The iron-curtain method, on the other hand, focuses primarily
on the effect of correcting the period-end balance sheet with less emphasis on the reversing effects of prior year errors on the income
slatement. We currently use the roll-over method for quantifying identified financial statemznt missiatements. In SAB No. 108, the SEC
staff established an approach that requires quantification of financial statement misstatements based on the effects of the misslate-
ments on each of the company's financlal statements and the related financial statement disclosures. This model is commonly referred
to as 3 "dual approach” because it requires quantitication of ersors under both the iron curtain and the roll-over methods.

SAB No. 108 permits existing public companies to initially apply its provisions either by (i) restating prior linancial stalements as if the
“dual approach” had always been used or (i) recording the cumulative effect of initially applying the "dual approach” as adjustments
to the carrying values of assets and liabilities as of January 1, 2006 with an offsetting adjustment recorded 10 the opening balance of
retained earnings. Use of the *cumulative effect” ransition method requires detailed disclasure of the nature and amount of each
individual error being corrected through the cumulative adjustment and how and when it arose. Managemen! has assessed the
requirements of SAB No. 108 and it did not have an impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS [“SFAS") NO, 157, "FAIR YALUE MEASUREMENTS

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157. This Statement provides a single definition of fair value, together with a frame-
work for measuring it, and requires additional disclosure about the use of fair value 1o measure asseis and liabilities. SFAS No. 157
emphasizes that fair value is a market-based measurement, not an enlily-specilic measurement, and sets out a fair value hierarchy
with the highest priority being quoted prices in active markets. Under the Statement, fair value measurements are disclosed by leve!
within that hierarchy. While the Stalement does not add any new lair value measurements, it does change current practice. Changes
to practice include a requirement for an entity 10 include its own credit slanding in the measurement of its liabilities and te adjust the
value of restricted stock for the effect of the restriction even if the restriction lapses within ane year. The Statement is effective Jan-
uary 1, 2008 and is lo be applied prospectively. Management is curienlly assessing the imoact this Statement may have on Qur Con-
solidated Financial Statements.
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FASE INTERPRETATION (FIN) NO, 8B, "ACCOUNTING FOR UNCERTAINTY IN INCOME TAXES - AN INTERPRETATION OF FASB STATEMENT NO. 109

In July 2006, the FASB issued FIN No. 48, which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income taxes effective January 1, 2007.
This Interpretation prescribes a two-step process to follow in evalualing a tax position we have taken, or expect 1o take, in a tax return.
First, we must determine whether it Is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination by the appropriate
taxing authority based on the technical merits of the position. Second, we must measure and recognize all tax positions that meet the
first threshold in an amount equal 10 the largest benefit that is greater then 50 percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settle-
ment with the 1axing authority. We will recognize lax positions that previously failed to meet the more-likely-than-not recognition
threshold in the first financial reporting period in which that threshold is met. We will derecognize previously recognized tax positions
that no longer meet the more-likely-than-not recagnition threshold in the {irst financial reporting period in which that threshold is no
longer met.

Upon initial adoption, we will apply the provisions of this Interpretation to all of our tax positions. Only tax posilions that meet the
more-likely-than-not recognition threshold at the effective date will be recognized or continue to be recognized. The cumulative effect
of applying the pravisions of this Interpretation will be reported as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings for
2007. The amount of the cumuiative-effect adjusiment will be the difference between the net amount of assets and liabilities recog-
nized in the statement of financial position priar to the application of this Interpretation and the net amount of assets and liabiiities
recognized as a result of applying the provisions of 1his Interpretation. We will record the cumulative effect of the change in retained
earnings in the statement of financial position as of the date of adoption. The cumutative-effect adjustment will be to increase the
reserves for uncertain tax positions by approximately $4.2 million and reduce retained earnings by the same amounl.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed 1o a variety of market risks, primarily changes in: interest rates; the market price of our common stock, into which our
debt is convertible (equity price risk}; credit ratings of issuers of shori-term investments when we invest in them (credit risk); and for-
eign currency exchange rates.

SHORT-TERM INVESTMENTS
we had no shori-term invesiments outstanding at December 31, 2006.

Short-term investments at December 31, 2005 consisted of available-for-sale U.S. agency securities {$171.8 million), auction rate
securities {$70.4 million), corporate bonds ($39.3 million), U.S. Treasury abligations ($5.9 milion} and money market funds ($7.9
million), carried at market value with associated unrezlized holding gains and losses recorded in other comprehensive income.
Available-for-sate investments with contractual maturities beyond one year are classified as short-lerm in our consclidated balance
sheets because they represent the investment of cash that is available for current operations.

DEBT

Changes in interest rales have a negligible impact on the falr value of our debentures, while changes in the market price of our
common stock cause {he fair value of the debentures to fluctuate, sometimes significantly, These changes are representative of
changes in the value of shares of our common stack that we would have to Issue to the holders of the convertible subordinated
debentures if they were to tender the debentures for conversion. In periods where the average closing price of cur common stock
exceeds $61.08 per share far the last five trading days of a reporling period, we would be required to issue shares for the increase in
the value of the debentures above their book vatue of $265.0 million. The fallowing table shows the approximalte number of shares we
would issue upon conversion at various stack prices, assuming $265.0 million of convertible subordinated debentures oulstanding:

Average closing price per share

of common stock for the last

five trading days of the

reparting period $ 62% 70% 83 90% 100% 120 $150 $250 $ 1500 § 2900
Incremental dilutive shares

outstanding {in thousands) 129 1,106 2052 2788 3377 4,260 5,144 5,884 6,768 6,853




43 GETTY IMAGES, INC. 2006 FORM 10-K PART 1 ITEM 7A

CREDIT RISK

In addition to interest rate risk, our short-term investments expose us to credit-related lesses as they comprise debt instruments
issued by third parties. We mitigate this risk by only buying investment grade debt securities.

As of December 31, 2006, we held no short-term investments. At December 31, 2005, 90% of our investments were in AARA rated or
U.S. Treasury debt instruments, and no invesiments were rated below A, Signilicant concentrations of investmenls at December 31,
2005 were Fannie Mae ($62.] million {air value), Freddie Mac ($56.8 million fair value) and federal Home Loan Bank ($52.9 million fair
value). Almost alt (98%) of these concentrated investments were in AAA rated or U.S. Treasury debt instruments at December 31, 2005.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXCHANGE RATE RISK

Transaction Gains and Losses

The parent company and many of our subsidiaries enter into transactions that are denominated in currencies other than their func-
tional currency (foreign currencies), primarily euros, British pounds, U.S. dollars, Japanese ven and Canadian dollars. Same of these
transactions result in foreign currency denominaied assets and liabilities that are revalued each month. Upon revaluation, {ransaciion
gains and losses are generated. which, with the exception of those related to long-term intercompany balances, are reported as
exchange gains and losses in our consolidated statements of income in the periods in which the exchange rates fluctuate. Transaction
gains and losses on foreign currency denominated long-term intercompany balances for which settlement is not planned or antici-
pated in the foreseeable future, are reported in accumulated other comprehensive income in our consolidated balance sheets,

Transaclion gains and losses arising {1om revaluation of assets and liabilities denominated in the same [oreign currencies may offset
each other, in part, acting as a natural hedge. Where our assets and liabilities are not na-urally hedged, we may enter into forward
foreign currency exchange contracts to reduce our exposure 1o {ransaclion gains and losses. Our forward [oreign exchange Contracts
generally range {rom one to three menths in original maturity and primarily require the s¢fe of euros, British pounds, Japanese yen
and Canadian doltars and the purchase of U.S. dollars, euros and British pounds, These contracis have noi been designated as
hedges as defined by SFAS No. 133, “Accounting lor Derivative [nstruments and Hedging Activities,” and therefore gains and losses
arising from revaluation of these forward conltracts are recorded as exchange gains and losses in our consolidated statements of
income in the periods in whith the exchange rates fluctuate. These gains and losses genarally offset, at least in part, the gains and
losses of the underlying exposures that are being hedged.

Based on the forward foreign currency exchange contracts outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2005, a hypothetical 10% strength-
ening of the U.S. dollar against the exchange rates for the foreign currencies bought or Sold through forward foreign currency
exchange contracts would result in exchange gains of approximately $1.6 million and $3.1 million, respectively. A hypothetical 10%
weakening of the U.S. dollar would result in gains of similar amounts. However, these hynothetical losses or gains wauld be ofiset, al
least in part, by gains or losses generated from revaluing the underlying exposures these ontracts are hedging.

Based on the forward foreign currency exchange contracts outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2005, a hypothetical 10% strengih-
ening of the British pound against the exchange rates for the foreign currencies to be bought or sold through forward foreign currency
exchange contracts would result in exchange loss of approximately $0.8 million and a negligible loss, respectively. A hypothetical

10% weakening of the British pound would result in gains of similar amounts, However, these hypothetical losses or gains would be
offset, at least in part, by gains o losses generated {rom revaluing the underlying exposuras these contracts are hedging.

Based on the forwa:d foreign currency exchange contracts outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2005, a hypothetical 10% strength-
ening of the euro against the exchange rates for the foreign currencies bought or sold threugh forward foreign currency exchange
contracls would result in exchange gain of approximately $1.5 million and a loss of $2.4 million, respectively. A hypothetical 10%
weakening of the euro would result in gains of similar amounts, However, these hypothetical losses or gains would be offset, al least in
part, by gains or losses generated from revaluing the underlying exposures these contracts are hedging.

Transiation Gains and Losses

The statements of income of foreign subsidiaries are translaled into U.S. dollars, our repoiting currency, at the prior month’s average
daily exchange rate. When these exchange rates change from period to period, they cause fluctuations in reported results of oper-
ations that are not indicative of fundamental company operating pertormance but rather that reflect the performance of curiencies,
we currently do not hedge against the impact of translation,
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The following table illustrates the annual change in the foreign currency exchange rates between U.S. dollars and the most commonly
hedged associated currencies:

5] bar 31, A | Dw ber 31, A 1 Dw ber 31, A |
CURRENCY 20086 Change 2005 Change 2004 Change
Australian dollar 1.2684 ()% 1.2620 6% 1.2812 (4)%
Brilish pound 0.5106 (12)% 0.5818 11% 0.5219 {7)1%
Canadian dollar 1.1652 0% 1.1656 {3)% 1.2034 (7}%
Euro 0.7577 (10)% 0.8445 14% 0.7387 (1%
Japanese yen 119.0200 1% 117.8800 15% 102.6800 (4}%

ITEM 8. CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

See Part IV, Item 15(A} of this Annual Report on Form 10-K,

(TEM 9, CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL
DISCLOSURE

Nons

ITEM9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer have evaluated the effectiveness of the company's disclosure controls and
procedures {as defined in Rules 13a-15{(e) and 15d-15{e! under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as of
December 31, 2006. Based on that evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Offices concluded that as of
December 31, 2006, these disciosure controls and procedures were effective.

Management's Report on Internal Cantrol Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for esiablishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financiat reporting {as defined in
Rufes 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f} under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) for the company, We assessed the effective-
ness of the company's internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, in making this assessment. we used the
criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission {COSQ) in infernal Controt - integrated
Framework. Based on our assessment using those criteria, we determined that as of December 31, 2006, our internal control over
financial reporting is effective,

Management has excluded the company's iStockphoto business unit from its assessment of internal control over financial reporting as
of December 31, 2006 because this business unit was acquired by the company in @ purchase business combination during 2006.
iStockphoto is a wholly-owned subsidiary whose total assets and total revenues are both less than 4% of the related consolldated
financial statement amounis as of and for the year ended December 31, 20056.

Because of its Inherent limitations, internat control over financial reporting rmay not prevent or detect misstatements. Al$0, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compllance with the policies or procedures may deterlorate.

Our independent registered public accounting firm, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, has audited management's assessment of the effec-
tiveness of the company's internat control aver financial reporting as of December 31, 2006, as stated in their report which appears
on page F-2 of this Annua! Report on Form 10-K.
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Management's Consideration of the Restatement

As disclosed in Note 2, “Restatements of Consolidated Financial Statements and Special Committee and Company Findings™ to our
consolidated financial statements, we have resiated previously issued financial statements, The restatement resulted from the lindings
of a Special Commiltee of the Board of Directors and consisted primarily of additional equity compensation charges resulting from
changes in measurement dates and modifications to previously issued equily awards. The restatement resulted in additional pre-tax
charges for equity compensation of $27.2 million from 1998 to 2003.

In coming 10 the conclusion that our disctosure controls and procedures and our internal control over financial reporting were effec-
live as of December 31, 2006, we considered the process and controls that resulted in the need to restate our previously issued linan-
cial statements. In 2004, in compliance with the requirements of the Sarbanes-Oxiey Act of 2002, we implemented improved
procedures, gocumentation and processes (o provide improved internal controls over our 51ock option granting, accounting and admin-
istration. These improvements included adding reviews and reconciliations around the equily granting process, improved doc-
umentation, increased communication between departments regarding the equity awarc granting and accounting processes and
standardized processes for recommending and approving new awards.

The company believes that these changes remediated the hislorical deficiency in internal control over equity award accounting. Con-
sequently, this matter dees not constitute a control deficiency as of December 31, 2006.
Changes in Intarnal Control Over Financial Reporting

During the last fiscal quarter of 2006, there were no changes in the company’s internal contro! over financial reporting identified in
connection with management’s evaluation of the efiectiveness of the company’s internal contro! over financial reporting that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materialty affect, the company's internal control over financial reporting.

ITEM9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None
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PART 111
JTEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT
Information abou! Directors
The following table sets forth certain information with respecl to the company's Board of Directors as of December 31, 2006:
Director

Name Age Business Experience Sime
James N. Baitey! 60 Mr. Baitey has been a Director since February 1998 and served as a Director of 1998
(Class 1) Getty Communications Limited, our predecesscr, from September 1996 to February

1998. Mr. Bailey co-founded Cambridge Associates LLC, an investment consulting

firm, in May 1973 and currently serves as ils Senior Managing Director and Treas-

urer. He also is co-lounder, Treasurer and a Director of The Plymouth Rock Com-

pany, SRB Corparation, Inc., Direct Respanse Corporation and Homeowners Direct

Company, all faur of which are insurance companies and insurance company affili-

ates. Additionally, Mr. Bailey serves as a Director of Apartment Investiment & Man-

agement Company (AIMCO), a multi-family dwelling real estate investment trust.
Andrew 5. Garb! 64 Mr. Garb has been a Director since February 1998 and served as a Director of Getty 1998
(Class ) Communications Limited, our predecessor, from May 1996 to February 1998. Mr.

Garb a'so served as 3 Director of Getty Investments L.L.C. from June 1996 until

Qctober 2003. Mr. Garb currently is of counsel to the law firm of Loeb & Loeb LLP,

where he has practiced since 1968. Mr, Garb is also a Trustee of the J. David Glad-

stone Institutes, a noenprofit medical research organization,
Alan G. Spoon! 55 Mr. Spoon has been a Director since May 2006. Mr, Spoon has been a managing 2006
{Class I) general partaer of Polaris Ventures since 2000, where he focuses on investments in

digital media, e-commerce and distance learning. Mr. Spoan has held senior leader-

ship positions at the Washington Post Company, where he worked for 18 years,

including President, Chief Operating Officer. board member, Chief Financial Officer,

President of Newsweek, Head of Newspaper Marketing and Head of Corporate

Business Development. Prior 10 his tenure at the Washinglon Post, Mr. Spoon was

an officer at the Boston Consuiting Group. Mr. Spoon also serves as a Director of

Danaher Corporation and |AC/InterActiveCorp, and Is a member of the Smithsonian

Institution Board of Regents, the Massachusetts Institute of Technology Corporation

and The Council on Foieign Relations.
Christopher H. Sporborg 67 Mr. Sporborg has been a Director since February 1998 and served as a Director of 1998

(Class 1)

Gelty Communications Limited, our predecessor, from May 1996 to February 1998,
Mr. Sporborg hetd various positions at Hambros Bank Limited from 1962 to 1998,
including Deputy Chairman of Hambros PLC and Hambros Bank Limited, Chairman
and Chief Executive of Hambros Group Invesiments Ltd. and Chairman of Hambros
Insurance Services Group PLC. Mr. Sporborg founded and was Chairman of the
Board of Directors of Countrywide plc. a reai eslate agency and financial services
company from 1987 until May 2007. He is the Chairman of the Board of Directors of
Chesnara pic, a life assurance company. Mr. Sporborg also serves as a Director of
Lindsey Morden Group Inc., an insurance services company.
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Business Experignce

ITEM 10

Director
Since

Mark H. Getty
(Class I}

Jonathan D. Klein
{Ctass 111}

Michael A, Stein
{Ciass 111}

46

46

57

Mr. Getty is a co-founder of Gelly images, and has been a Director since February
1998, serving as our Executive Chairman from September 1998 to May 2004, In
May 2004, Mr. Getty relinquished his role as an executive officer of the company
but remains as {non-executive) Chairman of the Board, Mr. Getty served as
Co-Chairman of Gelty Images from February 1998 to September 1998. He served as
Executive Chairman of Getty Communications Limited, our predecessor, from April
1996 to February 1998. From March 1995 to April 1996, Mr. Getty served as the
Joint Chairman of Getty Communications Limited. Mr. Geity also is the Chairman of
the Board of Dlrectors of Getty Invesiments L.L.C.

Mr. Klein is a co-founder ot Getty images and has been our Chief Executive Officer
and a Director since February 1998. Mr. Kiein cerved as Chief Executive Officer and
as a Director of Getty Communications Limited, our predecessor, {from April 1956 10
February 1998. From March 1995 ta April 199€, Mr. Klein served as the Joint
Chairman of Getty Communications Limited. Mr. Klein serves on the Board of Direc-
tors of Getty Investments L.L.C, and as a Director of RealNetworks, Inc. 2 leading
creator of digital media services and software. He also serves on the Board of Trust-
ees of the Groton Schoo!, on the Board of Direclors of Friends of the Global Fight
Against Aids, Tuberculosis and Malaria, one of the leading organizations working to
educate, engage and mobilize Americans on the figh! to end the worldwide burden
ol these diseases by focusing its efforts pn decicion-makers in Washington D.C., and
on the Advisory Board of the Global Business Cualition on HIV/AIDS, Tuberculosis
and Malaria, the pre-eminent organization leading the business fight against HIV/
AIDS and a mission to harness the power of the global business community to end
the HIV/AIDS, tuberculosis and malaria epidemics.

Mr. Stein has been a Director since June 2002. Mr. Stein served as Senior Vice
President and Chief Financial Officer of 1COS Corporation, a bictechnology com-
pany, from January 2001 to January 2007. Prior 1o that, Mr. Stein was Executive
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Noidstrom, Inc., a leading fashion

specially retailer, from October 1998 to Septemter 2000, Mr. Stein served as Execu-

tive Vice President and Chief Financiat Otficer of Marriott International, Inc. from
1993 to 1998. Prior 10 his work at Marriott, he spent eighteen years at Arthur Ander-
sen as a partner in their Washington, D.C. office. Mr. Stein also serves on the Board
of Directors of Apartment Invesiment & Management Company (AIMCO), a multi-
family dwelling real estate investment irust. He also serves on the Board of Trustees
of the Fred Huichinson Cancer Research Center.

1998

1998

2002

I Class | directors are nominated for election at the next annuai meeting.
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The company has an Audit Committee that consists of Messrs. Bailey, Garb and Stein, each independen! directors, as defined by the
New York Stock Exchange. Mr. Slein has served as the chairman of the Audit Committee since 2002. Additionally, the Board of Direc-
tors has determined that each member of the Audit Committee is financially literate and that Mr, Stein is an “Audit Commiltee finan-
cial expert” as defined under applicable rutes of the SEC,

INFORMATION ABOUT EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Set forth below is certain information with respect to the current executive officers of Getty Images other than Mr. Klein, whose
information is inctuded in the table above,

Jeffrey L. Beyle

Nicholas E. Evans-Lombe

James C. Gurke

Bruce T. Livingstone

E
46

51

36

Businass Exporience

Mr. Beyle Is our Senior Vice President, Business Development, effective June 2007. Prior to
this role, Mr. Beyle served as our Senior Yice President and General Counsel since
November 2000. Mr. Beyle also served as head of Human Resources from 2002 10 2004,
Prior to joining Getty Images in November 2000, Mr. Beyle was General Counsel of Coca-
Cola’s Asia-Pacific Group in Hong Kong from April 2000 to October 2000, Prior to that, Mr.
Beyle was Vice President of Legal and Business Development for the China Division of The
Coca-Caola Company from May 1997 to April 2000, and held other positions with The Ceca-
Cola Company sinca joining that company in 1992.

Mr. Evans-Lomba is our Executive Vice President, Imagery, Products and Services, effective
in June 2007, Mr. Evans-Lombe previously served as Senior Vice President, Imagery and
Services from August 2004 to May 2007, Senior Vice President, Editorial Customers from
September 2003 to July 2004, Senior Vice President, Editorial from January 2002 to Sep-
tember 2003, Senior Vice President, Strategy and Corporate Development from February
1998 to January 2002, and Director of Sirategy and Corporate Development of Getty Commu-
nications Limited, our predecessor, from February 1996 to February 1998. Prior to joining
Getty tmages, Mr. Evans-Lombe held various positions in the corporate finance division at
Hambros Bank Limited from 1989 to December 1995,

Mr. Gurke has been Senior Vice President, Human Resources and Facilities since August
2004, From December 2003 to June 2007 he also served as Chief of Stati. Mr. Gurke pre-
viously served as Senior Vice President, Business Development from December 2003 to July
2004, Senior Vice President, New Revenues from May 2003 to December 2003, Vice Presi-
dent of New Revenues from August 2002 to May 2003, and Vice President, Sales and Market-
ing — Americas from January 1999 10 August 2002. Prior to joining Getty Images, Mr. Gurke
was employed by Encyclopaedia Britannica from 1994 to 1999, finally serving in the capacity
of vice President, Educational Sales and Marketing.

Mr. Livingstone became a Senior Vice President of Getty Images in addition to his existing
role as Chief Executlve Officer iStockphoto, in May 2007. He initially joined Getty Images in
February 2006 as Chief Executive Officer of iStockphoto when Getty images acquired iStock-
photo, Inc., a company Mr. Livingstone founded in 2000. iStockphoto ploneered the micro-
payment industry in stock imagery in 2000 and remains the worldwide leader in that industry
segment, Mr. Livingstone has started several other companies, including Evolvs Media Inc.
and Paper Thin Walls Inc., the assets of each of which were also recently acquired by Getty
Images. Prior to creating iStockphoto and his various other companies, Mr. Livingstone held
various positions in the graphic deslgn, marketing and technology sectors.
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Name Age Business Cxperience
John L. McKay 51 Mr. McKay joined Gelty Images in June 2007 as Senior Vice President and General Counsel.

Thomas Oberdor{

Bo T. Qlofsson

Linda J. Ranz

Jack Sansolo

Michael D. Teaster

50

45

k]

63

40

Prior to joining Getty Images, Mr. MCKay served as a United States Altorney for the Western
District of Washington from 2001 to January 2007. During the interim between his service at
the Department of Justice and Getly Images, he was a Visiling Professor of Law al Seattie
University School of Law. Prior to his work at tre Department of Justice, Mr. MCKay served in
numerous leadership and legal roles including President of the Legal Services Corporation
and service as @ White House Fellow.

Mr. Oberdori joined Getty Images in June 200€ as Senior Vice President and Chiel Financial
Officer. Prior 10 joining Getty Images, Mr. Obeniforf was 1he Senior Vice President, Chief
Financial Qlficer and Treasurer of CMGI, Inc., from 2002 10 June 2006 and Senior Vice
President and Chigf Financial Officer - BeMusiz Direct of Bertelsmann Music Group (BMG
Music) from 1999 Lo 2002. Prior to his work 8t BMG Music, Mr. Oberderf served in 8 number
of leadership roles at Reader's Digest Association, Inc. Irom 1981 to 1999, last serving as
the Vice President Global Books and Home Entertainment - Finance.

Mr. Qlofsson has been Senior Vice President Global Sales since October 2005, and Senior
vice President, EMEA, Asia Pacific and Emerging Markets from May 2003 until October
2005. Prior to joining Getty Images, Mr. Qlolsscn worked for Dell Computer in Eurcpe (rom
1997 to May 2003, serving in a number of executive sales positions. Prior 1o working for Dell
Computer, Mr. Olofsson worked for Apple Computer in Europe from 1990 10 1997,

Ms. Ranz is our Senior Vice President, Technotogy effective in June 2007. Ms. Ranz pre-
viously served as our Senior Vice President, Customer Experience from November 2006 to
May 2007, Vice President. Marketing from August 2004 to Octaber 2006, Vice President,
Marketing - Editorial Customers from June 2004 to July 2004, Vice President, Marketing
from November 2002 1o June 2004, Director, Product Marketing from June 2002 to October
2002, vice Presideni of Business Development fram July 2001 to May 2002, and Director,
Site Management & Business Development fromy June 1999 to June 2001. Prior 10 joining
Getly Images. Ms. Ranz held various positions in the wireless industry.

Dr. Sansolo was our Senior Vice President, Marketing from November 2004 until his retire.
ment effective June 2007. Prior to joining Getly images. Dr. Sansolo was a marketing con-
sultant from January 2001 to November 2004 and, from September 1996 1o January 2001,
Executive Vice President, Global Brand Direction at Eddie Bauer, a retail clothing seller.
Previously, he had held marketing positions ai & number of companies, including Hill Holiday
Advertising, Kennan Research and Consulting, Inc., and AT&T. Dr. Sansolo serves on the
Board of Directors of aQuantive, Inc. and served on the Board of Directors of Celebrate
Express, Inc. during 2005,

Mr. Teaster is our Senior Vice President, Imagery, Products and Services effective in June
2007. M. Teaster previously served as Senior Vice President, Business Development, from
November 2006 to May 2007, managing acquisition activity, overseeing the development
and management of strategic partnerships, and pursuing new business opportunities includ-
ing the creation of new products and services. Mr. Teaster has more than ten yearsol  *
industry-related business development experience. In 1994, Mr. Teasier managed ihe inter-
national network ol licensees for The Image Bark and became vice president of Licensee
Relations in 1998 (prior to the acquisition of The Image Bank by Getty Images in November
1999). From 2001 to 2004, he served as Vice P-esident of Agent Development, overseeing
the strategy and implementation of Getty Image:’ Master Delegate network worldwide. In
2004, he was appointed Vice President of Image Partners belore his role éxpanded to
include business development in July 2005.
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Code of Ethics/Code of Business Conduct/Corporate Governance Guldelines

Gelty Images has adopted 1he {ollowing codes and guidelines applicable 10 our business conduct: {1) Code of Business Conduct,
(2) Cede of £thics for Getty Images’ management and Board of Directors, (3) Corporale Governance Guidelines, and {4) the Leader-
ship Principles. These codes and guidelines can be found on the Corporate Governance section of Getty Images’ website. Log on to
www.getlyimages.com and click *About Us,” then “Invesiors,” then “Corporate Governance.” These documents are also available in
print to any shareholder who makes a request in writing to:

investor Relations Departrent
Getty Images, Inc.

601 North 34th Street

Seattle, Washington 98103
1-866-275-4389
investorrelations@getlyimages.com

The above codes and guidelines have been adopted in order 10 deter corporate wrongdoing and promote: (1) honest and ethical
conducl, including the ethical handling of actual or apparent conflicts of interest between personal and professional relationships,
(2} full, fair, accurate and timely disclosure in reports and documents we file with the SEC and in other public communicatiens,
(3) compliance with applicable governmenal laws, rules and regulations, (4) accountability for adherence to our ethical standards,
codes and guidelines, and (5} the prompt internal reporting of any vio!ation thereof.

I any material provisions of our Code of Ethics or our Code of Business Conduct are waived for any member of our management or
Board of Direclors, or it any substantive changes are made 10 our codes as they relate to any Director of member of management, we
will disclose that fact on our website or in a Current Report on Form 8-K that would be filed with the SEC. In addition, any other
material amendments 10 our Codes will be disclosed. There were no waivers of any of our codes relaling to executives or directors in
2006. There has been one waiver made and disclosed in 2007 wilh respect to Mr. Livingstone as discussed further in ltem 13, Certain
Relationships and Related Transactions in this Annual Report en Form 10-K.

The Board has established a mechanism by which any employee, shareholder, vendor, customer or other interested party may submit
confidential of anenymous reports of suspected or aclua! violations of our Code of Business Conduct or Code of Ethics relating 1o
financial, accounting, auditing or internal controls matters or procedures. Individuals wishing to submit such reports may do so by
calling 1-800-425-0889 or togging on to www.fesuitor.com/getlyimages, both of which are available 24 hours, seven days a week.

Section 16 Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Seclion 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, requires our Directars, executive officers and persons who own
more than 10% of our common stock (collectively, “Reporting Persons™) to file with the SEC initiat reparts of ownership and changes
in ownership of our common stock. Reporling Persons are also required by the SEC regulations to furnish Gelly Images with coples of
all Section 16(a) reports they file.

To our knowledge, based solely on a review of copies of such reports received by us, or on writlen represeniations from certain Report-
ing Persons that no other reports were required for such persons, we believe that during fiscal year 2006, all Section 16(a) filing
requirements were satisfied on a timely basis,
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ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insides Participation

The Compensation Committee is composed of three independent Directors, Messrs. Bailey, Garb and Sporborg. None of Messrs. Bai
ley, Garb or Sporborg has been an officer or employee of Getty Images al any time or is an execulive officer of an eniily far which an
execulive oflicer of the cempany served as 2 member of a compensation committee or as a director during the last fiscal year. During
2006, none of our executive officers served as 8 member of the board of directors or compensation committee of any other entity
whose executive officer(s) served an our Board of Directors or Compensation Committee.

Executive Commitlee

The Executive Committee consists of Messrs. Bailey, Garb, Klein and Stein. This Committee was lormed in December 2005 and met
only once in 2006. This Committee has a limited delegation of authority from the Board of Directors 1o exercise the authority of the
Board during the intervals between meetings of the Board, except lor matters thal cannol be delegated by law or pursuant te the
company's Restated Certificate ol Incorporation or by-laws and except for those matters expressly delegaled to another committee of
the Board af Directors.

Presiding Director; Executive Sessions of independent Directors

In 2006, the independent directors of the Board met in executive session four times to discuss such topics as the independenl direc-
tors determined appropriate, including evaluation of the performance of the chiel execulive officer. In 2006, Mr. Bailey was selected
by the independent members of the Board to chair Lhese sessions and L0 be the lead independent directer.

Equity Compensation Committee (formerly known as the Stock Option Committee}

The Equity Compensation Commiltee cansisted of Mr. Kiein. The Equity Compensation Commiltee was responsible for the admin-
istration ol the company's 2005 Incentive Plan lor those employees who were not one of our executive officers. The Equity Compensa-
tion Committee 100k action two times during 2006. The Equity Compensation Committee was disbanded in April, 2007 as a result of
the Special Committee’s ! recommendation to that effect.

! The Special Committee and its funclicn are described more fully in the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section of this Annual Reporl
an Form 10-K in the subsection titled “Restatement of Financial Statements.”
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COMPENSATION COMMITYEE REPORY

The Campensalion Committee of the Board of Directors of Getty Images, In¢. has reviewed and discussed the following Compensation
Discussion and Analysis section of this proxy statement with Gelty Images' management. Based on such review and discussion, the
Compensation Committee recommended to the Board that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis section be included fn this
Annual Report an Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006 and in our 2007 proxy stalement, The members of Getty Images'
Compensalion Committee during 2006 and as of the filing date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K are:

Andrew 5. Garb (Chairman)
James N. Bailey
Christopher H. Sporborg
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COMPENSATION DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our compensation programs are designed to attract and retain highly quatified emptoyees and to motivate them to maximize share-
holder returns by achieving annual and long-term financial goals. Qur compensation programs also allow the performance of
individual employees against non-linancial targets (such as adherence 1o our Leadership Principles !) to play a role in determining
total compensation. Our leadership principles define the kind of company we want ta be by setting forth leadership behaviors that
form the cornerstone of everything we do. Our compensation programs are intended to be competitive with prevailing market practices
and ta link each employee’s compensation directly to our financial perfarmance, The following discussion addresses the lollowing
aspects of our compensation programs and policies:

« Qur executive campensation program objectives and what the program is designed to reward.

« The role of the Compensation Commitiee, our executive officers and our compensation consultant in the development and administration of
the executive compensation program.

» The details of our execulive compensation program, including:
¢ The elements of the program, why we choose to pay each efement. and how each element (its into qur overall compensation abjectives.

+ How we determine the amounts to pay.

I. Compensalion Programs - Objectives and Design

The primary basis of our general compensation philosophy and practice is that total compensation should vary along with the success
of Getly Images in achieving its financial objectives and of the individuai employee in achieving his or her non-financial objectives,
and that long-term incentive compensation should be closely aligned with the sharehaglders’ interests. This approach applies to alt of
our employees, with a8 more significant portion of Compensation being variable {that is, at-risk and lied to Getty Images’ linancial per-
formance} as an employee’s level of responsibility increases.

Another important aspect of our compensation philosophy and practice is that aur compensation programs should be straightforward
in their design and application. We believe that this approach has the benefit of allowing zmployees to understand clearly how they
will be compensated. This approach also makes it easier 1o predict and measure the compensation that employees have realized and
will realize in the future, and to reduce the chance of the compensation programs having unintended consequences.

it. Role of lhe Compensation Committee, our Executive Officers and our Compensalion Consultant

The Compensation Commitlee has oversight respansibility for our compensation plans, pelicies and programs both {or our executive
officers and for our other employees, Qur management team, in particular our Human Resources Deparimenlt, works with our Chief
Executive Officer and our other executive officers 10 develop and design our compensation plans, policies and programs. The more
signiflcant plans, policies and programs, including all in which any executive officer participates, then are reviewed with the Compen-
sation Commillee at formal meetings and via informal discussians in order to provide the information necessaty, of requested by the
Committee to evaluate, madify as needed, and ultimately approve the plans, policies and programs. The Compensation Committee
also has engaged Towers Perrin, a leading compensation consuiting firm, to assist the Compensation Committee In the performance of
its duties. On decisions regarding the compensation of specilic executive officers, the Compensation Committee works claosely with the
Chiaf Executive Officer, with the Chief Executive Officer making recommendations regarding each of the other executive officer's
compensalion for discussion with and, ultimately, approval by the Commiltee. On the Chief Executive Officer's compensation, the
Compensation Cammiliee works with Towers Perrin (0 obtain the information and advice necessary for it to make the decisions.

Towers Perrin reports direclly to the Compensation Commiitee, which has authorily to engage and retain any outside advisors to pro-
vide advice regarding all aspects of executive compensation and benefits. We have not cemmissioned @ custom Survey from Towers
Perrin in the past nor do we have current plans 1o request such a survey. Rather, we have refied upon the Towers Perrin Executive
Compensation Survey, which provides Getly Images with market data for our executive positions, including the Chief Executive Officer.
Towers Perrin provides us with comparative compensation information lor eguivaient pgsitions from peer companies, using bench-
mark and market practice data for base salaries, incentives, and stock awards. Towers Perrin has also supplied retevant and timely

1 Qur Leadership Principles ¢an be found in the Corporate Governance section of our website. Log on to www gettyimages.com andg first click
*About Us,” then “Investors,” then “Corporate Governance.”
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information to the Compensation Committee and management on such matters as regulatory changes and updates, current industry
practices relating to executive compensaticn and other such issues, This Information is wilized by the Chiel Executive Officer when
making executive compensation recommendations to the Compensation Committee and by the Commiltee when evaluating these
recommendations. In addition 1o the services provided to the Compensation Committee, Towers Perrin also has advised management
on our sales commission programs and on our long-1erm incentive compensation program for all other employees, The Compensation
Committee believes that Towers Perrin has provided valuable independent advice 1o the Compensation Committee that is untainted by
its other engagemenls, Nevertheless, the Compensation Committee believes that best practices dictate that the Commitiee should
have a consullant that does not do any other work for the company. As a resull, going forward management will retain another com-
pensalion consultant and Towers Perrin will provide advice only to the Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee also
believes that Towers Perrin’s advice was enhanced by its in-depth knowledge of our culture and compensation programs that it gained
as a resull of the waork it did on these other projects. The Human Resources and Legal Departments aiso work with Towers Perrin as
required in perlorming certain ol the tasks assigned 10 Towers Perrin by the Compensation Committee, Such work includes, for exam-
ple, providing information on our current practices, advising on proposais that may be considered regarding executive or other com-
pensation, and providing detail on our compensation structure such as current 2nd historical salaries, benefits, bonus and equily
compensation so that, as required, Towers Perrin can provide us with relevant feedback and comparative data.

H1. Elements of Compensation - Identification and Selection; Benchmarking and Determination of Amounis; Other
Benefits

A, idéntification and Selection of Elements of Compensaltion

The total compensation for our employees, including our executive officers, consisted of the {ollowing components in 2006 {and will
consist of these elements in 2007 as well}:

Etement Owscription and Objective

Base salary We provide base salaries that are competitive with those companies with whom we compete for talented
employees. We set our larget base salaries at the 50 percentile for comparable jobs at comparable
companies nationwide, in order 1o provide our employees with competitive base salaries. We believe our
target base salaries are an important part of an attractive overall compensation and benefits package.

Cash bonus We offer an annual pay-for-performance cash incentive plan dependent on pur annval financial
Non-Sales performance and the individual employee’s performance against specific performance objectives and
Employees our Leadership Principles. A greater parcentage of an employee's award is determined by performance

against financial objectives as the empiloyee’s level of respoensibility increases.

The objective of this plan is to provide a means to align the interests ol our nan-sales employees to our
critical annual financial objectives and g reward all non-sales employees for achieving these objectives.
This ptan covers all executive officers, except the Senior Vice President, Globa! Sales.

Sales Employees For non-executive Sales employees, their cash commission plan payout is solely dependent upon
individual andfor group sales targels, For the more senior employees in the Sales function {including
our Senior Vice President, Globa! Sales), a part of variable cash compensation is determined by
personal performance against specific performance objectives and our Leadership Principles,

Our sales commission plan is designed 1o provide significant incentives for Sales employees at all levels
to achieve the monthly, quarterly and annual sales targets.
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Element Description and Objective
Long-Term / Equily Our long-term compensation is in the form of equity awards, primarily in the form of restricted stock unils, althaugh
Compensation the Compensation Committee likely will Continue to make awards of siock options to the Chief Executive Officer,

A resiricted stock unit award is a grant of a 7ight to receive shares of our common stock that vests over
time. As the resiricted stock unil awards vest, employees receive shares that they own outright. In
conirast, stock options are options 1o purchase shares of our comman stock upon the payment of the
award exercise price, with the recipient being able to exercise the aptions only as the award vests over
time. The exercise price for a stock option award is no less than the fair market value of our common
stack on the date of the award, which we define as the average of the high and low trading prices of our
common stock on the date of the award. This means that the award recipient receives value from the
stock option award anly if the price of our commaon stock appreciates.

The long-term compensation program is designed to allow annual awards of restricted stock units for a
significant number of our emplayees, although our executive officers may not receive awards each year.
The use of equity as the vehicle for our long-term compensation program builds on the annual cash
incentive programs by rewarding key employees far their effarts in achieving our financlal objectives. 1n
addition, equity incentive awards may be able 1o tie our employees’ compensation {that of our more
senior employees, in particular) mare closely to shareholder returns than cash incentives,

The time-based vesting schedules (back-end loaded in the case of the Chief Executive Olficer as
described below in this Compensation Discussion and Aralysis under the subheading Equity
Compensation) are intended 10 support retention,

Benefits We aim ta provide our emplayees with a competitive, comprehensive and well-balanced compensation package.
While the specifics of the benefits programs vary by courtry, we typically provide health, disability and
life insurance, as well as defined contribution retirement plans. We also provide limited additional
benefits for the executive officers and other senior management, such as supplemental life and
disability insurance.

8. Benchmarking and Determination of Amounts of Each Element of Compensation

In setling each executive’s base salary and {arget annual cash incenlive bonus, and in awarding any leng-term incentive campensa-
tion, the Compensation Commitiee considers comparative compensation leve!s for equivalent positions at peer companies using
benchmark and market practice data collected and prepared both by our Human Resources group and by Towers Perrin,

The executive compensation benchmarking surveys provide information on levels of total compensation, total cash compensation,
base salary. target annual incentive compensation, and long-term incentive compensation (including equity-based compensation} for
comparabie executive positions at organizations similar 10 ours nationwide. Using these surveys and other data, Towers Perrin pro-
viges benchmark informalien on compensation levels and practices, such as the types and prevalence ol various compensation plans
and the elements thereof, the mix of pay among these elements, and market trends. The Compensation Committee believes it is crit-
ical to understand executive compensation practices and levels among all potential cornpelitors for senior management talent. Accord-
ingly, the compensation surveys used by the Compensation Committee represent both 3eneral industry and other media-relaled
organizations.! The most recent surveys provided by Towers Perrin were from 2005, and there were no updates or new surveys pro-
vided to us in 2006. Getly Images has nat yet delermined whether an update to the survey or other data provided by Towers Perrin
will be required in 2007.

Given that the scape af executive responsibilities is largely influenced by the size of the organization and associated complexily, the
Compensation Committee also believes that it is impartant to consider the compensaticn trends of similarly-sized organizations. We
evaluated the compensatian trends of companies in both the media and general industry, which were selected based on their rev-
enues and market Capitalization (two broadly accepted measures of organizational size and scope that are associated with seniar
management pay levels). Specifically. the compensation comparison groups represent companies with $500 million to $2 billion tn
annual revenues and a median market capilalization that approximates that of Gelty Iir ages.

! As the financial analysts who cover us have discovered over the years, there are a very limited number of companies, if any, that have aper-
ations that are closely comparable ta ours. As a result, the Compensation Committee, management and Towers Perrin all believe that we
must use camparator groups that include companies that are outside of aur industry.
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This comparator grouping is not identical to those companies represented In the performance graph included in the Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2006. While management and the Compensation Committee believe that it Is best to
reference the well-known published indices used in the performance graph to measure the performance of our shareholder return, the
Committee, with the concurrence of management and Towers Perrin, believes that our competilors for employees (including executive
officers) are not limited to the specific companies in those indices.!

With the relevant market data, the Compensation Committee, with management’s assistance, annually reviews all elements of each
executive officer’s total compensation, including each officer’s current and historical base salary, actual and target annual cash
incentive bonus payouls. equity compensation {including accumulated, realized and unrealized stock option, restvicted stock and
restricted stock unit gains), relevant internal equities (which involves a comparison of total compensation of employees at all tevels of
the cempany), and the cost of the benefits and perquisites. This review also considers the potential accounting impact of Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (“"SFAS™) No. 123R (revised 2004), *Share-Based Paymen!” on compensalion programs in general
and our long-term incentive compensation program in particular,

While taken into account in making any additional equity awards, the size of past awards is less important in the overall mix of consig-
eralions than are the executive officer’s expected future contributions, level of responsibility and the data on market compensation
practices. The Compensation Committee also is cognizant of the accounting cost and dilutive impact of equlty awards, and works with
management 1o establish approximate limits of overall equity compensation program costs during our annual budgeting process.

In addition to relevant market compensation data and each executive officer’s tolal compensation information described above. the
Compensation Committee cansiders the following factors in reviewing and determining compensation levels for our senior manage-
ment:
+ Overall performance of Getty Images, especially as compared to pre-established operating measures and other indicators of shareholder
value creation.
« Individual performance; in particular, each individual executive’s contribution to successiul implementation of our shoni-term performance
goals and long-term strategic direction, and adherence to our Leadership Principles. As noted above. our Leadership Principles define the
kind of company we want 10 be by setting forth leadership behaviors that farm the cornerstone of everything we do.2

» Our overall executive compensation phitosophy, including consideration of how pay compares across various arganizational levels {ie.,
internal pay equity) and the mix between fixed and variable compensation.

With the assistance of our Human Resources Depariment, our management {including, but not limited to cur executive officers) under-
takes a similar benchmarking process for determining the compensation of those employees who are not executive officers. While the
Compensation Committee is net involved in the process, the studies used for our other employees include companies that are outside
of our industry, as is the case with the benchmarking studles used for the executive officers.

1. Mix of Elements - Fixed versus Yariable Compensation; Cash versus Equity

Both the Compensation Committee and management believe that the above-wrilten compensation elements are necessary elements of
a complete and competitlive compensation prograrm. This program allows us to offer compensalion packages 10 cur employees that are
comparable to those offered by employers with whom we compete for talenled employees. We believe thal our compensation program
is effective at attracting, motivating and retaining employees, while at the same time being easy {0 understand and manage.

The Compensation Committee does nol target a specific ratio between lixed and variable compensation far the execulive officers.
However, in performing the periodic reviews {including the benchmarking exercises) discussed above, the Compensation Committee
does consider market practices regarding the mix of total compensation between fixed and variable elements, and believes that a sig-
nificant percentage of the executive officer's total compensation should be variable (that is. at-risk and tied to Getly images’ linancial
performance). The actual ratio between fixed and variable compensation will depend upan our financial performance and stock price.

in evaluating and determining the mix between fixed and variable compensation, and between cash and equity, the Compensation
Committee is mindiu! that, from October 2001 until September 2005, it did not make significant equity awards 1o executive officers
due to the limited number of shares remaining available for grant under its then-existing equily compensation plan. Awards granted

1 This view is supported by the diverse backgrounds of our executive officers, which are described elsewhere in this Annua! Report on
Form 10-K.

2 You can learn more about our Leadership Principles at our website. Log on to www. getlyimages.com and click "About Us,” then
“Investors,” then “Corporate Governance.”
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typically were limited to employment inducement awards or awards that were part of a compensation package offered [0 a newly-
promoted executive. Following the shareholder approval of the 2005 Incentive Plan, the Caompensation Commiliee was able (0 resume
its commitment to making appropriate equity award grants and began its current practice of granting restricted stock units as the
primary form of equity compensation with the specific intent of increasing both the variable and equity components of the executive's
compensation packages. The equily compensation program was implemented after considerable work by the Compensation Commit-
tee and our executive otficers, with assistance from Towers Perrin, to develop a broad-based long-term equity compensation plan. ILis
important to note that while Getly Images' executives were involved in, and inlegral to, the development of this fong-term equily
compensation plan for all employees, they do not determine their own compensation.

2. Mix of Chief Execulive Officer Pay Elements

In 2005, the Compensation Committee conducted a review of Mr. Klein's current and historical compensation, including annuat pay,
annual cash incentive bonuses, and equity compensation {including accumulated, realized and unrealized stock option and restricted
stock gains). As a result of this review, the Cempensation Commitiee determined that, duz to a lack of equity-based awaids over the
previous four years {excepting an award of 15,000 restricted stock unils in December 20012), Mr. Klein's total compensalion was not
suificiently weighted toward “at risk” elements. Particularly, the level of equity compensation over the period between 2000 and 2004
was significantly below the targeted 75t percentile of total chief executive officer compensation for comparable general industry and
media companies. This was despile the faci that we had exceptional performance (both in terms of share price appreciation and
operational performance) during that period and tha! our executive compensation prograra and philosophy emphasize pay for
performance. The Compensation Commillee also considered the fact that all of Mr. Klein's equity awards were fully vested and, there-
fore, Mr. Klein's compensaltion package did not provide the desired retention incentives.

At the conclusion of this review, the Compensation Committee decided to make a grant of a fully vested option to acquire 350,000
shares of our common stock to Mr. Klein in September 2005 to account for the limited equity awards granted since 2001. The
immediate vesting was designed to bring Mr. Klein's equity compensation in line with chief executive officer compensation for com-
parabte general indusiry and media companies and address the pending requirement to rzcognize an expense for stock option awards
{which for us began on January 1, 2006). Similar awards with immediate vesting were made to cerlain of the ather long-serving execu-
tive officers in September 2005.! Executive oHicers were granted oplions (o acquire shares of our common stock in the following
amounis:

Mr. Beyle 45,000
Mr. Ellis 20,000
Mr. Evans-Lombe 50,000
Mr. Gurke 45,000
Ms. Huebner 50,000
Mr. Olofsson 20.000

The Compensation Committee also made an award of B0,000 restricted stock units to Mr. Klein in January 2006 in order to recognize
our outstanding performance, especially over the period between 2002 and 2005, to provide him with a meaningful retention-based
award tha! would encourage on-going engagement even if our share price were [0 decline, and to address the lack of regular stock
option awards during a period of significant stock price appreciation (a result of our exceplional financial performance). Awards of
restricted SI0Ck units also were made 10 all other executive officers and approximately 25% of our employee population in January
2006.2 The Compensation Commitlee also granted to Mr. Klein an option to purchase 250,000 shares of our common stock in May
2006 as the first in what is intended to be a program of regular annual stack option awards that will be meaningful for Mr. Klein and
will ensure alignment between his total compensation and shareholder value creation. The specific size of the awards will be
determined by reference o Mr. Klgin's performance, our financial performance and competitive market data. Both the January and
May 2006 granis (0 Mr. Klein were weighted with back-end vesting of 40% of the shares in year four of the vesting cycle. In April
2006, the Compensation Committee also increased Mr. Klein's at-target annual cash incentive bonus from 70% to 90% of his base
salary in order t0 put even more of his potential cash compensation al-risk.2

! No compensalicn expense was recognized for any of these immediately-vested stock option a'wards because an expense was required under
SFAS 123R only for stock option awards that were unvested as of January 1, 2006.

*  For further discussion of these grants please see the discussion fater in this Compensation Dis.cussion and Analysis in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K under the subheading *January 2006 Awards of Restricted Steck Units.”

3 Nochange was made to Mr. Klein's base salary which has remained at the same amount, $950,000, since February 2004.
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3. Cash Compensation

2. Base Salary

Each year, the Compensation Commitiee reviews the base salary compensation of each executive officer in the manner described
above. The Compensation Committee may make changes 10 base salaries based on an assessment of individuva! and Geity Images
performance, as well as competitive pay levels. The Compensation Committee also seeks input from the Chief Executive Officer regaro-
ing the base salaries of the other executive officers. Base pay for the executive officers {excepting the Chief Executive Officer, whose
compensalion is discussed below) and other employees is designed to be competitive {which we define as approximately the 50w
percentile of the peer groups) compared with prevailing market rates at peer companies for equivalent positions, taking into account
the executive’s individual performance and potential.

Each year, the Chiel Executive Qificer reviews each executive’s performance and makes salary recommendations io the Compensation
Commiltee. Changes to base salary may result from these annual merit review increases of, less frequently, significant changes in
market data. More significant changes in base salary result from a significant change in job responsibilities. For instance, in 20086,

Mr. Teaster and Ms. Ranz were promoted into executive officer positions. As a result of this increase in their job responsibilities, the
base salary for each of them was increased significantly during the year. Ms. Ranz’s base salary increased from $191,000 (o
$230,000 and My, Teaster's base salary increased from $230,000 to $255,000. The new base salaries are at rates that the Compensa-
tion Commiliee believes are more competitive with the prevailing market practices of the peer groups for comparable positions of
responsibility.

b Annual Cash Incentive Bonus

QOur annual cash-based pay-for-performance incentive bonus program, discussed above, is named the Non-Sales Bonus Plan
(*NSBP"). The purpose of the NSBP is to motivale and reward employees for the performance of Getty images against its financial
objectives, and for employees’ personal performance agalnst specific personal objectives and our Leadership Principles. The formula
for awards is based on these two factors (Geity Images financial performance and personal performance). All of our non-sates employ-
ees participate in the NSBP, with the target payout as a percentage of the employee’s base salary Increasing as the empioyee’s level
of responsibility increases.

The Chief Executive Officer and the Senior Vice Presidents are nol included in the NSBP. Instead, they are covered by a substantiaily
similar plan approved by the Compensation Committee and established under the sharehotder approved 2005 Incentive Plan. The
oniy two distinctions between the NSBP for all other empioyees and the plan for executives are that {i} the operating margin target is
slightly different for executives (however, in administering the plan {here is no preferential treatment afforded to executives, as more
fully discussed further in this Subsection) and (ii) the fact that executives are not included in the NSBP. The sole purpose for adminis-
tering the annuat cash incentive bonus program for the executive officers under the 2003 Incentive Plan is lo preserve the full
deduclibility of awards made to the executive ollicers pursuant 1o Section 162{m} of the Internal Revenue Code. Further discussion of
the tax consequences of this approach is found below in the Subsection titled “ Tax Considerations. ™ Because all other aspects of the
two plans are identical, we will refer to the NSBP as if fully applicable to executive officers.

The payouts under the NSBP are closely linked 10 our annual financial results, which can allow employees o earn more tolal cash
compensation in times of good financial periormance. As with base salaries, the at-target payouts for our execulive officers (excepting
the Chief Executive Qfficer) are at approximately the 50t percentile of the peer groups' payouts, For all other employees, the al-target
payments are above the 50% percentile.

The more senior an employee is, the more weighted the formula is towards our financial performance. For instance, for the executive
officers, 80% of the officer's target payout is based on Getty Images performance. ! The remaining 20% of the target payout is
determined by the officer's individual performance againsi specific non-financial objectives, including our Leadership Principles. The
heavy weighling of the executives’ largel payout towards Getly Images performance is intended to motivate the executives by providing
substantial bonus payments for the achievement of financial goals and for supporting the efforts of others within Getty fmages. For
other employees, the weighting ranges from 70% Getty Images perlormance and 30% personal performance (for Vice Presidents) to a
50 - 50 split between the persona!l and Getty Images performance components (which is the case lor most employees).

1 In 2007, Ms. Livingstone's bonus will be apportioned similarly. However, the 80% company portion will be based half on the 1argel Getty
Images performance and half on the target iStockphoto performance, or 40% based on Getty Images performance, 40% based on
iStockphoto performance, and 20% based on Mr. Livingstone's personal performance.
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The Gelly Images performance compenent may exceed the largeted percentage {as noted above. 80% of the al-target award for our
executive officers) if aur financial performance exceeds the larget established by the Corapensation Committee for all non-sales
employees at the start of the year. The personal component of a participanl’s bonus also can be above the targeted percentage {as
noted abave, 20% of the al-target award for the executive officers) if the employee exceeds his o7 her personal performance
objectives. bul is limited 1o 150% of the al-target amount for the personal component {that is, the payout of the persanal component
of the al-targel award for executive officers can be no more than 150% of the 20% at-target award. or 30% of the at-target award).

Nag later than March of each year, the Compensation Commitiee esiablishes the financial targel for the year. In the case of tiscal year
2006. an operating margin target of 35% was used to define the al-target award threshold for all participants, with operating margin
defined as income from operations as a percentage of revenue as stated in our audited financial statements (excluding stock-based
compensation expense). A minimum operating margin of 31% was required for there to be any payment under the Gelly Images per-
formance compenent of the NSBP. Under the ptan applicable 10 senior executives for 2006, the Compensation Committee approved
an operating margin performance objeclive of 30%.! Despite this ditference in the operating margin targets, there was no and, in the
future, will not be preferential treatment for executive officers because the executive officzr bonuses are determined as though they
are subject to the NSBP. As noted above, the sole purpose for administering the annual cash incentive bonus program for the execu-
tive officers under the 2005 Incentive Plan is to preserve the full deduclibilily of awards made to the execulive officers pursuant to
Section 162(m) of the internal Revenue Code.

Our {ull-year operating margin in 2006 of slightly less than 30% lexclusive of equity compensation expenses) resulted in no payout on
the Getty Images financial performance component for any employee or execulive. As a resull, the bonus payouts for ail non-sales
employees and executive officers were significantly lower for 2006 than they were for 2005 (because anly the personal component of
the NSBP was paid in 2006). In fact, Mr. Klein did nol receive a bonus in 2006 because the Compensation Committee and Mr. Klein
believed that, despile his good personal performance during the year, Getly Images’ operztional perlormance was not satisfactory rela-
tive to the operating margin objeclive.

In the case of fiscal year 2007, a recognized revenue targel (as opposed to operating margin target) is being used for all participants,

wilh revenue being as staled in our audited financial statements. "Recognized revenue” for this purpase is as defined by the Account-
ing Principles Generally Accepted in the United States (*US GAAP™). This is the same standard that is used for our Sales Commission
Plan described below.

¢. CEO Base Salary and Annual Cash Incentive Bonus

My, Klein's base salary is determined in @ manner similar to that described above for all otner execulive offtcers. In setting his base
salary, the Compensation Commiltee considers, among other things, comparative compensation information fram peer companies,
with the assistance of Towers Perrin in coltecting and analyzing the benchmark dala and information regasding market practices. Also,
as noted above, Mr. Klgin's 2006 target bonus was increased in March 2006 from 70% to '30% of his base salary in order to pul even
more of his potential cash compensation at-risk. Mr. Klein's total target cash compensatior is intended 10 be within the third quartile
of to1al cash compensation compared with prevailing market rales at peer companies for an equivalent position. This reflects

Mr. Klein's expected future contributions as well as his contributions to creating value for stockholders since co-founding Gelly
1mages in 1995, As noted above, because we did not achieve our financial target in 2006, M:. Klein did not receive any bonus in
2006 under [his revised plan.

d. Sales Commission Pian

In addition to the NSBP applicable to non-sales employees, we have a sales commission pian applicable to all Sales employees. This
sales commission plan was developed several years ago by our Sales and Human Resources teams, with the assistance of Towers
Perrin. 1l has been adjusted on an annual basis since its rolloul as our business and sales operations have changed.

' The 30% operaling margin target was used to ensure that all payouts (which would be made starting al an operating margin target of 31%
under the NSBP} would be fully deductible.
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Like the NSBP, 1he annual cash incentive plan payout tormula for our SVP, Global Sales, Mr. Qlofsson, has two variables:
{1) His personal performance against non-tinanctal'objectivw, and
{2} Qur perflormance agalnst targeted revenue {or the year,

As with the NSBP, Getty Images performance against revenue targets dictates 80% of the target sales commission plan payout for
Mr. Ol0lsson. The remaining 20% is determined by his individual performance against non-financial objectives. The heavy weighting
of Mr. Clofsson's target sales commission payout towards Getty Images parformance is intended 1o motivate him by providing sub-
stantial bonus payments for the achievement of sales goals. For other senior sales executives, the weighling is 70% against sales
revenue targets and 30% against individual achievement of non-financial obiectives. For most Sales employees, the sales commission
ptan payouts are determined solely by performance against personal and/or group sales targets.

For Mr. Oloisson, the sales commission payout for 2006 was significantly lower than the sales commission payout for 2005, This decrease
was a result of our net achieving the global revenue target for the full-year and the global revenue target curing several quariers of the year.

e. Tax Considerations

As noted abave, for our executive officers (including the Chief Executive Qfficer), incentive payments for 2006 performance were
made under the terms of our 2005 Incentive Plan. The sole purpose of administering and paying the NSBP for the executive officers
under the 2005 Incentive Plan (than under the NSBP) was 10 try to ensure that bonuses paid to the executive officers qualify as
"performance-based” compensation, which would allow such payments to be fully lax deductible expenses under Section 162(m) of
the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. It is important to note that, although the 2005 Incentive Plan was the basis for
payment of bonuses 10 senior executives, the aclual payments were consistent wilh the formula set out in the 2006 NSBP, and, there-
fore, executives did not receive any preferential bonus payments,

For 2006, with respect to the 2005 Incentive Plan only, ihe Compensation Committee approved an operating margin performance
objective of 30% with operating margin defined as income from operalions as a percentage of revenue as stated in our audited finan-
cial stalements {excluding stock-based compensation) and @ maximum annual cash incentive payout for each executive officer (as
detailed in the 2006 Grants of Plan Based Awards Tabie set forth later in this Annual Report on Farm 10-K). As noted above, the
company did not meet this operating margin target. As also noted above, however, while the annual cash incentive bonus pian for
executive officers is administered under the 2005 Incentive Plan, the Compensation Committee ireats the executive officers as though
they are subject to the NSBP. As a result, the Compensation Committee approved bonuses for the executive officers comparable to
the personal performance component of the NSBP. Nevertheless, this approach was consisten! with the approach laken with regard to
all non-sales employees. No bonus was awarded to the Chief Executive Officer because the Compensation Committee and Mr. Klein
betieved that, despite his good personal performance during the year, Getty Images’ operational performance was not satisfactory rela-
tive to the operating margin objective.

4. Equily Compensation
a. long-Term Compensalion Plan

The Compensation Committee believes that a responsibly managed equity compensalion program that balances the compensatory
objectives of the awards, the accounting expense of the awards, and the net dilutive impact of the awards S in our best interests and
should be a significan! part of our compensation program, for both executives and @ significant porlion of our employees. Stock-based
compensation increases the amount of compensation al risk, ties compensation to our fong-term performance and 10 the creation of
shareholder value, and serves to align more closely the employees' financial incentives with those of our shareholders.

As discussed above, following sharenolder approval of the 2005 Incentive Plan, the Compensalion Committee was able to resume ils
commitment to equity award granis and began its current practice of granting restricted stock units as the primary form of equity
compensation. The Compensation Commitiee’s current intent is to use restricted stock wnits for most of the egquity awards that will be
made in the foreseeable future. The Compensation Commitlee believes restricted stock unit awards can be an effective way to provide
significant equity compensation to employees with 2 more predictable long-term reward than stock options, The Compensation Com-
mittee also believes the use of restricted stock units will have iess of a dilutive impact than stock option grants. This is because fewer
shares typically are awarded with restricied stock units than with stock option awards since there is @ more certain delivery of value to
the award recipient. In addition, the accounting cost involved in granting the number of stock options that would be awarded under
our braad-based equity compensation plan on an annual basis made the use of siock oplions as the form of equity on a company-
wide basis cost prohibitive,
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The size of restricted stock unit awards wilt be based on the responsibilities of the individual employees, their level of compensation,
their past equity awards and their expected future comtributions. These awards are intended {0 constitute a significant portion of the
reciplent’s total compensation, While the vaiue of the awards is determined for some purposes by the share price on the date of the
award, the value that ultimately will be realized by the recipient as the award vests over time depends upon the future price of our
stock. As a resull, these awards directly tie a significant portion of the recipient's iotal patentiat compensation to our financial
performance and sharehoider return. In 2006. more than 25% of cur employees (including all of our executive officers) received
restzicted stock unit awards.

While restricted stock units will be used most often. the Compensation Committee believes that stock option awards still can play a
role in our equity compensation program, particularly for executive officers. Options are most likely to be awarded to executive officers
where the Compensation Committee is seeking 10 use the leverage provided by stock oplion awards 1o provide significant upside
potential for executive officers (due to the typically larger number of shares subject to options awarded compared to the sizeof
restricted slock unit awards}, which would only be realized with significant share price appreciation, While the Compensation Commit-
tee believes tha! the upside potential provided by stock options can be a powerful tool tc motive employees, SFAS 123R causes us 10
incur 2 significant accounting cost for each stock option that is awarded because of the historic volalility of our share price. As a
result of the cost issues. in 2006, only Mr, Klein received an award of siock options (he received an oplion to purchase 250,000
shares of our common stock).

while our Chief Executive Officer makes recommendations to the Compensation Commiltee regarding awards of restricted stock units
to execulive officers {exctuding awards to himself), the Compensation Committee review: these recommendations, discusses them
with the Chief Executive Officer and, in some instances, with Towers Perrin, and makes the final award decisions. With information
and advice from Towers Perrin, the Compensation Committee makes the award decisions covering the Chie{ Executive Officer. For ail
other employees, the execulive officers propose recommendations for the members of their functional groups within guidelines estab-
lished by our Human Rescurces Departiment (after consultations with our executive officers and the Compensation Committee). These
recommendations are then reviewed by the executive officers as a group and then reviewed and approved by the Compensation
Committee. Due to the disbanding of the Equity Compensation Commitiee as previously noted, in the future all such awards will be
approved by the Compensation Committee.

We have no practice or policy, stated or otherwise, that is intended to grant stock oplions or other equity awards advantageously
tased on non-public information that we believe will influence our stock price. Further, t1e Board of Directors has unanimously
adopted an FEquity Compensation Grant Policy on April 10, 2007. which provides, among other things, that: (1) all terms of each
eqQuity grant must be finalized and approved by the Board of Directars or the Compensation Committee an or prior to the grant date;
{2) alf stock options must have an exercise price equal 1o or greater than the average of the high and low prices on the grant date;

(3} all recipients of equily grants must be notitied, in writing, of such grants as soon as possible following appraval; and (4) any equity
compensation issues or actions will be reported by senior management on a timely basis to the Board of Directors or the Compensa-
tion Committee, no less frequently than quarterly.

b, January 2006 Awards of Restricted Stock Units

In January 2006. approximately 25% of our employees, including all of the executive officers, received their first awards of restricted
stock units under the 2005 Incentive Plan. The following awards of restricted stock units were made 10 executive officers:

Rastrcted

Stock Award Date Year-End

Units(#) Value($) Valuel$)

Jonathan D. Klein 80,000 % 7,015,000 % 3.509,600
Nichotas E. Evans-Lombe 15.000 1,315,500 658,000
Bo T. Olofsson 13.000 1,140,100 570,310
Patrick F. Flynn 11,700 1,026,090 513,279
lack Sansolo 11,700 1.026,090 513,279
Jetfrey L. Beyle 11,700 1.026,090 513,279
James C. Gurke 11,700 1,026,090 513,279

Richard R. Ellis 3,300 289,410 144,771
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The award date values of the above awards were determined by mulliplying the number of shares covered by the restricted stock unit
award by the per share closing price of our common stock of 387,70 op the award date (January 3, 2006). The year-end values were
determined by multiplying the number of shares covered by the restricted siock unil award by the per share closing price of our
common stock of $42.82 on December 29, 2006. These awards vest over four years with annual cliff vesting, although Mr, Klein's
award has a back-end toaded vesting schedule {the award vests 20% on each of the first three anniversaries of the award date and
40% on the fourth anniversary of the award date).

Alihough the above restricted stock unit awards were made in early January 2006, they related to performance in 2005. In fact, the
Compensation Committee tentatively had decided 10 make these awards in Seplember 2005 and approved the awards at the
December 8, 2005 Compensation Commitlee meeting to be granted on January 3, 2006, subject to the following conditions:

+ Award recipients who terminated prior to the January 3, 2006 grant date would not receive an award.
* The price of the award was based on the price of our Stock on January 3, 2006, the award date.

+ The award vesting period began on January 3, 2006.

= No award recipient had any rights 1o the restricted stock units pricr to January 3, 2006.

+ Communication of the lerms of the awards was to (and did) occur soon after January 3, 2006.

Because the January 2006 restricted stock unit awards to our executive officers related to performance in 2005, they were made
consistent with and pursuant to the terms of the 2005 incentive Plan. These awards were structured so that they would qualify as
“performance-based” compensation, which allewed the expense associated with these awards to be fully tax deductible under Sec-
tion 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. To do this, the Compensation Committee had approved in February
2005 a performance objective of 25% operating margin (defined as income from operations divided by revenue} for the first half of
2005 and maximum possible equity awards for each executive officer that could be awarded upon the achievement of that perform-
ance target. The maximum allowable award under this resolution was 750,000 shares of common stock to Mr. Klein and 50,000
shares of common stock 1o all other Senior Vice Presidents. The Compensation Committee reserved its fights to make any necessary
ot appropriate downward adjustments. Pursuant to such discretion, the Compensation Committee, despile ihe fact that Getty images
met the operating margin target, awarded to each executive officer in January 2006 such number of restricted SIoCk units that were
less than the maximum permitted amount.

¢. Additional Equity Awards in 2006

In addition te the restricted stock unit awards made in January 2006, additional awards of restricted stock units were made on May 1,
2006, to approximately 25% of cur employees. None of our executive officers received awards of restricted stock units in May 2006,
although Mr. Klein received an award of an option to purchase 250,000 shares of our common stock at that time. A small group of
employees also received supplemental awards of restricted stock units on August 1, 2006. As was the case in May, no executive offi-
cers received an award of restricted stock units in August,!

The timing of the May and August 2006 equity awards was set to coincide with a period when the trading window was most likely to
he open for those employees whose trading activities were restricted as a resuli of their access to our sales and earnings results. We
historically have announced our operational results for the first quarter [n the third week of April (for instance, the results for Q1 2006
were announced on April 20, 2006) and have announced our Q2 results in the third week of July (for instance, the results for Q2
2006 were announced on July 25, 2006). Since the vesting of restricted stock units iriggers income tax for recipients, the open trad-
ing window would allow employees 16 sell suflicient numbers of vested shares to caver the resulting tax llabllity. The timing also allows
enough time for the market to absorb the earnings results. Qur current intent is 1o make awards to newly-hired and newly-promoted
employees on a quarterly basis in February, May, August and November, and annual awards in May.

In addition 1o the January awards of restricted stock units to each of the executive officers and the May stock option award (@

M. Klein, the Compensation Committee made restricted stack unit awards in 2006 to executive officers who were newly-promoted
{awards to Mr. Teaster and Ms. Ranz in November) or newly-hired (an award to Mr. Oberdosf in July). Mr. ENis also received an award
of restricted stock units in July when he resumed working on a full-time basis.2

1 Mr. Teaster and Ms. Ranz received awards of restricted stock units in May and August 2006, but that was before either was promoted to
become an executive officer of Getty Images.
2 None of these restricted stock units was vested when Mr. Ellis separated from Getty Images in December 2006.
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The Compensation Commitlee also made a special award of restricted stock units in March 2006 to Ms. Elizabeth J. Huebner, who at
the time was our Chief Financial Qfficer. This award was made in order to reward her for past accomplishments on behall of Getty
Images, and for staying on in her position during our search for her successor. The award vested fully in May 2006 when her succes-
s0r was determined.

The Compensation Committee currently intends to make additional restricted stock unit awards as part of the broad-based equity
compensation program in the second quarter of 2007 and make additional awards to certain of the executive officers at that time.
d. June 2007 Awards of Restricted Stock Units

In June 2007, awards of restricied stock units under the 2005 Incentive Plan were appraved for approximately 15% of our employees,
including some of the executive officers. The tollowing awards of restricted stock units were approved for exgcutive officers:

Raclricied

Stock

Units{#}

Nichotas E. Evans-Lombe 30.000
Thomas Qberdorf 20,000
Bo T. Olofsson 20,000
letfrey . Beyle 20,000
James C. Gurke 20,000
Bruce T. Livingstone 10,000

These awards will vest pver approximately four years with annual clitf vesting of 25% of each award on May | of each of the next four
years.

The Compensation Commiltee approved the awards at its June 6, 2007 meeting to be granted subject to the tollowing conditions:
v Award recipients who terminated prior to the grant date would not receive an award.
* The price of the award will be based on the price of our stock on the grant date.
v The award vesting period will begin on grant date.
¢ No award recipient had any rights g the restricted stock units prior to the grant date,
+ Communication of the lerms of the awards will occur soen after the grant date.

* The awards will be granted on the first trading day after we become current in our fitings with the SEC.

The Compensation Committee aitempted to struclure these resiricted stock unit awards 30 thai they would qualify as “performance-
based” compensation, which would ensure that the expense associated with these awaris would be fully tax deductible under Section
162{m) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. To do this, in December 2009, the Compensation Committee approved
an operating margin performance objective of 30% for 2006, with operating margin defined as income from operations as a percent-
age of revenye as stated in our audiled financial stalements (excluding stock-based compensation). The maximum allowable award
was 750,000 shares of common stock to Mr. Klein and 50,000 shares of common stock to all other Senior Vice Presidents. In selting
these maximum allowable awa:ds, the Compensation Commitlee reserved the right to make any necessary or appropriate downward
adjustments,

As noted above, the sole purpose of setting an operating margin target and associaled maximum equily awards {or the execulive offi-
cers was 10 have the equily awards qualily as "perlormance-based” compensation, whic1 would aliow the associated expense to be
fully tax deductible expenses under Section 162{m} of the Internal Revenue Code. Although the Company did not mee! the 30% oper-
ating margin target in 2006, the Compensation Committee approved the above-listed discretionary restricted stock unit awards in
June 2007. Given the size of the equity awards approved to be granted to the executive olficers, the Compensation Commitiee
believes that mast. if not all. of the expense from these awards will be deductible, although the final determination will be dependent
upon the share price at the time the awards vest and also each executive’s tolal compensation in each year in which the awards vest.
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e. CEQ Equity Compensation

As discussed abave, in 2005 the Compensation Committee conducted a tharough review of Mr. Klein's curreni and historical compen-
sation package. As a resull of this review, the Commitiee made several equity awards to Mr, Klein in 2005 and 2006 described above.
The purpose of these awards was to provide Mr. Kiein with a compensation package that includes both a significant short-lerm at-risk
elements (via the annual cash incentive bonus) and significant long-lerm at-risk elements {via the equity awards that the Committee
made and will continue to make, the potential value of which will be realized only with significant share price appreciation and

Mr. Klein's continued service to Getty Images), as well as encourage retention through back-end weighled vesting.

f.  Restatemen! of Financial Statements

As previously disclosed by Getty Images, the SEC notified Getty images in 2006 that it is conducting an informal inquiry into our
equity compensation grant praclices, wilth which we conlinue to fully cooperate. Additionally, our Board of Directors formed 2 Specia)
Committee which undertook an independent investigation relating to Getty Images’ equily compensation grant practices and related
accounting for equity cormpensation grants for the period between July 14, 1994 and November 1, 2006 (the “Relevant Pefiod™). The
Special Commiitee concluded its review in April 2007, finding that there was no evidence of intentional wrongdoing by current
employees, officers, or directors of Getty Images. However, the Specia) Commitlee and Getty Images' management determined Lhat
incorrect measurement dates for certain equity compensation awards made during the Relevant Period were used for financial
accounting purposes and, as a result, Gelty lmages will restate its prior linancial statements to correct the accounling for those
awards. White such restalement may include modifications to grants made to current and prior executives or directors of Getty
Images, it will not affect the compensation disclosed for Getty tmages’ execulives or directors as disclosed in this Annual Report on
Form 10-K. However, we have nol yet fully analyzed any personal income tax affects of our accounting corrections including the
impact under Internal Revenue Code Section 409(A), which could ultimately impact executive compensation.

C. Other Benefits

1. Benefits We Do Nol Provide
In assessing our compensation program, it is important to be aware of the forms of compensalion that we do not offer. We provide:
* no non-qualified deferred compensation plans
s no defined benefit pension plans
* no supplemental retirement plans
* no access {0 a company plane

Because we believe thal we have 2 competilive benefits program (or cur employees, we provide only limited additional benefits to our
executive officers beyond those benefits provided to all of our employees. These are described below along with those benefits pro-
vided 10 all employees including executives. We believe that maintaining the level of these benefits is important in achieving the
retention goals of our tatal compensation package.

2. Retirement Plans
The specific retirement and pension plans available 1o our employees, including our executive olficers, vary from country 1o Country.

In the United States, where all but two of our executive officers reside, we have a tax-qualified 401(k) defined coniribution retirement
plan (*401(k) Plan®) that is available to all full-time employees. The 401(k) Plzn is a defined contribution plan designed to aflow
employees to accumulate retirement funds through employee and Getly Images contributions. ANl Getty images contributions are
made In cash, are immediately vested in full, and are invested in funds as directed by the parlicipant, who is able to select from a
variely of mutual funds. We do not offer participants (he opportunity to invest in shares of Getly Images comman stock through the
401(k) Ptan. For 2006, Getty Jmages' contributions 1o the 401 (k) Plan for all eligible employees, including executlve officers, equaled
4% of efigible compensation (subject to certain fimitations sel forth in Internal Revenue Service rules and regulations).

There also are defined contribution plans for certain of our non-U.S. subsidiaries, including In the United Kingdom, where one execu-
tive officer, Mr. Olofsson, (our Senior vice President, Global Sales) resides, and in Canada, where one executive officer,

Mr. Livingstone (our Senior Vice President and Chigl Execulive Officer iStockphoio) resides. While we do not make contributions to 2l
such plans, where we do contribute we make our contributions in cash and do not effer participants the opportunity to invest in
shares of our common stock through such plans,
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3. Supplemental Insurance Coverage

We provide supplemental disability and life insurance coverage lo execulive officers above the coverage offered to all other employees
under our group plans. Because of the income limits included in our group disability insurance policy, the supplementai disability
insurance coverage provides the execulive officers with comparable coverage for the ful amount of their eligible income in the same
manner as all other employees' eligible income is covered.

The amouni of supplemental term life insurance coverage provided to executive officers does nol exceed $3.5 million for any execu-
tive officer. The Campensation Committee beligves that this supplemental coverage Is bath reasonable and competitive with market
practices, ang was provided al a totat annual cost of approximately $60,000 for all of the executive officers. !

4. Other Benefils

We also provide te cerlain of aur employees (including all of our Seaitle-based executive officers) Iree parking ai cerlain of our offices
(al a cost of approximately $80 per month per employee in Seaitle), health club dues (al a cost of $50 per employee in the U.5), free
cell phone service {at a cost of up 1o hundreds of dollars a month per employee) and, o senior employees located in Lendon
(including the one London-based executive officer and 35 olhers in 2006), an average car allowance of £522 per month, ranging from
£417 10 £650 per month {3 range of approximately $835 to $1,300 per month at current exchange rates).

5. Benefits Provided to our Chief Executive Officer

We alsp provide certzin other benefits to Mr. Klein, our Chief Executive Officer. These benefits include a company-provided aulomo-
bile, home security systems, home internet access, cell phones. and an athletic club membership. As noted above, the Compensalion
Commitiee considers the total cost of providing these benefits to Mr, Kiein periodically and. to-date, has determined that the mix of
benefits provided are competilive to market praciices and thal the cost of providing all such benefits (including supplemental
insurance coverage) is reasonable (approximately $93,000 per year).

1 This figure is a tolal for 2006, and includes prorated amounts for the thiee lerminated executive officers (Mr. Fiynn, Mr. Ellis, and

Ms. Huebner) and the one newly hired exgcutive in 2006 (Mr. Oberdord). It does not include prorated amounts for the newty promoted
executive officers in 2006 (Ms. Ranz and Mr. Teaster) as their coverage began January 1, 2007,
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2006 SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

The following table sets forth certain information regarding compensation paid or earned for all services rendered 1o Getly Images in
all capacities during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006 by our principal executive officer {PEQ), our principal financial officer
{PFO}, our three other most highly compensated execulive officers who were serving as executive officers as of December 31, 2006,
and up 10 two additional individuals who would have been amongst the three most highly compensated executive officers had they
been serving as executive officers as of December 31, 2006 {collectively, the “Named Executive Officers™)

Change In
Pension Value
Non-Equity and
Incentive  Nonqualified
Plan Defarred
NAME AND PRINCIPAL Stock Option Compensation Comp ti Al Othar
POSITION? Salary($} 7 Bonus($)? Awards{$§}14 Awards($)? [$)¢  Earnings($} Compenszation($}? Total($)

Jonathan D, Kiein
Chief Executive Officer

{PEO) $ 950,000 $ — $ 1,752,487 $ 1,155255 §% -_ $-— § 94416 % 3,952,158
Thomas Oberdorf
Chief Financial Dfficer

{Current PFQO) 222,820 90,000 157,826 - -— — 118,661 589,307
| Elizabeth J. Huebner
| Former Chief Financial
I

Officer (Farmer PFQ) 187,500 - 653,440 — _— - 33,917 874,857
Bo T. Clofsson
SVP, Global Sales (8} 350,246 29,494 493,156 — 44,943 -— 65,104 982,943
Jack Sansalo
Former SVP, Marketing 315,000 27,000 527993 - - — 37,723 907,716

Nicholas E. Evans-Lombe
EVP, Imagery, Producis
and Services 350,750 30,000 330,567 —_ — — 19,705 731,022
Patrick F. Flynn
Former SVP,
Technology 278,884 - 606,683 — — - 538,530 1,424,087
Richard R, Ellis
Former SVP, Business
Development 198,055 - 348,034 —_ — - 430,060 976,149

I Ms. Huebner retired effective June 15, 2006, Mr. Ellis left Getty Images effective December 1, 2006 and Mr. Flynn left Gefty Images effective
December 4, 2006.

2 The amounts shown in this column répresent the dotlar value of base cash salary earned by the named executive officer during the fiscal
year covered.,

3 The amounts shown in this column represent the dallar value of discretionary (non.incentive plan based) bonuses earned by the named
executive officer based on his or her personal performance during the fiscal year covered. The amount paid to Mr. Oberdorf represents a
contraciually guaranteed bonus for the year as provided per his employment agreement, which was aftached as Exhibit 10.1 to our Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006.

4 The amounts shown in this column represent the amount expensed in our financial statements for the fiscal year covered, without regard to
estimated forfeitures that are required by US GAAP for our financial statements, for unvested restricted stock units hetd by the named execu-
tive officer during the fiscal year covered. The amount of the expense is Caicutated as the number of units granied multiplied by the average
of the high and low lrading prices of cur common stock on the date al grant. This expense is recognized in our financial statements on a
straight-line basis over the vesling period of the unit.
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The amounts shown in this column represent the amount expensed in our linancia! statements, without regard to estimated forfeitures that
are required by US GAAP for our linancial statements, for unvested stock optiens held by the named executive officer during the fiscal year
covered, The amount of the expense is calculated as the number of options granted multiplied by the fair value of the option as calcutated on
the date of grant using a Black-Scholes valuation model, This expense is recognized in our financial statements on a straight-line basis over
the vesting period of the stock option. The amount shown in the table for Mr. Klein refates to 250,000 stock options granted May 1, 2006
with a fair value of $27.67 per share. The fair value of these oplions was calculated using an expected term of seven years, an expecied vola-
lility of 32%, 8 risk free rate of return of 4.94% and an expected dividend rate of 0%. For further discussion of these assumptions. see Nole
9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements in this Annuat Report on Form 10-K.

The amount shown in this column represents the dollar value of sales commissions eamed by Mr, Olofsson during 2006 and paxd in 2007.
See detail of the amounts shown in this column in the 2006 All Other Compansation Table below.

Amounts shown for Mr. Olofsson were earned or paid in British pounds and have been converted into U.S. dollars based on an annual aver-
age basis. The annual average exchange rates in U.S. dollars per British pound based on the average of the noon buying rate in the City of
New York for cable transfers in British paunds as certified for customs purposes by the Fedaral Reserve Bank of New York in effect on each
day Ior the year ended December 31, 2006 was 1.84,
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2006 ALL OTHER COMPENSATION TABLE

Caah
Car Lasns Life Disabliity Heallh Contributions
or inguranca Insurancs  Insurance Severancs to
Allewance  Pramlums  Premiums Premiums Paid or Ratirsmant Moving
NAME Pala(s) Pafd($) Paid($)  Paid(3)  Accruad($) ! Accounts($)? Erpenses($)* Other($) ¢ Tolal{$)
Jonathan D. Klein $ 29.836 $ 20,184 § 28,315 § 2,352 % — $ 8800 % — $4929 % 94416
Thomas Qberdorf -_ 2,022 7,657 1,176 — —_ 106,626 1,180 118,661
Elizabeth J. Huebner — 5712 10,142 1,078 —_— 8,800 —_ B,185 33917
Bo T. Otofsson (5) 13,826 4,227 1,000 6,024 — 39,960 —_ 67 65,104
Jack Sansolo - 17.29% 9,227 1,398 —_ 8,800 - 999 37,723
Nicholas E. Evans-Lombe - 3129 3,464 2,352 — 8,800 —_ 1,860 19,705
Patrick F. Fiynn -_— 9.219 10,525 2,156 506,000 8,800 —_— 1,830 538,530
Richard R. Ellis — 7,087 3989 2352 406,833 8,800 _ 999 430,060

1

The amounts shown in this column represent the dollar value of severance accrued by Getty Images and not paid as of December 31, 2006
or paid by us during the fiscal year covered. The amounts shown for Messrs. Flynn and Eliis represent severance amounts contractually pro-
vided per their employment agreements. Both of these named executive officers terminated their employment with Getty Images during the
fourth quarter of 2006,

The amounts shown in this column represent the dollar value of cash contributions made by Gelty Images to the named executive officer’s
account in the Geity Images, Inc. 401(k} Plan {*401{k) Plan"), with the exception of Mr. Olofsson, in which case the amount represents the
doifar value of cash contributions made by Gelty images to his defined contribution pension plan.

The amount shown In this column represents amounts paid to Mr. Oberdor! or to a third party moving company on behatf of Mr. Oberdorf for
his refocation 1o Seattle, as pravided per his employment agreement, which was aitached as Exhibit 10.1 to our Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006.

The amounts shown in this column represent the aggregate dollar value of other perquisites provided to the named executive officers that are
less than the greater of $25,000 or 10% of the total amount of perquisites for the respective named executive officer during tha year, with the
exception of a gift valued a1 $7,070 purchased by us and presented lo Ms. Hugbner upon her retirement. The perquisites represent a
combination of benefits credits, parking benefits and gym membership dues, depending on the executive. For Mr. Kleln, the amount also
includes the costs of a cell phone for his wife, additional membership dues and home security.

Amounts shown for Mr. Olofsson were earned or paid in Brilish pounds and have been converted into U.S. doliars based on an annual aver-
age basis. The annual average exchange rates in U.S. dollars per British pound based on the average of the noon buying rate in the City of
New York for cable transfers in British pound as certified for customs purposes by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York in effect on each
day for the year ended December 31, 2006 was 1.84.




Tl GETTY IMAGES, INC. 2006 FORM 10-K PART (0 ITEM 11

2006 GRANTS OF PLAN-BASED AWARDS

' All Other All Ot
ok Opiion Koartine
| vt o T LR
' - incowitre Pian Awariy Incawtive Plas Awarth :”“ " mm:‘“ Optien Pﬂn.: Gtent Dute Fais
Apdrecal Grami Thewh- Thsssh: Stesh or Unsduriyirg Awerds Gran) Dute Yalwe o Awarde
Namt Dwta? Dals ! YL bR Targsti$)2 Manmemif) ! oalp) l’t’ﬂﬂ Maztmemis]  Unitelg)?  Ovelosalabt (5 7 KN)* i3 4%n)t Grawted *
Jonathen 0. Mlein  12/8/05 01/3/06 $ —3 —3 - - = —  B0.000 — $ — § 87.70 $7.063.200
04/23/06 05/1L/06 - - - - - - — 250,000 6225 6061 6917325
i 12805 na 342,000 855,000 2,500,000 — — @ — - - = - -
Thomos Oberdorf 62306 07/3/06 - —_ - - - — 20,000 -— — 6352 1272200
| 8/12/06 nfa 90,0007 93,333 500,000 — — - - - - - -
‘ Elizabeth J.
Huebner 8 03/106 03/1/106 - — - = = - 8,000 -— — 8243 653,440
’ 12/8/05 nfa  B80.000 200,000 500,000 — — - - - - — -
Bo T. Olofsson ® 12/8/05 01/3/06 - - - - = — 13,000 - — 8770 1,182,770
12/B/05 na  69.920 139,840 500,000 — — - - - — — -
lack Sensolo 12/B/05 01/3/06 - - - - = — 11,700 - — B2.70 1,032,993
12/8/05 na 51,200 128000 500000 — — - - - - - -
Nicholas E. Evans-
j Lembe 12/8/05 01/3/06 - -— - - = —  15.000 - — 8770 1.324.350
12/8/05 na 56800 142,000 500,000 -~ — - - - _ — -
Patick F. Flynn®  12/8/05 01/3/06 — - - - - — 11700 - — 8770 1.032.993
| 12805 ne 52,800 132,000 500,000 — — - - _ - - -
‘ Richard R. Etlis® 12/B/05 017306 - — - - - — 3,300 - — 8770 291,357
! 6/23/06 07/3/06 - — - - = — 8,500 - — 6352 540,685
]

12/8105 nfa 36,000 90,000 500,000 — — - —_ - —_ - -

' ! The grant date and approval date occasionally differ, as granis are typically approved for grant 1o occur on a specific future date. See, for
example, Compensation Discussion and Analysis Section for discussion on the January 2006 grants and approval dates and the conditions
that atlached thereto.

2 These amoun!s represent the threshold, target and maximum bonuses that the Named Executive Officers could have earned during 2006
under the terms of the 2005 Incentive Plan. For 2006. the Compensation Commiltee approveg an operating margin performance objective
tor Getty Images and a maximum annual cash incentive payou! for each executive officer. The Compensation Commitiee exercised negative
discretion in setting the amount of the actual bonus payable 10 each executive officer at an amount less than the maximum amount permit-
ted under the 2005 Incentive Plan because the target was not met in 2006, Under the 2006 Non-Sales Bonus Plan, the bonus award was
weighled B0% attributable to Getty Images performance. and 20% attributable to personal pertiormance for Geity Images Senior Vice Presi-
dents. The sole purpose of administering and paying the incentive payment for the executive officers under the 2005 Incentive Plan (rather
than the 2006 Non-Sales Bonus Plan) was to ensure that bonuses paid 1o the exec utive officers qualify as “performance-based” compensa-
tion and aliow such payments to be fully tax deductible expenses for Geity Images undes Section 162(m) of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended. As noted. however, the Getty images performance portion was not met in £006.

The minimum bonus that 8 Named Executive OFficer ¢ould have earned is zero. This would have occurred if Getly ltages’ financial perform-
ance target was nol met and the employee did not perform well personally during the year. The threshold amount incieded in the table above
represents the bonus the Named Executive Oificer would have received if Getty Irnages met its threshold financial performance measure
under the 2006 Non-Sales Bonus plan, and the employee performed as expecied during the year, following the negative discretion exercised
by the Compensation Committee. The t1arget 2mount included in the 13ble above represents the bonus the Named Executive Officer would
have received if we met our financial performance measure exactly (according to the 2006 Non-Sales Bonus Plan) and the employee per-
formed as expected during the year, foliowing the discretion exercised by the Compensation Commitiee. We have included in the maximum
column above the maximum amount that the Named Executive Officer could have received under the 2005 Incentive Plan prior to the

! Compensation Commitiee exercising negative discretion.
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The exception to this is for Mr. Clofsson. When the Compensatian Committee uses its discretion to calculate final payout under the 2009
Incentive Pian, his payoul is determined based on the 2006 SVP - Global Sales Bonus Plan, rather than the 2006 Non-Sales Bonus Plan.
Under the SVP - Global Sales Bonus Plan, his bonus award s weighted 80% to Getty Images financial performance (40% determined by
Getty Images’ performance against an operating margin target, 40% determined by Getty Images' performance against a globat annuat rev-
enue target), and 20% attributable 1o persenal performance. The difierent thresho!ds for both measures of Getty Images performance are
reflected in the lable above.

These shares represent restricted stock units, which vest 25% on each anniversary of the grant date over four years except the grants to

Ms. Huebner and Mr. Klein, Ms. Huebner's restricted stock units were granted on March 1, 2006 and vested in full on May 16, 2006,

Mr. Klein's restricted stock units vest 20% on each of the first three anniversaries of the grant date and 40% on the faurth anniversary of the
grant date.

These stock aptions vesl over four years, with 20% vesting on each of the first three anniversaries of the grant date and 40% vesting on the
fourth anniversary of the grant date. See additional discussion of these options in footnote four to the Summary Compensation table above.

The exercise price of the stock option and the closing market price of our common stock on the date of grant differ due to our convention of
pricing all stock option grants at the average of the high and low trading prices of our common stock on the date of grant.

These amounts were calculated as the number of RSUs granted multiplied by the average of the high and low trading prices of our common
stock on the grant date, with the exception of Mr. Klein's stock option grant, which was valued as described in Note S to the 2006 Summary
Compensation Table above.

Per Mr. Qberdort's employment agreement dated June 12, 2008; for 2006, Mr. Oberdorf was eligible to receive @ minimum banus of ninety
thousand dollars {$90,000), provided he remained an employee through December 31, 2006.

Amounts shown above for the Named Executive Officers whose employment with Getty Images terminated during 2006 (Ms. Huebner,
Mr. Flynn, and Mr. Ellis} reflect annualized ligures, determined as if they were employed for all of 2006. The 2006 Summary Compensation
Table above shows the actual amounts paid to each of Ms. Huebner and Messrs. Fliynn and Ellis.

Amounts shown for Mr. Olofsson were earned or paid in British pounds and have been converted into U.S. doltars based on an annual aver-
age basis. The annual average exchange rates in U.S. dollars per British pound based on the average of the noon buying rate in the City of
New York for cable transfers in British pound as certified for cusioms purposes by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York [n effect on each
day for the year ended December 31, 2006 was 1.84.
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ARRANGEMENTS WITH NAMED EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Each of the Named Executive Officers has an employment agreement with Getty Images. the terms and conditions of which are
unique to each Officer. The following tables set forth the dates of the agreements and a summary of the terms of the agreements with
each of the Named Executive Officers as applicable to the information provided on the preceding tables.

Jonathan D. Klein

Date
Position

Term

Base Salary

Annual Cash
incentive Bonus
Opportunity

Benefits

Effective February 1, 2004, as amended effective August 1, 2035
Chief Executive Officer

Two-year initial term with successive one-year renewals. At least twelve months’ notice of intent to terminate
the agreement is required.

3950,000. Mr. Klein's base salary is subject to possible increase by the Board of Directors in its sole
discretion.

90% of base salary at targel. This is an increase over the 70% provided for in Mr. Kiein's agreement as
approved by the Compensation Commitiee at its meeting on Mzrch 10, 2006.

Mr. Klein is entitled to participate In all employee benefil programs (including 401(k} profit sharing plan, life,
heaith, accident and disability insurance, and certain other enumerated benefits). Gelly images also provides
supplemental life insurance equal to approximately $3.2 milllon, an automobile and certain olher perquisites
such as home security and athietic club membership and dues.

Remalning Named Executive Officers

Date

Positions

Term

Ms. Huebner Effective August 1, 2002

Mr. Ellis Effective November 16, 2004

Mr. Evans-Lombe Effective August }, 2002
Mr. Fiynn Effective August 16, 2004

Mr. Cberdorf Effective June 12, 2006

Mr. Clofsson Effective November 15, 2005
Dr. Sansolo Effective Novernber 8, 2004

Ms. Huebner Former SVP, Chief Financial Officer
Mr. Eflis Former SVP, Business Development

Mr. Evans-Lombe EVP, Imagery, Products & Services
Mr. Flynn Former SYP, Technotogy

Mr. Oberdorf SVP, Chiet Financial Officer

Mr. Olofsson SVP, Global Sales

Dr. Sansolo Former SVP, Marketing

Continues until either parly provides the other with written notice of termination, !

1 Ms. Huebner retired effective June 15, 2006, Mr. Ellis resigned effective December 1, 2006 and Mr. Flynn separated from Getty Images
effective December 4, 2006. Ms. Huebner's agreement terminated upan her resignation, Mr, Ellis’ terminated with the execution of his sepa-
ration agreement and Mr, Flynn's terminated upon his separation from Getty Images.
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Base Salary

Annual Cash
Incentive Benous
Opportunity

Benefits

Original Current
Ms. Huebner $330,000 $420,000°
Mr. Ellis $225,000 $275,000*
Mr. Evans-Lombe $235,000 $415,000**
Mr. Flynn $275,000 $330,000°*
Mr. Cberdorf $400,000 $415,000°**
Mr. Olofsson £190,000 £200,000***
Dr. Sansolo $300,000 $320,000°°**

¢ Amounts reflect salary current as of date of separation from Getty lmages.

** Effective June 1, 2007.

*** Effective April 1, 2007.

“*** Effective April 1, 2006.

Each officer's base salary is subject to annual review by the Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors.

Ms. Huebner 50% of base salary at target
Mr. Elis 40% of base salary at target
Mr. Evans-Lombe 50% of base satary at target”
Mr. Flynn 40% of base salary at largel
Mr. Oberdorf 40% of base salary at target**
Mr. Olofsson 40% of base salary at target
Dr. Sansolo 40% of base salary at targel

* Effective June 1, 2007

** Mr. Oberdorf was entitled to receive a minimum bonus of $90,000 if he remained an employee of Getty
Images through December 31, 2006. Mr. Oberdorf was employed by Getty Images on that date and was paid
390,000 in accordance with the terms of his employment agreement.

Each executive is entitled (o participate in all employee benefit programs (inctuding 401{k) profit sharing
plan, life, health, accident and disability insurance, and certain other enumerated benefits).

tncentive Pien Change of Control Provisions. Under the terms of the 2005 Incentive Plan, awards are generally subject to spe-
cial provisions upon the occurrence of a defined “change of control® transaction (as the term "change of control” is defined in the
2005 Incentive Pian). Under the Plan, upon a change of control, any outstanding stock options will beceme fully vested and
exercisable, all restrictions and conditions of all restricted stock awards will lapse, and all performance shares will be deemed Lo have

been earned.
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2006 OUTSTANDING EQUITY AWARDS AT FISCAL YEAR-END TABLE

The Tollowing table sets forth information abeut stock options and restricted stock units outstanding as of December 31, 2006. The
Named Executive Officers not shown in the tabte below did not hold any stock options or 1estricted stock units as of that date.

Opuion Awarey Stuck Awsrty
Equity Incentive
ESyMT inconthe His hwardu
Plan Awardit Mkl o
Number of Npmber of  Patout Yolus of
E v n! L] Shares Unsarnad L
Hueaber of Bscurltion ‘:,a'cu n::'::' units ol Mot Valwe ot $hares, Unity lm.-:’::m:
Uneartring u-"'d'.: Sacuritinn Usdariylng Option Btk TRt Shoros s Usitiof o Dthes Rights  Other RighEs
Optivns ) Erarcha Opths  Maa Kwt Stk ThIIHew et That Haove Nat  That Hove Mol
NAME Everciabls  Unasarcisstie ! Unsarned Optisnnlt} Picols} Evpintion Dole  Yoctedizh Vostedis)! Yortadid) VouredIS)
Jonathan D. Klein 164,500 —_ -— $ 20.91 02/09/08 — % —_ - —_
400,000 —_ — 30.32 o4/28H110 - — — o
78,500 —_ —  25.43 06/26/11 — - - -
350,000 —_ — 83.12 09/13/15 —_ - —_ —
—_ —_ — — — 80,000 3,425,600 — —
— 250.000 —  £2.25 05/01/16 —_ - — —
Thomas Oberdorl — — - — —- 20,000 856,400 - -
Bo T. Qlofsson 26,250 6.250 —  37.38 05/2%/13 - - — -
13,750 6,250 —  36.72 1021413 — -_ _ —_
20,000 — — 8312 9/13/1% - — —_ —
— —_ —_ —_ — 13.000 556,660 —_ —
Jack Sansolo — — — — — 7,498 321.064 — -
—_ — — -_— — 11,700 500,994 — —
Nicholas £. Evans-Lombe 55,000 — — 20,91 02/09/08 - — — —_
100,000 — —  34.06 04/03/1C - — — —_
25,000 — — 19.43 02/05/12 — - - —
50,000 — — 83.12 09/13/15 — - — —
_ —_ —_ — — 15,000 642,300 —_ —
Richard R. Ellis 1,188 _ -— 36.72 03/01/07 _ —_ — —
20,000 — —  83.12 03/01/07 - - — -

I The vesting schedule for Mr. Klein's unvested options is discussed in footnote four to the 2006 Grants of Plan-Based Awards table above.
Mr. Olofsson’s unvested oplions vest over four years with 25% vesting on the first anniversary of the grant dates and the remainder vesting
pro rata on a straight-line basis each month thereafter until the options are fully vesled on the four year anniversary of the grant date. The
grant dates precede the expiration dates by 10 vears.

2 This column contains unvested restricted stock unils, which all vest 25% on each anniversary of the grant date over four years with the
exception of the 7,498 restricted stock units befonging 10 Dr. Sansoio and the 80,000 restricled stock units belonging to Mr. Klein.
Dr. Sansolo's restricted stock units vest 25% on the first anniversary of the grant date and the remainder pro rata on a straight-line basis
each quarter thereafter until the options are fully vested on the four year anniversary of the grant date. The vesting schedute of Mr. Klein's
restricted stock units is discussed in footnote three to the 2006 Grants of Plan-Based Awards lable above.

3 The market values in lhis column were calculated as the number of unvested restricted stock units multiplied by $42.82, which was the clos-
ing market price of our common stock on the (ast trading day of the fiscal year (December 29, 2006).
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2006 OPTION EXERCISES AND STOCK YESTED TABLE

The foliowing table sets forth information regarding the number of shares acquired and value realized for stock options exercised and
restricted stock units vested during the year ended December 31, 2006, The Named Executive Officers not shown in the table below
did not exercise any stock options during the year nor did they hold any restricted stock units that vested during the year.

Option Awards Stock Awards
Numbesr of °

Number of Shares

Shares Acquired
Acguired on  Valus Reallzed on on  Value Realized on
NAME Exercisa(f)? Exercise($)?  Vestinglh) ! Yeitingi$) ?
Jonathan D. Klgin 6,000 % 414,600 —_ $ —
Elizabeth J. Huebner 35,000 1,315,300 8,000 513,520
Jack Sansolo -_ - 3,752 220,111
Patrick F. Flynn — — 3,752 220,111
Richard R. Elis - - 2,500 146,663

! The shares shown are in gross numbers prior [0 any shares withheld by Getty Images or sold by the employee in the open market 10 settie
income tax Yiabilities resulting from the option exercise.

2 The value realized on exercise is calculated as the tatal number of shares exercised mulliplied by the difference between the exertise price
of the option and the price that the shares under the option were sold by the Named Executive Officer in the open market.

3 The value realized on vesting is calculated as the total number of shares vested multiplied by the average of the high and low trading prices
of our commaon stock on the date of vesting.

2006 POTENTIAL PAYMENTS UPON TERMINATION OR CHANGE IN CONTROL

The following tables set forth informalion regarding the benefils the Named Executive Officers would receive upon termination of
employment o7 a change in contro! of Geity images. Each of the Named Executive Officers has or had an employment agreement with
Getty Images setting forth the 1erms and conditions for any payment upon voluntary termination, termination for cause, involuntary
not-for-cause termination, termination in the event of a change in control or in the event of disabitity or death. The amounts shown
assume that such termination occurred on December 31, 2006, except in the cases of Ms. Huebner, Mr. Flynn and Mr. Ellis, whose
actual termination dates were used in calculating the figures below. For all other Named Executive Officers, the actual amounts 10 be
paid out can only be determined at the time of such executive's separation from us. The terms “Disability,” “Cause” and “Good Rea-
son” have the meanings ascribed to them in the executives' employment agreements and as outlined in the section entitled “Certain
Triggering Events for Payments Made Upan Terminaticn® in this Annual Report on Ferm 10-K. Other than as noted below for

Mr. Klein, the employment agreements for each of the executive officers are substantially simitar,

Employment Agreements

We have employment agreements with each of our executive officers, The terms of these employment agreements are substantially
similar lor ail of the executive officers, although the Chief Executive Officer’s agreement has some unique provisions. The primary
purpase of these agreements is 1o define the tlerms of the severance packages t0 which the executives may be entitled upon the termi-
nation of their employment. The termination scenarios cavered by the agreements include fermination following a "change-in-contral,”
involuntary termination {other than for “cause”}, termination for “cause,” resignalion by the executive for “good reason,” or lor other
than "gocd reasen,” and termination due 1o death or disability.

We believe that these agreements are an important part of our executive officer compensation program. They have been expected and
requested by each of the executive officers who have joined us over the past few years, particularly in light of the fact that many of our
executive officers have lefl highly-compensated positions and have relecated in order to join us. We also believe that they are
important because they provide both us and the executive afficers with cerlainty regarding the terms of any severance package, terms
that both sides agree are reasonable and the absence of which can create a difficult period surrounding any pending sepasation.




77 GETTY IMAGES, INC. 2006 FORM 10-X PART Il ITEM 11

Additionally, executives can have significant involvemen! in decisions that may result in their termination. For instance, Mr. Flynn,
who served as our Senior Vice President, Technology untit November 2006, left Getty Imeges as a result of a restructuring of our
organization. M. Flynn played a significant role in the development and implementation of this restructuring ptan, and we betieve that
it was both in gur and Mr. Flynn's best inlerests to have had the essential terms of his severance package decided before these dis-
cussions even hegan.

As part of its on-going review of our executive compensation program, in 2006, the Compensation Commiltee undertook a review of
the employment agreements used for our executive officers {including the senior vice presidents, but not including Mr. Klgin, the
Chief Executive Officer). At the conclusion of this review, the Committee decided to make a number of changes to the agreements for
all new executive officers (including Mr. Teasler and Ms. Ranz).

* A change 1o the change-in-control mechanism.

» The current model executive employment agreement has a “single-trigger” change-in-control mechanism. A single-trigger mechanism
requires only the change-in-conirol to activale the executive's rights under the change-in-control provision. in our case, the existing
execulives can resign for any reason within 30 days lollowing a change-in-control and receive the agreed severance payments. The
Compensation Committee decided to leave this single-trigger mechanism unchanged in the employment agreement for the current
executive officers, except Mr. Teaster and Ms. Ranz whase agreements refiect the “double-trigger” change-in-control mechanism
described below,

« The Compensation Commiftee has decided that agreements for all new executive officers will have a “double trigger” change-in-contro!
mechanism. A double-trigger mechanism is satislied only when there is a change-in-control and a qualifying adverse event within 12
months of the change-in-control. If both elements of the double-lrigger are salisfied, the executive can resign for “good reason” and
receive (he agreed severance payments.

* A change to the definition of “good reason” in the agreement for all new executive officers. Under the existing executive agreement “good
reason” includes such events as a reduction in job responsibilities, a material breach of the agreement by Getty Images, or a request by us
for the executive to relocate. The definitian of “good reasen” in any new agreements will be ¢ mended to include a material reduction in the
executive’s base salary or the percentage of base salary used o determing the ai-target annual cash incentive bonus.

The Compensation Committee also decided 1o make changes to the employment agreemerits with the existing executive officers
(excluding M. Klein} as well as new executive officers. While these changes have not yel been memorialized into amendments lo
existing employment agreements, it is our intent io do s0. The changes to the employment agreements for the executive officers
include:

+ A change to the severance provision regarding the payment o be made under the non-sales bonus plan for the year in which the executive
separates. This change will be made to all employment agreements including those for bolth new and existing executive officers (and has
been included in the agreements for Mr. Teaster and Ms. Ranz and implemented as of the daie of this Annual Report on Form 10-K). The
new language siates that the bonus payment upon severance for the current year is the lesser of (i) the at-target amount prorated for the
time served during the yeat, and (i) the projected payout based on the most recent internal frecast of our projected performance, again
prorated for the time served during the year. The provision in the current agreement for existing executive officers siates that the bonus
payment for the cument year is the at-1arget amount prorated for the time served during the y2ar.

* Making several other minor modifications, such as updating the non-compelition language.

Certain Triggering Events for Payment upon Termipation

Our executive officers may be entitied to ¢ertain severance payments under the terms of th2ir employment agreements, the amount of
which will vary depending on whether we terminated the executive for Cause or the executive resigned for Good Reason.

Under the agreements, "Cause” generally means the executive's (1) continued materlal non-performance of duties, (2) felony indict-
ment, {3) fraud or willfyl misconduct, or {(4) any material breach of the employment agreement.
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Under the agreements, “Good Reason™ generafly means {1} an adverse material change in the executive’s duties, (2) our material
breach of the employment agreement, {3) our failure to pay material compensation, {4} a change in control, or (5} & significant
rejocation of the executive 1. Additionally, Mr. Cberdorf’s agreement includes the failure by us to grant a total of 40,000 restricied
stock unils as “Good Reason,” the first instaliment of which was awarded in July 2006 and the second installment of which will be
awarded in June 2007. Mr. Kiein's agreement also contains certain olher events constituting a “Good Reason,” such as adverse and
material change in his titles or reparting responsibilities, reduction in compensation opportunity, failure by us to nominate him {or
reelection to the Board of Direclors or his fallure (o be teelected to the Board of Directors.

Generally, in the event of termination for Cause or resignation without Good Reasan, the executive will only be entitled lo salary and
unreimbursed expenses accrued as of the date of termination, in the event of termination without Cause or resignation for Good Rea-
san, however, the executive will also receive {1} a lump sum equal 10 the executive's annual base salary, (2} accrued bonus for the
year of termination, and [3) an amount equal to 50% of performance bonus for which the executive is eligible, subject to any limi-
tations on such termination payments as a result of excise tax. The terms of Mr. Kiein's severance package ditfer from the above,
which will be discussed in further detail under the caption “Jonathan D. Klein.”

Paymenis upon Death or Disabllity

Generally, in the event of a Disability, employment of the executive can be terminated by us upon six months’ prior written nolice and,
in such event, the executive will receive (in addition to salary and unreimbursed expenses accrued as of the date of lermination) a
lump-sum equal {0 the executive's annual base Salary, less any amounis paid 1o the executive under any Gelly Images disability plan,
Under the employment agreements, “Disability™ means a physical or mental incapacity that substantially prevents the executive from
performing his duties and that has continued for at leasi six of the last twelve months and that can reasonably be expected to con-
tinue indefinitely, In the event of the executive's death, the executive (or beneficiary) will receive salary through the date of the execu-
tive's death. The executive officer (or beneficiary) will also receive benefils under our disability plans or payments under our life
insurance plans, as appropriate. The terms of a severance package for Mr, Klein differ from the abave, which are discussed in further
detail under the caption “Jonathan D. Klein™ below.

Payments upon a Change in Control

The employmeni agreements with each executive olficer set forth the terms of the executive’s severance in the event of a change of
control, In that circumstance, the executive shall have the right to resign within thirty (30) calendar days following a change in control
and we shall pay the executive’s salary and accrued bonus as of the date of termination ar resignation including any unretmbursed
expenses 2, Additionally, executives are entitled to a lump sum severance payment equal to iwo times the executive's salary al the rale
in effect immediately prior to the change of control plus an executive bonus payment equal to one times the highest amount that the
executive would have been entitled to pursuant to the annual bonus plan. The terms of a severance package for Mr. Klein difter from
the above, which are discussed in further detail under the caption “Jonathan D. Klein" below. In addition, pursuant to the terms of
our Stock Incentive Plan, in the event of such a change in control, (i) all stock oplions or stock appreciation rights then outstanding
shall become fully exercisable as of the dale of the change in control, whether ar not then exercisable, (ii) all restrictiens and con-
ditions of all stock awaids then outstanding shall lapse as of the date of the change in control, and (iii} all periormance share awards
shall be deemed o have been fully earned as of the date of the change in control. Such accelerated awards will remain exercisable
for the remainder of their respective terms.

JONATHAN D. KLEIN

The following table shows the potential payments upon termination or @ change of control of Getty Images for Mr. Kiein, our Chief
Executive Officer and member of the Board of Directors. Mr. Klein's employment agreemenl was filed as Exhibit 10.4 to our Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2005, and details the payments and benefits he may receive in the event of
termination, as discussed below. All amounts shown in the table below are calculated assuming the events accurred on December 31,
2006.

1 Asof May 21, 2007, Mr. Teaster's Employment Agreemeni was amended to reflect that “Good Reason” includes the following: “Executive
voluntarily resigning employment with the Company [Getty Images] at any time prior to June I, 2009.”
2 As noted above, this does not apply 10 Ms. Ranz or Messrs. Livingstone, McKay or Teaster.
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|
Termination
for Cause or Invaluntary
Repignation  Termination or
Withaut Resignation Termination
Good for Good  Following Change In Terminstion Due to  Termination Oue to

BENEFIT Ruason Reason Conlrol Disabiiity Oesth

Paid Notice Period Prior to Termination: Salary .2 § na % nfa 3 na $ 475,000 $ nfa

Severance: Salary ! — 556,720 556,720 556,720 3 -

Severance: Non-Equity Incentive Plan

Compensation -~ Accrued Thru Term Date ! —_ 855,000 - — —_

Severance: Non-Equity Incentive Plan

Compensation ! — 501,048 501,048 501,0483 —

Steck Option Vesting Acceteration 3 _ —_ — — —_

Restricted Stock Unit Award Vesting Acceleration § - — 3,425,600 - -

Standacd Health/Wellare Coverage 7 9,828 13,104 13,104 13,104 -

Life insurance Coverage ® 9,558 12,744 12,744 12,744 —

vacation Pay in Lieu of Accumulated Vacation

Days? 54,807 63,942 63,942 63,942 _
i Company Automobile Expenses 10 10,362 12,089 12,089 12,089 -
' Holiday Pay 1! 14,615 18,269 18,269 18,269 —

Other Specific Benefits and Perquisites '2 10,478 12,224 12,224 12,224 —

Death Benelit 12 nfa nfa nla nfa 3.415,572

Disability Benefit 14 nfa nfa nfa 57,250/month nla

Tax Gross-Ups 1% 19,982 23,313 23,313 23,3132 . —

| 1 Al salary and non-equity incentive payment amounts were calculated using Mr. Klein's salary as of Oecember 31, 2006.

2 Only termination due to Disability requires six months’ prior notice by the company. During such notice period, Mr. Ktein would be entitled to
the amount Shown in the table,

3 Severance payment for Disability would be reduced by any amounts paid to Mr. Kiein under any Getty Images disability plan.

4 Mr. Klein's agreement states that the beneliciary will receive salary, bonus, and gther perquisites listed through remainder of term, However,
any such payment is to be decreased by any death benefits which are provided to the benefisiary. Because the death benefit will supersede
these other benefits, the amounts here have been calculated at $0. Tax gross-up amounts for 2006 payments are included in the table.

5 ARhough in many cases Mr. Klein would receive acceterated vesting of oplions {as detaited above), as of December 31, 2006 he had no
unvested stock options.

, 6 All restricted stock unil vesting acceleration amounts were calculated as the gain to Mr, Kiein using the closing per share market price of our
5 common stock on December 29, 2006, which was $42.82. The amounts do net include any modifications to the grants that could potentially
i take place. Mr. Klein's executive agreement does not refer to accelerated vesting of RSUs, only 1o stock options. Acceleration of RSU vesting
| in the event of a change in control Is cuttined in the stock incentive plan document and award agreement.
i 7 Reflects the estimated value of all future group health and wellare premiums which would be paid on behall of Mr. Klein through the
remainder of the lerm of his employment agreement which, if terminated on December 31, 2006, would be seven (7) months. In the case of
l termination for Cause o+ resignation witheut Good Reason, the value is calculated at six (6) months’ worth.
3 Estimated premiums {0r executive and group lile insurance coverage through the term of the agreement of August 1, 2007 in mast cases, or

for six months in the case of termination for Cause gr resignation without Good Reason.

Reflects the estimated lump-5um present value of all (uture vacation benefits which Mr, Kiein may be entitled 10 pursuant to his employment
agreement, at the rate of thirty (30} days per year. In the case of involuntary termination, resignation for Good Reason, iermination following
change in control, or death, the vacation calculation is prorated through the term of his agreeinent which ends on August 1. 2007, The pro-
rated amaunt in this case is seventeen and one half (17.5} days. In the case of termination for Cause or resignation without Good Reason, he
is entitied to six (8) months’ worth of vacation, which prorated is fifteen (15} days.

4
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10 Reflects the estimated amount egual to the costs incurred by Getty Images for automobile expenses, which Mr. Klein would be eligible to
receive in a lump sum amount following termination. in most cases, Mr. Klein wou!d be entitled to receive a lump-sum payment equal to the
costs through the remainder of the term of his employmen? agreement, which, if ierminated on December 31, 2006. would be seven
{7) months. In the case of termination for Cause or resignation without Good Reason, he is entitled to six (6) months® worth of automobile
expenses.

1 Reflects the estimated amount of haliday pay Mr. Kiein would be enlitled to under his employment agreement. In most cases, Mr. Kigin
would be entitled to receive a lump-sum payment equal fo the paid holidays through the remainder of the term of his employment agree-
ment, which, if terminated on December 31, 2006, would be seven (7) months. In the case of lermination for Cause gr resignation without
Good Reason, he is entitled 10 six (5) manths’ worth of holiday pay.

12 Reflects the estimated lump-sum present value of all future payments Mr. Klein would be entitled to under his employment agreemeni for
those items detailed in section 3(i) of the employment agreement, including parking, health club, home security, AAA, business telephone,
DSL line, mobile phones, fax machine, modem, home computers, ¢lubs, associations, and subscriptions. In most cases, Mr. Klein would be
entitled {o receive seven {7) months’ worth of payments, but in the case of lermination for Cause or resignation without Good Reason, he
would be entitled to six (6) months” warth of payments.

13 Represents the benefit payout under Getly Images’ executive life insurance plans. Amount does not include payments under the standard
group life insurance plans.

“  Reflects the esifmated monthly value of all future payments Mr. Klein would be entitied to under our executive disability plans. Mr. Kiein
would be entitied to receive such benefits for the duralion of the disability. The maximum benefits duration would be up to his normal retire-
ment age, but not less than 60 monihs. Normal retirement age is the retirement age under the Social Security Act where the retirement age
depends on the year of birth.

15 Reftects the estimated lump-sum present vatue of all future payments Mr. Klein would be entilled to for tax gross ups {or payments or bene-
fits related 10 expenses, medical, and other refated benefits pursuant to Sections 39, 3e, 3h, 3iand 3j of his employment agreement. Figures
are estimated amounts based on actual expenses in 2000,

All severance paymenis will be made in a lump sum within 30 days of lermination date.

TERMINATION OF MR. KLEIN FOR “CAUSE™

In the event that Getty Images terminates Mr. Kiein for Cause, Mr, Kiein will receive salary and unreimbursed expenses accrued as of
the date of termination. Gelly Images will continue to pay tor benefits and insurance for a period of six months {ollowing lermination,
provided, however, that the cost of particular benefits will be paid within thisty (30) days after the dale of termination in a iump sum,
as outlined in his employment agreement. Such benefits include: ¢osls and expenses incurred by Mr. Kiein in connection with the use
of an automabile; a dedicated business telephone andfor OSL line at his home; costs associaled with three mobite phones, fax
maching, and cemputer modem at his home; suitable deskiop and lapiop computers, as well as all ancillary equipment and main-
tenance therefore; the cost of Mr. Klein's membership and those of his family 1o various clubs and associations; subscriptions to the
internet service provider of his choice; such other professional memberships, magazines and journats as are appropriate to his dulies;
home security systems; and an annual medical examination.

Mr. Kiein wiil be entitled to retain and exercise the then-vested portion of all stock optians for a period of ninety (S0} days following
termination, but the unvested portion of ail stock awards will lapse.

RESIGNATION BY MR, KLEIN WITHOUT “GOOD REASON"

I Mr. Klein resigns withoul Good Reason, Mr. Klein will receive salary and unreimbursed expenses accrued as of the date of termi-
nation. Gelty images will continue 10 pay for benefits and insurance far a period of six months following termination, provided, how-
ever, that the cost of particular benefits will be paid within thirty (30) days after the date of termination in a fump sum, as outlined in
his employment agreement.

The vesting of all stock options will continug for S0 10ng as Mr. Klein remains a direcior of Getly Images. Once Mr. Kiein no Jonger serves as
a director of Getty Images, he will be entitled to retain and exercise the 1hen-vested portion of all stock oplions unti! the earlier of (i) four
{4) years following his separation from employment with us {including his service cn the Board}, and (ii) for the remainder of their
respective terms as if he had remained a Getty Images employee, but the unvested portion of all stock options will lapse.
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INVOLUNTARY TERMINATION OF MR. KLEIN OR RESIGNATION BY MR. KLEIN WITH "GOOD REASONT

il Mr. Klein's employment 1erminales for any reason ofher 1han Disability or Cause or if ha resigns for Good Reason, he will receive (in
addition 10 salary, bonus, and unreimbursed expenses through and including the date of 1ermination} a lUmMp sum payment in an
amount equal to the sum of {i) his base salary. {ii} the maximum targel amount of his bonus and (iii} an amount equal 10 1he cost
Geity Images would have paid for particular benefils, in each case as would olherwise have been paid for the remainder of the term of
his employmen! agreement. In addition, he would be provided other particular benefits for the remainder of the term of his empioy-
men! agreemeni, as described above In the section tilled “Termination of Mr. Kiein for “(ause”.”

All unvested stock options will vest immediately as of the dale of termination. Mr. Klein will be entitled 10 retain and exercise all
unexercised stock options untit the earlier of (i) four (4) years following his separation from employment with Getly Images (including
his service on the Board) and (ii) for the remainder of their respective terms. as if he had remained a Gelly Images emplayee, but the
unvesied portion of all stock options will lapse.

PAYMENTS MADE TO MR. KLEIN IN THE EVENT OF A CHANGE IN CONTROL

In the event of a change in conirol, Me. Klein will have 1he right 1o resign his employment. He will receive salary accrued as of the
date of lermination, In addition, he will receive a lump sum payment in an amount equa! to the sum of (i) his base salary, (i} the
maximum largel amount of his bonus and (il an amount equal lo the cost Gelty Images would have paid for particular benefils. in
each case as would plherwise have been paid for the remainder of the term of his employment agreement. In addition, he would be
provided other particular benefits for the remainder of the term ol his employment agreement.

ANl unvested stock awards will vest immediately as of the date of the change in control, and will remain exercisable tor a period of
twelve {12) months foliowing the change in conlrol, provided, however, that no slock award will be exercisable afier the expiration of
ten (10) years aher 1he dale the stock award was granted {or any earlier expiration period as siated in the applicable award
agreemenl). As pes the 1erms of our Slock lncentive Plan document, in the event of 8 Change in Control, all restriclions and con-
ditions of all resiricted stock unit awards 1hen outstanding will fapse as of the dale of Ihe change in control.

PAYMENTS MADE IN THE EVENT OF MR. KLEIN'S DISABILITY

In the event of Mr. Kiein's Disability, his employment can be terminated by us upon six manths’ prior written nolice. In the case of
Disability, Mr. Klein will receive salary accrued as of the daig of termination. In addition, he will receive a lump sum payment in an
amoun equal 10 the sum of {i) his base salary plus (i) the maximum targel amount of his bonus plus {iii} an amount equal to ihe cosl
we would have paid for pariicular benefils, in each case as would otherwise have been paid for the remainder of the 1erm of his
employmen agreement, in addilion, he would be provided olher particutar benelits for the remainder ol the term of his employment
agreement. However, any paymenis listed above will be decreased by any amounts paid 1o Mr. Klein undes any Geily Images disability
plan,

All unvested slock options will vest immediately as of the date ol termination, and will remain exercisable tor a period of iwelve
{12) months following the termination date, provided, however, thal no stock option will be exercisable afier the expiration of ten
(10) years after 1he date the stock option award was granted {or any eardier expiration period as stated in the applicable award
agreemeni).

PAYMENTS MADE IN THE EVENT OF MR. KLEIN'S DEATH

In 1he evenl of Mr. Klein's death, Mr. Klein's beneliciary will receive salary accrued a5 of the date of 1ermination. In addilion, his
beneficiary will receive a lump sum payment in an amount equal 1o the sum of {i} his base safary plus (ii} the maximum target amount
of his bonus, in each case as would otherwise have been paid for the remainder of the term of his employment agreement, plus

{iii) an amount equal 10 the cosis incurred by us for benelits in the calendar year immedialely prior (o his death. However, any pay-
ments listed above will be decreased by any death benelils provided under the terms of any Geity Images plan, program or arrange-
ment in effect for Mr. Klein al the time of his death.

All unvested stock options will vest immedialely as of the dale ol death, and will remain exercisable for a period of iwelve (12} months
tollowing ihe dale of dealh, provided, however, that no stock option will be exercisable after the expiration of ten (10} years after the
date the stock option award was granted {or any earlier €xpiration period as staled in the applicable award agreement).
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THOMAS OBERDORF

The following table shows the potential payments upon termination or a change of control of Getty Images for Thomas Oberdorl, our
Chief Financial Officer.

Termination Involuniary
tor Cause o1 Tesmination or
Resignation Resignation Termination
Without Good for Good  Following Changs  Termination Dus Tarminatlon
Reason on Reaton on in Controt oo to Disabllity en  Due to Death on
BENERIT 12/3106 12/31/06 12131106 1231/06 12131006
Paid Notice Perlod Prior to Termination: Salary 1. 2 $na % nfa $ nfa $ 2000002 § nfa
Severance: Salary ! — 400,000 800,000 400,000 —
Severance: Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation -
Accrued Thru Term Date ! — 93,333 93,333 - —_
Severance: Additional Non-Equity Incentive Plan
Compensation ! - 80,000 160.000 —_ -
Stock Option Vesling Acceleration ¢ _ —_ -— — —_
Restricted Stock Unit Award vesting Acceleration ® — — 876,400 — —
Health and Welfare Benefits Continuation § —_ - — — -
Death Benelit ? n/a n/a n/a nfa 1,070,000
Disability Benefit® n/a n/a nfa 22,000/mo na

1 Al salary and non-equity Incentive payment amounts were calculated using Mr. Oberdorf's salary as of December 31, 2006.

2 Only termination due to Disability requires six months' prior niptice by the company. During such notice period, Mr. Oberdorf would be enti-
tted to the amount shown in the table.

3 Severance payment for Disability would be reduced by any amounts paid to Mr. Qberdorf under any Getty images disability plan.
4 Mr. Oberdorf has no vested or unvested stock options as of December 31, 2006.

5 Ali restricted slock unit vesting acceleration amounts were calculated as the gain 10 Mr. Oberdorf using the closing per share market price of
our common stock on December 29, 2006, which was $42.82. The amounts do not include any modifications to the grants that could poten-
tially lake place.

& Mr. Oberdor’s employment agreement does not provide for continuation of health and welfare benefits.

7 Reflects the estimated lump-sum present value of all future payments Mr. Qberdorf (or his beneficiaries) would be entitled to under our
executive life insurance plans. Such death benefit would be paid from our life insurance provider. Amount does not include payments under
the standard group life insurance plans.

8 Reflects the estimated manthly value of all fulure payments Mr. Oberdorf would be entitied to under our executive disability plans.
Mr. Oberdorf would be entitled to receive such benefits for the duration of the disability. The maximum benefits duration would be up to his
normal retirement age, but ngt less than 60 months. Normal retirement age is the retirement age under the Social Security Act where the
relirement age depends on the year of birth,

All severance payments would be made in a lump sum within 30 days of termination date.
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NICHOLAS E. EVANS-LOMBE

The following table shows the potentiat payments upon termination or a change of controf of Getly Images for Nicholas E. Evans-
Lombe, our EVP. Imagery, Products & Services.

1

Termination for Involuntary
Cause or  Termination of
Resignation Resignation Termination
Without Good tor Good  Following Change Termination Due
Resson on Reason gn in Control en Termination Due to to Death on
BENEFIT 12131406 1213308 12/31/06  Disadillty on 12/31/06 12/31/06
Paid Notice Period Prior to Termination: Salary !-2 $ na $ nia $ nla % 177,500 $ nfa
Severance: Salary! — 355,000 710,000 355,0007 —
Severance: Non-Equity Incentive Plan
Compensation - Accrued Thru Term Date ! —_ 142,000 142,000 — -
Severance: Non-Equity Incentive Plan
Compensation ! —_ 71,000 142,000 — —
Stock Option Vesting Acceleration 4 — —_ —_ - —
Restricted Stock Unit Award Vesting Acceleration 3 - - 702,300 - -
Health and Welfare Benefits Continuation € — — — — -
Relocation/Repatriation 7 100,000 100.000 100,000 100,000 100,000
Death Benefit & nfa nia nfa nfa 739.028
Disability Benefit 2 nfa nfa nfa 10,450/month nfa

1 All salary and nen-equity incentive payment amounts were calculated using Mr. Evans-Lombe's salary as of December 31, 2006.

2 Only termination due to Disability requires six menths' prios notice by the company. During such notice period, Mr. Evans-Lombe would be
entitled to the amount shown in the (able.

3 Severance payment {or Disability would be reduced by any amounts paid ta Mr. Evans-Lombe under any Getty Images disability plan.
4 Mr. Evans-Lombe has no unvested stock options as of December 31, 2006.

5 All restricted stock unit vesting acceleration amounts were calculated as the gain lo Mr. Evans-Lombe using the closing per share market
price of our common stock on December 29, 2006, which was $42.82. The amounts do not include any modifications to the granis that
could potentially take place.

6  Mr. Evans-Lombe's employment agreement does not provide for continuation of health and welltare benefils.

?  Rellects the estimated lump-sum present value of all future paymenis Mr. Evans-Lombe would be entitled to tor repatriation or relocation in
the event of termination for reasons other than for Cause. This amount includes repatriation tar Mr. Evans-Lombe and his family from Seattle,

Washington to the United Kingdom, including reimbursement s payment for reasonable expenses incurred with transporting him and his
family, as well a5 shipping his househeld goods, back to the United Kingdom,

8 Reflects the estimated lump-sum present value of all fulure payments Mr. Evans-Lombe's beneficiaries would be entitled to under our life
insurance plans. Such death benefit would be paid from our life insurance provider, Amount does not include payments under the standas
group life insurance plans.

9 Refects the estimated monthiy value of all fulure payments Mr, Evans-Lombe would be entitled io undes our executive disabilty plans.
Mr. Evans-Lombe would be entitled to receive such benefits for the duration of the disability. The maximum benefits duration would be up

d

o

his normat retirement age, but not less than &0 months. Normal retirement age is the retirernent age under the Social Security Act where the

retirement age depends on the year ¢l birth.

All severance payments would be magde in a lump sum within 30 days of termination date.
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BO T. OLOFSSON

The following table shows the potential payments upon termination or a change of control of Gelty Images for Bo T. Olofssan, our SVP,
Global Sales. Mr. Qlofsson's agreement states that his employment may be terminated by either party giving to the other not less than
three (3) calendar months' nolice, excepl in the case where the termination is for Cause.

inveluntary
Tarminaticn Tarmination
for o Termination
Termination Rusignation Resignation Following
for Causs  Without Good far Good Change in Termination
on Reaton on Reason on Contiol on Termination Due to Due to Death
BENEFIT 12731106 12/31/08 12/31/08 12/31/056  Disabillty on 12/30/08  on 12/31/08
Paid Notice Period Prior to Termination: ]
Salary 12 $— 3 87400 % 87400 $ 87400 $ 87,400 § n/a
Benefits Coverage during Notice Period Prior
to Termination 2 - 14,099 14.099 14,099 14,099 n/a
Severance: Salary 1.3 — 262,200 262,200 699,200 262,200 —
Severance: Non-Equity Incentive Plan
Compensation - Accrued Thru Term Date ! — - —_ 139,840 —_ —_
Severance: Non-Equity Incentive Plan
Compensation ! — - - 139,840 — -_
Stock Option Vesling Acceleration * — — — 85,372 —_ _—
Restricied Stock Unit Award Vesting
Acceleration — - — 547,378 — -
Health and Welfare Benefits Continuation 3 —_ —_ — - - -
Death Benefil — nfa n/a n/a n/a 636,263
Disability Benefit? — nla n/a nfa 2,443/month nfa

1 All salary and non-equity incentive payment amounts were calculated using Mr. Olofsson’s salary as of December 31, 2006,

2 Termination due to Disability requires a mandatory three months' prior notice by the company. During such notice period, Mr. Olofsson
would be entitied to the amounlt shown in the table. Some or 2l of the notice pericd may be worked. Benefits coverage includes premiums
for the executive healthcare scheme, auto allowance and pension ¢ontributions of 10% of satary.

3 Mr. Olofsson is eligible for nine (9) months' worth of salary in the event of resignation with or without Good Reason, inveluniary termination,
or Disability, My. Olofsson is eligible for two (2) times executive’s salary in lhe event of change in control.

4 All stock option and restricted stock unit vesting acceleration amounts were calculated as the gain to Mr. Clofsson using the clgsing per
share market price of our common stack on Decernber 29, 2006, which was $42.82. The amounts do not include any modifications to the
grants that could potentially take place. -

5 Mr. Olofssen’s employment agreement does not provide for continuation of health and welfare benefits.

6 Reflects the estimated lump-sum fresent value of all future payments Mr. Olofsson's beneficiaries would be entitled to under our life
insurance plans. Such death benefit would be paid from our life insurance provider, Amount dees not include payments under the standard
group life insurance plans.

7 Reflects the estimated monthly value of all future payments Mr. Dlofsson would be entilted 1o under our executive disability plans.
Mr. Olofsson would be entitled to receive such benefits for the duration of the disability. The maximum benelits duration would be up to his
normal retirement age, but not less than 60 months. Normal relirement age is the retirement age under the Social Security Act where the
retirement age depends on the year of birth.

All severance payments would be made in a lump sum within 30 days of termination date,
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JACK SANSOLOD

The following table shows the polential payments upon termination or a change of contrcl of Getty Images for Jack Sansolo. our SVP,
Marketing until his retirement effective June 2, 2007.

Tarminat Involuntars
for Cavie ot Termination or Termination
Resignation Resigaation Foltowing
Without Good for Gootl Changs in  Termination Due  Termination Due
Rzason on Reason on Contiol on to Disabllily on to Death on
BENEFIT 12/31/06 12214006 12131/06 123106 1231106
Paid Notice Period Prior to Termination: Salary 1.2 $na $ nfa $ nfa $160000 3% nfa
Severance: Salary ! —_ 320,000 640,000 320.000? -
Severance: Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation -

Accrued Thru Term Date b - 128,000 128,000 — —
Severance: Non-Equity Incentive Plan Compensation ! — 64,000 128,000 — -
Stock Option Vesling Acceleration 4 — - - — —
Restricted Stock Unit Award Vesting Acceleralion 5 — - 879,652 — —
Health and Welfare Benefits Continuation & — - - — -
Deaih Benefit? n/a n/a nfa nfa 790,000
Disability Benefit 8 nia n/a nfa 120/day nfa

All salary and non-equity incentive payment amounts were calculated using Or. Sansolo's salary as of December 31, 2006.

Only termination due to Disability requires six months’ prior notice by the company. During cuch natice period, Or. Sansolo would be entitled
to the amount shown in the table.

Severance payment for Disability would be reduced by any amounts paid to the Execulive under any Getty Images disability ptan.
Dr. Sanscio has no vested or unwested stock options as of December 31, 2006.

All restricted stock unit vesting acceleration amounis were calculated as the gain i Dr. Sansolo using the Closing per share markel price of
our common Stock on December 29, 2006, which was $42.82. The amounts do not include any modifications (o the granis that could poten-
lially take place.

Dr. Sansolo's employment agreement does not provide for continuation of health and welfare benedits,

Reflects the estimated lump-sum present vatue of all future payments Or. Sansolo’s beneficiaries would be entitied to under our life
insurance plans. Such death benefit would be paid from our life insurance provider. Amount does not include payments under the standard
group life insurance plans.

Reflects the estimated monthly vatue of all future payments Dr, Sansolo would be entitied 10 under Our executive disability plans. Dr. Sansolo
would be entitled 16 receive such benefits for the duration of the disability. The maximum benefits duration would be up lo his normal retire-
ment age, but not less than 36 months. Normal retirement age s the retirement age under the Social Security Act where the retirement 2ge
depends on the year of birth.

Al severance payments would be made in a lump sum within 30 days of termination date.

Termination Payments Made During 2006

Effective June 15, 2006, Ms. Huebrer selired as our Chief Financiai Officer. At the time o her retirement, her base salary was
$420,000 and she was eligible for an annual cash incentive bonus of 50% of her base salary al target. She was also eligible to partic-

ipate in all employee benefit programs lincluding fringe benefits, 401(k) profil sharing pla-, and standard and executive life, health,
accident and disability insurance) through her date of termination. Ms. Huebner was paid these amounts in full, as set forth in the
Summary Compensation and All Other Compensation Tables sel fasth earlier in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Ms. Huebner was
awarded a one time grant of B,000 restricted stock units on March 1, 2006, which vested upon action of the Board taken May 16,
2006. Additionally, Ms Huebner received prorated executive disability insurance premiums paid {rom her tlermination dale through the
end of 2006.
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Eftective December 1, 2006, Mr. Ellis resigned his position as SVP, Business Development. In accordance with his separation agree-
ment, Mr. Ellis was paid a total of $406,833.33 {less normal and agreed-upon withhoiding) which was comprised of the following: a
severance payment of $275,000 (equal 1o one year's salary at the date of termination}, a 2006 bonus of $76,833.33, and a 2007
benus of $55,000.

Ettective December 4, 2006, following his resignation as SVP, Business Development, Mr. Ellis entered into an tndependent Con-
tractor Agreement with Getty Images. Under this contract, Mr. Ellis witl perform agreed upon services for Getty Images up 10 a max-
imum of four (4) days per month, for a fee of $1.500 per day worked. Mr, Ellis was paid a tota! of $6,000 under this agreement in
2006. Mr. Ellis has been paid a total of $24,000 for work performed in 2007 under this agreement thus far.

Eftective November 9, 2006, Mr. Flynn resigned his position as SVP, Technology. In accordance with his separation statement of
November 1, 2006, we paid to Mr. Flynn a total of $506.000 (less normal and agreed-upon withholding) which was comprised of the
following: a severance payment of $330,000 {equal to one year's salary at the date of termination), a 2006 bonus of $110.000, and a
2007 honus of $66,000. All severance amounls were paid within thirty days of termination.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Qur Directors play an important rofe in guiding Getty Images’ strategic direction and overseeing our management. Recent develop-
ments in corporate governance and financial reporting have resulied in an increased demand for public company directors. The many
responsibilities and risks and the substantial time commitment of being a director of a public company require that we provide
adequate financlal incentives to ensure our directors’ continued performance,

CASH RETAINER AND MEETING FEES FOR NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS

Since 2004, each of our non-employee directors, with the exception of Mr. Getly, has received (a) an annual cash retainer, {(b) a cash
refainer for serving a5 a chair of one or more Commitiees of the Board, and {c) a fee for attending meetings of the Board and its vari-
ous Committees. However, in September 2006, the Board approved a new annual compensation program for non-employee directors,
with the exception of Mr. Gelty, as follows: (i) a fixed annual retainer of $60,000 tor Board members: (i} a $5,000 annual retainer for
the chair of the Audit Committee; and (iii) 2 $2,500 annual retainer for the chair of other commitiees. There are no meeting fees for
Board or committee meeling attendance. in 2006, the Chairman of the Board of Directors, Mr. Getty (who resides in London),
received £60,250 (approximately $109,655), but did not receive a non-employee Director equity grant as described immediately
below. The Board has accepted Mr. Getty's offer to waive the receipt of any cash compensation in 2007, Getty Images reimburses our
directors for their reasonable expenses incurred in attending meetings of the Board and its Committees in addition to the retainers
and meeting fees. Additionally, we reimbursed Sutton Place Limited, a company controlled by Mr. Gelty, for 25% of Mr. Getty's
persenal assistant's time for her work in support of his Board responsibilities.

EQUITY COMPENSATION FOR NON-EMPLOYEE DIRECTORS

Non-employee Directors also are eligible to participate in the 2005 Incentive Plan, which provides for stock option granls, restricted
stock units and other equity-based awards to Directors for their services. In September 2006, the Board revised its compensation
pragram to provide for an annual award of restricted stock units in the amount of $100,000, with such awards to be made on the first
trading day of May '. The awards shall vest ratably over a 4-year period with annual cliff vesting dates. Previously, non-employee direc-
tors received periodic awards of stock options. Mr. Spoon received an award of 5,000 restricted stock units when he joined the Board
in May 2006.

I While this statement reflects the Boards intentions for grants in future years, the 2007 awards (o non-em ployee directors were made in June
2007 rather than May 2007. The delay in making the annual equity awards was a result of our not being current in the filing of our periodic
reports with the Securities and Exchange Cormmission from November 2006 until June 2007. This matter is addressed in detail in this
Annuzi Report on Form 10-K in the Explanatory Note Regarding Restatements and in Note 2 to the Consofidated Financial Statements.
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Non-Employee Director Compensation Table

The following table sets forth the total compensation paid 10 our non-employes Direciors for their service on our Board of Direclors
and committees of the Board of Directors during fiscal year 2006, Qur sole employee direcior, Mr. Klein, receives no separate
compensatlon for service as a Dlrector of Getty Images.

2006 Director Compensation Table

Change In

Pensien Value

and

Nongualified

Fees Earnad Non-Equity Delerred

of Paid in Stock Optien Incentive Plan  Compensation All Dther

NAME Cash($) Awardsi$}? Awards{3)?  Compensatlon($} Earningsi$)  Compensationt$) Total$)?
James N. Bailey $ 66375 % — $ 33.601 - — $ — % 99,976
Andrew S. Garb 64,375 — 33,601 —_ —_ — 97.976
Mark H. Getty* 106,955 —_ - - _— 40,235% 147,190
Alan G. Spoon 22,375 50,306 — - —_ —_ 72,681
Christopher H. Sporberg 55,250 — 33,601 - — —_ 88,851
Michael A. Stein 61,500 —_ 42 847 — — — 104,347
David Landau 25,875 — 44,171 - - — 70,046

' The amounts Shown in this column represent the amount expensed in our financial statements lor the fiscal year covered, without regard to
estimated forfeitures thal are required by US GAAP for our financial statements, lor urwvested restricted stock units heid by the director dur-
ing the fiscal year covered. The amount of the expense is the portion of the grant daie fair value of the award {caiculated as the number of
units granted multiplied by the average of the high and low trading prices of our common stoc< on the date of grant) that was recognized in
our financial statements in 2006. The grant date fair value of the grant to Mr. Spoon was $320,950. This expense is recognized in our finan-
cial statements on a Straight-line basis over the vesting period of the unit, A total of 85,000 shares underlying estricted stock units were out-
standing and held by directors al December 31. 2006, including these held by Mr. Kigin.

2 The amounts shown in Lhis column represent the amount expensed in our financial statements, withaut regard to estimated forfeitures that
are required by US GAAP for our financial statements, for unvested stock oplions held by director during the fiscal year covered. The amount
of the expense is the portion of the grant date fair value of the award (calculsted as the number of options granted multiplied by the fair value
of the aption as calculated on the date of grant using a Black-Scholes valuation model) that was recognized in our financial statements in
2006.

The grant date fair value of the stock options underlying the expense shown in the lable was a3 follows:

Number of
Shares
Underlying Gram Date
Grant Date Optigns Falr Vatue
James N. Bailey, Andrew 5. Garb and Cheistopher H. Sperborg 5/5/03 5000 $% 91864

/17104 5000 116804
11/15/04 10,000 164,45)

Michael A. Stein 6/13/02 15000 285,926
5/5/03 5,000 91,864

&17/04 5000 116,804

11/15/04 10,000 164,451

David Landau 9/29/03 15000 275,385
5/17/04 5000 116,804
11/15/04 10,000 164,451
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This expense is recognized in our financial statements on an accelerated basis gver the vesting period of the stock option. For further dis-
cussion of these assumptions, see Note 9 the Consolidated Financial Statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K, A total of 1,799,766
shares underlying stock options were outstanding and held by directors at December 31, 2006, including those held by Mr. Klein.

3 These figures do not include their reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in connection with attendance at meelings of the Board of
Directors or any Committee thereof, for which the Directors are reimbursed by us.

4 Mr. Gefty's annual fee is £60,000 and has been converted into U.S. dollars based on an annual average basis. The annua! average exchange
rates in U.S. dollars per British pound based on the average of the noon buying rate in the City of New York for cable transfers in British
pounds as certified for customs purposes by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York in effect on each day for the year ended December 31,
2006 was 1.84.

5 This figure represents 25% of the cost of Mr. Getty's personat assistant to compensate Mr, Getty for the assistance she provides in con-
nection with his Board duties, which was paid to Sutton Place Limited in British pounds and has been converted into U.S. dollars in the
same mannei 25 Mr, Getly's annual fee as gescribed in footnote 4 above.

We do not provide any insurance, retirement or other benefit programs or compensation to the members of the Board of Directors, or
any other benefits or perquisites except as described above.
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tTEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP? OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

Under the Gelty Images, inc. 2006 Incentive Plan {the “Plan”), the Board of Directors has the discretion to grant restricted stock units
{*RSUs"), stock options with exercise prices equal to no less than the market price of our zommon stock on the grant date and other
stock-based awards. In connection with the adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 123(R), “Share-Based
Payments,” we have generally shifted from issuing stock options to issuing RSUSs.

RSUs generally have a four-year vesting schedule, with 25% vesting on each anniversary of the grant date. Stock options generally
have a 10-year term and a four-year vesting schedule, with 25% vesting on the {irst anniversary of the grant date and 2 pro rata por-
tion vesting monthly aver the remaining three years. On September 15, 2005, we granted 795,000 fully vested stock options to senior
management, many of whom had not received equily granls in several years. We also granted stock options 1o our chief executive offi-
cer in the second quarter of 2006 that vest over four years, with 20%. 20%, 20% and 40%. vesting on each subsequent anniversary of
the grant date. Stock options become exercisable when vested and remain exercisable through the remainder of the term excent that
we generally cancel options 90 days alter the date of termination of the recipient’s employment or service with us.

A total of 16 millian shares are authorized for issuance under the Plan. Shares under RSUs, stock options and other stock-based
awards that lapse due to cancelflation or expiration are available for re-issuance. Stock options become exercisable when vesled and
remain exercisable through the remainder of the term except upon termination of employm ent. in which case the optiens generally
terminate 90 days after the employee's termination date.

Below is 3 summary of stock-based awaids outstanding and available for future issuance at December 31, 2006:

Numbaer of Securities to Welghtad

be tssued Upon Exercise Avarage
of Steck Qptions a3d Yerting Exarcise  Number of Sharss Avallable
PLAN CATEGORY of Resiricted Stock Unlts Price for Futusa issuancs
Equity compensation plans approved by security holders 4,142,084 $ 46.75 1,821,260
Equily compensation plans nat approved by security holders 16,666 15.80 -

The 16,666 shares in the lable above represent aptions remaining under grants made outside of the Plan In 2001 to three
non-executive members of our Board of Directors. The lerms of these options are substantially identical (o those granted under the
Plan.

Of the 4,142,084 securilies (o be issued upon exercise of aptions outstanding under the Plan, 915 shares under options were
assumed in connection with business combinations. The weighted average éxercise price cf these assumed optians is $9.88.

The formula used to calcutate the 1,821,260 shares under stock-based awards available for future issuance is the total 16 million
shares authorized for issuance under the Plan less stock-based awards granted under the Plan, not including these assumed in con-
nection with business combinations, plus stock-based awards that have lapsed.

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to beneficiai ownership of shares of our common stock as of April 30,
2007, (i} for each person who is known by us 16 own beneficially more than 5% of the sharss of outstanding common stock, (i) for
each Director of Getly Images, (1il) for each of our executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table of this Annual
Report on Form 10-K, and (iv} by all Directors and executive officers of Getty Images as a group. Calculations are based on a total
number of outstanding shares of 59,222,196, as of Apri) 30, 2007,
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Amount and Nature of Beneficial Ownership
Number of
Shares of Gatty Director's
Images Percantel  Qualifylng
Names Common Stock? Class Sharey
Getty Investments L.L.C.2 8,273,301 13.97 —
Capital Group International In¢.? B,235,665 1391 —
Capital Research & Managemeni Company* 5,050,000 8.53 -
FMR Corp?® 4,896,050 8.27 —
Btum Capital Partners LP ¢ 3.410.133 5.76 -
Jonathan D. Klgin? 1,168,402 194 —
Mark H. Gelty® 1,115,642 1.87 -
Nicholas E. Evans-Lombe ¢ 235,717 * -
Bo T. Olofsson 10 71,917 . —
James N, Bailey ! 47,183 * —_
Michael A. Stein 12 33,750 * -
Andrew S, Garb 13 33,583 ‘ -
Christepher H. Sporborg 14 18,300 . —_
Jack Sansolo 1% 4,766 * -
Alan G. Spoon 16 1,250 . -
Elizabeth J. Huebner 17 1,000 . —
Patrick F. Flynn18 - ¢ -
Richard R. Ellis? - ' —
Thomas Oberdorf - ¢ -
All Executive Officers and Directors as a group {18 persons) 20 2,868,460 4.68 -_

" Less than 1%

Beneficial ownership represents sole or shared voling and investmenl power and is defined by the SEC to mean generally the power to
vote or dispose of securifies, regardiess of economic interest. The numbers were calculaled pursuant to Rule 13d-3(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Under Rule 13d-3(d), shares not outstanding that are subject 1o options, warrants, rights or con-
version privileges exercisable within 60 days of April 30, 2007 are deemed outstanding for the purpose of calculating the humber and
percentage owned by any person listed. Getty Images had 53,222,196 shares of outstanding common stock as of April 30, 2007. To our
knowledge, the only sharenalders who beneficially owned more than 5% of the shares of outstanding common stock as of April 30, 2007,
were those listed as such in the table above.

This information i derived from the Schedule 13D filed with the SEC by Getty Investments L.L.C. on October 5, 2006 for shares held as of
October 4, 2006. Getty Investments L.L.C. has sole dispositive and voting power over 8,273,301 shares. The address of Getty Investments
LL.C.is 1325 Airmotive Way, Suite 262, Reno, Nevada 839502,

This information is derived from the Schedules 13F fited with the SEC by Capital Guardian Trust, Capital International SA and Capital
International Ltd, collectively Capital Group International, Inc. (*CGII) on May 15, 2007 for shares held as of March 31, 2007. Cn Febru-
ary 12, 2007, CGli filed 2 Schedule 13G/A with the SEC for shares owned as of December 29, 2006 of 8,853.200. In this filing, CGII dis-
claimed beneficial ownership of these shares under SEC Rule 13d-4. CGIt filed the Schedule 13G/A and reported that, as of

December 29, 2006, CGll and the affiliated entities had sole voting power over 6,936,500 shares and dispositive power over B,853,200
shares. The address of CGll is 11100 Santa Monica Bivd., Los Angeles, CA 90025.

This information is derived from the Schedule 13F filed with the SEC by Capital Research & Management Company (“Capital Research”)
on May 15, 2007 for shares held as of March 31, 2007. On February 12, 2007, Capilal Research filed a Schedule 13G/A with the SEC for
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shares owned as of December 29, 2006 of 4,900,000. In this filing, Capital Research disc aimed beneficial ownership of these shares

under SEC Rule 13d-4. Capital Research fileg the Schedule 13G/A and reported that, as of December 29, 2006, Capital Research had
sole voting power gver 1,850,000 shares and dispasilive power over 4,900,000 shares. The address of Capilal Research is 333 South

Hope St., Los Angeles, CA 90071,

This information is derived from the Schedule 13F filed with the SEC by FMR Corp (*FMR™ on May 15, 2007 lor shares owned as of
March 31. 2007. The address of FMR is 82 Devanshice Street, Boston, MA 02109,

This information is derived from the Schedule 13F filed with the SEC by Blum Capital Partrers, L.P. {"Blum™} on May 15, 2007 for shares
heid as of March 31, 2007. On January 29, 2007, Bium fHied a Schedule 130/A with the SEC for shares owned as of January 18, 2007 of
3.451 933. Blum filed the Schedute 13D/A and reported that, as of January 18, 2007, Blum and sffiliated entities had shared voling and
dispasitive power of 3,451,933 shares and total beneficial ownership of 3,451,933 shares. The address of Blum is 309 Montgomery
Street, Suite 400, San Francisco, CA 94133,

Includes 1,043,000 shares of common stock that may be acquired by Mr. Klein on the exercise of outsianding cptions that presently are
exercisable or that will become exercisable on of before June 29, 2007. Also includes shaies beneficially owned or deemed to be owned
beneficially by Mr, Klein as foliows: 107,602 shares held by the Klein Family Trust; 900 shares held by Mr. Kigin's children, for which
Mr. Klein disciaims beneficial ownership: and 16,900 shares held directly by Mr. Klein. The number does not include 8,273,301 shares
owned by Getty Investments L.L.C. Mr. Klein is one of five directors of Getty Investments L.L.C. and, therefore, may be deemed to share
volting and investment power over the shares held by Getiy Investments L.L.C. :

Includes 446,350 shares of common stock that may be acquired by Mr. Getty through the Oplions Settlerent, a revocable grantor trust of
which Mr. Getty is the sole primary beneficiary, on the exercise of outstanding options that presently are exercisable or that will become
exercisable on or before June 29, 2007. Also includes shares beneficially owned or deemed to be owned beneficially by Mr. Getty as fol-
lows: 622,602 shares held by the October 1993 Trust: 24,377 shares held by the Cheyne "Malk Trust, to which Mr, Getty shares voling
and investment pawer; and 7.313 shares held by the Ronald Family Trust B, to which Mr. Getty shares voling and investment power, The
Cheyne Walk Trust and Ronald Family Trust B are members of Getty Investments L.L.C. The number includes 15,000 shares held directly
by Mr. Getty. The number does not include 8,273,301 shares owned by Getty Invesiments L.L.C. Mr. Getty is one of five directors of Getty
Investments L.L.C. and, therefore, may be deemed to share voting and investment power aver the shares held by Getty Investments L.L.C.

includes 230,000 shares ol common stock that may be acquired by Mr. Evans-Lombe on the exercise 0f outstanding optians that pres-
ently are exercisable or that will become exercisable on or before June 29, 2007, 3,225 shares held directly by Mr. Evans-Lombe and
2,492 shares held by family members,

Includes 70.000 shares of common stock that may be accuired by Mr. Olofsson on the exercise of outstanding stock options that pres-
ently are exercisable or that will become exercisable on or before June 29, 2007 and 1,917 shares held direclly by Mr. Olofsson.

Includes 27.083 shares of common stock that may be acquired by Mr. Bailey on the exercise of outstanding options that presently are
exercisable of that will become exercisable on or before June 29, 2007, 20,000 shares held directly by Mr. Bailey and 100 shares owned
by family members.

Inchudes 33,750 shares of commaon stock that may be acquired by Mr. Stein on the exercise of outstanding options that presently are
exercisable or which will become exercisable on or before June 29, 2007.

tncludes 27,083 shares of common stock that may be acquired by Mr. Garb on the exercise of outslanding options that presently are
exercisable or that wilt become exercisable an or before June 29, 2007, and 6,500 shares held directly by Mr. Garb.

Includes 17,500 shares of common stock that may be acquired by Mr. Sporborg on the exercise of outstanding oplions that presently are
exercisable of that will becarme exercisable on or before June 29, 2007 and 800 shares held directly by Mr. Sporborg.

Includes 4,766 shares held directly by Dr. Sansolo. Dr. Sansolo retired effective June 2, 2027
Includes 1,250 shares held directly by Mr. Spocn.

Includes 1,000 shares held directly by Ms. Hugbner as of April 30, 2007. Ms. Huebner retired effective as of June 15, 2006.
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18 Mr. Flynn held no shares as of April 30, 2007. Mr. Flynn resigned from Getty Images effective November 9, 2006.
19 Mr. Ellis held no shares as of April 30, 2007. Mr. Ellis left Getty Images effective December 1, 2006. 1

2 Includes 2,059,165 shares of common stock that may be acquired upon the exercise of outstanding options that presently are exercisable
or which will become exercisable on or before June 29, 2007, restricied stock unils that vest on or before June 29, 2007, and 809,295
otherwise owned beneficially. Does not include shares directly owned by Getty Investments L.L.C. Messrs. Getty and Klein are two of five
directors of Getty Investments L.L.C. and, therefore, may be deemed 1o share voting and investment power aver shares held by Getty
Investments L.LC. _ :

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS

Director Independence

No Director will be deemed to be independent unless the Board alfirmativety determines that the Direclor has no material relationship
with Getty Images, directly or as an officer, shareowner or partner of an organization that has a retationship with us. The Board
observes all criteria for independence established by the Securities and Exchange Commission {*SEC"), the New York Stock Exchange
{“*NYSE"} and other applicabte laws and regulations.

On an annual basis, each Director and executive officer is obliged 1o complete a Director and Oflicer Questionnaire which requires dis-
closure of any transactions with us in which the Director or executive officer, or any member of his or her immediate family, as such
term is defined by applicable SEC rules, have a direct or indirect material interest. Pursuant to the “Code of Business Conduct,” the
Board or any commitiee so appointed by it is charged with resolving any conflict of interest involving senior executives or directors.

The Board determined, after a review of relevant information and upon advice from legal counsel to Getly Images, that (a) no Director
has a material relationship with us and (b) the follewing majority of Board members, which includes all non-management members
other than Mark H. Getty, are currently and were, during 2006, independent: James N. Bailey, Andrew 3. Garb, Alan G. Spoon, Chris-
topher H. Sporborg, and Michae! A. Stein. Consequently, all members of the Audit, Nominating and Corporate Governance, and ;
Compensation Committees are independent pursuani to NYSE listing standards, the SEC rules and all other applicable rules and

standards. The Board has not made a determination regarding Mr. Getty's independence. '

In addition, based on these standards. the Board determined that Mr. Kigin Is not independent because he is our Chlef Executive
Officer.

Related Transactions

As noted above, on an annual basis, each Director and executive officer Is obliged to complete a Director and Oificer Questionnaire
which requires disclosure of any transactions with Getly tmages in which the Director or executive officet, or any member of his or her
immediate family, have a direct or indirect material interest. Additionally, the questionnaire requires disclosure of all employment or
sesvice as a director by Directors or executive officers with other entities. The Audit Committee is charged wilh reviewing any trans-
actions with a “related party” tha! are valued at greater than $120,000 and in which the related person has a direct or indirect
material interesl,

The Stockholders’ Agreement. in connection wilh the consummation of the merger of the businesses of Geity Communications
Limited (our predecessor) and PhotoDise, Inc., Getty Images and (i) the Getty Group {as defined below) and {ii} the Torrance Group
(35 defined below) entered into a2 Stockholders’ Agreement dated as of February 9, 1998, as amended (the "Stockhoiders'
Agreement”). The Stockholders’ Agreement, among other things, provides for representation on our Board of Directors and limiis the
rights of the parties thereto to transler their respective shares of our common stock. Certain provisions of the Stockholders” Agreement
are described below. The “Getly Group” refers collectively to Getty Investments L.L.C., Mr. Mark H. Gelty, Mr. Jonathan D. Klein, the
JO Klein Family Satiiemant, as successor by assignment {rom Crediton Limited (a trust established by Mr. Kiein) (the "Klein Family
Trust™) and the October 1993 Trust {a trust established by Mr. Getty). The “Torrance Group” refers coltectively te PDI, L.L.C.,

Mr. Mark Torrance, Ms. Wade Ballinger (the former wile of Mr. Mark Torrance) and certain of their family members.

Effective May 1, 2003, the Stockholders’ Agreemenl was amended to remove the Torrance Group as a pariy to the agreemenl, There-
fore, with effect from May 1, 2003. the Getty Group alone constitutes the “Significant Stockholders™ contemplated therein,
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Pursuant 10 the Stockholders’ Agreement, as amended, no Significant Stockholder may sel, encumber or otherwise transfer such
Significant Stockholder's shares of common stock except (i) to 2 Permitted Transferee (a5 Jefined below); (i) pursuant to the terms of
the Stockholders' Agreement; {iil} subject to the arrangements within the “Group.” pursuant to a registered public offering of shares of
commaon stock in which, to the knowledge of such selling Significant Stockhalder, no person or “Group™ will purchase more than 5%
of the then outstanding shares of common stock; or (iv) subject to any arrangements within the “Group,” sales within the Rule 144
yolume Hmitation, or in 3 cashless exercise of options. A “Permitted Transteree” is defined generally as (i) Geity Images or its sub-
sidiasies: (ii) in the case of any Significant Stockholder who is a natural person, a persan tc whom shares of cornmon siock are trans-
terred from such Significant Stackholder by gift, will ar the Jaws of descent and disiribution; (iii) any other member of the Getty Group;
{iv) any affiliate of any Significant Stockhalder; or (v} with respect to the taking of an encumbrance, any commercial bank or other
financial institution that lends {unds to a Significant Stockholder on condition of taking suca encumbrance.

if any Significant Stockholder (a “Prospeclive Seller”) receives from or negotiates with a person, other than a Permitied Transferee or
another Significant Stockholder (a “Stockhoiders’ Agreement Third Party”), a bona fide offer 10 purchase any or all of such Pro-
spective Sefler's shares of commaon stock (the “Olfered Stock™} and such Prospective Seller intends to sell the Ofiered Stock to such
Stockholder's Agreement Third Party, the Prospective Seller must provide written notice {the "Offer Notice®) of such offer 1o Getty
Images. The Offer Notice will constitute an offer by such Prospective Seller to sell to the recipients of such Offer Notice all {but not
less than all) ¢f the Offered Stock at the price per share of common stock at which the sale to the Stockholders' Agreement Third
Party is proposed o be made in cash and will be irrevocable for ten days after receipt of such Offer Notice. The Prospective Seller has
the right 1o reject any or all of the acceptances of the offer to sell the Offered Stock and sel @ll, but not less than all. the Offered Stock
to the Stockholders” Agreement Third Party if (i} the Prospective Seller has not received acceptances as to all the Offered Stock prior
1o the expiration of the ten-day period following receipt of the Offer Notice, or (i) an accepting party fails to consummate the purchase
of the Offered Stock and Getly Images is not prepared to purchase such Offered Stock with n five business days of receiving notice of
such {ailed purchase. .

Pursuant to the Stockholders’ Agreement, the Getly Group has the right, subjecl to termination conditions, to nominate one director.
For s0 long as the Getty Group has the right to nominate one direclor of Getty Images, it also has the right to appoint the Chairman
from among the directors of Getty Images, provided, however, that for so long as Mark H. Getty is the Chairman ar Co-Chairman of the
Board, such right is not in effect.

The Gelty investments Registration Rights Agreement. In connection with the consummation of the merger of the businesses
of Gelty Communications Limited {our predecessor} and PhotaDisc, Inc. {the “Transactians '}, Getly images entered into a Registration
Rights Agreements with Getty Investments L.L.C. dated as of February 9, 1998 {the “Getty Investmenis Registration Rights
Agreement”).

Pursuant to the terms of the Gelty Invesiments Registration Rights Agreement. Getty Investments L.L.C., subject 1o the lerms and
conditions sel forth in the Getty Investments Registration Rights Agreement, may require Getty Images to flile a registration slalement
with respect 1o all or a portion of Getly Invesiments L.L.C.’s shares of common stock {a "Ge-ty Demand Right”), subject to certain limi-
tations that may be imposed by \he managing underwriter. Getty Invesiments L.L.C. has a total of five Getty Demand Rights. in addi-
tion (o its Getty Demand Rights. Getty Investments L..L.C. has the right to have any or all of its shares of common stock inciuded in
any registration by Getty Images with respect to an offering of commaon stock (a “Getty Piggv-Back Right"), subject 10 certain limi-
tations thal may be imposed by the managing underwriter. Both the Getty Demand Rights and the Getty Piggy-Back Rights will termi-
nate on the earlier of (i) the date that all of the shares of common stock held by Getty Investments L.L.C. can be sold within a three-
month period under the volume limitation of Rule 144(e) of the Securities Act, or (i} the 15:h anniversary of the date of the Getty
Investments Registralion Rights Agreement.

The Gelty Investments Registration Rights Agreement was amended on November 22, 1999, to include the right to register an addi-
tional 1,579,353 shares of common stock that were acquired by Gelty Investments L.L.C. on November 22, 1999.

In addition 1o the registzation rights described above, on the consummation of the Transactions, Getly Images assumed the obligations
of Getly Communications Limited and PhoteDisc, Inc. with respect 1o certain demand and piggy-back registration rights granted by
the companies to cerfain of their respective sharenolders, including, in the case of PhotoDisc, Inc., certain registration rights granted
1o holders of its Series A Preferred Stock, and, in the case of Getty Communications Limited, certain registration rights granted to the
October 1593 Trust and the Klein Family Trust, Messrs. Getty and Klein, RiT Capital Parineis, Mr. Anthony Stone, Mr. Lawrence
Gould and The Schwartzberg Family L.P.
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Getty Investments L.L.C. Company Agreement. Getty Investments L.L.C. was formed on October 4, 2006 with the merger of
Getty tnvestments LLC., a Delaware limited liabitity company-("Old Getty Investments”} with and into Getty Investments Continuation
L.L.C., a Delaware limited liabitity company {“New Getty Investments”). New Getty Investments was formed with the objective of con-
tinuing Qld Getty Investmenis, which would have otherwise terminated on October 5, 2006. On Qctober 4, 2006, Old Getty Invest-
ments was merged with and into New Getty investments. Upon the consummation of the merger, the existence of Qld Getty
Investments ceased, New Getty Investiments survived and the name of New Getty Investments was changed to Getty Investmenis
L.LC.

Getty investments L.L.C. Is now governed by an operaling agreement dated October 4, 2006 among the New Geity Members, {“The
New Getty Invesiments Company Agreement”). The term of the New Getty Investors Company Agreement eénds on October 5, 2007
unless earlier terminated upon the written agreement of a majoarity in interest of the members. Getty Investments L.L.C. members {the
“New Getty Members”) are now comprised of three Getty family trusts: the Cheyne Walk Trust, the Ronald Family Trust A and the
Ronald Family Trust B. As of March 1, 2007, the New Getty Members own, collectively, 100% of the membership interests of Getty
Investments L.L.C., with the Cheyne Walk Trust, the Ronald Family Trust A and the Ronald Family Trust B owning 55.2%, 24.4% and
20.4%, respectively.

The Getty Investments L.L.C. board of direclors consists of five directors. Four of the five directors are appointed as follows: the
Cheyne Walk Trust appoints two directors, the Ronatd Family Trust A and the Ronald Family Trust B jointly appolnt two directors. The
fifth director is Jonathan D. Klein, so long as he remains Chief Executive Officer of Getly Images. In the event Jonathan D, Kiein
ceases to be the chief executive officer of Getty Images, the lifth directorship position will be eliminated unless and until a majority in
interest of the members votes 10 appaint a successar to il such position. Mark H. Getty serves as the chairman of the board of Getty
Investments L.L.C. for so Jong as he serves as a director of Getty Investments L.L.C. Decisions of the Getty Investments L.L.C. board of
directors require the approval (at a meeting or by written consent) of a simple majority of the total number of directors unless other-
wise provided in the New Gelty Investments Company Agreement. Of the five members of the Getly Investments L.L.C. Board of Direc.
tors, two (Mr. Getty and Mr. Kiein) are also members of the Getty Images Board of Directors. There are currently no voting
arrangements whereby one member of Getty Investments L.L.C. can control a majority of the members of the Getty tnvestments L.L.C,
Board of Directors.

Getty Images Trademarks. Getty Images, direcily or through its subsidiaries, hes trademark registrations and applications for
trademark registrations in respect of the name Gelty Images, and derivatives thereof and the related logos (together, the “Getty
Images Trademarks®). Getty Images and Getly Investments L.L.C. have agreed that in the event that Getly Images becomes controlled
by a third party or parties not affitiated with the Getty family, Getty Investments L.L.C. will have the right to call for an assignment to it,
for a nominal sum, of all rights to the Getty Images Trademarks. On such assignment, Getty Images will be permitted to continue to
use the Getty Images Trademarks for 12 months, and thereafter it will have to cease such use.

Indemnification. Getty Images has agreed Lo indemnify Gelty Investments L.L.C. and its members for liabililies arising in connection
with the merger of the business of Getty Communications Limited and PhotoDisc, Inc. as well as various securities offerings by Getty
Images. |n addition, Getty Images has entered into agreements ta indemnify its Direclors and certain executive officers, in agdition to
indemnification provided for in our Bylaws and Restated Certificate of incorporation. These agreements, among other things,
indemnify our Directors and certain executive officers for certain expenses (inCluding attorneys' fees), judgments, fines and settle-
ment amounts incurred by any such person in any action or proceeding, including any action by or in the right of Getty Images, aris-
ing out of such person’s services as a Director ar executive officer of Getty Images, any subsidiary of Getly Images or any other
campany or enterprise to which the person provides services at our request. We believe that these provisions and agreements are
necessary to attract and relain qualified persons as Directors and executive officers,
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Acquisitions of Evolvs Media and Paper Thin Walls. Mr. Livingstone was the sole shareholder (through a wholly owned com-
pany) of Evolvs Media Inc. Evolvs Media was a technology company, employing approximately 20 people, most ol whom are software
developers. Getty Images purchased most of Evolvs Media®s assets from Evolvs Media for C$235,000 in May 2007. As part of its
acquisition of Evolvs Media, Getty images also assumed the rights and obligations of Evolvs Megia pursuant to a lease lor commercial
real estate owned by Mr. Livingstone at a cost of approximately C$60,000 per year for a term ol five years. '

Mr. Livingstone also was the controlling sharenelder of a company called Paper Thin Walls Inc. There is only one other shareholder of
this company. Getty Images purchased all of Paper Thin Wall's assels from Paper Thin Walls for C$965,000 in June 2007,

While Mr. Livingstone was not an executive officer of Getty Images at the time the Evolvs Medla transaction occurred, given the prox-
imity of the transaction to his designation as an Executive Officer in May 2007 and the integrated nature of the two transactions, Gelty
Images treated them as transactions with a related person for purposes of item 404 of Regulation S-K. Consequently, these trans-
actions were approved by the Board of Directors and were disclosed in a Current Report on Form B-K filed on May 9, 2007, The
Board of Directors alsa waived the Code of Ethics and Code of Business Conduct provisions prohibiting conflicts af interest (or the
appearance thereol) between the private interests of Mr. Livingstene with the interests of Getly Images for these transactions. and for
the real estate lease involving Evolvs Media. In doing so, the Board noted that waivers of these Codes will enly occur in rare circum-
stances, that the each of the transactions are in the best interests of the company and that the amount of money involved in the trans-
actions is relatively small.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The following table presents the aggregate fees billed for professional services rendered by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the compa-
ny's independent registered public accounting firm. for the audit of the company’s financial statements and tor other services for the
years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005:

2006 2005
(1) Audit lees $ 1,651,474 % 1,427,356
{2) Audit-related lees 97.080 223,544
(3) Tax fees — 1.729
(4) All other lees 350 204

1 The amount reflected here includes audits of our annual financial stalements, cur internal cantrol over financial reporting, reviews of our
guarterly linancial statemenis, statutory audits of our foreign subsidiarles, work refated to the review of our equity compensation grant practi-
ces, work related 10 the exchange offer invalving our convertible suborginated debt, consents and assistance with reviews of documents filed
with the SEC.

2 This amount includes lees for due diligence for potential acquisitions and audit of an employee benefit plan.

3 This amount includes lees related to tax compllance, advice, and planning.

In 2006, 100% of the fees in categories (1) - (4) were approved by the Audit Commitiee. The services included under {3) “Tax Fees”
were appioved by the Audit Committee pursuant to the de minimis exception set forth in Section 2-01{e)(7){iMc} of Regulation 5-X. A
copy of the Audit Commitiee's Audit and Non-Audit Services Pre-Approval Policy (the “Policy™). which was adopted by the Audit
Commitiee in March 2003 and amended most recently in June 2004, may be found in the Corporate Governance section of Getty
Images' website, located at www.gettyimages.com. The Palicy sets forth the procedures and conditions under which services are
pre-approved by the Audit Committee, such as audit services, audit-related services, and certain tax services: services that are
pre-approved by the Audit Committee on a case-by-case basis; and services that the company’s independent registered public
accounting firm is prohibited from performing,
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PART ¥

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(A) DOCUMENTS FILED AS PART OF THIS REPORT
1. Consolidated Financial Statements {See Index to Consolidated Financial Statements on page F-1 of this Report};

All financial statement schedules are omitted because the required information is not present, is not present in amounis sufficient 1o

require submission of the schedule, or because the infermation required is included in our Consolidated Financial Statements or
notes thereto.

(B) EXHIBITS

Exhiblt
Number Description of £xhibit
31 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Getty Images, Inc. (6)
3.2 Bylaws of Getty Images, Inc., as amended (15}
4.1 Specimen Common Stock certificate (7)
4.2 Indenture relating to Getty Images, Inc.'s 0.5% Subordinated Convertible Debentures, Series A, due 2023, dated June 9,
2003 (7)
4.3 First Supplemental Indenture relating to Getty images. Inc.’s 0.5% Subordinated Convertible Debentures, Series A, due
2023, dated July 30, 2003 ()
4.4 Indenture relating to Gelty Images, Inc.'s 0.5% Subordinated Convertible Debentures, Series B, due 2023, dated

December 16, 2004 {16)
45 Form of Debenture (7}

10.1 *  Amended and Restated Employment Agreement between Getty Images, Inc. and Jonathan D. Klein, effective August 1,
2005 (11D

10.2 *  Employment Agreement between Getty images, Inc. and Thomas Oberdorf, dated June 12, 2006 (5}

10.3 Credit Agreement, dated July 19, 2002, among Getty images, Inc. and Bank of America, N.A. (5}

10.4 Restated Option Agreement among Getty images, Inc., Getty Communications plc and Getty Invesiments L.L.C. dated
February 9, 1998 (14}

10.5 Stockholders’ Agreement among Getty Images, Inc. and certain stockholders of Getty Images, inc. dated February 9, 1698
{14)

10.6 Registration Rights Agreement among Getly Images, Inc. and Getly Investments L.L.C. (14)

10.7 Restated Sharehalders' Agreement among Getty images, Inc., Getty Investments L.L.C. and the Investors named therein
dated February 9, 1998 (14)

10.8 Registration Rights Agreement dated July 3, 1996 among Getty Communications ple, Crediton Limited and October 1993
Trust and Form of Amendment among Getty Images, Inc., Getty Communications ple, Crediton Limited and October 1993
Trust (14)

10.9 Regisiration Rights Agreement dated July 3, 1996 among Getty Communications plc, Hambro European ventures Limited,

Hambro Group Investments Limited, RIT Capital Partners pic and Anthony Stone and Form of Amendment among Getty
Images, Inc., Getty Communications pic and The Schwartzberg Family L.P. (14}

10.10 Indemnity between Getty Images, Inc. and Getty Investments L.L.C., dated January 1998 (14)
10.11 Indemnity between Gelty Images, Inc. and Getty investments L.L.C., dated November 22, 1999 (2)
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Exhibit
Number Description of Exhibil

10.12 Form of Indemnity among Getty images, Inc., Getty Communications pic and ¢ach of Mark Gelty, Mark Torrance, Jonathan
Klein, Lawrence Gould, Andrew Garb, Manny fernandez. Christopher Sporbory, Anthony Stone and James Bailey (14)

10.13 Lease dated October 18, 1995 between Allied Dunbar Assurance plc and Tony Stone Assaciates Limited (1)
10.14 Lease dated October 22, 2004 between Bantry Investments Limited and Getty Images UK Limited (11)
10.15 Lease dated November 30, 1999 between the Quadrant Corparation and Getly Images, Inc. (2}

10.16 Lease dated April 1, 2000 between PhotaDisc, Inc. and The Rector, Church-Wardens and Vestrymen of Trinity Church in
the City of New York {4)

1017 Sublease dated November 5, 2001 between PhotoDise, Inc. and Mosgan Stanley D.W. Inc. (3
10.18 Amendment to Sublease dated Novemnber 20, 2001 between PhotoDisc, inc. and Morgan Stanley D.W. Inc. (3}

10.19 First Amendment of Lease dated October 31, 2001 between PhatoDisc, Inc. and The Rector, Church-Wardens and
vestrymen of Trinity Church in the City of New York (3)

10.20 Second Amendment of Lease dated Navember 20, 2001 between PhotoDisc, Inc. and The Rector, Church-Wardens and
Vestrymen of Trinity Church in the City of New York {3)

10.21 Third Amendment of Lease dated January 1, 2006 between PhotoDisc, inc. ard The Rectar, Church-Wardens and
Vestrymen of Trinity Church in the City of New York (16)

10.22 Getty Images, Inc. 2005 Incentive Plan (9}
10.23* Employment Agreement between Getty Images, Inc. and Jefirey L. Beyle, dated August 1, 2002 (6)

10.24 Registration Rights Agreement dated June 9, 2003 among Getty Images, Inc., Deutsche Bank Securities Inc. and
Goldman, Sachs & Ca. (7)

10.25 First Amendment ta the Credit Agreement entered into as of June 27, 2003 anwng Getty Images. Inc. and Bank of
America N.A (7)

10.26 Second Amendment to the Credil Agreement entered into as of May 12, 2004 amang Geity Images, Inc. and Bank of
America N.A. (8)

10.27 Third Amendment to the Stockholders” Agreement dated February 9, 1998 amang Getly Images, Inc. and certain
stockholders of Getty Images, Inc. effective May 1, 2003 (7)

10.28° Employment Agreemeni between Getly Images. Inc. and Patrick F. Flynn, dated August 16. 2004 (16}
10.29* Employment Agreement between Getty Images, Inc. and Dr. Jack Sansalo, dated November 8, 2004 (16)
10.30° Form of Employee Stock Option Agresment (12}

10.31* Form of Non-Executive Director Stock Option Agreement (10}

10.32°  Form of Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (10)

10.33°  Form of Executive Stock Option Agreement (11)

10.34 Share sale agreement dated April 20, 2005 betwaen Shisheida Anstalt and Getty Images {UK} Limited relating to Digita!
vVision Limited {13)

10.35 Intellectual property assignment agreement dated April 20, 2005 between Getty images (Cayman) Limited and Digital
Holding & Licensing S.A. (13}

10.36 Share purchase agreement between Amana inc, and Getty Images, Inc. dated as of May 12, 2005 (16}
10.37* Form of Executive Restricted Stock Unit Agreement (16)

10.38 Acquisition agreement between Gelty Images, Inc. and Pixet Images Holding Limited, the parent company of Star Media
limited (dba Stockbyte) and Stockdisc Limited, dated as of April 6, 2006 (17)
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Exhibit

Number Descriplion of Exhibit

10.39 Acquisilion agreement between Getty Images, Inc. and MediaVasl, Inc., dated as of February 21, 2007 (18)

10.40 Sublease agreement between Getty Images (US), Inc, and New York Magazine Holdings L.L.C., dated as of March 12,
2007 (19)

10.41 US Bank Credit Facllity, dated as of March 19, 2007 (20)

10.42* Separation agreement between Dr. fack Sansolo and Getty Images, Inc., dated as of May 4, 2007 (21)

10.43
12.1
211
231
311
31.2
321
322

{n
(2}
3}
(4}
{5}
(3]
7
8}
(9}
(10
(i
(12}
(13)
(14)

(15
(16)
an
(18}
(19)

Sublease agreement between Getty Images (US), Inc. and Cardinia Rea) Estate LLC, dated as of May 3, 2007 (22)
Statement regarding computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges (23)

Subsidiaries of the Registrant (23)

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm (23}

Section 302 Cerification by Jonathan D. Klein, GEO (23)

Section 302 Certification by Thomas Oberdorf, CFO (23}

Section 906 Certification by Jonathan D. Klein, CEQ (23)

Section 906 Certification by Thomas Oberdorf, CFO (23)

Indicates management coniracts or compensatory plans or arrangements.

Incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K far the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997,
Incorparated by reference from the Exhiblts to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999,
Incorporated by reference fram the Exhibits to the Registrant’s Annual Repart on Form 10-K for the fiscal year enced December 31, 2001.
Ingorporated by reference from the Exhibits to the Registrant’s Quartery Report on Form 10-Q, for the period ended March 31, 2000.
Incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to the Registrant's Quarterly Repert on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2002,
Incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2002.
Incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2003.
tncorporated by reference from the Exhibits to the Registrant’s Quarterty Report on Form 10-Q for the period ended June 30, 2004,
incorporated by reference from the Exhibits {0 the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 6, 2005,

Incorporated by reference from the Exhibits io the Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004.
incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to the Registrant’s Cuarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the pericd ended June 30, 2005.
Incorporated by reference from the Exhibits (o the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the pericd ended September 30, 2005.
Incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to the Registrant’s Amended Current Repart on Form 8-K/A fileg April 22, 2005.

Incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Amendment No. 3 to Form $-4 on Form S-4/A
filed December 23, 1997.

Incarporated by reference fram the Exhibits to the Registrant’s Current Repart on Form 8-K (iled December 15, 2005.

Incorporated by reference from the Exhibits to the Registrant’s Annual Repart on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2005.
Incorporated by reference from Exhibits to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed April 6, 2006.

Incorperated by reference from Exhibits to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K fitedd February 23, 2007.

Incorparated by reference from Exhibits to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 16, 2007.

Incorporated by reference from Exhibits to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed March 23, 2007,

{ncor porated by reference from Exhibits 1o the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 9, 2007.

incorporated by reference from Exhibits to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K filed May 11, 2007.

Filed herewith,
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SIGNATURES
Pursuani 1o the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934. the Registrant has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

GETTY IMAGES. INC,

By: /& THomas OBERDORF

Thomas Gberdorf
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

June 12, 2007

We, the undersigned directors and executive officers of the Registrant, hereby severally constitute Jenathan D, Klein and Thomas
Oberdorf and each of them singly, our true and lawful atterneys with full power to them and each of them 1o sign for us. and in our
names in the capacities indicated below, any and all amendmentis to the Annual Report ¢n Form 10-K filed with the Securities and
Exchange Commission, hereby ratifying and confirming our signatures as they may be signed by our said atterneys lo any and all
amendments to said Annuai Report on Form 10-K.

Pursuant 1o the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed on June 12, 2007, by the fotlowing
persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities indicated below:

SIGNATURE TITLE (CAPACITY)
I8 _Mark H, GeTy Chairman and Director
Mark H. Getty

Chief Executive Qfficer and Direclor

15/ JONATHAN D. KLEIN
{Ptincipal Executive Officer)

Jonathan D. Klein

Senior Vice Presidant and Chief Financial Officer
{Principal Financiul Otficer and Principal Accounting

18/ THOMAS OBERDORF
Thomas Oberdorf

Officer)
s James N, Baey Director
James N. Bailey
/s! Anprew S. Garp Director
Andrew S. Garb
/i ALan G, Sroon Director
Alan G. Spoon
/5! CHRISTOPHER H. SPORBORG Director
Christopher H. Sporborg
/s/ MicHAEL A, STEIN Director

Michael A. Steln
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INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Getty images, Inc.

We have completed integrated audits ol Getly Images, Inc.’s consolidated financial statements and of its internal control gver financial
reperling as of December 31, 2006 in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States). Our opinions, based on our audits, are presented below,

Consolidated financial statements

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the index appearing under tem 15(a)(1) present fairly, in atl material
respects, the financial position of Getty images, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the resulis of their
operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2006 in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's
management. Qur responsibliity is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits
of these slatements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obiain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and
evaluating the overall financial siatement preseniation. We believe that our audiis provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company has restated its fiscal 2005 and fiscal 2004 con-
solidated {inancial statements.

As discussed in Note 9 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company changed the manner in which it accounts for share-
based compensation in 2006.

internal control over financial reporiing

Also, in our opinion, management’s assessmen;, included in Management's Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting appearing
under Item 9A, thal the Company maintained eflective internal contral over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 based on criteria
estabiished in Internal Control - Integrated Framework issued by the Commitiee of Sponscring Organizations of the Treadway Commission
{COSO0), is fairly stated, in all materal respects, based on those criteria. Furthermore, In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all
material respects, effective internal contro! over financial repocting as of December 31, 2006, based on criteria established in {nternal
Control - Integrated Framework issued by the COSQ. The Company's management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting. Our responsibility is to express
opinions on management's assessment and on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our
audit. We conducted our audit of internat control over financial reporting in accordance with the standards of ithe Public Company Account-
ing Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether eflective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. An audit of internal control over financial
reparting includes obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management's assessment, testing and
evalualing the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such other procedures as we consider necessary in
the circumstances. We believe that gur audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

A company's internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financlal reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted account-
ing principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporling includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (i} provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorged as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.

As described in Management's Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, management has excluded the Company's iStockphoto
business unit from its assessment of internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2006 because this business unit was
acquired by the Company in a purchase business combination during 2006. We have also excluded the iStockpholo business unit from our
audit of internal controt over financial reporting, iStockphoto is a wholly-owned subsidiary whose total assets and tolal revenues are both
less than 4% of the related consolidated financial statement amounts as of and for the year ended December 31, 2006.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance wilh the policies or procedures may delerigrate.

Is! PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP

Seattle, Washington
June 12, 2007




F-3 GETTY IMAGES, INC. 2006 FORM 10-K

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

PART 1Y (TEM 15(A)

2005 2004
YEZARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 Restated Restatad
{In thousands, except per shate smounts)
Revenue $ 806,589 § 733,176 $ 622,250
Cost of revenue {exclusive of items shown separately below) 206,761 196,887 172,684
Selling, general and administrative expenses {including stock-based compensation of
$15.278, $1.269 and $576 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004,
respectively) 302,729 252,103 225,128
Depreciation 53,254 48,572 52,976
Amortization 19,680 9,519 4,559
Restructuring costs 27,258 — —
Other operating {income} expenses {1,185) 717 (1,187}
Operating expenses 608,497 507,798 454,160
Income [rom operations 198,092 225,378 168,090
Invesiment income 8,834 11,991 9,133
Interest expense (1,506} (7,618) {3.828)
Other non-operating expenses {income), net (744} 350 a67
income before income taxes 204,676 230,101 173,862
Income 1ax expense (74,248) {80,740) (67,450}
Net income $ 130,428 3 149,361 $ 106,412
Earnings per share
Basic $ 2.15 % 243 % 1.80
Diluted 2.11 2.27 1.72
Shares used in computing earnings per share
Basic 60,733 61,567 59,006
Diluted 61,711 65,744 62,031

See Note 2. *Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements and $pecial Committee and Company Findings” of the Notes to Con-

solidated Financial $Stalements.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements




F-4 GETTY IMAGES, INC. 2006 FORM 10-K

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31,

PART IV ITEM )5{A}

2008
2006 Restated

{In theusands, except par value)

ASSETS

Current assels
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-lerm investments
Accounts receivable, net
Prepaid expenses
Oeferred income taxes, nel
Other current assets

Total current assels
Property and equipment, net
Goodwill
Igentifiable intangibte assets, net
Deferred income taxes, net
Other long-lerm assets

Total assets

$ 339466 $ 223,084

- 295,191
121,232 107,020
13,685 11,815
11,142 -
1,500 8,553
487,025 645,663
147,133 127,497
1,001,027 804,804
77,234 50,206
—_ 29,827

1,965 4,211

$ 1714384 § 1,662,208

LIABILITIES AND STOCXHOLDERS' EGUITY
Current liabilities

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Income taxes payable

Deferred income taxes, net

Short-term debt

Other current liabillties

Total current liabilities
Long-term debt
Deferred income taxes, net
Other tong-term liabitities

Total liabilities

Commitments and contingencies (Note 7)
Stockholders' equity

Preferred stock. no par value, 5,000 shares authorized; no shares issued
Common stock, $0.01 per share par value, 100,000 shares aulhorized: 62,582 shares issued and
59,096 shares outstanding at December 31, 2006 and 62,265 shares issued and ouistanding ai

December 31, 2005
Additional paid-in capital
Common stock repurchased
Retained earnings {Accumulated deficit}

Accumulated other comprehensive income (foss) (Nole 8)

Total stockholders’ equily
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

$ 74297 $ 72344

39,412 38,676
6,353 -
- 17,228

- 265,000
13,139 4,122

133,201 397,370
265,000 —

11,596 -
56,350 23,480
466,147 420,850
626 623
1,321,645 1,296,310
(207,676) —
91,459 {38,969)
42,183 {16,606)

1,248,237 1,241,358
$ 1,714,384 $ 1,662,208

See Note 2. “Restatement of Consolidated Financial Statements and Special Commitiee and Company Findings™ of the Notes to Con-

solidated Financial Statements.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
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No, of
Shares of Retained Accumylated
Common Additienal Common Earnings Other
Stk Common Paid-In Stock  (Accumulated  Comprebensive
Outstanding Stock Capital  Repurchased Deficit) tnceme (Loss) Total
(in thousgnds)
Balance at December 31, 2003, as reported 57.331 $ 573 §$ 1097801 § - 8§ (275.253) $ 12685 $ 835805
Cumuiative effeci of restalement on prior
years —_— _— 22,772 —_ {19.489) (6,428) {3,145)
Balance at December 31. 2003. restated 57,331 $ 573 §$ 1120573 % —_ $ (294,742) $ 6257 $% B32661
Net income, restated — - -— - 106,412 —_ 106,412
Other comprehensive income - - — - — 3.959 3,959
Recognition of unearned compensation —_ -_ 448 —_ —_ —_ 448
Stock oplions exercised 3,404 34 73,954 —_ — — 73,992
Tax benefit from employee slock option
exercises, restaled — — 35.642 — — - 35,642
Restricted slock vesting -_ _ 55 -— — -— 55
Batance al December 31, 2004, restaled 60,735 $ 607 § 1,230682 % —  $(183,330) $ 10216 § 1,053,175
Nel income, restated - -— — - 149,361 — 149,361
Other comprehensive loss — —_ - - — (26,822) (26.822)
Restricted stock unit vesting 9 1 —_ —_ — - 1
Restricted stock unit cancellations - - (169) - — - (169)
Recognition of unearned campensation - — 1,202 - - —_ 1,202
Stock oplions exercised 1,621 15 42,157 —_ - — 42,172
Tax benefit from employe¢ slock option
exercises, restaled — —_ 22,377 —_ _ — 22,377
Restricted stock vesting - - 61 - —_ - 61
Balance ai December 31, 2005, restated 62,265 $ 623 3$1296310 § — $ (38.969) $ (16,606) $ 1,241,358
Net income —_— —_ - - 130,428 - 130.428
Other comprehensive income — —_ - - - 58.789 58,789
Stock option expense - - 6,631 — — _ 6,631
Restricted stock unit expense 25 - 9.510 - - - 9,510
Restricted stock unit cancefialions 6) — {3600 - — - {360}
Common stock repurchased (3,486) —_ —_ (207,676} - —_ (207.676)
Stock options exercised 297 3 8,014 —_ —_ -_— 8017
Tax benelit {rom employee stock oplion
exercises - — 1,525 - - — 1.525
Resiricled stock vesting 1 - 15 — -_— - 15
Balence at December 31, 2006 59,086 $ 626 $ 1321645 $ (207.676) & 91459 $ 42,183 § 1.248,237

See Note 2. “Reslatement of Consolidated Financial Statements and Special Committee anc Company Findings™ of the Notes to Con-

solidated Financial Statements.

The accompanying noles are an integrai part of these Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
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2005 2004
YCARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 Raststed Rustates
{In thousands)
Cash fiows from operating aclivities
Net income $ 130,428 $ 149,361 $ 106,412
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Employee stock-based compensation 15,278 1,269 576
Reduction of income taxes paid due 1¢ the tax benefit irom employee steck based
compensation 9,398 68,788 4,820
Depreciation 53,254 48,572 52,976
Loss on leased properties, net 21,663 — —
Amortization of igentifiable intangible assets 15,680 9519 4,559
Amortization of debt issvance and exchange costs 67 6,060 1,915
Loss on sale of available-for-sale investments 3,956 - —
Deferred income laxes 2,814 1,933 49,671
Bad debt expense 4,426 2,739 3,239
Other changes in lang-term assets, liabilities and equily 3,797 2,763 3.031
Changes In current assets and liabilities, net of effects of business acquisitions:
Accounts receivable (4,421) (15,159 (16,006}
Accounts payable {9,811) (9,783} (530)
Accrued expenses (3,747) {8,776} (2,510
Income laxes payable 11,344 (2.486) (4,039)
Changes in other current assets and liabilities 10,977 2,477 {1,532)
Net cash provided by operating activilies 269,103 257.277 202,582
Cash flows from investing activilies
Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acquired {198,319) {234,432) {25,611)
Acquisition of available-for-sale investments {9,330) (101,575}  (341,671)
Proceeds from available-for-sale investments 304,443 129,619 263,398
Acquisition of property and equipment (61,543) (57,766} (36,723)
Other investing aclivilies 300 (643) 45
Net cash provided by {used in) investing activilies 35,551 (264,797} {140,561)
Cash flows from financing activities
Common stock repurchased (207,676} — -
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock 8,017 42,172 73,998
Reduction ¢f income taxes paid due to windlall tax benefits 2,217 — —
Other financing activities (5) (558) (1,429}
Net cash (used in) provided by financing activities (197,447) 41,614 72,569
Effects of exchange rate changes 9,175 {5.762) 3.144
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 116,382 28,332 137,734
Cash and cash equivalenis:
beginning of year 223,084 194,752 57,018
end of year $ 339466 $§ 223,084 $ 194,752
Supplemental disclosures
Interest paid $ 1,506 § 1,343 ¢ 1912
Income taxes paid, including foreign taxes withheld 45,814 18,191 22,189

Non-cash investing and linancing activities
Convertible subordinated debentures exchanged
Convertible subordinated debentures, Series B, issued

3 —_—

$ (2.000) $ (263,000}
2,000 263,000

See Note 2. "Reslatement of Consolidated Financial Statements and Special Commitlee and Company Findings” of the Notes to Con-

splidated financial Statements.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consalidated Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1. DESCRIPTION OF THE BUSINESS

Getty images, In¢. and subsidiaries (“Getly Images,” "the company,” “we"}, was founded in 1995 and is a leading creator and distrib-
utor of visual content and one of the first places creative professionals turn to discover, license and manage imagery. The company’'s
award-winning photographers and imagery help customers create inspiring work which appears every day in the world's most influen-
lial newspapers, magazines, advertising campaigns, fitms, television programs, books and websites. Headquartered in Sealtle, Wash-
inglon and serving customers in mare than 100 countries, we dellver our products digitally via the Internet and CDs. Our imagery is
licensed through company-owned offices, a global network of delegates, who act as sales agents where we don't have wholly-owned
offices. and distributors. We pioneered the seittion to aggregate and distribute visual content and, since 1995, have brought many of
the visual content industry's leading imagery onlo geltyimages.com and in 2006 added istuckphoto.com.

We pravide high qualily, relevant imagery 10: crealive professionals at advertising agencies, graphic design firms, corporations, film
and broadcasting companies; editorial customers involved in newspaper, magazine, book, CD and online publishing: and corperate
marketing departments and other business customers. By aggregating the content of our various leading imagery collections on the
Internet and parinering with cther imagery providers, we offer a comprenhensive and user-friendly sotution for our Customers’ imagery
needs. Qur goa! is to be the leading image sclutions provider in every major market, offering visual communications protessionals
imagery and retated services at multipie price points on multiple platforms.

NOTE 2. RESTATEMENTS OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SPECIAL COMMITTEE AND COMPANY
FINDINGS

As announced on November 9, 2006, a Special Committee was established by cur 8oard of Directors to conduct an independent
investigation relating to the company's equily compensation grant practices and related accounting for equity compensation grants,
The Special Committee consisted of wo independent members of our Board of Directors who were assisted in their investigation by
independent outside legal counsel.

Together with its independent counsel, the Special Commitiee conducted an extensive review of equily compensation grant practices
and awards made by the company, or in connection with companies we acquired, between July 14, 1994 and November 1, 2006 {the
“Relevant Period”), which covered 7,102 stock eption grants and 1,062 restricted stock unit (*RSU") grants. During the investigation,
numerous documents were reviewed. and extensive interviews of curcent and former employees and directors of the company and
other individuvals were conducted by the Special Committee's independent counsel. On April 10, 2007, the Special Committee pre-
sented its findings to the Board of Directors.

As also announced on November 9, 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission {(the “SEC"} had earlier notified us that it is
conducting an informat inquiry into the company’s equity compensation grant practices. Ve continue to cooperate fully with the SEC
in this infarmal inquiry.

The Speclal Committee’s Conclusions

The Special Committee concluded that the evidence obtained and reviewed in ils investigation did ngt establish any intentional wrong-
doing by current employees, officers or directors of the company. The Special Commiitee and the company's management have
determined that incorrect measurement dates for certain equity compensation awards weie used for financial accounting purposes
and certain previously issued grants were modified withoul properly recording compensation expense and, as a result, we are restat-
ing certain of our prior financial statements to correct the accounting o1 those awards. The use of incorrect measurement dates
resulted from a number of reasons, inciuding gelays in the approval of awards, the absence of definitive documentation and mod-
ifications of previously awarded grants, The Special Commitiee also identified certain sawards for which grant dates were selected
retroactively, However, the Special Committee has concluded that the evidence does not establish that there was any intentional
wrongdeing in connection with those awards, Nearly all of the grants for which the measurement dates have been changed
{approximately 99% of the granis) were awarded in 2001 and earlier years.

In addition to the adjustments to our previously filed financial statements as described abave, the Board of Directors has adopted the
following recommendations of the Special Committee.

* Two additional independent directors will be recruited and appointed to the company's Board of Directors.
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» Membership of the Audit and Compensation Committees of the Board of Direclors will be changed.

* The Equity Compensaticn Committee has been discontinued.

» Enhancements will be made in the oversight of the company’s corporate governance practices with respect to the company's equity compen-
sation programs.

* Senior management will be charged with ensuring thai the equity compensation policies and processes are approprigie and provide effec-
tive controls, and that the company’s accounting for equity compensation is appropriate.

+ Certain of the company’s equity compensation administrative processes and functions will move from the company’s human resources
organization ta the finance organization, under the supervision of the Chief Financial Officer.

« The Board of Directors unanimously adopted an Equity Compensation Grant Policy on April 10, 2007, which provides, among cther things,
that:

« Al terms of each equily grant must be finalized and approved by the Board of Directors or the Compensation Committee on or prior 10
the grant date;

* All stock oplions must have an exercise price equal to or greater than the average of the high and low process on the grant date;

» All recipients of equity grants must be nolified, in writing, of such grants as soon as possible following approval; and

* Any equity compensation issues or actions will be reported by senior management gn a limely basis to the Board of Directors or the
Compensation Committee, no less frequently than quarterly,

Background

Between 1994 and 1996, the Board of Directors granted stock options to Getty Communications {Getty Images' predecessor) employ-
ees and in connectlion with acquisitions, including grants to employees and officers of acquired companies. From 1996 to 1998, the
Compensation Committee had the authority Lo, and did, grant oplions to employees, officers and directors. From August 1998 through
2001, the Compensation Commitiee continued to grant options to executive officers, and created option “pools” from which the Chief
Executive Officer and Senior Vice Presidents were authorized to grant options o employees and non-executive officers, These pools
were used by the executive officers to grant options in connection with the hiring and promotion of employees or as incentive awards,
In August 2001, the Board of Directars created the Stock Option Commiitee, appointing Chief Executive Officer Jonathan Klein as the
sole member with detegated authority to grant options to employees and non-executive officers. tn 2005, the Stock Option Commitiee
was renamed the Equity Compensation Commiitee, and we maved to primarily granting RSUs rather than options.

A total of 7,102 option granis and 1.062 RSU grants were awarded during the Relevant Period, as follows:

* "Pocl options” in which "pools” of options were approved by the Camnpensation Committee for later grant to employees by executive officers
(2,277 grants).

* "Acquisition option grants” in which options were granted by the Board of Directors or Compensation Commitiee to employees and officers
in connection with our acquisition of other companies and in which outstanding options held by employees of acquired companies were
exchanged for Getty Images aptions at pre-determined conversion ratios (1,464 grants).

s *Qther optian grants” which cover all remaining stock aption grants during the Relevant Period (3,361 grants).

* "RSU grants” in which RSUs were granted by the Equity Compensation Commiltee, the Compensation Committee and the Board of Direc-
lors to employees, officers and directors (1,062 grants).

The Special Committee and the company have delermined it is necessary to revise the measurement dates for approximately 45% of
these awards (“Adjusted Options”}. Over half of the awards 1or which the measuremen! date is being revised refate (o the company's
only all employee grant in February of 2000 to employees below the vice president level. in addition, the measurement dates for many
awards were revised due to: (i) the use of the date of the approval of a pool of options as the measurement date as apposed {o the
date that the terms of each grant were finalized; (il} the use of the date that a8 Unanimous Written Consent approving equity awards
was faxed to Compensation Commitiee members [or their approval, rather than the date when the approvals of the Compensation
Committee members had been faxed back, as the measurement date for the associated grants; and (lii) the absence of a detailed list
of recipients and associated grants prior the date certain grants were entered into our equily award tracking system.
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We previgusly applied Accounting Principles Board (“APB™) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting fur Stock Issued to Employees,” and its
related Interprelations and provided the required pro forma disclosures under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards {*SFAS™)
No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” through our fiscal year ended Deceinber 31, 2005. We have used the accel-
erated method of expensing stock options provided in Financia! Accounting Standards Boaid Imerpretation No. 28, “Accounting for
Stock Appreciation Rights and Other Variable Stock Option or Award Plans™ for recarding expense and for our pro forma disclosures.
Under APB Opinion No. 25, a non-cash, stock-based compensalion expense was required 10 be recognized for any option for which
the exercise price was below the market price on the measurement date. Because most of the company's Adjusted Optiens had an
exercise price below the market price on the measurement date, there should have been a nan-cash charge for these options under
APB Opinian No. 25 equal to the number of option shares, multiplied by the ditference between the exercise price and the market
price an the measurement date. That expense shauld have been amartized over the service period of the option,

The company also reviewed madifications made to previously granted options and determined thal we did not record the appropriate
amaunt of compensation expense for some of the modifications (“Modified Options™). We did not record the appropriate amount of
stock-based compensalion expense under APB Opinion No. 25 related to Adjusted or Madified Dptions in our previously issued finan-
cial statements, and are recording these expenses in this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

The restatements included in this Annual Report on Form 10-K include equity compensaticn adjustments arising from the Special
Commiltee investigation and management's internal review, as well as from deferred tax adjustments refated to certain long-term
intercompany oans and adjustments 1g revenue and deferred revenue previously considered immaterial to our Consolidated Financial
Statements. The income statement impact of the restatement is as folfows:

Cumnulatlve
Tata) eMect at eHect at
December 31, December 31,
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 2005 2004 2003 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
{in thousands)
Net income, as
previously reported $ 149,703 % 106,650
Additional compensation
expense ! $ (27,204) $ (27.204)% (1,204)% (2,706)$ (4,784)% {15,710)% (2,481)% (229)
Tax retated effects 7.862 (128} 7.990 1,814 1376 1,110 3,847 500 43
Additional compensation
expense, net of tax ! (19,342} (128} (19,214)% 520 § (20308 (3,674)% (11,863)% (1.981)% (186)
Other adjusiments, net
of tax (727 {342) (110} (275)
Total decrease in net
income $ (20,069) (342) {(238) $ (19,485}
Nel income, as restated $ 149,361 § 106.412

t  Amounts resulted from improper measurement dates for stock awards and modifications.

The table below shaws the alter-tax compensation expense as originally reported, the amount of the additional compensation expense
and the reslated compensation expense for all years that were restated. :

AFTER-TAX COMPENSATION EXPENSE 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

{In thousands)

As Reported $(302) § (23) $ (172) & — % (Bl 8 -

Adjustment 520 (2,030 (3,674) (11,863) (1,981 {186)

As Restated $ 218 $(2,053) % (3,846) § (11,863) $ (2,795) § (1B6)
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Equity-based compensation Is not deductible for corporate income tax purposes in most couniries. The after-tax amounts in the lable
reflect reduction of compensation expense for tax benelits in the United States in all years and in the Uniled Kingdom in 2003, For
the United Kingdom pricr to 2003 and for ali other countries in all years, there is no tax benelit recorded for the associated compensa-
tion expense.

In addition, in 2001, we analyzed our existing net deferred tax assets {DTAs} and determined thal not all the exisling DTAs would be
realized over the period covered by our analysis and therefore recorded a valuation allowance equal to approximately $12 million, We
performed a similar analysis in 2002 and as a result, increased the valuation allowance associated with the exercise of employee
stock options in 2002, increasing the valuation allowance related (o stock oplion exercises to $15.1 millicn. In 2003 we updated our
estimate of {uture taxable income and determined that it was now more likely than not thal we would realize more of the DTA than the
net batance at December 31, 2003. Therefore, we reduced our valuation allowance by $25.3 million, including the $15.1 million
related ta stock option exercises. We reviewed the valuation altowance in light of the restatement of equily-based compensation and
delermined that an additional valuation allowance of $4.9 million should be recorded at December 31, 2001 and then reteased at
December 31, 2003.

As noted above, we have also made two adjustments to deferred {ax assets that were previously considered immaterial. The first item
related 10 the acgounting far unrealized foreign currency gains and losses on long-term inlercompany loans between our United States
and United Kingdom subsidiaries. We incorrecily recorded deferred tax assets on the unrealized foreign currency gains and losses In
the United Kingdom from 1999 to 2005, instead of retording them as part of the net foreign currency translation adjustments (losses)
gains within accumuiated other comprehensive income (loss). The second item related to an intercompany loan established In 2005
tor which we did not include the unrealized gains or fosses in taxable income, causing our deferred taxes related to our net operating
lpsses {0 be misstated and other corprehenslve income 1o also be misstated.

The revenue and deferred revenue adjustment related to fees paid by pholographers for making certain of their images available for
license on our website for twd years. We had previously recognized the {ees when received, as they were previously considered imma-
terial, and are now recognizing the fees ratably over the iwo year period, resulting in a decrease in revenue and an increase in
deferred revenue in the periods reported herein.

This restatement did not affect cash provided by operating activities in our consolidate statements of cash flows.

In addition, we evaluated the impact of the restatements on our consalidated tax provision. The company and our subsidiaries file tax
returns in numerous tax jurisdictions around the world. In the United States for all years reflected above and the United Kingdom in
2003 and subsequent years, we are able to claim 2 tax deduction relaling lo stock options exercised. (n those jurisdiclions where a
1ax deduction will be aliowed, we have recarded deferred tax assets to reflect future tax deductions 1o the extent we believe such
assets to be recoverable. in addition, we also determined that, as a result of the changes in the measurement dates, we should not
have taken a deduction in the US in prior years for stock optian related amounts pertaining to certain executives under the internal
Revenue Code Section 162(m). Section 162(m) limits the deductibility of compensation above certain thresholds. As a result, our tax
liabllities have increased by approximately $2.4 miflion.

i certain of the Adjusted or Modified Options are not repriced, the holders of such options will, upon exercise of the options, incur
personal income taxes and penalties in accordance with Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 409A (and other state tax laws) beyond
what they would have incurred were the eptions not adjusted or modilied. Cenlain of these options have already been exercised and
therefore incremental taxes and penalties have been incurred by the holders, while other affected oplions remain outstanding. We are
currently evaluating the company's position with respect to reimbursing employees for incremental taxes and penalties incurred and
to potentially repricing the affected options that remain outstanding. If the company {akes Such actions it will result in a charge to
compensation expense in the period the decision is made or the expense is incurred, as applicable.
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The following tables reflect the impact of the additional nen-cash charges for equity-based compensation expense and other adjust-

ments, and the related tax effects on the:

» consolidated statements of income for the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004,

* consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2005 and,

 consolidated statements of cash flows for the years enged December 31, 2005 and 2004

Consolidated Statements ol Income

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 2004
As previovsly As  As previously As
reperted  Adjustments restated reported  Adjustments restated

[in thousands, except per share data)
Revenue $ 733,729 $ (553) § 733,176 % 622,427 $ 77) % 622,250
Costs of revenue {exclusive of items shown separately

beiow) 196,887 —_ 196,887 172,684 -_— 172,684
Selling, general and administrative expenses 252,103 — 252 103 225,128 —_ 225,128
Depreciaticn 48,572 — 48,572 52,976 — 52,976
Amorlization 9,519 —_ 9519 4,559 - 4,559
Other operating expenses {income) 717 - 717 (1,187 — {1,187)
Operating expenses 507,798 —_ 507 798 454,160 - 454,160
Income from operations 225,931 {553) 225378 168,267 arh 168,090
Investment income 11,991 - 11,991 9,133 — 9,133
Interest expense (7,618} — (7.618) (3,828) — (3,828}
Other non-operating expenses, net 350 - 330 467 - 467
Income before income taxes 230,654 (553)  230.101 174,039 an 173,862
Income tax expense (80,951} 211 {80.740} (67,389) {61) (67,450)
Net income $ 149,703 § (342) $ 149361 % 106,650 $ {(238) $ 106,412
tarnings per share:

Basic g 243 % — % 243 % 1.81 $ (0.01) % 1.80

Diluted 2.28 {0.01) 2.27 1.72 - 1.72
Shares used in computing earnings per share:

Basic 61,567 — 61,567 59,006 - 59.006

Diluted 65,744 — 65,744 62,031 — 62,031
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DECEMBER 31, 2003

Az previgusly

riported  Adjustments restated
{in thousands)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 223084 3% -— § 223,084
Short-term investments 295,191 —_ 295,191
Accounts receivable, net 107,020 — 107.020
Prepaid expenses 11,B15 - 11,815
Other current assets 8,553 — 8,553
Total current assets 645,663 - 645,663
Property and equipment, net 127,457 — 127,497
Goodwill 804,804 — 804,804
Identifiable intangible assels, net 50,206 — 50,206
Deferred income laxes, net 30,704 (877) 29,827
Other long-term assets 4211 —_— 4.211
Total assets $ 1663085 % (877) % 1.662.208
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 72,344 & - % 72,344
Accrued expenses 38,676 — 38,676
Deferred income taxes, net 17,677 {449) 17,228
Other current liabilities 2,048 1,174 4,122
Short-term debt 265,000 - 265,000
Total current liabilities 396.645 725 397.370
Long-term liabilities 23,480 — 23,480
Total tiabilities 420,125 725 420,850
Cammitments and contingencies
Slockholders' equity:
Common stock 623 - 623
Additional paid-in capital 1,278,048 18,262 1,295,310
Accumulated deficil (18,900 (20.069) (38,969}
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (16,811} 205 (16,606}
Total stockholders’ equity 1.242,960 {1,602) 1,241,358
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 166308 $ (877) % 1,662,208
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 200% 2004
A As
praviously At previoutly As
raported  Adjustments restated teportad  Adjustments mitated
(in thousands)
Cash flows from aperating activities
Net income $ 149,703 $ (342) $ 149361 $ 106,650 $ (238) $ 106412
Adjustments to recancile net income to net
cash provided by operating activities:
Employee stock-based compensation 1,269 - 1,264 576 — 576
Reduction of income taxes paid due (0 the tax
benefit from employee stock based
compensation 65,034 3,754 68,788 3,233 1,587 4,820
Oepreciation 48,572 _ 48,572 52,976 —_ 52976
Amortization of identifiable intangible assets 9,519 - 9,51% 4,559 - 4,559
Amartization of debt issuance and exchange
cosls 6,060 - 6,060 1915 - 1915
Deferred income taxes 5,898 {3,965} 1,933 51,197 {1,526) 49671
Bad debt expense 2,739 -— 2,739 3,239 - 3,239
Other changes in long-term assets, liabilities
and equily 2,763 —_ 2,763 3,031 — 3,031
Changes in current assets and liabilities, net of
effects of business acquisitions:
Accounts receivable (15,159) - {15,159 {16,006} — {16,006)
Accounts payable (9.783) - (3,783) {530} — (530
Accrued expenses (8,776) - (8,776) (2,510} — 2510
Income laxes payabie (2,486} - (2.486) {4,039) - (4,035}
Changes in other current assets and liabilities 1,924 553 2,47, (1,709) 177 {1,532)
Net cash provided by operating activities 257,277 —_ 257,277 202,582 —_— 202,582
Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisitions of businesses, net of cash
acquired (234,432) - (234,431 (25.611) - (25.611)
Acquisition of available-for-sale investments (101,575) - (101.57%) (341671) - {341,671)
Proceeds from available-for-sale investmenls 129,619 —_ 129,619 263,398 —_ 263,398
Acquisition of property and equipment (57,766} — {57.766) (36,723} — (36,723)
Other investing activities (643) - {643) 46 — 46
Net cash used in investing activities (264,797) — (264,797) (140,561} — {140,561}
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from the issuance of common stock 42,172 — 42,172 73,998 — 73,998
QOther tinancing activities {558) - {558) (1,429 — (1.429)
Net cash pravided by financing activities 41614 — 41,611{ 72,569 — 72,569
Effect of exchange rate changes {5.762) —_ {5,76:1) 3.144 —_ 3.144
Net increase in cash and cash equivatents 28.332 — 28,332 137,734 e 137,734
Cash and cash equivalents:
Beginning of year 194,752 —_ 194,752 57,018 —_ 57.018
End of year $ 223084 $ — § 223084 $ 194752 $ — $ 194752
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NOTE 3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES '
Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in confarmity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America
requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounis of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
asse!s and liabilities at the date of our consolidated financial statements and revenues and expenses reported during the perigd.
Some of the estimates and assumptions that require our most ditficult judgments are: a) the appropriateness of the valuation and
uselul lives, if applicable, of long-lived assets; b) the appropriateness of the amount of accrued income laxes and deferred tax asset
valuatian allowances; ¢) the designation of certain foreign-currency denominated intercompany balances as long-term investments;
and d) the sutficiency of the allowance for doubtful accounts. These judgments are difficult as matters that are inherently uncertain
directly impact their valuation and accounting. Actual results may vary from our estimates and assumptions.

Principles of Consolidation

Our consolidated financial statements and notes thereto include the accounts of Getly Images, Inc. and its subsidiaries. The results of
operations and financial position of acquired companies have been included {rom the respective dales of acquisition. Intercompany |
balances and transactions have been eliminated.

Foreign Exchange Gains and Losses and Derivatives

Foreign exchange transaction gains and losses are reported in Other non-operating (income) expenses, net in our consclidated state-
ments of income in the period in which the exchange raies change. We utilize derlvative financial instruments, namely forward foreign
currency exchange contracts, to reduce the impact of foreign currency exchange rate risks where patural hedging strategies cannot
be effectively employed. Our forward foreign exchange contracts generally range from one to three months in original maturity and
primarily require the sale of euros, Brilish pounds, Japanese yen and Canadian dotlars and the purchase of U.S. dollars and British
pounds. These contracts are economic hedges of our exposures but have not been designated as hedges, as defined by Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards {SFAS) No. 133, *Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” for financial report-
ing purposes. These contracts are carrted at fair value, as determined by quoted market exchange rates, with gains and losses recog-
nized in Other non-operating {income) expenses, nel in our consolidated statements of income in the period in which the exchange
rates change.

Al December 31, 2006, we held forward contracts to buy $13.1 mitlion worth of British pounds and $2.7 million worth of Japanese
yen in U.S. dollar functional currency sets of books. We also held forward contracts to buy $7.6 million worth of British pounds in
euro functional currency sets of books. At December 31, 2005, we held forward contracts 1o sell $17.5 million worth of euros, $11.0
million worth of British pounds, $4.6 million worth of Japanese yen and to buy $3.0 million worth ol Brazilian real in U.S. dollar func-
lional currency sets of books. We atso held forward contracts to selt $15.0 million worth of euros and 10 buy $13.9 million worth of
U.S. dollars in British pound functional currency sets of books. We alsp heid at both of these dates, contracts to sell other currencies
that were less than $3.0 mitlion individually. The fair values of these contracts were insignificant in all periods presented.

We do not hold or issue derivative {inancial instruments for trading purposes. In generat, our derivative activities do not create foreign
cusrency exchange rate risk because fluctvations in the value of the instruments used for economic hedging purposes are ofiset by
fluctuations in the value of the underlying exposures being hedged. Counterparties to derivalive financial insiruments expose us to
credit-related losses In the event of non-performance, However, we have entered into these instruments with creditworthy financial
institutions and consider the risk of non-performance to be low.
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Earnings per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated based on the weighted average number of comman shares outstanding during each period.
Diluted earnings per share are calculated based on the shares used lo calculate basic earnings per share plus the effect of con-
vertible subordinated debentures, ditutive stock options, restricted stock and restricted stock units.

2008 2004

YEARS ENDED OECEMBER 31, 2006 Aestated Restated
{in thousands, excapt per share amounts)
Basic Earnings per Share
Income available 16 comman stockholders $ 130,428 3§ 149,361 § 106,412
Weighted average common shares outstanding 60,733 61,567 59,006
Basic earnings per share $ 215 % 243 % 1.80
Diluted Earnings per Share
Income available to comman stocknolders $ 130,428 $ 149,361 $ 106,418
Wweighted average common shares outstanding 60,733 61,567 59,006
Etfect of dilutive securities

Convertible subordinated debentures 2 — 2,802 987

Stock optigns 941 1,365 2,028

Restricted stock and restricted stock units 37 10 10
Total weighted average common shares and dilutive securities 61,711 65,744 62,031
Diluted earnings per share $ 211 3§ 227 % 1.72

! income available to common stockholders is higher in the diluted earnings per share calculztion for 2004 due to adding back interest
expense {after ax) relating to $2.0 mitlion of the series A convertible subordinated debentures that were outsianding at December 31, 2004.
See Note 6 for more information.

2 Potentially dilutive shares underlying convertible subordinated debentures were calculated Lased on the average closing price of our com-
mon stock for the tast five trading days of each year. The calculated conversion prices were $42.29 and $90.21 in 2006 and 2005,
respectively. The conversion price in 2006 was below the minimum conversion price and tharefore no dilutive shares are included.

Approximatety 1.4 million, 9,098. and 30,455 other common shares underlying stock options for the years ended December 31,
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, are excluded from the computation of diluted earntngs per share because they are anti-dilutive.

For purposes of calculating diluted earnings per share for all future periods in which our convertible subordinated debentures remain
outstanding, we will not include any associated incremental shares in periods where the average closing price of our common stock
for the last five trading days of ihe reporting period Is at or below $61.08 per share. [n periods where the average closing price of our
common stock exceeds $61.08 per share, we will include up to a theoretical maximum o approximately 6.9 miltion incremental
shares. The following 1able shows the approximate number of incremental shares we would include in diluted weighted average
shares oulstanding at various stock prices, assuming $265.0 million of convertible subordinated debentures culstanding:

Average closing price per share of

common stock for the last five trading

days of the reporting period $ 628 70¢ B80S 90% 100% 1208 150 % 250 % 1,500 § 2,900
Incremental dilutive shares outstanding

(in thousands) 129 1,006 2052 2788 3,377 4260 5144 5884 6,768 6,853
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Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents are shart-term, highly liquid investments that are both readily convertible to cash and have maturities at the date of
acquisition of three months or less. Cash equivalents generally comprise debt instruments subject to credit risk, including certificates
of deposit and money market funds.

Short-Term Investments

In the second quarter of 2006, we sold alt of our short-term investments and realized an associated $4.0 million loss. We had
intended to hold these investments unti! we had substantially recovered the ¢ost of the investments; therefore, we had previously
recorded them as unrealized losses within accumulated other comprehensive income. In the second quarter of 2006, we decided to
sell these investments when our Board of Directors authosized an increase in our share repurchase program, and we began purchas-
ing shares under this authorization.

We had no short-term investments outstanding at December 31, 2006. Short-term investments consisted of the following
available-for-sale investments at December 31, 2005:

Gross Gross

Amertfzed  Unteadized Unrealized Fair

OECEMBER 31, 2003 Cost Gains Losses Value
{tn (housands}

U.S. agency securities $ 175,135 $— $(3.369) $ 171,766

Auction rate securities 70,375 — - 70,375

Corporate bonds 39,757 8 (512) 39,253

U.S. Treasury obligations ' 6,035 - {150 5,885

Money market funds 7912 - — 7,912

Total short-term investments $ 299,214 $ 8 § (4,031) $ 295191

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are trade receivables, net of allowances for doubtful accounts and sates returns of $15.7 mitlion and $13.7 mik
tion at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively.

We estimate our allowance for doubtiul accounts based on historical losses as a percentage of revenue, existing economic conditions,
and specilic account analysis of al-risk customer and delegate balances. Concentration of credit risk with respect to trade receivables
is limited due to the large number of cur customers and their dispersion across many geographic areas. No single customer repre-
sented 10% or more of our total revenue in any of the periads presented. Trade receivables are written off when our internatl collection
efforts have been exhausted. Qur allowance ior sales returns is estimated based on historical returns as a percentage of revenue.
Estimated sales returns are recorded as a reduction of revenue and were insignificant in all periods presented.

Approximately 5% of cur recorded investment in trade receivables, net of allowances for doubtful accaunts and sales returns, was
more than 90 days old as of December 31, 2006, compared to 11% at December 31, 2005. The decrease in this percentage from
2005 to 2006 was due to certain balances over 90 days old at December 31, 2005 that we believed to be collectible and therefore did
not reserve.

We do not acerue interest on past due trade receivables, bul we have the right to do so in cerfain ¢ircumstances.
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Allowance for doubtiul accounts and sales returns changed as follows:

{In thousands)

Oecember 31, 2003 $ 12,132
Additions expensed 3,682
Other additions ? 688
Deductions ! {3,257}

Oecember 31, 2004 $ 13,245
Additions expensed 3,788
Other additions ? 2,512
Deductions ! (5,828)

December 31, 2005 $ 13,717
Additions eapensed 5,848
Other additions ? 2.693
Deductions ! {6,593)

December 31, 2006 $ 15,665

I Amounts represent balances written off, net of amounts recovered that had previously been wrten off, and foreign currency translation losses.
2 Amounts fepresent allowances for doubtful accounts and sales returns of businesses acquired and foreign Cursency translation gains.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipmenl are siated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. Contemporary and aschival imagery consists of costs 10
acquire imagery from third parties and internal cosls incurred by our creative department in crealing imagery, including identification
of markelable subject matter, anl direction, digitization and the assignment of search terms and other pertinent information to each
image. Computer software developed for internal use consists of internal and eaternal <osls incurred during the application develop-
ment stage (except training costs) of soltware development and costs of upgrades or enhencements that result in additional software
functionality, Costs incurred during the web application, infrastructure, graphics and content development stages of website develop-
ment are also capitalized and included within computer software developed for internal use. Expenditures that extend the fife,
increase the capacity, or improve the etficiency of property and equipment (except computer sofiware developed for internal use) are
capitalized. while expenditures for repairs and mainlenance are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation is recognized on 2 siraight-line basis over the estimated useful lives ol the assets or for leasehold improvements, over
the shorter of the remaining osiginal term of the fease or the estimated li{e of the related inprovement. Depreciation of internal use
soltware was $12.7 million, $12:5 million and $17.2 million in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.
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Property and equipment consisted of the following at the reported balance sheet dates:

DECEMBER 31, 2006 2005

Range of Extimated Accumulaied Accumuiated
Usatul Lives (in years) Gross Amount  Dspracialion  Net Amount Gioss Amount  Depreclation  Nei Amount

(tn thousands, except years}

Contemporary imagery 4 % 316,729 § (253,085)'$ 63,644 3 266,638 § (211.889) % 54,749
Camputer hardware and software

purchased 3 1151683 {98,670} 16,493 96,788 (86,1601 10,628
Computer software developed for

internal use 3 102837 (73,938) 28,899 22,586 (61,135 21.451
Leasehold improvements 2-20 25,153 (8,945) 16,208 35,998 {16,513) 19,485
Furniture, fixtures and studio

equipment 5 35,686 (30,924) 4,762 32,226 (27.038) 5,188
Archival imagery 40 22,710 (5.642) 17,068 20,445 (4,526) 15,919
Other property and equipment 34 522 (463) 59 436 (359} 77

Totals $ 518,800 $ (471,667)% 147,133 $ 535,117 $ (4076201 $ 127,497
Goodwill

Goodwill is the excess of the purchase price and related costs over the fair value of net tangible 2nd identifiable inlangible assets
acquired through acquisitions of businesses. Goodwill is reviewed for impairment annually as of August 31 and between annual tesls
in certain circumstances. When assessing impaiiment, we estimate the implied fais value of our goodwill of each segment based on a
discounted cash flow model that involves significant assumptions and estimates, including our future financial performance, our
future weighted average cost of capital and our interpretation of currently enacted (ax laws. At August 31, 2006, the implied fair value
of our geodwill exceeded its carrying value for each of our operating segments, therefore goodwill was not impaired in either segment.
As circumstances change, it is possible that future goodwill impairment tests could result In 8 Joss on impairment of assets, which
would be inctuded in the determination of income from operations.

Goodwilt changed during 2006 as follows:

fin theussnds)

Goodwill at December 31, 2005 $ B04.804
Acquisitions of businesses (see Note 14} 161,602
Effects of foreign currency translation 34,621
Goodwill at December 31, 2006 $ 1.001,027

Identifiable Intangible Assets

Identifiable intangible assets are asseis that o not have physical representation, but thal arise from contractual or other tegal rights
ar are capable of being separated or divided from the company and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged. Identifiable
intangibte assets are amortized on a stralght-line basis over their estimated useful lives. We reassess tha remaining useful lives of our
identifiable intangitle assets each repOrting period to determine whether events and circumstances warrant revisions {0 the remaining
periods of amortization. No revisions were determined te be necessary during the periods presented.
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Identifiable intangible assets consisted of the following at the reported balance sheet dates:

DECEMBER 31, 2006 2005

Range of Cstimated Accumulated Accumulated
Useful Lives {n years)  Gross Amount Amortization  Net Amount  Gross Amount Amortization  Nel Amount

{1n thousands, escepl years)

Trademarks, lrade names and

copyrights 2.10' § 47,884 $(13,395) $ 32489 § 37392 § (BB51) $ 2874]
Customer lisis, contracts and

refationships 4.7 56,867 (25,662) 31,205 32,770 (15,497} 17,273
Other identifiable intangibte assets 2-10 18,591 (7.051) 11,540 7.179 (2,987} 4,192

Totats % 123,342 $(46,108) $§ 77,234 $ 77,341 $ {27,135) § 50,206

! Included in trademarks, irade names and copyrights above is a $2.8 millien trade name that has an indefinite life and therefore is not amortized.

Based an balances at December 31, 2006, amortization of identifiable intangible assets for the next five years wouid be 2s follows:

FISCAL YEAR

(In thousands)

2007 $ 20231
2008 17,076
2009 10,166
2010 6,824
2011 6,456

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assels are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. Impairment exists when the carrying valug of an asset is not recoverable and exceeds its fair value. The carrying value
of an assel is not recaverable it it exceeds the sum of the undiscounted future cash flows expected to resull from the use and eventual
disposition of the asset. The fair value of an asset is Ihe amount at which the asset could he bought or sold in a current lransaction
between willing parties. Fair value Is determined based on quoted market prices, if available, or the best aliernative information avail-
able, including prices for similar assets and the present value of expected future cash flowis of the asset. tmpairments are included in
other operating expenses or, if material, shown separately and included in the calculation of income from operalions. There have been
no impairments in the pericds presented herein, except for charges in 2006 for leasehold improvements in facilities that we perma-
nently exited. The impairment charge for these assels is inciuded in the restructuring line on our statement of income,

Leases

We |ease {acilities and equipment through operating leases. Operating lease rentals are charged 10 selling, general and administrative
expenses in our consolidated statements of income on a straight-line basis over the original term of each lease. Our leases typically
conlain rent escalation clauses whereby the amount paid by us to the lessors increases each year, while some provide rent holidays at
the beginning of the lease terms and some provide stated renewal options. None of our leases contain contingent rentals. Rent escala-
tion causes a difference each year between the amount charged to rent expense on a stralght-line basis and the amount paid by us to
the lessors. This difference is recorded to accrued expenses (the current portion) and oth2r lang-term liabilities (the long-term por-
tion) in our consolidated balance sheets. These balances grow during the early portions of the lease terms and are depleted during
the later porfions. Rent holidays are recognized in rent expense on a straight-line basis over the original term of each lease.

We sublease ceilain leased facilities that are not currently used far operations, The majority of our sublease income is recorded
agains! lease loss accruals, while the remainder, which is insignificant in all periods presented, is recorded as an offset to rent
expense. Net rent expense was $17.3 million, $18.8 miltion and $18.6 million for 2006. 2005 and 2004, respectively. See Note 7 for
future minimum payments under operating leases and tuture minimum receipts under subleases,
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Equity-Based Compensation

On January 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment," which eliminated our ability to account for employee
stock options using the intrinsic value provisions of Accounting Principles Board (APB} Opinion No, 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued
to Employees” and related interpretations, and generally requires instead that we expense them using a fair-value-based method. This
statement also requires that we reduce stock-based compensalion expense by estimated forfeitures of awards rather than reducing
expense as forteitures occur. In addition to requiring us to expense stock-based compensation, SFAS No. 123(R) requires us to report
as windfall tax benefils within financing activities In our statement of cash flows, cash tax savings arising from tax deductions that
exceed compensation expense on stock options exercised and RSUs vested in the current period. These 1ax benetits were previously
reported as cash {lows from operating activities.

In conneclion with the adoption of this statement, we have generally shilted from issulng stock oplions to issuing RSUs. The tair value
of RSUs issued to employees is calculated as the market price of our common stock on the date of grant multiplied by the number of
units issued. This fair value, less estimated forfeitures, is recorded as setling, general and administrative expenses on a siraigh-line
basis over the vesting periods of the RSUs, with a portion relating to production employees capitalized as contemporary imagery and
computer software develaped for internal use. The accounting for RSUs, with the exception of the estimation of forfeitures. is the
same as previously required under APB Opinion No. 25. The fair values of stock options issued are calculated using a Black-Scholes
single option valuation model and are expensed, and capitalized as applicable, in the same manner as RSUs. The fair value of
unvested options and RSUs outstanding upon adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) remain as originally calculated for footnote purposes in
accordance with SFAS No, 123, “Accounting tor Stock-Based Compensation,” as amended, have been reduced by estimated for-
feitures and are being recorded as selling, general and administrative expenses over the remaining vesting periods or capilalized as
applicable.

We adopted SFAS No. 123(R) using the moditied prospective transition method, which means that we have not restated our prior
period financial statements. The impact of our stock-based compensation plans en oyr income stalements may vary greally depending
on the number of RSUs and stock options granted and the future market price of our common SIOckK.

See Note 9 for additional information on equity-based compensation and the impact on our financial statements.

Revenue Recognlition

We derive revenue principally from licensing rights to use images that are delivered digitally over the Internet {the vast majority of our
revenuel, on CDs, or in analog form [principally footage). In addition, our imagery is licensed through delegates worldwide
{approximately 7% of our revenue in 2006). Approximately 3% of our revenue in 2006 was derived from providing imagery related
services. Revenue is recognized when the four general revenue recognition criteria arg met: persuasive evidence of an arrangement
exisls, the price is fixed or determinable, collectibility is reasonably assured and defivery has occurred or services have been ren-
dered. Revenue Is recorded at invoiced amounts (including discounts, shipping and handling and applicable sales taxes} less an
allowance for returns, except in the case of licensing rights through delegates, where revenue s recorded at our share of the dele-
gates’ invoiced amounts. Delegates typically earn and retain 35% to 40% of the license fee, and we recognize the remaining 60% 10
65% as revenue.

Persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists and the price is tixed or determinable at the time the customer agrees o tha terms and
conditions of the license agreement, We maintain a credit departmenl and credil policies that set credit limits and ascertain customer
credit worthiness, thus reducing our risk of credit loss. Based on our palicies and procedures, as well as our historical experience, we
are able 1o determine that collectibility is reasonably assured prior 1o recognizing revenue. These first three general revenue recog-
nition criteria have been met at o prior 10 the time of delivery of the imagery, regardless of the format or delivery medijum. Delivery
occurs upon making digltal images available for download by the customer, upon shipment of CD, analog feotage and transparencies,
or evenly over the subscription period. Subscription and service revenue are recorded as deferred revenue within accrued expenses in
our consolidated balance sheets and are amortized (0 revenue evenly aver the subscription period or as the services are provided,

Cost of revenue

Cost of revenue consists primarily of royalties owed to contributers, comprised of photographers, filmmakers and other imagery pan-
ners. These contributors are under contract with us and typically receive royatties of 10% to 50% of 1he total license fee. depending
on the portfalio (e.g. rights-managed) and where the imagery is licensed {licenses outside a contributor's home territory typically
resull in lower rOyalties). We own certain of the images in our collections, which do not require royally payments. Cost of revenue also
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includes the cost of Shipping and handling hard goods (CDs), costs of our assignment phot) shoots and other costs related directly to
the creation of revenue, Cost of revenue excludes depreciation and amortization,

Shipping and Mandling

Shipping and hanaling billed 10 customers is included in revenue, and the associated costs are included in cost of revenue.

Advertising and Markeling

We markel our products and services mainty through direct mail and e-mail communications. Costs associated with these communica-
tians are recorded in selling. general and administrative expenses when the communicalions are mailed. Aovertising and marketing
costs expensed in the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $21.7 millior, $11.3 million and $9.2 million,
respeclively. Prepaid marketing malerials were insignificant a1 December 31, 2006 and 2(X)3.

Income Taxes

We are subject lo income taxes in the U.S. and in numerous foreign jurisdictions, Signiticant judgments, estimates and assumptions
are required in determining our 1ax return reporting positions and in calculating our provisions for income taxes, as they are based on
our interpretation of tax regulations and accounting pronouncements. We establish reserves 10r tax uncertainties when, despite our
belief that we have appropriale support for positions we have taken on our returns, it is proable that cerain of these positions will be
challenged and may nol be sustained upon review by taxing authorities. These reserves are established through our income lax provi-
sions and are recorded as liabilities on our consolidated balance sheets. We recalculate the se reserves as governing laws and facts
and circumstances change, such as the closing of a tax audit or the expiration of the statut2 of limitations for a specific exposure. Se¢
below under Recent Accounting Pronouncements. Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation (FIN) No. 48,
*Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes — an Interpretation of FASE Statement No. 109" for the impact that FIN No, 48 witl have
on our reserves for uncertain tax positions beginning upon its adoption on Janvary 1, 2007

The existence and valuation of our delerred income taxes, reflecting the impact of temporasy differences between financial and tax
reporting and of lax loss carrylorwards, are based on tax laws. regulations, accounting principles, and our interprelations thereof, The
ultimate realization of deferred lax assels is dependent upon the generation of sufficient future taxable income in each applicable tax
jurisdiction. We reduce our deferred lax assels by a valuation allowance if, based on the weight of available evidence. it is more likely
than not that we will not realize some portion or all of the deferred tax assets. Deterred U.5 income taxes are not provided for
unremitted foreign earnings of our foreign subsidiaries because we expect those earnings wilt be permanently reinvested. It is not
practicable to calculate the unrecognized deferred tax liability for temporary differences related to these investments. Deterred 1ax
assets and liabilities are classilied into net current and net non-cusrent amaunts based on 1he balance sheet classification of the
relaled asset or liability, or if there is no such asset or liability, according to the timing of th2 expected reversat of the temporary dilier-
ence that created the delerred tax asset or liability.

Taxes collected trom customers and remitted 1o governmental authorities are presented on 8 net basis in our income statement.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

SEC STAFF ACCOUNTING BULLETIN (SAB} NO. 108, "CONSIDERING THE EFFECIS OF PRIOR YEAR MISSTATEMENTS WHEN QUANTIFYING
MISSTATEMENTS IN CURRENT YEAR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS™

1n September 2006, the staff of the SEC issued SAB No. 108 in orger to eliminale the diversily of practice susrrounding how public
companies quantify financial statement misstatements. Traditionally, there have been two widely-recognized methoas for quantifying
the eftects of financial statement misstatements: the “roll-over” method and the "iron curtain™ method. The roll-over method focuses
primarily on the impacl of a misstatement on the income statement - including the reversing etfect of prior year misstatements - but
its use can lead to the accumulation of misstatements in the balance sheetl. The iron-curtain method, on the other hand. focuses
primarily on the etfect of correcting \he period-end balance sheel with less emphasis on the reversing effects of prior year errors on
the income statement. We currenlly use the roll-over method tor quantitying identitied finarcial stalement misstatements. In SAB

Nop. 108. the SEC staff established an approach that requires quantification of financial statement misstalements based on the efecis
of the misstatements on each of the company's linancial statements and the related financial statement disclosures. This modgel is
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Accrued Losses on Leased Properiies

Our accrued losses on leased properties changed during the year as follows:

Acquisition
Restructuring Related Totel

(I thousands)
Batance at December 31, 2005 $ 1,398 $ 3351 § 4,749
Additional charges and adjustments 22,579 (383) 22,196
Reduction of accrued losses due to cash payments (781}  {1,038) (1.8171
Accretion expense 820 78 898
Effects of foreign currency transiation 5 360 365
Balance al December 31, 2006 . $24021 % 2,370 % 26,391

Current balance 11,251 480 11,731

Long-term balance . 12,770 1,890 14,660
NOTE 6. DEBT

At both consolidaled batance sheet dates, our debt consisted only of our convertible subordinated debentures. There were $265.0
million of series B debentures outstanding at December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005. As explained below, the debl was classi-
fied as long-term at December 31, 2006 and as short-term at December 31, 2005 due to a conversion feature being met in 2005 and
not in 2006. . .

Key terms and conditions of our 0.5% series B convertible subordinated debentures (the “Debentures”) are:

+ The principal portion of the Debentures s required (o be setiled in cash, while the increase in value of the Debentures beyond the principal,
if any, is payable in shares of our common stock. Prior to June 9, 2008, if the applicable stock price is less than or equal to the base con-
version price ol $61.08, no common shares would be issued upon conversion, I the applicable stock price is greater than the base con-
version price, common shares would be issued upon conversion based on a conversion rate calculated in accordance with a
pre-determined formula.

* The Debentures may be converted at the holder's option only under any of the fellowing conditions: 1) the closing price of our common
stock during a relevant measurement period as defined in the indenture is more than $73.30; 2) the credit raling assigned t the
Debentures by Standard & Poor's Ratings Services is below B- or by Maody's Investors Service is below B3 (the ratings were B- and Ba2,
respectively, at December 31, 2006); 3} the trading price of the Debenture during a relevant measurement period as defined in the
indenture is less than 95% of the product of the closing price of our stock and the conversion rate in effect at such time; 4) the Debentures
are called for redemption; o 5) upan the occurrence of certain corporate trRnsactions as defined in the indenture.

« We may redeem the Debentures for cash equal to the principal value plus any accrued and unpaid interest at any time on or after June 13,
2008, excep! that between June 13, 2008 and June 12, 2009, we may not redeem the Debentures unless the closing sale price of our
common stock is greater than $76.35 for at least 20 trading days in a 30 consecutive trading day period ending on the trading day prior to
the date of maiting our notice of redemption.

» Holders may require us (o redeem the Debentures for cash equa! to the principal value plus any accrued and unpaid interest on June 9,
2008, 2013 and 2018B.

» We are required to pay contingent interest beyond the 0.5% coupan rate at the rale of 0.5% per year on the average trading price of the
Debentures over a five-day Irading period immediately preceding the first day of the applicable six-month period, commencing with the
six-month period ending December 9, 2008, if such average trading price is greater than or equal to $1,200 per Debenture. The market
price of our Debentures was approximately $986 per debenture at December 31, 2006.

The conversion contingencies relating to the credit rating assigned to, and the trading price of the Debentures compared to the prod-
uct of the closing price of our commen stock and the conversion rate in effect at such time, as well as the contingent interest feature,
represent embedded derivatives. A valuation of the fair value of these derivatives is performed each quarter, The fair value of these
derivatives was insignificant in all periods presented.
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includes the cost of shipping and handling hard goods (CDs), costs of our assignment phato shoots and other costs related directly to
the ¢reation of revenue. Cost of revenue excludes depreciation and amortization.

Shipping and Handling

Shipping and handling billed te custemers is included in revenue, and the associated cos:s are included in cost of revenue.

Advertising and Marketing '

We marke! our products and services mainly through direct mail and e-mail communications. Costs associated with these communica-
tions are recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses when the communications are mailed. Advertising and marketing
costs expensed in the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 were $21.7 million, $11.3 million and $9.2 million,
respectively. Prepaid marketing materials were insignificant at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Income Taxes

We are subject tp income taxes in the U.S. and in numerous foreign jurisdictions. Signiticant judgments, estimates and assumptions
are required in determining our tax return reporting positions and in calculating our provisions for income taxes, as they are based on
our interpretation of tax regulations and accounting pronouncements. We establish reserves for tax uncertainties when, despite our
beliaf that we have appropriate support for positions we have taken on our returns, it is probable that certain of these positions will be
challenged and may nat be sustained upon review by taxing authorities. These reserves are established through our income tax provi-
sions and are recorded as Liabilities on our consolidated balance sheets. We recalculate these reserves as governing laws and facts
and circumstances change, such as the closing of a tax audit or the expiration of the statute of limitations for @ specific exposure. See
below under Recent Accounting Pronouncements, Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Interpretation (FIN) No. 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes - an Interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109" for the impact that FIN No. 48 will have
on our reserves for uncertain tax positions beginning upon its adoption on January 1, 2007,

The existence and valuation of our deferred income taxes, reflecting the impact of temporary differences between financial and tax
reporting and of tax loss Carryforwards, are based on tax laws, regulations. accounting principles, and our interpretations thereof. The
uitimate realization of deferred tax assets is dependent upon the genetation of sufficient {uture taxable income in each applicable tax
jurisdiction. We reduce our deferred tax assets by a valuation allowance if, based on the weight of available evidence, it is more likely
than not that we will not reatize some portion or all of the deferred ax assets. Deferred U.S. income taxes are not provided for
unremitted foreign earnings of our foreign subsidiaries because we expect those earnings will be permanently reinvested. It is not
practicable 1o calculate the unrecognized deferred tax liability for temporary differences related to these investments. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities are classified into net current and net non-current amounts based on the batance sheet classification of the
related asset or llability, or if there is no such asset or liability, according to the timing of the expected reversal of the temporary difter-
ence that created the deferred tax asset or liability.

Taxes collected from customers and remitted 1o governmental authorities are presented on a net basis in our income statement.

Recent Accounting Pronocuncements

SEC STAFF ACCOUNTING BULLETIN (SAB) NO. 108, “CONSIDERING THE EFFECTS OF PRIOR YEAR MISSTATEMENTS WHEN QUANTIFYING
MISSTATEMENTS IN CURRENT YEAR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS™

In September 2006, the staff of the SEC issued SAB Mo, 108 in order to eliminate the diversity of practice Surrounding how public
companies quantify financial statement misstatements. Traditionally, there have been two widely-recognized methods for quantifying
the effects of financial statement misstatements: the “roll-over” method and the “iron curiain™ method. The roll-over method focuses
primarily on the impact of 2 misstatement on the income statement - including the reversing eflect of prior year misstatements - but
its use can Jead to the accumulation of misstatements in the balance sheet. The iron-curtain method, on the other hand, focuses
primarily on the effect of correcting the period-end balance sheet with less emphasis on the reversing effects of prior year errors on
the income statement. We currently use the roll-over method for quantifying identified financial statement misstatements, In SAB

No. 108, the SEC stalf established an approach that requires quantification of financial statement misstatements based on the effects
of the misstatements on each of the company’s financial staterments and the related financial statement disclosures. This model is
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commenly referred to as a "duat approach” because Il requires quantification of errors under both the iron curtain and the roll-over
methods,

SAB No. 108 permits existing public companies to initially apply its provisions either by (i) restating prior financial statements as if the
“dual approach” had always been used or (ii} recording the cumulative elfect of initially applying the “dual approach”® as adjustments
{o the carrying values of assets and liabilities as of January 1, 2006 with an offsetting adjustment recorded to the opening balance of
retained earnings. Use of the “cumutative effect” transition method requires detailed disclosure of the nature and amount of each
individual error being corrected through the cumulative adjusiment and how and when it arose. Managemenl has assessed the
requirements of SAB No. 108 and it did not have an impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements,

SFAS NO. I57, "FAIR YALUE MEASUREMENTS®

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. 157. This Statement provides a single definition of fair value, together with a frame-
work for measuring it, and requires additiona! disclosure about the use of fair value 10 measure assets and liabillties. SFAS No, 157
emphasizes that fair value is a2 market-based measurement, not an entity-specific measurement, and sels out a fair value hierarchy
with the highest priority being quoted prices in active markets. Under the Statement, [air value measurements are disclosed by level
within that hierarchy, While the Statement does not add any new fair value measurements, it does change current practice. Changes
to practice include a requirement lor an entity to include its own credit standing in the measurement of its liabilities and to adjust the
value ol restricted stock for the effect of the restriction even if the restriction lapses within one year. The Statement is effective
January 1, 2008 and is to be applied prospectively. Management is currently assessing the impact this Statement may have on our
Consolidated Financial Siatements.

FASB INTERPRETATION (FIN] NO. 48. "ACCOUNTING FOR UNCERTAINTY IN INCOME TAXES - AN INTERPRETATION OF FAS8 STATEMENT NO. 1037

In July 2006, the FASB issued FIN No. 48, which clarifies the accounting for uncerlainty in income taxes elfective January 1, 2007,
This Interpretation prescribes a two-siep process to follow in evalualing a tax position we have taken, or expect to take, in a tax return.
First, we must determine whether it is more likely than not that a tax position will be sustained upon examination by the appropriate
taxing authority based on the technical merits of the position. Second, we must measure and recognize all tax positions that meet the
first threshold in an amount equal to the largest benelit that is greater than 50 percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settle-
ment with the taxing authority. We will recognize tax positions that previously failed to meet the more-likely-than-not recognition
threshold in the first financial reporting period in which that threshold is met. We will derecognize previously recognized tax positions
that no longer meet the more-likely-than-not recognition threshold in the first financial reporting period in which that threshold is no
longer met.

Upon initial adoption, we will apply the provisions of this Interpretation to all of our tax positions. Only tax positions that meet the
more-likely-than-not secognition threshold at the effective date will be recognized or continue to be recognized. The cumulative eliect
of applying the provisions of this Interpretation will be reported as an adjustment to the opening batance of retained earnings tor
2007. The amount of the cumulative-effect adjustment will be the difference between the net amount of assets and liabilitles recog-
nized In the statement of financial pasition prior to the application of this Interpretation and the net amount of assets and liabilities
recognized as a result of applying the provisions of this Interpretation. We will record the cumulative effect of the change in retained
earnings in the statement ol financial position as of the date of adoption. The cumulative-effect adjustment will increase the reserves
for uncertain tax positions by approximaiely $4.2 million and reduce retained earnings by this same amount,

NOTE 4. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Qur financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivatents, short-term Investmenls, lorward foreign currency exchange contracts,
accounts receivable, accounts payable and debt. Shorl-term investments and forward foreign currency exchange contracls are carried
at fair vatue as discussed within Note 3 above under “Short-Term Investments” and “Foreign Exchange Gains and Losses and
Derivatives.” The lair vatue of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and accounts payable approximate their carrying values
due 10 their short-term nature. The fair value of our debt, based on quoted market prices, was approximately $261.2 million and
$540.9 million at December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. These fair values were $3.8 million tower and $275.9 million higher,
respeclively, than the carrying value of our debt at those dates.
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NOTE 3. LIABILITIES

Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses at the reporied balance sheel dates are summarized below, with balances representing 5% or more of total current
liabilities at either date shown separately:

DECEMBER 31, 2006 2005
{1 thousands)

Accrued payroil and related costs $ 18,581 $ 24,095
Loss on leased properties ! 11,731 4,749
Other 9,100 9,832

Totat accrued expenses $ 39412 % 38,676

L ncludes loss on teased properties from acquisitions and exiting existing properties.

included within accrued payroll and related costs above is $1.B million of accrued severance CO5tS, which was paid out in the first
quarter of 2007. Accrued payroll and related costs is lower in 2006 due to not meeting the financial criteria for full payment of the
company's annual bonus, which resulted in a lower bonus accrual.

Qther Current Liabilities

Other current liabilities at the reported balance sheet dates are summarized below, with balances representing 5% or more of total
current hiahilities at either date shown Separately:

DECEMBER 31, 2006 2005

{In thousands)

Deferred Revenue $ 12,897 % 4,115
Other 242 7
Total accrued expenses $ 13,139 $ 4,122

Other LOng-Term Liabilities

Other long-term liabilitles conslsted of the following 2t the reported balance sheet dates:

DECEMBER 31, 2006 2008

{in thousancs)

Income lax reéserves $ 32375 % 14,056
Accrued losses on leased properties ! 14,660 —_
Other 9,315 9,424

Totals $ 56,350 $ 23,480

' includes 'oss on teased properties from acquisilions and exiting existing properties
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Accrued Losses on Leased Properties
Our accrued l0sses on leased properties changed during the year as follows:

Acquigition
Rastiuciuring Related Tolal

{In thousands)
Balance at December 31, 2005 $ 1,398 % 3351 % 4,749
Additional charges and adjustments 22,579 (383) 22,196
Reduction of accrued losses dug 10 cash payments (781) (1,036) (1.817)
Accretion expense 820 78 898
Effects of foreign currency translation 5 360 365
Balance at December 31, 2006 $24021 $ 2370 $ 26,391

Current balance 11,251 480 11,731

Leng-term batance 12,770 1,880 14,660

NDTE 6. DEBY

Al both consolidated balance sheet dates, our debt consisted only of our convertible subordinated debentures. There were $265.0
millian of series B debentures outstanding a1 December 31, 2006 and December 31, 2005. As explained below, the debt was classi-
fled as long-term at December 31, 2006 and as short-term at December 31, 2005 due to a conversion {eature being met in 2005 and

not in 2006.

Key terms and conditions of our 0.5% series B convertible subordinated debentures {the “Debentures”} are:

The principal portion of the Debentures is required o be settied in cash, while the Increase in value of the Debentures beyond the principal,
if any, Is payable in shares of owr commaen stock. Prior to June 9, 2008, if the applicable stock price is less than or equal to the base con-
version price of $61.08, no common shares would be issued upon conversion. If the applicable stock price is greater than the base con-
version price, common shares would be issued upon conversion based on a conversion rate catculated in accordance with a
pre-determined formula.

The Debentures may be converted at the holder’s option only under any of the foliawing conditions: 1) the closing price of our common
stock during a relevant measurement peried as defined in the indenture is more than $73.30; 2 the credit rating assigned 1o the
Debentures by Standard & Poor's Ratings Services is below B- or by Moody's Investors Service is below B3 {the ratings were B- and BaZ,
respectively, at December 31, 2006); 3) the trading price of the Debenture during a relevani measurement period as delined in the
indenture is less than 95% of the product of the closing price of our stock and the conversion rate in effect at such time; 4) the Debentures
are calted for redemption; o 5) upon the ogcurrence of certain corporate transactions as defined in the indenture.

We may redeem the Debentures for cash equal to the principal value plus any accrued and unpaid interest at any time on or after June 13,
2008, excep! that between June 13, 2008 and June 12, 2009, we may nof redeem the Debentures unless the closing sale price of our
common stock is greater than $76.35 for at least 20 trading days in a 30 consecutive trading day peried ending on the trading day prior to
the date of mailing our notice of redemption.

Holders may require us to redeem the Debentures for cash equal 1o the principal vatue plus any accrued and unpaid interest on June 9,
2008, 2013 and 2018.

We are required o pay contingent interest beyond the 0,5% coupon rate at the rate of 0.5% per year on the average trading price of the
Debentures over a live-day trading period immediately preceding the first day of the applicable six-month period, commencing with the
six-month period ending December 9, 2008, if such average trading price is greates than or equal to $1,200 per Debenture. The markel
price of our Debentures was appreximately $G86 per debenture at December 31, 2006.

The conversion contingencies relaling 1o the credit rating assigned to, and the trading price of the Debentures compared 1o the prod-
uct of the closing price of our common stock and the conversion rate in effect al such time, as well as the contingent interest feature,
represent embedded derivatives. A valuation of the fair value of these derivatives is performed each quarter. The fair value of these
derivatives was insignificant in all periods presented,
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As of December 31, 2005, our Debentures were convertible by the holders due to a conversion condition having been met. The con-
version condilion was met when the closing price of our comman stock exceeded $73.30 for 20 trading days within the last 30 trading
days ended December 31, 2005. As a result, we classified the $265.0 million of Debentures as short-term debt on our December 31,
2005 batance sheet. The condition was not met in \he quarter ended December 31, 2006. As a result, we classified the $265.0 mit-
lion of Debentures as iong-term debt on our December 31, 2006 balance sheet. The closing price of our common stock on April 30,
2007 was $52.00.

During the fourth quarter of 2006, we received two notices of 2 purported default from cerlain holders of our Debentures. Such
notices. purportedly representing an aggregate of approximately 29% of the issued and ouistanding Debentures, asserted that
because we are delinquent in filing our Quarterly Repert on Form 10-Q for the third quarter of 2006 with the Securities and Exchange
Commission, we are in defaull under the indenture dated as of December 16, 2004, between the company, as issuer, and The Bank
of New York, as trustee (the *Trustee®), relating to the Debentures. The notices of default demanded that we cure the purported
default within sixty days from their receipt, after which such default would develop into an "Event of Default,” as defined in the
indenture. We have nol determined the validity of the notices, including the purported ownership interests represented by 1he notices.
As a result of the sixty-day cure period expiring, the Trustee gave us a Notice of Event of Default on February 21, 2007.

We believe that we have [ully performed our obligations under the indenture because the indenture does not contain an express cove-
nani requiring us to provide the Trustee or the bondholders with periodic reports such as the Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
third quarter of 2006. While section 314(a) of the Trust Indenture Act of 1939 (the “TIA") is incorporated into the indenture by virtue
of Section 17.01 thereo! and contemplates us providing the Trustee with copies of our periodic reports, we believe that the TiA does
not require such reports to be provided within any prescribed period of time. We intend to furnish to the Trustee copies of our Quar-
lerly Report on Form 10-Q for the third quarter of 2006 after we file such repost with the SEC. We believe that such action would cure
any default of the indenture provision in question, if any default exists.

Consequently, in our view, these notices of default are, and any other similar notices of default that may be received in the future will
be, without merit. As a resull, we have classified 1he debt a3 long-term al December 31, 2006, If it is determined thal we are in
defaull, the classification would be changed to short-term.

While we have questioned the claimants' legal \heory as to whether we were in defauil under the lerms of the indenture, if an “Event
of Default” occurred following the sixty day cure period, the Trustee or holders of at teast 5% in aggregate principal amount of the
Debentures then oulstanding would have the contractual right to declare all unpaid principal and accrued interest on the Debentures
then outstanding to be immediately due and payabie. We believe that if an "Event of Defailt™ occurred and the Debentures are accel-
erated, we have adequate financial resources to pay any unpaid principal and any interest that woutd then be due on the Debentures.

On May 4, 2006, we entered into a $100.0 million unsecured senior revolving credit facility with U.S, Bank National Association. This
credit lacilily was available lor share repurchases, acquisitions of businesses and genera! corporate purposes. The interest rate on
tunds drawn down under the credit facility was 30-day LIBOR plus 0.5%. and there were o fees in periods when lunds are not drawn
down. Any funds drawn down under the credit facility were required to be repaid within the: 364-day term of the facility. The credit
agreement did not contain financial covenants requiring us to maintain any financiat ratios. The credit agreement contained custormn-
ary affirmative and negative covenants, as well as customary events of default the occurrence of which could result in termination of
the facility and the acceleration of all of our obligations thereunder. Our obligations under the facility were guaranteed by our primary
U.S. operating company. No funds had been drawn down under this facility as of December 31, 2006. See Note 15 for updated
information on this cregdit facility and a replacement facility.
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NOTE 7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Commitments

We have entered into agreements that represent significant, enforceable and tegally binding contraciual obligations that are
non-cancelable without significant penalty. If a contract is cancelable with a penally, the amount shown in the table betow is the full
coniractual abligation, nol the penalty, as we currently intend to fulfill each of these obligations.

YEARS ENDING DECEMBER 31. 2007 2008 2008 2010 2011  THEREAFTER TOTAL

(In thousands)

Converiible subordinaled debentures:

Principal payments ! $ - % — 3 — 3 - % — % 265,000 $ 265,000
Interest payments ! 1,343 1,343 1,343 1,343 1,343 15,451 22,166
Operating lease payments on facilities and
equipment leases 2 24,570 24,650 24,371 24,250 21,864 67,665 187,370
Minimum royalty guarantee paymenis to
contributors of imagery ? 9,388 9,022 6,393 3,232 2,438 —_ 30,473
Other purchase commitments 11,739 5,204 1,215 180 18 — 18,356
Total contractual obligatiens $ 47,040 $ 40,219 $ 33322 $ 29,005 §$ 25,663 $ 348,116 $ 523,365

1 Figures assume that the convertible subordinated debentures are repaid upon maturity in 2023, which may or may not reflect future events.
Under the terms of the indenture, the holders may require us 1o redeem the debentures in 2008, 2013 and 2018. See discussion of these
circumstances and the natice of default received due 1o missing the filing deadiine for our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended Seplember 30, 2006 in Note 6,

2 Qffselting these operating lease payments will be receipts for subleased facilities in the amounts of (in thousands) $2,688, $1,729, $1,844,
$£1,305, $257 for the years ending December 31, 2007, 2008, 2009, 2010, 2011, respectively. See Subsequent Events in Note 15 far
information Gn new subleases that will increase sublease income above the amounls presented here.

3 Qffsetting these minimum royally guaraniee payments Lo contributors of imagery will be minimum guaranteed receipts from contribulors in
the amount of {in thousands) $2,054. $2,179, $1,508 for the years ending December 31, 2007, 2008, 2009, respectively .

Payments under purchase orders, certain sponsorships, donations and other commitments that are not enforceable and legally bind-
ing contraclual obligations are excluded from this table. Payments. guaranteed and contingent, under employment contracls are 2iso
excluded from this table because they do not constitule purchase commitments.

Contingencies
We indemnify certain customers from claims related to alleged infrtngements of the intellectual property rights of third parties, such
as claims arising from failure to secure model and property releases for images we license. The standard terms of these
indemnifications require us 10 defend those claims and pay related damages, if any. We typically mitigate this risk by securing all
necessary mode! and property releases for imagery for which we hold the Copyright, and by contractually requiring our contributing
photographers and other imagery partners 1o do the same prior 10 submitting any Imagery to us. We also require contributing
photographers, ather imagery partners and selters of businesses or image collections that we have purchased to indemnify us in cer-
tain circumstances in the event a claim arises in relation to an image they have provided or soid to us. Qur imagery partners are also
typically required o carry insurance policies for losses related to such claims. We do not record any liabilities for these
indemnifications until claims are made and we are able 10 assess the range of possible payments and available recourse {rom cur
imagery partners, as applicable. Historically, our exposure 1o such claims has been immaterial, as were our recorded liabilities for
intellectual property infringement at December 31, 2006 and 2005. As such, we believe the estimated fair value of these tiabilitles is
minimal.
In the ordinary course of business, we also enter into ceriain types of agreements that contingently require us to indemnify counter-
parties against third-party claims, These may include:

* agreements with vendars and suppliers, under which we may indemnify them against claims arising from our use of their products or serv-

ICES;
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« agreements with customers other than these licensing images, under which we may Indemnify them against claims arising from their use of
our products or services;

* agreemenis with delegates. under which we may indemnify them against claims &rising from their distribution of our products or services;

* real estate and equipment leases, under which we may indemnify lassors against third-party claims relating to use of their property;

» agreements with direciors and officers, under which we indemnify them to the full extent allawed by Delaware law against claims relating to
their service to us;

* agreements with purchasers of businesses we have sold, under which we may indemnify {he purchasess against claims arising from our
operation of the businesses prior to sale; and

= agreements with initial purchasers and underwriters of our securities, under which we indernnity them against claims relating to their partic-
ipation in the transactions.

The nature and terms of these indemnifications vary from contract to contract, and generally a maximurn obligation is not stated.
Because we are unable {0 estimate our potential obligation, and because we do not expect these indemnifications o have a material
adverse effect on our consolidated financial position, results of operations or cash flows, no related liabilities were recorded at
December 31, 2006 or 2005. We hold insurance policies that mitigate potential losses arising from certain indemnitications. and his-
toricakly, we have not incurred significant costs related to performance under these obligations.

NOTE B. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

No shares of preferred stock were issued at December 31, 2006 or 2005. However, our Hoard of Directors Is authorized to issue up 10
5 million shares of no par value preferred stack. Under the terms of our Arlicles of Incorgoration, the Board of Directors may
determine the rights, preferences, and terms of our authorized but unissued shares of praferred stock without further action by stock-
hotders. This authority may have the effect of making it more difficult for a third party to acquire, or of discouraging a third party from
attempting to acquire, centrol of our company.

Efective May 22, 2006, our Board of Directors approved an amendment to our share repurchase program authorizing the répurchase
of shares of our common stock with an aggregate vatue of up to $250 million, an increas: from the prior authorization of $150 milticn.
During 2006, we repurchased a total of 3.5 million shares for $207.7 million under the amended plan, These repurchases occurred in
the open market pursuant to a trading plan under Rule 10b5-1 of the Securilies Exchange Act of 1934, This program was suspended
in November 2006 after we did not file our third quarter Form 10-Q by the required filing date. The stock repurchase program will be
reviewed after we become current with our SEC filings and a decision will be made at that time whether 10 continue with the program
and at what tevel.

Comprehensive income

Comprehensive income consisted of the following during the pericds presented:

2005 2004
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31. 2006 restated restated
(In thousands}
Net income $ 130,428 % 149,361 $ 106,412
Net unrealized gains {losses) on revaluation of long-term intercompany balances, net of taxes 15,988 (23,508) 8,943
Net foreign currency translation adjustment gains {losses) 38,778 {1,487} (2,714)
Net unrealized gains (1055es) on shorl-term investments 4,023 (1.827) {2,316)
Deferred taxes on net unrealized galns gn short-term investments —_ — 46
Total comprehensive income % 189,217 % 122,539 § 110,371

In connection with the acquisition of Digilal Vision in the second quarter of 2005, a new $155.0 million long-term intercompany loan
payable was established on the books of a subsidiary whose functional currency is the British pounds. effectively doubling our UK.
subsidiaries’ exposure to the U.5. dollar through long-term intercompany i0ans. The reviluation of these loans due lo movements in
the U.S. doilar to British pound exchange rate caused the unrealized loss in 2005 and the gain in 2006 shown in the table above. The
significant translalion gain in 2006 was also due primarily to the strengthening of the British pound to the U.S. dollar.
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Accumulated other comprehensive income (los5) consisted of the following at the reported balance sheet dates:

2005

OECEMBER 31, 2008 rasisted
{In thousands)

Accumulated net unfealized gains on revaluation of long-term intercompany balances, net of taxes 317,262 3 1274

Accumulated net foreign currency translation adjustment gains (losses) 24,921 {13,857)

Accumulated net unrealized losses on short-term investments -— {4,023)

Total accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) $ 42,183 $ (16,608}

Realized gains and losses {on investments $o1d) transierred out of net unrealized losses on short-term investments and into invest-
ment income were insignificant in 2005 and $4.0 million in losses in 2006. Deferred taxes are not provided on unrealized foreign
exchange gains and losses on foreign currency denominated long-term intercompany balances of on transfation adjusiments, except
on long-term intercompany loans in the United Kingdom, because we expect that these investments in our foreign subsidiaries will be
permanent. |t is not practicable to calculate the unrecognized deferred tax liability for temporary dilferences related to these invest-
ments.

NOTE 9. EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION

Through our equlty-based compensation program, our Board of Directors is authorized to grant restricted stock units (RSUS), stock
options with exercise prices equal to no less than the market price of our comman stock on the grant date, and other stock-based
awards. Our equity-based compensation program is intended to attract, retain and motivate employees and directors of the company,
and to align stockholder ang employee interesis. We caonsider this program critical to our operation and productivily. All employees
are eligible to receive equily compensation through the program, though not all employees are issued equity-based compensation
each year.

A total of 16 million shares are autharized for issuance through our equity-based compensation program, of which approximately

1.8 miltion are available for future issuance as of December 31, 2006. Shares subject to RSUs or options that are forfeited, cancelied
or otherwise expire prios to vesting or exercise, as the case may be, are available for re-issuance. RSUs generally have a four-year
vesting schedule, with 25% vesting on each anniversary of the grant date. Stock options generally have a 10-year term and a four-year
vesting schedute, with 25% vesting on the firsi anniversary of the grant date and a pro rata portion of the remainder vesting monthly
over the remaining three years. However, we granted stack options 1o our chief executive officer in the second quarter of 2006 that
vest over four years, with 20%, 20%, 20% and 40% vesting on each subsequent anniversary of the grant dete. Stock options become
exercisable when vested and remain exercisable thrpugh the remainder of the term except that we generally cancel options 90 days
afier the gate of termination of the recipient’s employment or service with us.

On January 1, 2006, we adopted SFAS No. 123(R), “Share-Based Payment,” which generally requires that we expense stock options
using a fair-value-based method. This statement also requires that we reduce stock-based compensation expense by estimated for-
feitures. In connection with the adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) effective January 1, 2006, we have generally shifted from issuing stock
options to issuing restricted stock units (*RSUs™). We also changed our practice and began capitalizing equity-based compensation
with the adoption of SFAS Na, 123(R). For more informatign on {he accounting treatment under SFAS 123(R} see Note 3 section
“Equily-Based Compensation.”
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The lollowing table shows the impact af recording equily-based compensation on our 2006 results of operations:
Year anded
December 31,
2006

{In thousands, excepl per share amounts)

SFAS No. 123(R} equity-based compensation $ 16,142
Amounts capitalized as computer software developed lor internal use and contemporary itnagery {864)
Impact on income from operations 15,278
Income iax benefit (5,120}
Impact on net income $ 10,158
Impact on basic earnings per share $ 017
0.16

impact on diluted earnings per share

SFAS No. 123(R) requires us to disclose pro forma information as if we had adopted the fair-value method of accounting for employee
equity-based compensation prior 1o adoption of SFAS No. 123(R) on January 1, 2006. Under this method, compensation expense is
measured on all awards based on the fair value of the awards at the grant date. We used the acceterated method of expensing stock
options as delined in Financial Accounting Standards Board Interpretation Na. 28, »Accounting for Stock Appreciation Rights and
Other Variable Stock Option or Award Plans™ in our pro forma disclosures. The pro forma 2ffect on our nel income and earnings per
share of applying the fair-value method of accounting in 2005 (prior to adoption of SFAS No. 123(R)} would have been as follows:

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31.

2005
Rastated

2004
Restated

{In thousands. excepl per share ameunts)

Net income
As restated
Add: APB Opinion No. 25 empioyee equity-based compensation, net of income taxes
Deduct: SFAS No. 123 employee equity-based compensation, net of income 1axes

Pro forma net income

Basic earnings per share
As reported
Pro forma

Diluted earnings per share
As reported
Pro forma

Shares used in computing pro forma earnings per share
Basic
Diluted

$ 149,361 § 106412

754 322
(15,904) (8271

$ 134211 $ 98463
$ 243 % 1.80
2.18 1.67

$ 227 % 1.72
2.04 1.58
61,567 59.006
65,848 62,238
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Stock Optlons
The following table presents stock option activity for the past three years:

PART IV ITEM 15{A)

QUTSTANDING ERERCISABLE
Weighted Weighteo

Average Avarage

Number of Exerciza Number ot Exarcise
Shares Price Sharet Price

{In 1housands}

{In ihousands}

December 31, 2003 7,453 $ 2475 $ 5734 $23.12
Granted 504 55.22
Exercised (3,404) 21.72
Lapsed (212) 2995

December 31, 2004 4,341 30.42 3,162 26.44
Granted 1,018 82.01
Exercised (1,521) 27.76
Lapsed (118) 4231

December 31, 2005 3,720 45.26 2914 4296
Granted 250 62.25
Exercised (297} 26.96
Lapsed (254) 63.28

December 31, 2006 3,419 46,75 2,862 44,28

The following lable summarizes additional information relating to options cutstanding and oplions exercisable at December 31, 2006:

OPTIONS OUTSTANDING

OPTIONS EXERCISABLE

Waighted

Avarage Weighted Waighted
Remaining Average Average
Number o  Contractual Exercise Nymber of Exnrcise
RANGE OF EXERCISE PRICES Shares Lite Price Shares Price

{in thousends} (In yeara) (In thousands}
$ 988-%2543 615 295 $ 19.68 615 § 19.68
25.44 - 30.00 65 4.02 27.66 64 27.64
30.01 - 30.32 800 3.32 30.32 800 30.32
30.33 - 50.07 574 5.42 36.70 469 36.44
5008~ 73.53 599 8.44 61.41 198 60.47
73.54- 9265 766 8.70 83.33 716 83.18
9.88- 9265 3,419 572 46.75 2,862 44,28

The aggregate Intrinsit value of stock options exercised (the market price of our common stock at the time of exercise less the strike

price) for 2006 and 2005 was $11.2 million and $76.5 million, respectively.

During the second quartet of 2006, we issued 250,000 stock options to our chief executive officer at a grant date fair value of $27.67

per share. This fair value was calculated using a Black-Scholes single option valuation model with:
+ expecied share price volatility of 32%;
* aiisk lree rate of return of 4.54%;
« anexpected term of 7 years from the grant date; and

* no expected dividends.
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We calculated the expected share price volatility as the average of the actual historical valatitity of the markel price of our common
stock for a time period equal to the expected term of 1he stock option, Limited to the time period that our commaon Siock has been
tisted on the New York Stock Exchange (since November 6, 2002). The risk [ree rate of rewurn represents the implied yield available
on the oplicn grant date for 8 LS, Treasury zero-coupon issue with a term equal 10 the expected term of the stock options. We calcu-
lated the expecled lerm based on actual historical exercise and vesting history for our chief executive officer's awards adjusted for the
stock options he held at the grant date, which we assumed are exercised ratably over the remaining lives of the awards, We did not

issue any other steck options during 2006,

The weighted average estimated lair values of aptions granied during 2005 and 2004 were $20.82 and $23.09, respecttively.
weighted average estimated fair values were calculated using a Black-Scholes multiple option valuation model with forfeitures recog-

nized as they occurred and the following assumplions:

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2005 2004
Expected share price volatility 37% 53%
Risk free rate of return 3.67% 2.75%
Expected life of stock options 2 years from vest  1Ve - 2 years from vest
Expected rate of dividends None None
Restricted Stock Units ("RSUs"™}
The following table presents RSU activity for 2005 and 2006. There were no RSUs granteo prior to 2005.
Weighted.
Average

Numbar of  Grant Dale
Units Falr Value

December 31, 2004
Granted
Yested
Cancelled

December 31, 200%
Granted
Vested
Cancelled

December 31, 2006

{In thousands)
- % —
73 70.56
{11} 68.63
(3} 72.41
59 $ 70.83
799 66.57
(26) 65.11
(92) 74,58
740 % 65.64
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NOTE 10. BUSINESS SEGMENTS AND GEOGRAPHIC AREAS

Wwith the acquisition of iStockphoto, Inc. on February 9, 2006, we now operate the company in two segments, traditional licensing and
micropayments. However, we aggregate these two segments for reporting purposes because they have mel the aggregation criteria in
SFAS No. 131, “Disclosures about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information.”

Our revenue is generated through 2 diverse customer base, and there is no reliance on a single customer or small group of customers;
no customer represented 10% or more of our total revenue in the periods presented. Revenue Is summarized below based on custom-
ers’ billing addresses, with countries experiencing 5% or more of total revenue in a reportable period shown separately, Due to the
impact of foreign currency translation, these figures may not reflect the relative performance of the individual countries.

% of 2005 X of 2004 % of
YEARS ENDED OCECEMBER 21. 2006 Revenue Restated  Revanue Restated  Revanue
({In thousands. eacept percentiages)
United States $ 326,396 41% 5 313,147 43% § 276,219 44%
United Kingdom 111,539 14% 105,291 14% 90,893 15%
Germany 68,260 8% 60,116 a% 48,119 8%
France 48,230 6% 42,419 6% 36,405 6%
Rest of world 252,164 31% 212,203 29% 170,614 27%

Total revenue $ 806,589 100% $ 733,176 100% $ 622,250 100%

Tangible long-lived assets that may not be readily removed from the countries where they are located are computer hardware, iease-
hold improvements, furniture, fixtures, studio equipment and archival imagery {as archival imagery is often in analog format). These
assets are shown below, net of accumulated depreciation, with countries containing 5% or more of the total of thase assels shown
separately:

DECEMBER 31, 2006 200% 2004

(In thousands)

United States $ 24,044 $ 25,614 $ 26,221
Uniled Kingdom 20,261 18,714 21,221
Other 3,658 2,162 3,233

Total $ 47,963 §$ 47,490 $ 50,675

These reporled revenues and long-lived assets are subject to risks and uncertainties associated wilh doing business In foreign coun-
tries, including local, regional and global economic conditions, political instabitity, and changes in 2pplicable tax laws.

NOTE 11. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS
We coniribute to defined contribution retirement plans in which the majority of our emptoyees are able to participate.

We spansor ane defined contribution plan in the U.S., a 401(k} plan, in which all U.S. employees over 18 years of age may participate
at any time. We match 100% of participant contributions, up o the first 4% of each perticipant’s eligibte compensation (including
salary, bonuses and commissions), not (o exceed the Internal Revenue Service per person annual limitations. Employees vest immedi-
ately in our matching contributions.

With the exceplion of a [Imited number of legacy defined contribution plans provided to certain emploeyees in accordance with employ-
ment contracts, we $ponsor one defined contribution plan in the U.K. Employees may participate in this plan after three months of
employment and must contribute a minimum of 2% of their salary to matntain eligibility. We generally contribute 5% of each partic-
ipant’s salary o the plan.
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Qur contributions 1o these plans and other defined contribution plans worldwide totaled $5.2 mitlion, $4.8 miliion and $3.9 million In
2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively, and were expensed to selling. general and administrative expenses as incuried.

NOTE 12. RESTRUCTURING COSTS

In 2006, we recarded $27.3 million in restructuring costs, including $21.7 million for lgsses on leased propesty and related costs and
$5.6 million in severance related cosis.

On May 22, 2006, we decided to permanently exit cerlain subleased facilities in New York when the sublease agreements expired.
These facilities comprise approximately 145,800 square feet leased through an agreement with a termination date in 2015. We
recorded a charge of $16.8 million for the expected cost over the remaining term of this lease, write-off of leasehold improvernents
and adjustments lo deferred rent.

On Octaber 18, 2006, we began to implement a plan 1o realign resources of the company. ~hrough this realignment plan, we termi-
nated certain employees and consclidated within certain leased facilities in the fourth quarier of 2006. In connection with these
actions, we recognized $9.6 million of costs in the fourth quarter of 2006, comprised of $5.6 million of employee-related cosls and a
$4.0 million loss on teased lacilities including the expected cost gver the remaining term of this lease, write-off of leasehold improve-
ments, and adjustments 1o deferred rent. Of the employee-related costs. $3.8 million was paid in the fourth quarter and the remaining
$1.8 million was paid in the first quarter of 2007.

The remaining $900,000 of the restructuring charge relales to accretion expense on the abave charges and adjustments to previously
recorded losses on leased properlies.

Subsequent to December 31, 2006, all the excess space in New York and Seattle was subleased and this information has been fac-
tored into our accrual for losses on leased properties. Accordingly, we revised the charge i at we had previously recorded in our Guar-
terly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 2006 wilh the filing of our Amended Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A tor
the quarier ended June 30, 2006. The restructuring charge was reduced by $1.6 million in the Amended Quarterly Report on Form
10-Q/A and is reffected in the numbers above and in Nole 16. See Note 15 for more intormation.

NOTE 13. INCOME TAXES

Incame before income taxes is attributable to the following tax jurisdictions:

2008 2004
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 Restated Rustated
{In thousands)
United States $ 88,164 $ 190,889 $ 143,156
Foreign 116,512 39,212 30,706
Income befere Income taxes $ 204676 % 230,101 $ 173.862
The components of income lax expense were as follows:
2005 2004
YEARS €ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 festated Restated
(In thousands)
Current tax
U.S. federal and state $ (32,450} $ (2,128} $ (3.439)
Foreign (35,198} (7,891} (12,753}
Total current tax (67,648 (10,019} (16,192)
Deiarred tax
U.S. {ederal and stale (12,773}  (69,238) (52,941}
Foreign 6,173 (1,483) 1,683
Total delerred tax {6,600} (70,721) (51,258}

Incame {ax expense $ (74,248) § (BO,740) $ (67,450}
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Our recognized income tax expense differs from Ihe amount that would result by applying the U.S. statutory rate to income before
income taxes. A reconciliation of the difference follows:

2006 2005 2004

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, Restated  Rate Restated  Rate feststed  Rate
{In thousands)
Income tax expense based on the t.S. federal statutory rate $ (71,637} (35.0) % (80,535) (35.0) $ (60,852) (35.0)
State income tax expense, net of U.S. lederal income tax (2,822) (1.4) (5,179) 2.1 (4,708) (2.7}
Change in reserves 2N 0.1 4,726 2.1 - -
Change in valuation allowance {1,733) (0.9 (525 (0.2 (838) (0.5}
Other, net 1673 09 773 0.2 {1,052) (0.6}

Income tax expense $ (74,248) (36.3) % (80,790) (35.0) % (67.450) (38.8)

In 2006, we recorded & valuation allowance refating to capital losses incurred during the year. In 2005, we began lransitioning a por-
tion of our intellectua!l property ofishore 10 better serve our non-U.S$. customers. This transition enabled us 1o utilize some of our for-
eign tax credits, This combined with favorable developments In tax examinations resulled In the release of $4.7 million of tax reserves.

Our deferred tax asset valuation allowance changed as follows:

[in thousands}

December 31, 2003 $ 2,973
Additions expensed 838
Other additions ! 2,281

DPecember 31, 2004 $ 6,092
Additions expensed 525
Cther additions ? 486
Deductions * {408)

December 31, 2005 $ 6,695
Additions expensed 222
QOther additions ¢ . 1,511

December 31, 2006 $ 8.428

1 This amount relates to net operating loss carrylorwards of a company we acquired in 2004 that had not generated profits in years prior lo
acquisition.

2 This amount relates to net operating loss carryforwards of a company we acquired in 2005.
3 This amount refates to foreign tax ¢redits and foreign currency transiation losses.

4 This amouni relates to capilal losses incurred during the year,
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The components of our net deferred tax assets at the reported balance sheel dates are as fallows:

2008
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006 mstated
{In thousands)
Deferred tax assets related (o:
Net operating loss carryforwards $ 27,686 % 23605
Accrued fiabilities and allowances 28,304 21,029
Lease 10s5 accrual 9,175 —
Depreciation 5,566 5,790
Stock based compensation 5,402 1,089
Unrealized foreign exchange gains 747 940
Cther 4,482 4,125
Toial deferred tax assels 81,362 56,578
Deferred tax liabilities related to:
Long-term assels {37,661) (14,424)
Prepaid expenses and other (4,017} -
Interest on convertible subordinated debentures (31,7100 (22.860)
Total deferred tax liabilities {73,388) (37,284)
Total delerred laxes 7.974 19,294
Less deferred tax assets valuation allowance (8,428) {6,695)
Net deferred 1ax assets {liabillties} $ (454) $ 12,599

Our deferred tax assets al December 31, 2006 with respect 0 net Operating losses expire a5 [ollows:

Deferred  Nat Dperaling
Tax Loxs
Assets  Corryformards

{in thousands)

United States, expiring between 2013 and 2021 $ 565 $ 1,479
Foreign, expiring bewween 2007 and 2011 2,176 5176
Foreign, indefinite 24,945 83,149

Tolal $ 27686 % 89,804

Net tax benefiis of $1.5 million, $22.4 million, and $35.6 million associated with the exercise of employee stock options were recorded in
additional paid-in capital in 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Deferred U.S. federal income taxes are not provided for unremitled foreign earnings of our foreign subsidiaries because we expect those
earnings will be permanently reinvested. It is not practicable 10 calculate the unrecognized deferred tax liability for temporary differences
refated to these investmenis,

NOFE 14. ACQUISITIONS OF BUSINESSES

On April B, 2006, we purchased all of Ihe shares of Pixel Images Holdings Limited, the parent company of Star Media Limited (dba Stock-
byte} and Stockdisc Limited (dba Stockdisc) (collectively *Stockbyte®) for $135.0 miltion in net cash {excluding direct acquisition costs).
Stockbyte was a privately held stack photography agency based in Tralee, Ireland that licensed royalty-free imagery o its customers
through distributors, including Getty Images, Inc., and through its two websites, www.stockbyte.com and www.stockdisc.com. Prior to the
acquisition we had a significant number of Stockbyie’s images available for license through our Image Partner program. We have integrated
this business into ours, including redirecting both of their websites to www.gettyimages.com. The purchase was funded fram existing cash
and cash equivalents. The purchase price lincluding direct costs of the acquisition and liabilities assumed) was aliocated primarily 1o
goadwil! ($110.2 million) and identifiable intangible assets ($21.4 million).
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On February 8, 2006, we purchased all of the shares of iStockphoto, Inc., a privately held stock photography company located in
Calgary, Alberta, Canada, for $50.0 million in cash. iStackphoto, Inc. licenses royalty-free Imagery exclusively through its website
www.istockphoto.com, and is a leader in the micropayment licensing model (i.e. licensing imagery far as lijtle as one dollar), The
purchase was funded from existing cash and cash equivalents. The purchase price {(including direct costs of the acquisition and
tiabilities assumed) was allocated primarily to goodwill ($40.9 million) and identifiable intangible assets ($13.5 million).

We also completed the acquisition of Laura Ronchl, S.p.A, our ltalian delegate, in the second quarter of 2006 and Image One - Ges-
180 e Comerclalizagdo de Imagens, SA, our Portuguese delegale, in the fourth quarter of 20086.

On April 20, 2005, we acquired London-based Digital Vision Limiled (Digital Vision), one of the world's leading royalty-free photog-
raphy businesses, for a purchase price of $179.6 mitlion ($167.0 million of cash and $12.6 million of direct acquisition costs and
liabilities assumed). The majority of the purchase price was allocated to goodwill ($135.3 million) and identifiable intangible assets
($33.2 million}. Piior to the acquisition, we had a significant number of Digital Vision's images available {or license through our Image
Partner program. We acquired this company in order (o gbtain more wholly-owned imagery, which provides flexible licensing oppar-
tunities at a lower cost, as there are no associated rayallies.

On June 8, 2005, we acquired Amana America, inc., Amana Europe Limited and Iconica Limited {(collectively Photonica) for a pur-
chase price of $58.3 million {$48.1 million of cash and $10.2 milfion of direct acquisition costs and liabilities assumed). Photonica is
a rights-managed stock photography agency with its principal offices in New York and London. The majority of the purchase price was
allocated to goodwill ($41.4 million} and identiliable intangible assets ($11.6 million). We acquired this company to oblain access io
some of the world's leading collections of culting edge, high-end rights-managed imagery and some of the most talented photogra-
phers in Evrope, the United States and Japan.

On July 30, 2004, we acquired Imagenet Limited, a London-based distributor of digital publicity and marketing materials to media
companies, for a purchase price {including liabilities assumed) of £13.9 mitlion {approximately $25.2 milllon). The portion of the
purchase price allocated to goodwill was £10.6 million (approximately $19.2 miltion).

During 2006, 2005 and 2004, we also completed several other small acquisitions. All acquisitions were accounted for using the pui-
chase method of accounting and, accordingly, the results of operations of the acquired businesses since the respective dates of
acquisition are inctuded in our consolidated financial statements. None of the acquisitions were material, individually or in the
aggregate, 1o the company as a whole and, therefore, pro forma financial information is not presented.

NOTE 15. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Stock Option Review

As announced on November 9, 2006, we had received notice of an informal inquiry from the Securities and Exchange Commission
into aur historical stock option grant praclices, As 2150 announced on November 9, 2006, a Special Committee of the Board of Direc-
tors was established by our Board of Directors to conduct an independent investigation relating to our historical equity award grant
practices. Their review and the review conducted by the company were compieted in April 2007, prior to the filing of this Annual
Report of Form 10-K. As a result of the review, we are restaling prior years financial statements through this Annual Report on Form
10-K and recorded $27.2 million in additiona! equity compensation expense from 1998 to 2003. The SEC inquiry is ongoing and we
are caoperating fully with the SEC.

Financing

On March 19, 2007, we entered into an agreement with U.S. Bank Natianal Association (*U.5. Bank"), as Administrative Agent and
Sole Lead Arranger, for a 364-day senior unsecured revolving credit facility (the "Facility™). The Facility initially makes $200 million
available for borrowing but includes a leature that allows us 1o increase the available funds to $350 million within the first six months
of the term of the Facility, provided there shall not have occurred any material agverse change in the business, assets, condition
(financial or otherwise), operations, results of operations or prospects of the company from June 30, 2006 through Lhe date the
company exercises ils rights 10 increase the available funds. Funds drawn down under the Facility may be used for general corporate
purposes, including for acquisitions, redemption or repayment of alt or a portion of our existing $265 miltion of 0.5% convertible
subordinated debentures, and working capital requirements. On April 18, 2007, we drew down $80 million under the Facility to fund,
in part, the acquisition of MediaVast, Inc.
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The interest rate on funds drawn down under the Facilily ranges from LIBOR plus 0.60% 1o 0.75% depending on our leverage ratio.
We will be charged 0.125% 10 0.15% on funds avallable {initially $200 million and ultimately $350 million should we elect to increase
the available funds} but not drawn down. The Facility requires us to maintain a maximum leverage ratio of 2.75 throughout its term,
Our leverage ratio is defined as our total interest bearing debt divided by a trailing four quarter average of our earnings belore inlerest
expense, income 1ax expense, depreciation, amortization. non-cash items lincluding equity-based compensation expense} and any
non-recurring items.

The Facility is subject to customary events of default, including events of default on our other cutstanding debt, as appiicable, upon
the occurrence of which we would be required to immediately repay any funds drawn down under the Facility.

Fees paid in connection with the establishment of the Facility are deferred and amortized 10 interest expense oves the term of the
Facility.

Acquisitions

On April 25, 2007, we purchased ali the shares ol MediaVast, Inc. for approximately $202 million in net cash. MediaYast, Inc.,
located in New York, New York, is an entertainment pholography campany, which licenses imagery primarily under the brand name
Wire Image. The majority of the purchase price is expecled to be allocated to goodwill ard other intangible assets.

We also purchased several other small companies subsequent to December 31, 2006.

Restructuring

On March 16, 2007, we entered inlo a sublease agreement with New York Magazine Holdings, L.L.C. (New York Holdings), for 72,843
square leet of our excess Jeased space in, New York. NY. On May 3, 2007, we entered Into a sublease agreement with Cardinia Real
Estate, L.L.C. (Cardinia} for the remaining 72,960 square feet of cur excess leased facilities in New York. Both of these sublease
agreements span the remainder of our lease term.

On May 14, 2007, we entered into a sublease agreement with Google, Inc. {Google), for lhe remainder of our excess leased facilities
in Sealtle, WA. Google will sublease approximately 56,000 square feet at our Seatile offices, for a term beginning June 1, 2007 and
ending August 11, 2013. the end of our lease term.

These sublease agreements have been factored into our 2006 acerual for fosses on leased properties. See Note 12 for additional
information.

NOTE 16. SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

The quarterly supplemental financial data in the lable below has been restated, except far the third and fourth quarters of 2006, See
Note 2 for additional information on the restatement due to our equily compensalion grant practices review, deferred taxes related 1o
certain long-term intercompany loans and adjustments to revenue and deferred revenue and see Note 12 for additional information on
the revision of the restructuring charge in the second quarter of 2006. The schedules below the table provide reconciliations for each
period that has been restated.

First Sacond Third Fourth
quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
restatad restated restated ! regtited ¥

{in thousands, except per share amounts)

Year ended December 31, 2006
Revenue $ 200,429 § 204,608 $ 187917 $ 203,635
Cost of revenue ! 52,266 50,681 50.298 53,515
Income from operations 58,628 41,1663 54,192 44,1054
Income before income laxes 62,334 389183 56,278 47,1464
Net income 39,039 23,1673 37,326 30,8664
Basic earnings per share 0.63 0.382 0.62 0.524

Diluted earnings per share 0.60 0.372 0.62 0514




F-38 GETTY IMAGES. INC.

2006 FORM 10-K

PART I¥  ITEM 15{(A)

Flrst Second Third Fourth
Quartar Quartsr Guartsr Quarter
restated restated testated | restatad ?
(In thousands. except per share amounts}
Year ended December 31, 2005
Revenue $ 178,084 $ 185,100 $ 184,325 § 185666
Cost of revenue 2 51,254 49,495 47,510 48,627
income from operations 53,535 55,303 58,526 58,014
income before income taxes 54,972 52,631 61,344 61,154
Net income 34,102 33,863 38,942 42,454
Basic earnings per share 0.56 0.55 0.63 0.68
Diluted earnings per share 0.54 0.53 0.59 0.64

) Restated except for the third 2nd fourth quarter of 2006,

2 See discussion of our accounting policy for cost of revenue in Note 3.

3 In the second quarter of 2006, we recorded $16.8 million in restructuring charges related to permanently exiting certain leased facilities in
New York, See Note 12 for additional Information.

« In the fourth quarter of 2006, we recerded $9.6 million in restructuring charges, consisting of $4.0 million related to permanently exiting
certain leased facilities in Seatfle and $5.6 millian in severance retated 10 a realignment of resources. See Note 12 for additional information,

Restatement of First Quarters Condensed Consclidated Statements of Income

QUARTERS ENDED MARCH 31, 2006 2005
As previously A3 As previcusly As
reported  Adjustmants rustated reparted  Adjustments resiated

(in thousands, except per share data)
Revenue $ 200,929 $ (500} $ 200,429 % 178,094 $(10) $ 178,084
Costs of revenue {exclusive of items shown separately

below) 52,266 — 52,266 51,254 -_ 51,254
Selling, general and administrative expenses 74,275 —_ 74,275 60,054 - 60,054
Depreciation 12,258 — 12,258 12,035 _ 12,035
Amortization 3,731 —_ 3,731 1.222 — 1,222
Other operating expenses {income) {729) - (729} (16) - (16}

Operating expenses 141,801 - 141,801 124,549 - 124,549
Income from operations 59,128 (500) 58,628 53,545 {(10) 53,535
Investment income 4,016 — 4,016 2.889 -— 2,889
interest expense {357) — (357} (962) — {962)
Other non-operating expenses, net 47 —_ 47 (450) - {490)
Income before income 1axes 62,834 (500) 62,334 54,982 (10) 54,972
Income iax expense {23,486) 191 (23,295) (20,874) 4 (20,870}
Net income $ 39,348 $ (309) $ 39,039 $ 34,108 $ (6) 5 34,102
Earnings per share:

Basic 3 0.63 $ - ¢ 063 ¢ 0.56 $ — % 0.56

Diluted 0.61 {0.01) 0.60 0.54 — 0.54
Shares used in computing earnings per share:

Baslc 62,328 — 62,328 60,944 — 60,944

Biluted 64,955 — 64,955 63,692 — 63.692
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March 31, 2005

At Previously As As Previousty As
Reported  Adjustments Rustated fAeportsd  Adjustmenis Rustated
(in thousands, axcepl per share data) -
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 309,414 % — % 309414 § 274,589 — 3 274589
Short-term investments 213,052 — 213,032 298,154 - 298,154
Accounts receivable, net 116,442 - 116,442 100,632 - 100,632
Prepaid expenses 13,485 - 13,435 8.382 —_ B,382
Deferred income taxes, net -— — — 8,335 24] 8,576
QOther current assels 4,535 —_ 4515 2,687 — 2,687
Total currenl assets 656,928 - 656,928 692,779 241 693,020
Property and equipment, net 133,584 — 133,534 107,666 — 107,666
Goodwilt 847,721 — Ba7,721 628,073 — 628,073
lgentiliable intangible assets, net 60.372 — 60,372 12,567 - 12,567
Deferred income taxes, net 25,354 1,295 26,619 41,844 (8,907) 32,937
Cther long-term assets 3,846 — 3816 9,801 — 9.801
Total assets $1,727.805 $ 1295 § 1,729, “29 1,492,730 (8.666) 1,484,064
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'
EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 77,062 % — & 77082 § 74,108 — § 74,108
Accrued expenses 28,319 - 28,319 31,209 — 31,209
Income taxes payable 7,678 2,398 10,076 5,252 — 5,252
Deferred income taxes, net 18,523 (640) 17,883 — — —
Other current liabilities 7.133 1,674 8,807 — 631 631
Shon-lerm debt 265,000 — 265,000 —_ —_ -
Total currer liabililies 403,705 3,432 407,137 110,569 631 111,200
Long-1erm debl _— — - 265,000 — 265,000
Long-term liabilities 31,623 — 31,623 10,254 - 10,254
Tota! liabilities 435,328 3.432 438,760 385,823 631 386.454
Commitments and onlingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock 624 — 624 611 — 611
Additional paid-in ¢apital 1,284,437 18,241 1,302,678 1,225,371 20,246 1,245,617
Retained Earnings (Accumulated deficit) 20,448 {20,378) 70 (134,495) {19,733) (154,228}
Accumulated other comprehensive income (13,032) - {13,042} 15,420 (98100 5,610
Total stockholders' equity 1,292,477 {2,137) 1,250,340 1,106,907 {9.297) 1,097,610
Total liabitities and stockholders' equity $ 1727805 $ 1,295 % 1.729,10 § 1,492,730 % (B,666) $ 1,484,064
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Masch 31, 200%

As Praviousty As As Previously As
Reported  Adjustmenis Restated Reported  Adjusimants Restated
tin thousands, wxcept per shars data)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 309414 § — $ 309414 §& 274589 % — 3 274,589
Short-term invesiments 213.052 - 213,052 298,154 —_ 298,154
Accounts receivable, net 116,442 - 116,142 100,632 - 100,632
Prepaid expenses 13,485 — 13,185 8,382 -_ 8,382
Deferred income taxes, net — —_ - 8,335 241 8,576
Other cuirent assets 4,535 —_ 4,535 2,687 — 2.687
Total current assets 656,928 — 656,928 692,779 241 693,020
Property and equipment, net 133,584 — 133,584 107,666 — 107,666
Goodwill 847,721 — 847,721 628,073 — 628,073
identifiable intangible assets, net 60,372 — 60,372 12,567 — 12.567
Deferred income taxes, net 25,354 1.295 26,649 4]1.844 {8.907) 32,937
Other long-term assets 3,846 - 3,346 9,801 — 9.801
Total assels $ 1,727,805 ¢ 1,295 § 1,729,100 1,492,730 (8,666) 1,484,064
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLODERS'
EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 77.052 % - § 77052 % 74,108 3% — § 74,108
Accrued expenses 28,319 — 28,319 31,209 —_ 31,209
Income taxes payable 7,678 2,398 10,076 5,252 — 5,252
Deferred income taxes, net 18,523 (640) l7.383' - — —
Other current liabilities 7,133 1,674 8,307 - 631 631
Short-term debt 265,000 - 265.010 — — _
Total current liabilities 403,705 3,432 407,137 110,569 63} 111,200
Long-term debt — —_ — 265,000 — 265,000
Long-term liabilities 31,623 — 31,623 10,254 —_ 10,254
Total liabilities 435,328 3432 438,760 385,823 631 386,454
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders' equity:
Common stock 624 — 824 611 - 611
Additional paid-In capital 1,284,437 18,241 1,302,578 1,225,371 20,246 1,245,617
Retained Earnings {Accumulated deficit) 20,448 (20,378) 70 {134,495 (19,733) (154,228}
Accumulated other comprehensive income {13,032) — (l3,|?£) 15,420 {9,810 5,610
Total stockholders' equity 1,292,477 (2,137) 1,290,340 1,106,907 {9,297) 1,097,610
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 1,727,805 § 1,295 $ 1,729,100 $ 1,492,730 $ (B.666) § 1,484,064
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QUARTERS ENDED JUNE 30, 2005 2005
As praviously As As
reported  Adjustments restated Adjustments restated
(in thousends, except par shaze data)
Revenue $204,771 $ (163) $ 204,608 $ (205) $ 185,100
Costs of revenue (exclusive of items shown separately
below) 50,681 — 50,681 — 49,495
Sefling, general and administralive expenses 77,861 - 77,861 —_ 64,908
Depreciation 13,260 - 13,260 — 12,296
Amortization 5,182 —_ 5,182 — 2,455
Restructuring costs 18,092 {1,600) 16,492 — -
Other operating expenses (Income) (34) —_ (34) — 643
Qperaling expenses 165,042 (1,600)  163.442 —_ 129,797
Income from operations 39,729 1,437 41,166 {205) 55,303
Investmenl incame (1,203} - (1,203) —_ 3,038
Interest expense (377) — (377) —_ 15,850
Other non-operating expenses, net (668) — (668} - 140
Income before income taxes 37,481 1,437 38,918 (205 52,631
Income 1ax expense (15,202} (549) {15,751} 78 (18,768)
Net income $ 22279 $ B88 $ 23167 $ 33990 $ (127) $ 33863
Earnings per share:
Basic 3 036 $ 002 % 0.38 055 % - % 0.55
Diluted 0.35 0.02 0.37 — 0.53
Shares used in computing earnings per share:
Basic 61,508 — 61,508 —_ 61,330
Diluted 62,902 —_ 62,902 —_ 64,425
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Restatement of Second Quarters Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheels

June 30, 2006 June 30, 2005
Ax Previously As As Previously as
Reported AdJustments Restated Aepotted Adjustments Restated
(in thousands, #xcept per share data)
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 259.460 3 — 3 259430 % 11765 % — % 117,65
Short-term investments — — — 301,184 - 301.184
Accounts receivable, net 124,324 — 124,324 101,518 -— 101,518
Prepaid expenses 16,927 — 16,927 11,713 - 11,713
Deferred income taxes, net 9,715 {1,423) 8,232 8,335 315 8,654
Other current assets 7,183 —_ 7.183 3,835 — 3,835
Total current assels 417,609 (1.423) 416,136 544,241 319 544,560
Property and equipment, net 148,788 (2,076) 146,712 115,407 - 115,407
Goodwill 984,289 — Q84,239 794,110 - 794,110
tdentifiable intangible assets, net 84,340 - 84,340 53,804 — 53,804
Deferred income laxes. net — —_ — 22,241 {4.842) 17,399
Other long-term assels 2,012 - 2,012 4,665 - 4,665
Total assets $ 1637038 $§ (3.499) $ 1,633,539 $ 1534468 $ (4,523) $ 1,529,945
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS'
EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 85884 ¢ — % 85834 $ B2582 % — 3 82582
Accrued expenses 40,521 (5.563} 34,958 34,104 - 34,104
Income taxes payable — 2,398 2,338 1,131 — 1,131
Other current liabilities 8,106 1.837 9,943 —_ B36 836
Short-term debt — — -— 265,000 —_— 265,000
Total current liabilities 134,511 (1.328) 133,133 382,817 B36 383,653
Long-term debt 265,000 - 265,000 — — -
Other long-term liabilities 43,226 (627) 42,539 11,680 — 11,680
Total liabitities 442,737 {1,955) 440,732 394,497 836 395,333
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock 625 — 625 615 — 615
Additional paid-in capital 1,263,083 17.946 1,311,029 1,242,244 18,550 1,260,794
Repurchased common stock (161,449) — [16],449) — —_ -—
Retained earnings (accumulated deficit) 42,727 {19,430) 23,237 (100,50%) {19,860} {120,365}
Accumulated other compréhensive
income {loss) 19,315 — 19,315 (2,383} (4,049) {6,432)
Total stockholders' equity 1,194,301 (1,544) 1,192,757 1,139,971 (5,359) 1,134,612
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 1,637,038 § (3499 $ 1,633,539 $ 1534468 $ {4,523) $ 1,529,945
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Restatement of the 2005 Third Quarters Condensed Consolidated Statement of income
QUARTER ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2005
As previously A
reported  Adjustments restated
{in thousands. eacept par share dals)
Revenue $ 184,516 $ (191) $ 184,325
Cosls of revenue (exclusive of items shown separately below) 47,510 — 47,510
Selling, general and administrative expenses 63,309 —_ 63,309
Depreciation 11,759 -— 11,759
Amortization 2,744 — 2,744
Other operalting expenses (income} 477 — 477
Operating expenses 125,799 —_ 125,799
Income from operations 58,717 (191) 58,526
Investment income 2,787 -_— 2,187
Inlerest expense {433) —_ (433)
Other non-operaling expenses, net 464 — 464
Income before income taxes 61,535 {191) 61,344
Income tax expense (22,475) 73 (22,402}
Net ingome $ 39060 $ (118) $ 38942
Earnings per share:
Basic $ 063 $ - 5 063
Diluteg 0.60 {0.01) 0.5¢
Shares used in compuling earnings per share:
Basic 61,820 — 61,820
Diluted 65,622 - 65,622
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Restatement of the 2005 Third Quarter Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet

Seplember 30, 2005

As Previously A3
Ruported  Adjusiments Realated
(in thousands, excapt per share data}
ASSETS
Current assels:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 151,238 % — $ 151,238
Short-term invesiments 300,320 —_ 300,320
Accounts receivable, net 110,600 - 110,600
Prepaid expenses 12,112 — 12,112
Deferred income taxes, net 8,335 392 8,727
Other current assets 3,853 — 3,853
Total current assets 586,458 392 586,850
Property and equipment, net 128,797 - 128,797
Goodwill 809.210 — 809,210
ldentifiable intangible assets, net 54,249 — 54,249
Deferred income taxes, net 9,307 {3,778} 5,529
Other long-term assets 4,515 —- 4,515
Totai assets $ 1,592,536 § (3,386) $ 1,589,150
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current llabilities:
Accounts payable % 7485 9% - % 74,856
Accrued expenses 42,565 — 42,565
Income tax payable 102 — 102
Other current liabililies — 1,027 1,027
Short-term debt 265,000 - 265,000
Total current liabilities 382,523 1,027 383,550
Long-term liabilities 12,021 —_ 12,021
Total liabilities 394,544 1.027 395,571
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock 521 — 621
Additional paid-in Capital 1,265,817 18,290 1,284,107
Accumulated deficit {61,445) {19.978} (81,423)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss {7,001} {2,725) (9,726}
Total slockholders' eguily 1,197,992 {4,413) 1,193,579

Tota! liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 1,592,536 $ (3,386) $ 1,589,150
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